POSTPONED F	ROM
-------------	-----

7/24/2018

PLONC SCHOOL
ITEM No.:
JJ-13.

AGENDA REQUEST FORM

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

School	MEETING DATE	2018-08-07 10:05 - School Board Operational Meeting	Special Order Request
No.:	AGENDA ITEM	ITEMS	Time
13.	CATEGORY	JJ. OFFICE OF FACILITIES & CONSTRUCTION	THING
	DEPARTMENT	Facilities Pre-Construction	Open Agenda • Yes O No

TITLE:

Award of Professional Services Continuing Contracts for Surveying Services for Various Consultants - RFQ 17-113C

REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve the recommendations made by the Qualification Selection Evaluation Committee on January 26, 2017, as outlined in Exhibit 1, which includes award of Professional Services Continuing Contracts, for RFQ 17-113C, Surveying Services.

SUMMARY EXPLANATION AND BACKGROUND:

Award Professional Services Continuing Contracts for Surveying Services for the following consultants: Miller, Legg & Associates, Inc., Engenuity Group, Inc., F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc., and Keith and Schnars, P.A.

The Professional Liability Insurance has been agreed upon pursuant to Part 5 - Article 3 of the Agreement. Risk Management has approved the insurance including the Professional Liability Insurance.

These Agreements have been reviewed and approved as to form and legal content by the Office of the General Counsel.

SCHOOL BOARD GOALS:

O Goal 1: High Quality Instruction 💿 Goal 2: Continuous Improvement 🚫 Goal 3: Effective Communicati	ion
---	-----

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Financial impact to the District will be \$3,000,000 in fees and a duration of three (3) years plus two (2) one year extensions with a limit of \$1,000,000 in additional fees per year. The source of funding is the Adopted District Educational Facilities Plan and the General Fund Budgets.

EXHIBITS: (List)

BOARD ACTION:	SOURCE OF ADDITIONAL IN	FORMATION:	
APPROVED	Name: Shelley N. Meloni, E	Director	Phone: 754-321-1515
(For Official School Board Records Office Only)	Name: Robert C. Corbin, C	BRE I Heery Director	Phone: 754-321-4850
THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWAR Senior Leader & Title	D COUNTY, FLORIDA	Approved In Open Board Meeting On:	AUG 0 7 2018
Leo Bobadilla - Chief Facilities Officer		Board Meeting Ch.	Mora Rupa
Signature			School Board Chair
Leo Bobadilla Jr			
7/16/2018 5:43:58 PN	1		

EXHIBIT 1

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Professional Services Continuing Contracts Surveying Services Miller, Legg & Associates, Inc. – Engenuity Group, Inc. – F.R. Aleman and Associates, Inc. – Keith and Schnars, P.A. RFQ 17-113C

PROJECT OVERVIEW:

Type of Contract:	Professional Services Continuing Contracts
Consultant(s):	See list of four (4) firms listed below
Authorization to Proceed Date:	TBD for Projects as Assigned
Budget:	See Contract terms below

GENERAL OVERVIEW:

Board approval to advertise RFQ 17-113C was received at the October 18, 2016 Board meeting (Agenda item J-8). The intent of this RFQ is to procure Continuing Contracts for Surveying Services for projects, as assigned, with fees to be paid to the consultant for all projects pursuant to the agreement up to a maximum of \$3,000,000 over the life of the initial three (3) year contract. The agreement may be extended by two (2) additional, one (1) year periods with a limit of one million dollars (\$1,000,000) in fees per year extension.

On January 10, 2017, a total of five (5) proposals were received. The Qualification Selection Evaluation Committee ("QSEC") meeting was held on January 26, 2017. The Recommendation/Tabulation to award Surveying Services to the four (4) highest ranked firms was posted on January 30, 2017. Note: One firm submitted a late qualification statement. As such, that qualification was not opened and was not presented to the Evaluation Committee for review and scoring. Negotiations were concluded during the Summer of 2017. These contracts were initially intended to be submitted to the Board for approval in August 2017. At that time, a decision was made to delay request for approval and reformat the agreements to better align the specific language of the agreements to the services offered and defined in the Consultant's submittals. That work has been completed. The need for these services still exist and will continue to be present in the future. Verification of this need has been received from Physical Plant Operations, Environmental Health and Safety, as well as the Office of Facilities and Construction. Consequently, in addition to the services required for SMART Program Projects, there is an ongoing requirement from BCPS operations for the same services. As such, Board approval is requested to approve QSEC recommendations and to award Continuing Contracts Surveying Services Agreements to the following Four (4) successful Consultant(s):

First Ranked Proposer:	Miller, Legg & Associates, Inc.
Second Ranked Proposer:	Engenuity Group, Inc.
Third Ranked Proposer:	F.R. Aleman and Associates, Inc.
Fourth Ranked Proposer:	Keith and Schnars, P.A.

Upon approval by the Board, Staff will initiate Roofing Services for projects, as assigned, up to a maximum of \$3,000,000 in fees per consultant over the life of the initial contract. It is essential to note that the award of this contract is not a guarantee of work to be assigned to any one consultant, neither is it a guarantee of a quantity of work, as work is ultimately assigned according to the needs of the District.

These Agreements have been reviewed and approved as to form and legal content by the Office of the General Counsel.

EXHIBIT 2

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Procurement & Warehousing Services

ITB / RFP/ RFQ No.:	17-113C	Tentative Board Meeting Date*:	July 24, 2018
Description:	PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTINUING	Notified: <u>592</u>	Downloaded: 31
	CONTRACT FOR SURVEYING	ITB / RFP/ RFQ Rec*d:5	No. Bids: 0
For:	OFFICE OF FACILITIES AND CONSTRUCTION	ITB / RFP/ RFQ Opening:	UARY 10, 2017
Fund:	ADEFP/SMART	Advertised Date: OC	TOBER 24, 2016
		Award Amount: N/A	L

POSTING OF ITB / RFP/ RFQ RECOMMENDATION/TABULATION: ITB / RFP/ RFQ Recommendations and Tabulations will be posted in the Procurement & Warehousing Services and www.Demandstar.com on JANUARY 30, 2017 @ 2:00 pm_and will remain posted for 72 hours. Any person who is adversely affected by the decision or intended decision shall file a notice of protest, in writing, within 72 hours after the posting of the notice of decision or intended decision shall be filed within ten (10) days after the date the notice of protest is filed. Failure to file a notice of protest or failure to file a formal written protest shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under this chapter. Section 120.57(3)(b), Florida Statutes, states that "The formal written protest shall be excluded in the computation of the 72-hour time period provided. Filings shall be at the office of the Director of Procurement & Warehousing Services, 7720 West Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323, Sunrise, Florida 3351. Any person who files an action protesting an intended decision shall post with the School Board, at the time of filing the formal written protest, a bond, payable to The School Board of Broward County, Florida, (SBBC), in an amount equal to one percent (1%) of the estimated value of the contract. Failure to post the bond required by SBBC Policy 3320, Part VIII, Purchasing Policies, Section N, within the time allowed for filing a bond shall constitute a waiver of the right to protest.

(*) The Cone of Silence, as stated in the ITB / RFP/ RFQ, is in effect until this ITB / RFP/ RFQ is approved by SBBC. The Board meeting date stated above is tentative. Confirm with the Purchasing Agent of record for the actual date the Cone of Silence has concluded.

RECOMMENDATION TABULATION

STAFF SHALL NEGOTIATE CONTRACTS WITH A MAXIMUM OF FOUR (4) OF THE HIGHEST-RANKED FIRMS FOR CONTINUING OFESSIONAL SERVICES AT COMPENSATION WHICH STAFF DETERMINES IS FAIR, COMPETITIVE, AND REASONABLE. SHOULD STAFF BE UNABLE TO NEGOTIATE SATISFACTORY CONTRACTS WITH ANY OF THE FOUR (4) HIGHEST-RANKED FIRMS, NEGOTIATIONS WITH THAT FIRM OR FIRMS WILL BE FORMALLY TERMINATED.

NOTE: ONE FIRM SUBMITTED A LATE QUALIFICATION STATEMENT. AS SUCH, THAT QUALIFICATION STATEMENT WAS NOT OPENED AND WAS NOT PRESENTED TO THE EVALUATION COMMITTEE FOR REVIEW AND SCORING.

MILLER LEGG - FIRST RANKED

ENGENUITY GROUP, INC. - SECOND RANKED

F.R. ALEMAN & ASSOCIATES, INC. - THIRD RANKED

KEITH & SCHNARS - FOURTH RANKED

UPON SUCCESSFUL NEGOTIATION WITH EACH FIRM, SEPARATE CONTRACTS SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO THE SCHOOL BOARI	3
OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA FOR APPROVAL AND AWARD TO EACH APPLICABLE FIRM.	

By:

(Purchasing Agent)

Date;

1120/17

The School Board of Broward County, Florida, prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender expression, national origin, matilal status, race, religion, sex or sexual orientation. Individuals who wish to file a discrimination complaint, may call the Executive Director, Benefits & EEO Compliance at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) at 754-321-2158.

Individuals with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may call the Equal Educational Opportunities (EEO) at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) at 754-321-2158.

REVISED: 3/10/2016



AGENDA REQUEST FORM

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

Vie schoo	MEETING DATE	2018-07-24 10:05 - Regular School Board Meeting	Special Order Request
<u>M No.:</u>	AGENDA ITEM	ITEMS	Time
JJ-6.	CATEGORY	JJ. OFFICE OF FACILITIES & CONSTRUCTION	11114
	DEPARTMENT	Facilities Pre-Construction	Open Agenda
с.			

TITLE:

Award of Professional Services Continuing Contracts for Surveying Services for Various Consultants - RFQ 17-113C

REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve the recommendations made by the Qualification Selection Evaluation Committee on January 26, 2017, as outlined in Exhibit 1, which includes award of Professional Services Continuing Contracts, for RFQ 17-113C, Surveying Services.

SUMMARY EXPLANATION AND BACKGROUND:

Award Professional Services Continuing Contracts for Surveying Services for the following consultants: Miller, Legg & Associates, Inc., Engenuity Group, Inc., F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc., and Keith and Schnars, P.A.

The Professional Liability Insurance has been agreed upon pursuant to Part 5 - Article 3 of the Agreement, Risk Management has approved the insurance including the Professional Liability Insurance.

These Agreements have been reviewed and approved as to form and legal content by the Office of the General Counsel.

SCHOOL BOARD GOALS:

O	Goal 1: High Quality Instruction	\odot	Goal 2: Continuous Improvement	С	Goal 3: Effective	Communication
---	----------------------------------	---------	--------------------------------	---	-------------------	---------------

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Financial impact to the District will be \$3,000,000 in fees and a duration of three (3) years plus two (2) one year extensions with a limit of \$1,000,000 in additional ees per year. The source of funding is the Adopted District Educational Facilities Plan and the General Fund Budgets.

EXHIBITS: (List)

(1) Executive Summary (2) Recommendation Tabulation (3) Agreements - ONLINE (4) RFQ 17-113C - ONLINE

BOARD ACTION: POSTPONED	SOURCE OF ADDITIONAL INFORMATION:	· •
To August 7, 2018 School Board Operational Mtg	Name: Shelley N. Meloni, Director	Phone: 754-321-1515
(For Official School Board Records Office Only)	Name: Robert C. Corbin, CBRE I Heery Director	Phone: 754-321-4850
THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWAR Senior Leader & Title	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	JUL 2 4 2018
Leo Bobadilla - Chief Facilities Officer	Board Meeting On: By:	Mora Rupi
Signature		School Board Chair
Signature Leo Bobadilla Jr	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	School Board Chair

RWR/ LB/SNM/RC:ljc

AGREEMENT FOR OPEN END SERVICES

BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA AND CONSULTANT FOR SURVEYING CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made this, 24th day of July- in the year 2018, by and between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA (hereinafter called the "Owner" "SBBC" and/or "Board"), and:

MILLER, LEGG & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Hereinafter, "Consultant," for various projects. It is agreed that this Agreement is an "Open End" Agreement in that the Owner will from time to time during the term of this Agreement require services from the Consultant on various different projects with estimated construction costs that do not exceed the limit set forth in Section 287.055(2)(g), Florida Statutes as amended from time to time. Rather than enter into separate agreements each time that is required, the Owner and Consultant shall enter into this Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall govern each of the individual projects that the Consultant is hired to provide services for. Attached as Attachment 1 to this Agreement is a general "Scope of Work for Consulting Services," which has been negotiated and agreed upon by all parties. The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP"), Attachment 4, which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers. For each project, some or all of these Services will be part of the Scope of Work for that particular project. In addition, other services may be required.

The term of this Open-End Agreement commences on the date of this Agreement as set forth above; no new projects may be made part of this Open-End Agreement more than Three (3) years from the date of this Agreement. The total dollar amount for all fees to be paid to the Consultant for all projects pursuant to this Agreement may not exceed Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars over the life of the initial contract. The Agreement may be extended by Two (2) additional, one-year periods with a limit of One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per year extension. The Owner and Consultant agree as follows:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS
- ARTICLE 2 CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 3 SUB-CONSULTANTS
- ARTICLE 4 THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 5 BASIS OF COMPENSATION
- ARTICLE 6 PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT
- ARTICLE 7 INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE
- ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE
- ARTICLE 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS

ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS INTO AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
	(individual project invoices required)
Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (one per project)
	Professional Services Required - page 1 of 3 (one per project)
	Project Schedule - page 2 of 3 (one per project)
	Professional Fee – page 3 of 3 (one per project)
Attachment 5:	List of Project Team Members
	(one per project)
Attachment 6:	Document 00455 – Background Screening
Attachment 7:	IRS Form W-9
Attachment 8:	Truth in Negotiations Certificate
Attachment 9:	ACH Payment Agreement Form
Attachment 10:	Conflict of Interest Form
Attachment 11:	Staff Rate Breakdown for Design Professional Services

ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 The Office of Facilities & Construction ("Office" or "OFC"): The Owner's organizational entity which acts as liaison between the Consultant and Owner and provides day to day management and other professional services on the Owner's behalf. Various members of the Office of Facilities and Construction, acting as representatives of the Owner, will meet with the Consultant at periodic intervals throughout the preparation of the Contract Documents to assess the progress of the Work in accordance with approved schedules. Office personnel will also examine documents submitted by the Consultant, including invoices, and will promptly render decisions and/or recommendations pertaining thereto to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of the Consultant's work. The Project Manager shall be principally responsible for direct communication to the Consultant and the Contractor.
- 1.2 The Chief Facilities & Construction Officer, Office of Facilities & Construction: An employee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who has the authority and responsibility for oversight and management of all projects for the Owner. Referred to hereinafter as the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or Chief Facilities Officer.
- 1.3 Authorization to Proceed (ATP): A document in the form of Attachment 4 to this Agreement, accompanied by a fully-executed Purchase Order, issued by the Owner to the Consultant, authorizing the performance of specific professional services and commencement of a Phase as defined in Article 2.1 through Article 2.8, and stating the time for completion and the amount of fee authorized for such services.
- **1.4 Basic Services:** Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- 1.5 Other Basic Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- **1.6** Supplemental Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- 1.7 Consultant: The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, of properly registered and licensed professionals who has entered into a contract with the Owner to provide professional Surveying Consulting services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
- **1.8 Project Scope:** The activities necessary to respond to the Owner's requirements for the various projects, refer to Attachment 1.
- 1.9 **Project Budget:** The sum, established by the Owner, as available for the entire Project, including but not limited to the construction budget (Fixed Limit of Construction Cost ("FLCC")), land costs, costs of furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E), financing costs, compensation for all professional services, costs of Owner-furnished goods and services, contingency allowances and other similar established or estimated costs.
- 1.10 **Project Schedule:** The Owner's requirements for the progress of activities associated with the Project identified by milestones and required completion dates for Consultant services defined by this Agreement.
- 1.11 The Contract Documents: The Contract Documents as used herein refer to the Agreement Form, Exhibits, Attachments, Educational Specifications, including any and all modifications thereto, issued before and after execution of the Contract and all Exhibits

attached thereto used by the Owner to establish a construction contract with the Contractor. These Contract Documents, and their requirements for the Consultant are incorporated by reference into this Agreement. Refer to Article 10 for the provisions of the RFQ incorporated into the Agreement.

- 1.12 **Contractor:** The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, who has entered into a contract with the Owner for construction of schools, administrative and support buildings, or various other types of facilities and incidents thereto.
- 1.13 **Program Manager:** CBRE Heery, Inc. The entity retained by the School Board of Broward County, Florida, to oversee the execution and delivery of the projects, and act as the Owner's Representative.
- **1.14 Project Manager:** An employee of the District or Program Manager to manage the Project as a direct representative of the Owner.
- 1.15 The Project: The construction, alteration or repair, and all services and incidents thereto, comprising a facility as contemplated and budgeted by the Owner.
- **1.16** Sub-Consultant: A person or organization of properly registered and licensed professionals who have entered an agreement with the Consultant to provide professional Surveying Consulting services for the Project.
- **1.17** Superintendent of Schools: The duly appointed executive officer of the Owner authorized to act by and through the Owner, referred to hereinafter as the Superintendent.
- **1.18** Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC): The total dollar value of all costs to construct each project.
- 1.19 Building Code Inspector (BCI): A licensed employee or designee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who provides plan review and construction inspection for code compliance, and report non-compliant work to the Project Manager and Project Consultant.
- **1.20** Value Engineering: Value Engineering (VE) is the creative, organized process of analysis of a project as to cost and/or performance with a focus on analysis of the proposed facility (and its systems, assemblies or components) and the elimination or modification of those features which add cost without contributing to that facility's required function or design value.
- 1.21 Constructability: Constructability is the creative, organized process of reviewing a project's drawings, specifications and other project documentation with a goal of eliminating design, detailing, and specification problems which might render the construction contract documents unbuildable or requiring extensive Addenda or Change Orders to make them buildable.
- **1.22** The Project Team: The Owner, Program Manager, and the Consultant who work jointly during the design, construction and warranty phases.

- 1.23 Substantial Completion: The term Substantial Completion as used herein, shall mean that point at which all work associated with the Project, or contractually-defined phase or portion of the Project, has received a fully executed Certificate of Occupancy (OEF 110B Form) or Certificate of Completion, whichever is applicable.
- **1.24** Chief Building Official, Inspections and Code Compliance (CBO): The officer or other designated authority charged with the administration and enforcement of all applicable codes, or a duly authorized representative.
- **1.25 Design Criteria:** Owner design requirements for all architectural and engineering disciplines.
- 1.26 Negotiated Unit Prices: unit prices for professional services to be utilized during various phases of each project under this Agreement. The Consultant's proposal shall serve as the basis for Negotiated Unit Prices. Refer to Articles 5 and 6 for terms of compensation and payment.

ARTICLE 2 - CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 Consulting Services: The Consulting Services are those set forth in the Professional Services Required form attached as Attachment 1 hereto and incorporated by reference. It should be noted that the Consulting Services may be some or all of those services listed on Attachment "I" to this Agreement, or other services designated by Owner.

2.2 Standard of Care and Representations:

- 2.2.1 Standard of Care: The Owner's engagement of the Consultant is based upon the Consultant's representations to the Owner that: (A) it is an organization of experienced professionals, authorized and licensed to do business in Florida; (B) the person responsible for performance pursuant to this Agreement is currently a registered Professional Architect or Engineer in the State of Florida; (C) it is qualified, willing and able to perform services for the Project; and that (D) it has the past experience and ability to provide services which will meet the Owner's objectives and requirements.
- 2.2.2 As to all services provided pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall furnish services by experienced personnel and under the supervision of qualified and experienced Consultants, and shall exercise a degree of care and diligence in the performance of these services in accordance with the customary professional standards currently practiced by firms in Florida and in compliance with any and all applicable codes, laws, ordinances, etc.
- 2.2.3 Any defective or deficient work furnished by the Consultant shall be promptly corrected by the Consultant at no cost to Owner, without limitations to other remedies or rights of Owner. Owner's approval, acceptance or use of or payment for all or any part of Consultant's services hereunder or of the Project itself shall in no way alter the Consultant's obligations or Owner's rights hereunder. The Consultant shall utilize the same personnel over the course of the Work and shall, if requested by the Owner, replace personnel whom the Owner has found to be incompetent or to whom the Owner otherwise reasonably objects.
- 2.2.4 All services provided by the Consultant shall: (A) be in accordance with all applicable

codes, including but not limited to, Florida State Board of Education Regulations, Chapter 6A-2.010 (Educational Facilities), the Florida Department of Education's State Requirements for Educational Facilities)("SREF"), the Florida Building Code ("FBC"), the Florida Fire Protection Code, the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement, and its referenced codes and standards; Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) (Broward Sheriff's Office), and all guidelines or regulations of the Owner (provided same are not less stringent than applicable codes); (B) be provided for the benefit of the Owner and not for the benefit of any other party; and (C) include all Consultant services normally required for a project of this type as listed in the Scope of Work (Attachment 1 to this Agreement).

2.2.5 Approval of Documents: Owner's approval of or comments on any of the documents submitted to Owner by Consultant shall not be deemed the approval of or by another governmental authority having jurisdiction over the project and Consultant acknowledges that the aforesaid authorities may require modifications of any of the documents submitted by Consultant. Subject to Article 2, such modifications shall be made at no cost to Owner.

ARTICLE 3 - SUB-CONSULTANTS

3.1 Sub-Consultants' Relations:

- 3.1.1 All services provided by a Sub-Consultant shall be pursuant to appropriate agreements between the Consultant and the Sub-Consultants which shall contain provisions that preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and the Consultant under this Agreement. All such Agreements shall provide that the Consultant may assign or transfer to Owner any and all claims or causes of action which the Consultant has or may have against Sub-Consultant as a result of or relating to any acts of omission or commission of that Sub-Consultant.
- 3.1.2 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the Owner and the Sub-Consultants. However, the Consultant is at all times liable for any and all negligent acts of omission or commission of its Sub-Consultants relating to or regarding this Agreement or the Project which is the subject of this Agreement. Owner may, at any time, after agreeing to provide Consultant with a Release or Covenant Not to Sue as to a claim or cause of action, require the Consultant to assign or transfer to Owner any such claims or causes of action which Consultant has or may have against one or more of its Sub-Consultants regarding or relating to this Project. Upon such request, the Consultant shall execute a written assignment or transfer in a form to be provided by the Owner. In the event the Owner agrees to indemnify and hold the Consultant harmless from any claim or cause of action brought by the Owner against a Sub-Consultant as a result of such assignment.

3.2 Proposed Sub-Consultants:

- 3.2.1 The Consultant proposes to utilize the Sub-Consultants identified in Attachment 5 (List of Project Team Members)
- **3.2.2** The Consultant shall not change any Sub-Consultant without prior approval by the Owner.

3.2.3 The Consultant shall, not later than ten (10) days after the date of this Agreement, submit a list of contact information for Sub-Consultants which includes contact names, firm addresses, telephone and fax numbers and email addresses. Any future changes to Sub-Consultants must also be submitted no later than ten (10) days after the date the change was made.

ARTICLE 4 – THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Information, Documents and Services: The Owner shall consult with the Consultant and provide such information regarding requirements for the Project as are reasonably necessary for Consultant to perform its services.
- 4.2 Owner Furnished Items: When documents, services, or other materials furnished by the Owner for the Consultant's use are deemed by the Consultant as inappropriate, inaccurate, or otherwise unreasonable, the Consultant shall notify the Owner of its opinion immediately upon discovery of same. Owner will notify Consultant upon delivery of any inaccurate data provided to the Consultant. Failure of the Consultant to notify the Owner shall result in the Consultant being responsible for any costs, expenses, or damages incurred by the Owner and forfeiture of claims for damages, delays or other compensation related to the use of those Owner furnished materials.

4.3 Project Management:

The Director of Preconstruction: The Director of Preconstruction or designee shall act on behalf of the Owner in all matters pertaining to this Agreement and shall approve all Authorizations to Proceed to the Consultant and all invoices for payment to the Consultant.

ARTICLE 5 - BASIS OF COMPENSATION

5.1 Professional Basic Service Fees ("Fee"):

5.1.1 The Owner agrees to pay the Consultant, and the Consultant agrees to accept for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses as set forth in Attachment 11 based on the fee schedule as set forth in Attachment 4 attached hereto and incorporated by reference. If Owner and Consultant cannot mutually agree to a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense, the Owner may secure services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources.

5.2 Supplemental Fee:

- 5.2.1 The Fee listed above is based on the scope of services for a project of this scope, size and complexity.
- 5.2.2 If the Owner authorizes an increase or decrease in the scope, size or complexity of the Project, the Fee will be adjusted as mutually agreed upon, in writing, by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.2.3 The Consultant may be authorized to perform Supplemental Services. The fee for such services will be based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses. Where a mutually agreeable Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense cannot be arrived at, the Owner may secure

services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources. The Consultant shall provide any information and/or copies of project documentation necessary to facilitate the provision of said supplemental services by others.

5.3 Multiple of Direct Salary Expense:

- 5.3.1 Where this Agreement or Attachments 4 hereto indicates a fee computed on the basis of a Multiple of Direct Salary Expense, such fee shall be based on a negotiated multiple of the Direct Personnel Expense as set forth in Attachment 11.
- 5.3.2 Should overtime work be necessary for work compensated by this fee method, the Consultant's authorization and compensation for such work shall be approved by the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or his designee, in writing, and stated in Attachment 4 or other documents executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.4 Direct Personnel Expense: Direct Personnel Expense is defined as the salary rate, as determined from salaries reported to the Director of Internal Revenue, of the personnel engaged directly on the Project, and the portion of the cost of their mandatory and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other statutory employee benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, pensions and similar contributions and benefits.

5.5 Reimbursable Fees:

- 5.5.1 Reimbursables are those items pre-approved, in writing, and authorized by the Owner in addition to the Supplemental Services and consist of actual expenditures made by the Consultant and the Consultant's employees and Sub-Consultants in the interest of the work.
- 5.5.2 Authorized travel outside the areas of Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties, lodging and meals in connection with the Project (subject to the limitations imposed by Chapter 112.061, Florida Statutes); long distance communications (except for long distance charges for calls placed to others living outside the Consultant's local calling area), and fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the work, reproductions, postage and handling of Drawings, Specifications and other documents, and, if authorized in advance by the Owner, expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.
- 5.5.3 The Owner will reimburse the Consultant for authorized Reimbursables as verified by appropriate bills, invoices or statements.
- 5.5.4 Authorized Reimbursables shall not include charges for office rent or overhead expenses of any kind, including but not limited to, local telephone and utility charges, office and drafting supplies, depreciation of equipment, professional dues, subscriptions, etc., reproduction of drawings and specifications, mailing, stenographic, clerical, or other employees time or travel and subsistence not directly related to the Project. For all Reimbursables, the Consultant will apply the multiplier of one and five-hundredths (1.05) times the amount expended by the Consultant. Authorized reproductions in excess of sets required at each phase of the work will be a reimbursable.

ARTICLE 6 - PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT

6.1 Payment for Basic Services and Supplemental Services:

- 6.1.1 Payments for Basic and Supplemental Services may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format) in proportion to services performed during each portion of the work or other basis as set forth in the Schedules attached hereto and conforming to the attached Consultant's proposal for Attachment 1 "Scope of Work". Owner in its sole discretion shall determine if the payment requested is in accordance with the proportion of the work performed.
- 6.1.2 No payments shall be due to Consultant unless and until all materials, forms and documents required by Owner have been provided by Consultant and its Sub-Consultant to Owner or others who are to receive same. The Owner retains the right to withhold payment from the Consultant for non-performance of the Consultant during any phase or portion of the Project.
- 6.1.3 The Consultant shall submit invoices in the Owner's required invoice format (Attachment 2) as provided.
- 6.1.4 All submitted invoices shall have copies of referenced Scope of Work and the Authorization to Proceed (ATP) attached.
- 6.1.5 Payments are due and payable thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice, provided it is in accord with the requirements of this Agreement.
- 6.1.6 The Consultant shall submit a monthly S/M/WBE Monthly Subcontractor Utilization Report with the monthly request for payment, on forms provided by the Owner.

6.2 Payment for Reimbursables:

- 6.2.1 Payment for Reimbursables may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format, Attachment 2) based on actual costs.
- 6.2.2 Payments are due and payable within thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice.

6.3 Project Suspension:

6.3.1 If the Project is suspended for the convenience of the Owner for more than three (3) months or terminated in whole or in part during any Phase, the Consultant shall be paid for services authorized by an Authorization to Proceed which were performed prior to such suspension or termination, together with the cost of Reimbursable Services and expenses then due.

ARTICLE 7 - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE

7.1 Indemnification:

7.1.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its members, officers, employees and agents (hereinafter collectively "Related Parties") from and against any and all liability, claims, causes of action (by whomever brought or alleged and regardless of the legal theories upon which the liability, claims or causes of action are based), losses, damage, costs, expenses and fees (including but not limited to reasonable fees of attorneys, expert witnesses and other consultants), which are or may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Owner and/or the Related Parties to the extent said liability, claims, causes of action, losses, damages, costs, expenses and/or fees are caused by the Consultant's negligent, reckless or intentional wrongful conduct of the Consultant and other persons employed or utilized by the Consultant in the performance of the contract..

- 7.1.2 In any and all claims against the Owner by any employee of the Consultant, or anyone for whose acts the Consultant may be liable, the obligations for Consultant to indemnify Owner under this contract shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Consultant under workman's compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- 7.1.3In the event that any claims are brought or actions filed against the Owner with respect to the indemnity contained herein, the Consultant agrees to defend against any such claims or actions regardless of whether such claims or actions are rightfully or wrongfully brought or filed. The Consultant agrees that the Owner may select the attorneys to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. The Consultant further agrees to pay, at the sole expense of the Consultant, the attorney's fees and costs incurred by those attorneys selected by the Owner to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. However, if the claims or actions are covered by insurance and such coverage is acknowledged by the insurance company in writing to the Owner, then, in that case, the insurance company shall choose counsel, direct the defense and be the judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any such claims or actions against the Owner which are within the insurance policy limits and are paid by the insurance company solely. Otherwise, if the claims or actions are not covered by insurance, then, at its sole option the Owner shall have the sole authority for the direction of the defense, and shall be the sole judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any claims or actions asserted against the Owner.
- 7.1.4 The Consultant recognizes the nature of the indemnification obligations imposed under this contract and voluntarily makes these covenants. The obligation imposed upon the Consultant under this Indemnification Agreement shall survive termination of this contract.

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE

8.1 General Insurance Requirements:

- 8.1.1 The Consultant shall not start work under this Agreement until the Consultant has obtained all insurance required hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the Owner.
- 8.1.2 All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. All insurance companies providing policies required under this Agreement shall have an "A" rating, or better, and a financial rating of no less than VI in the current A.M. Best Manual OR hold a Moody's Investors Service Financial Strength of "Aa3" or better.
- 8.1.3 All insurance policies required under this Agreement shall be endorsed to be primary of all other valid and collectable coverages maintained by the Owner. The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy, including Products Liability, shall include the Owner's Project number and full Project title (including applicable facility

name) on the Certificate.

- 8.1.4 The Consultant shall furnish certificates of insurance to the Owner for review and approval at the time of execution of this Agreement and shall maintain same at all times during the term of this Agreement.
- 8.1.5 The Certificates of Insurance shall be in the form as approved by Insurance Standards Office (ISO), unless approved by Owner and shall clearly indicate that the Consultant has obtained insurance of the type, amount and classification required by these provisions, in excess of any pending claims at the time of contract award to the Consultant. No material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without a 30-day prior written notice to and approval by the Owner. All Certificates shall list the Owner's project number and full project title (including applicable facility name).

8.2 Insurance Required:

- 8.2.1 Automobile Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in connection with this Agreement in amounts not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit and shall not be less than the standard ISO Business Auto Policy CA 00 01.
- 8.2.2 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): The Consultant shall procure Professional Liability Insurance in the manner described herein. The deductible shall not be more than Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars for each policy and must be indicated on the certificate of insurance. The limits of the Professional Liability Insurance Policy shall be as follows:
- 8.2.2.1 Not used.
- **8.2.2.2** Projects require a practice policy with a per claim/annual aggregate in accordance with the specifications delineated below relative to the cumulative construction value of all projects:
 - .1 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is less than Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars.
 - .2 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is between Five Million One (\$5,000,001) Dollars to Ten Million (\$10,000,000) Dollars.
 - .3 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is greater than Ten Million One (\$10,000,001) Dollars.

The Consultant shall be required to maintain the practice policy in accordance with the above specifications for a period commencing with execution of this contract and terminating three years after final completion of said projects. Should additional projects or change orders be added that increase the cumulative construction value to another tier shown above, the Consultant will be required to show proof of coverage at the higher limit / aggregate. In

addition, the Consultant shall provide information regarding the total claims against said practice policy on an annual basis for the term of the contract upon and terminating three years after final completion of the project (Claims/Loss history should be forwarded to the Risk Management Department), as The School Board of Broward County, Florida, deems appropriate.

The Professional Liability insurance must provide for all sums which the Consultant shall be legally obligated to pay as damages for claims arising out of or relating to the negligent services performed by the Consultant or any person employed or acting on the Consultant's behalf (including, but not limited to, Sub-Consultants) in connection with this Agreement. If the Owner, at its sole discretion, agrees that such coverage is not commercially reasonably available, the Owner may, at its discretion, authorize the Consultant to alter the coverage by substituting a lower aggregate or changing any other terms and conditions of the coverage (including but not limited to deductible amounts) based upon the scope of the project.

- 8.2.3 Worker's Compensation Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Worker's Compensation Insurance in compliance with Chapter 440 of the Florida Statutes. The firm shall maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance for all of its employees connected with the provided services as described in this Agreement in accordance with Florida Statutory limits and Employers Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than Five Hundred Thousand (\$500,000) Dollars per occurrence.
- 8.2.4 General Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability to cover the "Hold Harmless Agreement" set forth herein, with bodily injury limits of not less than One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage and not less than the Two Million (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate such coverage shall apply separately to each project. The School Board of Broward County, Florida, its members, officers, employees, and agents shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy.

ARTICLE 9 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

9.1 Performance:

- **9.1.1 Performance and Delegation:** The services to be performed hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant's and Sub-Consultant's own staff, unless otherwise approved by the Owner. Said approval shall not be construed as constituting an agreement between the Owner and said other person or firm.
- 9.1.2 Task Orders: The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP") (Attachment 4) which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers.
- **9.1.3 Time for Performance:** The Consultant agrees to start all work hereunder upon receipt of an Authorization to Proceed issued by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer or his designee and to complete all work within the time stipulated in the Authorization to Proceed (Attachment 4 to this Agreement ("ATP")). The Consultant acknowledges that failure to

perform timely may cause the Owner to sustain loss and damages and will be responsible for same. The Consultant agrees that Owner is entitled to recover no less than One Hundred Dollars (\$100) per consecutive calendar day of unexcused delay caused by the Consultant's failure to comply with the times set forth in the fully executed ATP. Owner shall have the right to deduct such amounts from payments due and owing to the Consultant.

- 9.1.4 Time Extensions: A reasonable extension of time for completion of various aspects may be granted by the Owner should there be a delay on the part of the Owner in fulfilling its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Such extension shall not be the basis or cause for any claims or causes of action by the Consultant for additional or extra compensation. Under no circumstances shall the Consultant be entitled to additional compensation or payment as a result of or relating to delays on the Project. Time is of the essence with regard to the performance of this contract.
- 9.1.5 Excess Funds: Any party receiving funds paid by the School Board of Broward County, Florida under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify the School Board of Broward County, Florida of any funds erroneously received from the School Board of Broward County, Florida of upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, as amended, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by the School Board of Broward County, Florida. The erroneous payment and/or overpayment will be promptly transmitted and returned to the School Board of Broward County, Florida with the maximum applicable interest permitted by Florida law.

9.2 Termination of Agreement:

- 9.2.1 Right to Terminate: The Owner has the right to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience on seven (7) days written notice. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the terms of this agreement. To receive payment, all charts, sketches, studies, drawings, and other documents or other materials related to work authorized under this Agreement, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Owner.
- **9.2.2** The Consultant may only terminate this Agreement for a material breach of the Agreement by Owner, and only after Consultant has given the Owner ten (10) days written notice and opportunity to cure such breach. In the event of any dispute regarding or relating to performance pursuant to this Agreement, or payment hereunder, the Consultant is obligated to continue performance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, unless instructed by the Owner to suspend or delay performance.
- 9.2.3 Owner may terminate this Agreement for cause, which shall include, but not be limited to, failure of Consultant to comply with any of its material obligations under this Agreement; a decrease in the projected, available Capital Outlay funds which renders continuation of the design or construction of the Project impossible or impractical; or conditions which arise that constitute Force Majeure under Article 9.2.6 of this Agreement. In such event, Consultant shall not be entitled to any additional payments and may be liable to Owner for any damages or losses incurred or suffered as a result of Consultant's failure to properly perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. In the event it is later determined that the Owner was not justified in terminating this Agreement for cause, then it shall be deemed to be a termination for convenience pursuant to Article 9.2.1 above, and the Consultant's sole compensation shall be compensation in accordance with that paragraph. Whether or not

this Agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be liable to Owner for any damage or loss resulting from such failure or violation by Consultant. The rights and remedies of Owner provided by this paragraph are cumulative with and in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or this Agreement.

- **9.2.4** Annulment: The Consultant warrants that no one has been employed or retained other than an employee working solely for the Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that the Consultant has not paid, nor agreed to pay, any company or other person any fee, commission, gift or other consideration contingent upon the making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Owner has the right to annul this Agreement without liability.
- **9.2.5** Fixed Fees Exceeding \$50,000: For all Fixed Fees or other "lump-sum" fees for professional service Agreements over Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars the Consultant shall execute a truth-in-negotiations certificate as in accordance with 287.055 and all required language set forth therein. Requirements of Florida Statute 287.055 (2004), as amended, are incorporated herein by reference.
- **9.2.6** Force Majeure: The Owner's or Consultant's failure to perform any term or condition of this Agreement as a result of conditions beyond its control such as, but not limited to, war, strikes, fires, floods, acts of God, governmental restrictions, power failures, or damage or destruction of any network facilities or servers, shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.
- 9.2.7 Termination of Scrutinized Companies or False Certification: SBBC reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is placed on the List of Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudar; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector; or has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. SBBC also reserves the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is found to have submitted a false certification.
- 9.3 Consultant's Accounting Records and Right to Audit Provisions: Consultant's records which shall include, but not be limited to, accounting records, payroll time sheets, audited and unaudited financial statements to substantiate overhead rates, written policies and procedures, Sub-Consultant files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful Sub-Consultant), original estimates, estimating worksheets, computer records, disks and software, videos, photography, correspondence, change order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements), and any other supporting evidence necessary to substantiate charges related to this Agreement (all of the foregoing hereinafter referred to as "records") shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or reproduction, during normal working hours, by Owner's agent or its authorized representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit evaluation and verification of any invoices, payments or claims submitted by the contractor or any of his payees pursuant to the execution of this Agreement. Such records subject to examination shall also include, but not be limited to, those records necessary to evaluate and verify direct and indirect costs (including overhead allocations), fees, reimbursable services, etc. as they may apply to costs, matters or items associated with this Agreement.
- 9.3.1 For the purpose of such audits, inspections, examinations and evaluations, the Owner's agent or authorized representative shall have access to said records from the effective date of this Agreement, for the duration of the work, and until five (5) years after the date of final payment by Owner to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. All costs which the consultant

Page 15 of 26

is unable to provide support or documentation to substantiate that it was incurred as represented by the original estimated breakdown of costs or found to be not in compliance with the provisions of this contract, shall be reimbursed to the Owner.

- **9.3.2** Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall have access to the Consultant's facilities, shall have access to all necessary records, and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance with this article. Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall give auditees reasonable advance notice of intended audits.
- **9.3.3** Consultant shall require all Sub-Consultants to comply with the provisions of this article by insertion of the requirements hereof in any written contract agreement. Failure to obtain such written contracts which include such provisions shall be reason to exclude some or all of the related costs from amounts payable to the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.
- 9.3.4 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this article discloses overcharges (of any nature) by the Consultant to the Owner in excess of \$25,000, the actual cost of the Owner's audit shall be paid by the Consultant.
- 9.3.5 Public Records: The following provisions are required by Section 119.0701, Florida Statues, and may not be amended. Consultant shall keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under this Agreement. Upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, Consultant shall provide SBBC with a copy of any requested public records or to allow the requested public records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statues, or as otherwise provided by law. Consultant shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement's term and following completion of the Agreement if Consultant does not transfer the public records to SBBC. Upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall transfer, at no cost, to SBBC all public records in possession of Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under the Agreement. If Consultant transfer all public records to SBBC upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to SBBC, upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with SBBC's information technology systems.

IF A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT...

Custodian of Public Records

Requel Bell 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1925 Requel.bell@browardschools.com

9.4 Ownership of documents:

- 9.4.1 The documents developed under this Agreement shall become and be the sole property of the Owner whether the Project for which they were developed is executed or not. The Consultant may maintain copies thereof for its records and for its future professional endeavors, although the Owner shall bear no liability or any responsibility whatsoever for such use of said documents by the Consultant.
- 9.4.2 In the event of the Consultant's termination under other provisions of this Agreement, the Owner shall receive all original documents prepared to the date of termination and shall have the right to use those documents and any reproductions in any way necessary to complete the Project.
- 9.4.3 In the event Owner requests any such documents or materials referred to in this Article and Consultant fails to provide same as requested by Owner, then Consultant acknowledges that Owner will be irreparably harmed and subject to an injunction to provide same.
- **9.4.4** The Owner will not modify or distribute the documents, including electronic media versions, to third parties except for those purposes listed above without the expressed permission and consent of the Consultant. The Owner will delete any title blocks or other marks identifying the originating Consultant from any materials so distributed. The Owner will indemnify the Consultant against any claims that result from the modification of data and disks by the Owner.
- **9.5** Electronic Media: Where this Agreement or referenced provisions in the Contract require the Consultant to provide information or documents in either electronic or magnetic media, the preparation and format of that media shall conform to the Owner's "Electronic Media Submittal Requirements" which are incorporated as Attachment 3 to this Agreement for Open End Services.
- 9.6 Attachments and References:
- 9.6.1 The following named attachments are made an integral part of this Agreement:

.1	Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
.2	Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
		(individual project invoices required)
.3	Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
.4	Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form
		Professional Services Required

Project Schedule Professional Fee

- .5 Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members
- .6 Attachment 6: Document 00455 Background Screening
- .7 Attachment 7: IRS Form W-9
- .8 Attachment 8: Truth in Negotiations Certificate
- .9 Attachment 9: ACH Payment Agreement Form
- .10 Attachment 10: Conflict of Interest Form

Online Documents: The following documents shall be downloaded by the Consultant and are considered as Attachments to this Contract:

Design Standards

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/DSS/DS_Docs/DesignStandards.htm

- Design Criteria
- Design and Material Standards Division 1 thru Division 17
- Document Submittal Checklist for Plan Review

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/constructioncontracts/D0docs.html

• Specifications – Division 0

State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) latest edition

http://www.fldoe.org/edfacil/sref.asp

• F.I.S.H. layering system for AutoCAD: Note: the laying system is not posted on line. It will need to be requested thru:

Facility Planning and Real Estate 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1932

9.7 Extent of Agreement:

- 9.7.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral.
- 9.7.2 This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered after the execution hereof, except by resolution of Owner and an Agreement executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 9.7.3 This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties to the Agreement and are not for the benefit of any other party, nor shall it create a contractual relationship with any other party.

- 9.7.4 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The parties are encouraged to participate in mediation of any dispute before engaging in litigation.
- **9.8** Strict Performance: The failure of either party to insist upon or enforce strict performance by the other party of any of the provisions of this Agreement or to exercise any rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of its rights to assert or rely upon any such provision or rights in that or any other instance.
- **9.9 Prompt and Satisfactory Correction:** The Owner, at its sole discretion, may direct the Consultant, at no additional cost to the Owner, to promptly and satisfactorily correct any services found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement or the requirements of any governmental authority, law, regulation or ordinance.

9.10 Successors and Assigns:

- **9.10.1** The performance of this Agreement shall not be delegated or assigned by the Consultant without the written consent of the Owner.
- **9.10.2** The Consultant and the Owner each binds one another, their partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns of such party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement.

9.11 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility or Voluntary Exclusion:

9.1L1 Lower Tier Covered Transactions: Executive Order 12549 provides that, to the extent permitted by law, Executive departments and agencies shall participate in a government-wide system for non-procurement debarment and suspension. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities. Except as provided in ß 85.200, Debarment or Suspension, ß 85.201, Treatment of Title IV HEA participation, and ß85.215, Exception provision, debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one agency shall have government-wide effect. A lower tier covered transaction is, in part, any transaction between a participant [SBBC] and a person other than a procurement contract for goods or services, regardless of type, under a primary covered transaction; and any procurement contract for goods or services between a participant and a person, regardless of type, expected to equal or exceed the Federal procurement small purchase threshold fixed at 10 U.S.C. 2304(g) and 41 U.S.C. 253(g) (currently \$100,000) under a primary covered transaction. A participant may rely upon the certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. Each participant shall require participants in lower tier covered transactions to include the following certification for it and its principals in any proposal submitted in connection with such lower tier covered transactions.

9.11.2 Certification and Disclosure

.1 The lower tier participant (Consultant) certifies, by entering this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for

debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

- .2 Where the lower tier participant (Consultant) is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such participant shall provide an explanation to the Owner.
- .3 The Consultant warrants that he or she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement and that he or she has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this agreement. For the breach or violation of this provision, the Owner shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the fees due and owing to the Consultant, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift, or consideration. (Ch. 287.055, F.S.)

9.12 Non-Discrimination, EEO, and ADAAA

- 9.12.1 Non-Discrimination The School Board of Broward County, Florida prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender, national origin, marital status, race, religion or sexual orientation.
- 9.12.2 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) The School Board of Broward County, Florida, prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender identity, gender expression, national origin, marital status, race, religion, sex or sexual orientation. Individuals who wish to file a discrimination and/or harassment complaint may call the Executive Director, Benefits & EEO Compliance at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.12.3 Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008 Individuals with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, (ADAAA) may call Equal Educational Opportunities (EEO) at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.13 Captions The captions, section numbers, article numbers, title and headings appearing in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit, construe or describe the scope or intent of such articles or sections of this Agreement, nor in any way effect this Agreement and shall not be construed to create a conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 9.14 Authority Provision: Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party with respect to all.
- 9.15 Notice Provision When any of the parties desire to give notice to the other, such notice must be in writing, sent by US Mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place last specified; the place for giving notice shall remain such until it is changed by

written notice in compliance with the provisions of the paragraph. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving notice.

To SBBC:	Superintendent of Schools			
	The School Board of Broward County, Florida			
	600 Southeast Third Avenue			
	Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301			
With a Copy to:	Office of the Chief Facilities Officer			
-	600 SE 3 Avenue			
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312			
	Attn: Leo Bobadilla			
	Chief Facilities Officer			
With a Copy to:	Office of Procurement & Warehousing Services			
	7720 W Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323			
	Sunrise, FL 33351			
	Attn: Mary Coker			
	Director of Procurement & Warehousing Services			
With a Copy to:	Office of Facilities and Construction			
	2301 NW 26th St			
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311			
	Attn: Shelley N. Meloni			
	Director, Pre-Construction Office of Facilities and Construction			
	And			
	CBRE Heery, Inc., Owners Representative			
	2301 NW 26th St			
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311			
	Attn: Robert Corbin			
	Program Director/Vice President			
To Consultant:	MILLER, LEGG & ASSOCIATES, INC.			
	5747 N Andrews Way Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309			
	Attn: Michael D Kroll, President			

- 9.16 Excess Funds. Any party receiving funds paid by The School Board of Broward County, Florida (SBBC) under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify SBBC of any funds erroneously received from SBBC upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Any such excess funds shall be refunded to SBBC with interest calculated from the date of the erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by SBBC.
- 9.17 Background Screening. Project Consultant agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Project Consultant, its agents, subconsultants and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or(3) have access or

.

control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Project Consultant or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Consultant will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Consultant and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Consultant to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement.

Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Consultant's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Project Consultant pursuant to Article 7 of this Agreement and the laws of Florida.

ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF RFO INTO AGREEMENT

10.1 In addition to those Attachments and References identified and made part of this Agreement in Article 9.6.1, the provisions of **RFQ No. 17-113C – Surveying Consulting Services**(the "RFQ") are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in this Agreement and the RFQ, the more stringent provision shall prevail. If this Agreement is silent on an issue that is contained with the RFQ, the provisions of the RFQ shall be followed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The School Board of Broward County, Florida, has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the School Board to be set hereto; and the said Project Consultant has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the Project Consultant set hereto on this day and year first above written.

(SEAL) ATTEST THE SCHOOL BOARD-OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA AMAMAMINE MAD MAN

Robert W. Runcie, Superintendent of Schools

Nora Rupert, Chair

Approved as to Form and Legal Content:

Office of the General Counsel

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018



FOR PROJECT CONSULTANT

(ATTEST)

Michael D Kroll, President

MILLER, LEGG & ASSOCIATES, INC. Legal Name of Corporation

or Secretary, (Dylan Larson, Secretary)

wulle)

Witness, (Marina Hannwacker

1 Project Consultant's Registration Number Corporation Registration P95000021117 LB66880-Corporate Survey Business License

The School Board of Broward County, Florida **Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement** Version 4/23/2018

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF BROWARD		
9ìh	May, 2018 ay of,,	Michael Kroll
BEFORE ME this da	iy of,,	appeared, and,
N/A		
	personally known to r	ne to be the persons described in
and who executed the foregoing	g contract and acknowledge that he execute	ed the same as his free act and deed
for the purposes therein express	sed.	
WITNESS my hand and offi May, 20	cial seal in the County and State last	official thisday of
Notary Public State of Florida	1 <u></u>	
My Commission Expires:	Maria Hanwar	cleen
Marina Hannwacker	Notary's Commission No.	



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018



Attachment 1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 8 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Scope of Work

1.1 General Requirements

- 1.1.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 1.2.1 The services listed below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services, which may be requested by the Owner.

2.1 Basic Services

- 2.1.1 All services rendered shall be in conformance with Florida Administrative Code and Department of Business and Professional Regulations (DBPR) requirements as it relates to professional mapping and surveyingservices.
- 2.2.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 2.3.1 The listed services below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services which may be requested by the Owner.

3.1 General Basic Services

- 3.1.1 The Land Surveyor agrees to: (A) Provide complete professional land surveying and mapping services and all necessary personnel, equipment and materials to perform services; (B) Complete those land surveying services in accordance with the respective ATP's, related schedules, and work increments by the Owner.
- 3.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall schedule and attend project meetings on an as- needed basis with representatives of the Owner.

4.1 Basic Surveying Services

- 4.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall confer with representatives of the Owner to verify and confirm the project scope and specific requirements and/or requirements of any Authorization to Proceed (ATP) issued by the Owner.
- 4.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall, prior to commencing surveying activities, visit and inspect the site.

- 4.3.1 The Land Surveyor shall undertake all necessary activities in preparation for conducting the survey including but not limited to the following:
 - a. Review all record documents provided by the Owner; request clarification if necessary.
 - b. Order, if necessary, aerials, recorded easements and instruments from Broward County, municipality, other agency or vendor.
 - c. Check existing plat(s) information as it relates to easements, recorded instruments and reservations. Order any required plats as requested by the Owner.
 - d. Show site information in terms of Florida State Plane Coordinate System.
 - e. Coordinate, obtain, and map all over and underground existing as-built information with Broward County (or municipal) water and sewer authority, FPL, BellSouth, and other sources as necessary.
 - f. Calculate boundaries of properties, set control points, acreages, bearing and distances.
 - g. Show finish floor elevations of buildings and provide FIMA 100 year flood base elevation and panel number.
 - h. Establish minimum of two permanent benchmarks on site, tied to established control points: Set one benchmark at the base of the facility's flagpole if one does not exist at that location.
 - i. Restore dislocated survey control points based on original survey.
- 4.4.1 In the event that the Land Surveyor believes that the scope, schedule or budget established by an ATP is not achievable, the Land Surveyor shall immediately notify the Owner in writing as to the reasons one or all of them are unreasonable or not achievable immediately upon discovery.
- 4.5.1 The Land Surveyor shall prepare, submit and present for approval by the Owner a hardcopy and electronic AutoCAD copies (compatible with District's Electronic Media Requirements) of a site survey or "as builts" for properties identified on a ATP and according to the requirements of the District's Document Submittal Checklist found: <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/Design_Standards/SubmittalDocuments.asp</u>.
- 4.6.1 The Land Surveyor may prepare a site survey, which is an update of record information and surveys provided by the Owner. This will be prepared and submitted in electronic media and hard copy formats as applicable in the Agreement.
- 4.7.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit three copies of all documents (both electronic and hardcopy) without additional charge, for approval by the Owner unless additional (or fewer) copies are required by a particular ATP.
- 4.8.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit complete survey documents, properly signed and sealed by the Land Surveyor and respective Sub-Consultants (if any). Unsigned or unsealed documents are not acceptable.
- 4.9.1 When requested by the Owner, any records and survey calculations shall be submitted for the Owner's review and/or record.

4.10.1 The Land Surveyor shall render interpretations and clarifications of the survey in a written format, supplemented by appropriate graphics, acceptable to the Owner.

5.1 **Other Basic Services:**

- 5.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall render to Owner without additional compensation, any proper and reasonable assistance which Owner may require as a result of any claim or any action brought relating to Land Surveyor's services.
- 5.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall provide any other professional services not otherwise in the agreement to which the Land Surveyor and the Owner mutually agree.

This page intentionally left blank

Design Professionals Invoice Format

The School Board of Broward County, Florida requires submittal of the Design Professional's invoice on the District's standard invoice forms attached to a transmittal form or letter on the Design Professional's company letterhead. Include the information and attachments described below:

- 1. Letterhead Containing Firm Information
 - A. Firm Name
 - B. Address
 - C. Telephone and FAX Numbers
 - D. Consultant's Invoice Reference Number
- 2. Address Transmittal/Letter to:

Office of Facilities and Construction The School Board of Broward County, Florida 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attention: Name of Project Manager

- 3. Ensure that Transmittal/Letter references the following information:
 - A. Date of submittal.
 - 8. The Invoice Number for ATP Number (example: Invoice No. 01 for ATP No. 01).
 - C. The School Board of Broward County's Purchase Order No.: (Which will be provided by the Facilities Project Manager at the beginning of the project.)
 - D. Name of Facility (and Facility Number).
 - E. Name of Project
 - F. School Board Project Number
- 4. Ensure attachment of the following documents to the Transmittal/Letter:
 - A. Design Professional's Invoice Form
 - B. Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice Form
 - C. Copy of signature page (page 3 of 3) of the Design Professional's Authorization to Proceed.

.....



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311(754) 321-1500

Design Professional		Date:
(Name)		
Project No:	Facility Name:	Invoice No:
Project Title:		SBBC PO No.
Design Professional's		ATP No.
Remit to address:		Invoice From:
		Project Manager

Original Basic Fee	\$
Current basic fee	\$

INVOICE TOTALS:

Summary Current Fee Previously Billed This Invoice Balance					
Basic Services	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Reimbursable	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Total:	\$	\$	\$	\$	

BASIC FEE TOTALS:

Period	Fee	Previously Bil	led T	his Invoice Balance	
From to dates	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
Other Services	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
Total Previously Bi	lled:	\$			
Total Amount This	Invoice:		\$		
Total Balance:					\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By:
Title: Date: (Signature)	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Name: Title: Date:
	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15


The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 (754) 321-1500

Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice

Project No: Project Title: Design Professional's: Remit to address: Facility Name: Invoice No: SBBC PO No. ATP No. Invoice From: Project Manager:

ltem No.	Date	Reimbursable Item	Amount
		Invoice Total	\$

Receipts for each Item must be attached.

Current Contract Amount:	\$	
Total This Invoice:	\$	
Total Previously Billed:		\$
Total Balance:		\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By: Name: Title:
Title: Date:	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Date:
(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15

_

Electronic Media Requirements

All Work product for all projects, requires hard copies, electronic copies (PDF) and electronic original copies. The electronic media requirements are as listed below.

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

1.0 General Information

1.1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida contracts with one or more Internet bid advertising and distribution services. The Design Professional shall post the complete bid package to these services upon written notification by the Owner. The posted documents shall be read only documents and the file format shall be PDF.

2.0 Software Requirements

- 2.1 Word Processing
 - 2.1.1 Provide word processing files in Microsoft Word for Windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
- 2.2 Spreadsheets
 - 2.2.1 Provide spreadsheet files in Microsoft Excel for windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
- 2.3 Computer aided Design and Drafting2.3.1 Provide all CADD files as the latest version of AutoCAD, Window's version.

3.0 CAD Standards

- 3.1 Standard plotted drawing size: 24 inch x 36 inch or 30 inch x 42 inch sheets.
 3.1.1 All sheets within a set shall be the same size unless pre-approved otherwise. (for example survey sheets)
- 3.2 Design Professional shall provide to the Owner the standard file naming Protocol they will be utilizing.
- 3.3 CAD File Layering
 - 3.3.1 Conform to the most up to date guidelines defined by the American Institute of Architects (AIA) standard document, "CAD Layer Guidelines."
 - 3.3.2 Provide the required Layering for the Florida Inventory of Schoolhouses (F.I.S.H.) documents
 - 3.3.1.1 The F.I.S.H. layering scheme is not available on-line. It can be requested through:

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17

Facility Planning and Real Estate600 SE 3rd Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312754-321-1932

- 3.3.3 Provide a separate list of all layers which do not conform to the standard AIA CAD Layer Guidelines or the FISH layering scheme.
- 3.4 No custom hatch patterns shall be utilized.
- 3.5 All symbols and blocks to have descriptive names
- 4.0 Electronic Media Delivery Requirements
 - 4.1 Transmittals shall include the following
 - 4.1.1 The Project Number, Project Title and date
 - 4.1.2 The Facility Name
 - 4.1.3 The submittal type
 - 4.1.4 The format and version of the software.
 - 4.1.5 An attached Listing of file names with the latest document publish dates
 - 4.2 All electronic media shall contain an attached label which shall identify 4.1.1, 4.1.2, and 4.1.3.
 - 4.3 Document clean-up
 - **4.3.1** Before a CADD file is placed on the delivery electronic digital media, the following procedures shall be performed:
 - 4.3.1.1 Purge all files and remove all extraneous graphics outside the border area.
 - 4.3.1.2 Make sure all reference files are attached without device path
 - 4.3.1.3 All required project files both graphic and nongraphic, shall include color tables, pen tables, font libraries, block libraries, user command files, plot files, etc. All project related blocks must be provided to the Owner as a part of the electronic digital deliverables.
 - 4.3.1.4 Make sure that all support files such as those listed above are in the same directory and that references to those files do not include device Path.
 - 4.4 The following Plot File Development and Project Documentation Information shall be submitted as an enclosure or attachment to the transmittal letter provided with each electronic digital media submittal.
 - 4.4.1 Documentation of the plot files for each drawing which will be needed to be able to allow identical plotting by the Owner at a later date. This documentation shall include the plotter configuration (e.g., name and model of plotter), pen settings, drawing orientation, drawing

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17 size, and any other special instructions.

- 4.4.2 Instructions concerning how to generate plotted, drawings from the provided plot files.
- 4.5 Provide all symbols and blocks used in the project in a separate files.
- 4.6 List of all database/spreadsheet files associated with each drawing, as well as a description and documentation of the database format.
- 5.0 Ownership: Refer to Agreement for specific Owner and Design Professional's rights.
- 6.0 Documents for the Construction Contractor:
 - 6.1 The Owner and the Design Professional shall make various electronic information available to the Contractor during the Construction phase of the Project.
- 7.0 Where electronic media submittals of final site surveys are required: Provide electronic copies of any existing site survey data already on electronic media.
- 8.0 At the Contractors option, the Design Professional will provide the Contractor one set of AutoCAD (.dwg) electronic file format contract drawings, to be used for as built drawings at the Contractor's option. Note that the Architect's name and information to be removed.



PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed				
Project No.: Location No.:	<u>P.######</u> #####	Date:2017		
Project Title:	Name of Project	SBBC P.O. No.:		
		Line No.:		
Facility Name:	NAME OS SCHOOL	Project Manager:		
Project Consultant:	NAME OF VENDOR A/E	Dir. Capital Planning & Programming		
Schematic De Bidding Other Services	Construction Contr	ent Construction Documents		
This Author	orization to Proceed is subject to th	e following attachments:		
Attachmen	ts: Professional Services Ro Project Schedule Professional Fees Previous ATP's	equired		

The scope of the required services is specified on the Professional Services Required with a Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC) for this project as indicated below:

Original FLCC	Current Cost Estimate	Revised FLCC by ATP
\$#####################################	\$###########	\$######################################

The services under this Authorization To Proceed (ATP) will be provided under the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) dated ______2017 between The School Board of Broward County, and NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT are in accordance with the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF ARCHITECT dated ______2017 (Revised _____, 2017 and _____2017) – See Attachment 1.

The Basic Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Articles 2.1 through 2.8 of the PSA.

The Supplemental Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Article 2.9 of the PSA.

Upon completion of a phase listed on Page 3 of this ATP, the Project Consultant shall not proceed with the next phase until the completion of all documents, required presentations and reports required for the phase being completed, and receipt of a written authorization for the next phase from the Owner, or the Office of Facilities & Construction, or the Program Manager.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)



PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued)

Project Schedule

Project No. & P.######### Location No.: ###### Project Title: GOB_NAME OF PROJECT

 Facility Name:
 NAME OF SCHOOL

 Project Consultant:
 NAME OF ARCHITECTURAL VENDOR

The required project schedule milestones for this project are presented below. (Mandatory)

	Date Required Or Estimated Time Period		
ACTIVITY	Start	Finish	
Phase I - Scope Validation - 14 Calendar Day	Day 1	Day 14	
Phase I - Schematic Design Submittal (30% CDs) - 30 Calendar Days	Day 15	Day 44	
Phase I - Plan Review - 7 Calendar Days	Day 45	Day 51	
Phase II - Design Development Submittal (60% CDs) – 30 Calendar Days	Day 52	Day 81	
Phase II - Plan Review – 14 Calendar Days	Day 82	Day 95	
Phase III - 90% CDs Submittal - 30 Calendar Days	Day 96	Day 125	
Phase III - 90% CDs Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 126	Day 146	
Phase III - 100% CDs Submittal – 30 Calendar Days	Day 147	Day 176	
Phase III - 100% CDs Review - 21 Calendar Days	Day 177	Day 197	
Phase III - 100% CDs Bldg Dept Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 198	Day 218	
Plan Revision / Re-Submittal to Bldg Dept – 14 Calendar Days	Day 219	Day 232	
Bldg Dept Follow-up Review – 14 Calendar Days	Day 233	Day 246	
Plan Approval – 0 Calendar Days (See Note 2)	Day 246	Day 246	
Procurement & Award – 90 Calendar Days	Day 247	Day 336	
Construction Through Close-out (Contract Administration) - 365 Calendar Days	Day 337	Day 701	
Begins With Approval of GMP (See PSA Article 2.6.1)]	
Warranty – 365 Calendar Days	Day 702	Day 1066	
Notes		i i	

Notes:

- Day 1 = One (1) calendar day after fully executed Authorization To Proceed is issued to the Consultant or a mutually agreed upon start date with SBBC Owner's Representative. Excludes all federal observed holidays.
- 2. Completion of 100% Construction Documents is when Building Department issues Letter of Intent to Permit.
- 3. The milestones presented herein are in accordance with the schedule in the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT?ENGINEER dated _____ 2017 (Revised _____, 2017 and ____, 2017) and the milestones shall be incorporated into the Project Design Schedule prepared by the Project Consultant as required by Article 2.2.5.8 of the PSA.

A CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR OF

PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued) Professional Fees P.###### Project Title: GOB SCOPE NAME Project No. & ##### Location No.: NAME OF SCHOOL Facility Name: NAME OF VENDOR A/E Project Consultant: Phase Original Fee Authorized by ATP Fee Previously Paid Fee Balance Basic Fee I - Schematic Design (30% CDs) \$#####.00 \$######### 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% II - Design Development (60% CDs) \$#####.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% III - 90% CDs \$#####.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% III - 100% CDs \$#####.00 \$########## 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% \$0.00 \$0.00 \$#####.00 \$########## 100.0% IV - Bid Phase (GMP) \$0.00 0.0% 0.0% \$0.00 V - Construction Administration \$#####.00 \$########### 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% VI - Warranty \$#####.00 \$######### 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Allowance - Document \$####.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Reproduction Allowance - Specific Purpose \$0.00 \$########### 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Survey & GPR Allowance - Geotechnical \$0.00 \$######### 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Allowance - Non-Destructive / \$20,000.00 \$########### 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Destructive Testing Allowance - Pre-Design Testing \$0.00 \$0.00 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Supplemental Services \$0.00 \$0.00 100.0% \$#####.00 \$####.00 Total: 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0%

Payment for these services shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the Professional Services Agreement.

Approved By Consultant			Certified By SBBC	Certified By SBBC		
Name:		Name: Shelley N. Meloni				
Title:		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Title: Director, Pre-Constru	uction		
Signature:	······	Date:	Signature:	Date		
Recommended By	SBBC		Approval by SBBC			
Name:	·····• ·······························		Name:	- Manuar - Manuar		
Title: Project Mar	ager / Program Direct	tor	Title:	······································		
Signature:		Date:	Signature:	Date		

This document is part of the Professional Services Agreement between The School Board of Broward County, Florida (Owner) and the Project Consultant and is incorporated by reference into the terms and conditions of that agreement.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)

Attachment 5

Design and Professional Consulting Staff

Prime Firm:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
1 	· · · ·				
·					······································

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
		······		······································	

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
			·····	· .	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · ·····			

~



The School Board of Broward County, FloridaAttachment 6Procurement & Warehousing Services Department7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323Sunrise, Florida 33351(754) 321-0505

Document 00455: Background Screening of Contractual Personnel

Project No:	Surveying RFQ 17-113C
Location No: Project Title:	Continuing Contracts Professional Services-Miller Legg & Associates, Inc Surveying
Facility Name:	
1 aoung 1 ouno	

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES, BACKGROUND SCREENING OF CONTRACTUAL PERSONNEL

Contractor agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Contractor and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or (3) have access or control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Contractor or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Contractor will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Contractor and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Contractor to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting in Contractor s failure to comply with the requirements of this section or Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes.

Bidder agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Bidder's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Bidder pursuant to SBBC Indemnification requirements as revised and the laws of Florida.

(To be signed in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths.)

STATE	OF	Florida
STATE	OF	

COUNTY OF Broward

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared

Michael Kroll

sworn, made the following statement:

1	Contractor	Nome
1.	Contractor	name:

Address:

ontractor Name

5747 N. Andrews Way Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

Miller Legg

2. My relationship to the Contractor named in (1) above is:

3. Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) (or if entity has no FEIN, the social security number of the person signing this sworn statement) President

(List relationship such as sole proprietor, partner, president, vice president, etc.)

who, being by me first duly

65-0563497

TO BE COMPLETED AT THE TIME OF SUBMISSION OF POST-AWARD DOCUMENTS INDICATED IN DOCUMENT 00200. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF DOCUMENT 00550, NOTICE TO PROCEED.

The above-named Contractor presently complies fully with the requirements set forth in Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes to the extent that all contractual personnel to be employed under the terms of this bid HAVE met Level 2 Screening requirements set forth in Section 1012.82, Florida Statutes.

BY: MA			DATE:	5-9-18
Michael Kroll	TII	rle: _	President	
Notarization			State of:	Florida)
Sworn to and subscribed before m	e the undersigned	autho	County of:	Broward)
who is personally known to me produce:	or diđ	N/A	L .	
an identification and who did t	ake an oath.			
Notary Public:	Mama	Ha	mache	1 Affix Seal
Commission Expires on:	Marina Hannwac	ker	194	Marine Hannwacker
-			aon t	ESTATE OF FLORIDA
The School Board of Broward County, Florida Background Screening of Contractual Person				Document 00455 Page 2 of 3

School Board of Broward County - Contractors & Vendors

Those who need to request entry badges to the Broward School Board Facilities need to go to <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/police/secclear.html</u> and follow the instructions for Fieldprint registration and scheduling process.

Before processing your documentation you need to have a signed contract or Purchase Order and a Vendor number; to obtain a Vendor number please call (754) 321-2374.

All vendors and contractors must provide the necessary information as soon as possible to Fieldprint. These documents can be found by selecting "Click Here for Forms and Other Necessary Information" hyperlink.

If you have any questions, please call Security Clearance Department at 754-321-2374.

PSA Attachment 7

See attached Department of Treasury Internal Revenue Service Form W-9.

i

Form W-9
(Rev. December 2014)
Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

	 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. Millier Legg & Associates, Inc. 			
page 2.	2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above Miller Legg			
ę	3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only one of the following seven boxes: Individual/sole proprietor or C Corporation S Corporation Partnership single-member LLC	4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3):		
Print or type See Specific Instructions	Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partners Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in the tax classification of the single-member owner.	+	Exempt payee code (if any) Exemption from FATCA reporting code (if any)	
2.2	☐ Other (see instructions) ►		Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)	
pecific	5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) 5747 N. Andrews Way	Requester's name a	and address (optional)	
See SI	6 City, state, and ZIP code Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309			
	7 List account number(s) here (optional)	*		
Par	Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)			
Enter backu reside	your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to av p withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, f int alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other s, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see <i>How to ge</i>	ora	curity number	
	n page 3.	or		
Note.	If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page	4 for Employer	identification number	
	ines on whose number to enter.	6 5	-0563467	
Par	t II Certification			
Inda	accolling of partice, i partify that			

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

- 1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
- 2. I am not subject to backup withholding because; (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
- 4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the

instruction	is on page 3.							/			
Sign Here	Signature of U.S. person ►	K	Mi.	BU	'N	and	Unl	Date 🖡	•	5-8-18	
		,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				1 1 43				

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. Future developments, information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) is at www.irs.gov//w9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of Information returns include, but are not limited to, the following:

- · Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)
- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- . Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- · Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

¹/₄ Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)

- · Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)
- Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN
- If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.

By signing the filled-out form, you:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued).

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) Indicating that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on page 2 for further information.

Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TiN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident allen;

• A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;

An estate (other than a foreign estate); or

A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners' share of effectively connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding or partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding not partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States:

 In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the disregarded entity and not the entity;

 In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and

• In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person, if you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Atliens and Foreign Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a "saving clause," Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items:

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien,

2. The treaty article addressing the income.

3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.

4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax,

5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article,

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

Backup Withholding

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 28% of such payments. This is called "backup withholding." Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

 You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 3 for details), 3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt payee code on page 3 and the separate instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships above.

What is FATCA reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign financial institution to report all United States account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3 and the instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for faise information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a \$500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account, list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9.

a. Individual, Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

Note. ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.

b. Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, or "doing business as" (DBA) name on line 2.

c. Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C Corporation, or S Corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

d. Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

e. Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a "disregarded entity." See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(iii). Enter the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. (ederal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on line 2, "Business name/disregarded entity complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9. This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN.

Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

Line 3

Check the appropriate box in line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one box in line 3.

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the name on line 1 is an LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and enter "P" in the space provided. If the LLC has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and in the space provided enter "C" for C corporation or "S" for S corporation. If it is a single-member LLC that is a disregarded entity, do not check the "Limited Liability Company" box; instead check the first box in line 3 "Individual/sole proprietor or single-member LLC."

Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the appropriate space in line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you.

Exempt payes code.

Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup withholding.

 Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, including Interest and dividends.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

1 —An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2)

2-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3-A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4-A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities

5-A corporation

6-A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession

7—A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission

8-A real estate investment trust

9-An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the investment Company Act of 1940

10-A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)

11-A financial institution

12-A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian

13-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947

The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

IF the payment is for	THEN the payment is exempt for		
Interest and dividend payments	All exempt payees except for 7		
Broker transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 through 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not enter an exempt payee code because they are exempt only for sales of noncovered securities acquired prior to 2012.		
Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends	Exempt payees 1 through 4		
Payments over \$600 required to be reported and direct sales over \$5,000 ¹	Generally, exempt payees 1 through 5 ²		
Payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4		

¹ See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.

² However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with "Not Applicable" (or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.

A—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

8-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

C--A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D-A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

E-A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(j)

F-A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state

G-A real estate investment trust

H---A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

1-A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)

J---A bank as defined in section 581

K-A broker

L-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1) M-A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

Note. You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be completed.

Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns.

Line 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see *How to get a TIN* below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner (see *Limited Liability Company (LLC)* on this page), enter the owner's SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity's EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN, If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an iTIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business, You can get Forms W-7 and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-600-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN and write "Applied For" in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For Interest and dividend payments, and cartain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note. Entering "Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee code earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 5 below.

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TiN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. "Other payments" include payments made in the course of the requester's trade or business for rents, royatties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to altorneys (including payments to corporations).

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account:	Give name and SSN of:
1. Individual 2. Two or more individuals (joint account)	The individual The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first individual on the account
 Custodian account of a minor (Uniform Gift to Minors Act) 	The minor ²
 a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee) b. So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under state law 	The grantor-trustee ¹ The actual owner ¹
 Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual 	The owner ³
6. Grantor trust filing under Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)() (A))	The grantor*
For this type of account	Give name and EIN of:
7. Disregarded entity not owned by an individual	The owner
8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust	Legal entity [*]
9. Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553	The corporation
 Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax- exempt organization 	The organization
11. Partnership or multi-member LLC	The partnership
12. A broker or registered nominee	The broker or nominee
13. Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity
14. Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)() (B))	The trust

List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a

joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be lumished.

² Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.

- ⁴ You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or OBA name on the "Business name/disregarded entity" name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.
- ⁴ List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see *Special infestion partnerships* on page 2. Note. Grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be

Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk;

- · Protect your SSN,
- · Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
- Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Publication 4535, Identity Theft Prevention and Victim Assistance.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible (or Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toil-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes. Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to *phishing@irs.gov*. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at: *spam@uce.gov* or contact them at *www.ftc.gov/idtheft* or 1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).

Visit IRS gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable Interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent information.



The School Board of Broward County, Florida

Professional Services Agreement

ATTACHMENT 8

Truth in Negotiations Certification

The format for the truth-in-negotiations certification is presented below. The consultant must complete this attachment prior to contract processing:

(Firm's Letterhead)

PROJECT NAME: Continuing Contracts Professional Services-Miller Legg & Associates, Inc. - Surveying

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT:

CERTIFICATE OF TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION

This is to certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation negotiated for the referenced contract are accurate, complete, and current at the time of contracting as defined in Florida Statutes CH287.055 (5) (a) and represented to The School Board of Broward County, Florida or their representative(s) in support of:

PROJECT NAME (S) Continuing Contracts Professional Services-Miller Legg & Associates, Inc.

Are accurate, complete and current as of

(Day), (Month) (Year)

9/5/2018

Miller Legg & Associates, inc. FIRM: (Name exactly as listed on contract) PRESIDENT: Michael Kroll

Reference: Florida Statutes 287.055

IMPROVING COMMUNITIES. CREATING ENVIRONMENTS.

South Florida Office: 5747 N Andrews Way • Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33309-2364 (954) 436-7000 • Fax: (954) 493-6539 www.millerlegg.com

s server a



The School Board of Broward County, Florida ACH Payment Agreement Form (ACH CREDITS)

VENDOR NAME: Miller, Legg & Associates, Inc.

Authorization Agreement

I (we) hereby authorize <u>The School Board of Broward County</u> to initiate automatic deposits (credits) to my account at the financial institution named below. Additionally, I authorize <u>The School Board of Broward County</u> to make the necessary debit entries/adjustments in the event that a credit entry is made in error.

Further, I agree not to hold **The School Board of Broward County** responsible for any delay or loss of funds due to incorrect or incomplete information supplied by me or by my financial institution or due to an error on the part of my financial institution in depositing funds to my account.

This agreement will remain in effect until **The School Board of Broward County** receives written notification of cancellation from me or my financial institution and that the origination of ACH transactions to my (our) account must comply with the provisions of U.S. law.

Name of Bank or Financ	ial Institution: <u>City National Bank</u>		
Branch/ State: Las	S Olas Boulevard, Fort Lauderdale, Flo	rida	
Routing No:	066004367		
Account No: 19544	495328	Checking	Savings
VENDOR AREA: Remittance Confirmation: (please select one) V	dipiero@millerlegg.com	Fax	Email
Federal Identification No. Vendor	65-0563467	TAX ID#	ss#
	Update Purchase Order Fax & E	mail Address	
Centralized Fax Number	(954)493-6339	De	ot. Accounti
Centralized Email	cpasquale@millerlegg.com	Dep	Marketin
Centralized Phone No.	(954)436-7000	Der	t <u>Main</u>
an an tha an training a star	sauce and second second Signature		
Authorized Signature (Primary) and Business titl	e: Blig birranding	J.CFO Dat	e: 5-9-1
Authorized Signature (Joint) and Business title:_	* * **********************************	Date	ì
Ple	ase attach a VOIDED check to verify bank details and	routing number.	
	s form must be returned to: SBBC – Purchasing – Data Dakland Park Blvd, Sunrise FL 33351 call: 754-321-051		
	For Use by DATA STRATEGY (GROUP	
and the second			

,

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

PSA Attachment 10

RFQ # and NAME Surveying RFQ 17-113C

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP

In accordance with the RFQ, each Proposer must disclose, in its RFQ, the names of any employees who are employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC. Persons identified below may have obligations and restrictions applicable to them under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.

Name of Proposer's Employee	SBBC Title or Position of Proposer's Employee	 SBBC Department/ School of Proposer's Employee
		 -
		. <u></u>

Check one of the following and sign:

X I hereby affirm that there are no known persons employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC.

i hereby affirm that all known persons who are employed by Proposer, who are also an employee of SBBC, have been identified above.

Signature

Miller Legg & Associates, Inc.

Company Name

Michael Kroll, President Name of Official 5747 N. Andrews Way, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309 Business Address

City, State, Zip Code

.-

.

1



July 28, 2017

Ms. Shari Francis Purchasing Agent School Board of Broward County 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd. Sunrise, FL 33351

Re: PROPOSAL

The School Board of Broward County, Florida (SBBC) Design Professional Services Continuing Contract for Surveying Services RFQ #17-113C

Dear Ms. Francis:

Please accept this proposal from Miller Legg for a Professional Services Continuing Contract for Surveying Services for the School Board of Broward County.

Our Team commits to include the following firm for Minority/Women's Business Enterprise participation to provide Surveying Support:

F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc. - Hispanic American M/WBE - 20%

We look forward to continuing to work with the SBBC on this important Surveying contract.

Sincerely,

Michael Kroll, RLA, FASLA President

Attachments: Staff Rate Breakdown F.R. Aleman & Associates M/WBE Certificate

IMPROVING COMMUNITIES. CREATING ENVIRONMENTS.

.

V 😥	COUDTY P	
	QQQ	

Office of Facilities and Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 6 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

Attachment 11 (754) 321-1500

RFQ Number/Name Proposer's Company Name Dated Submitted	17-113C-Continuing Contracts-Design Professional Services Surveying Miller Legg & Associates, Inc. Thursday, July 28, 2017				
Staff Rate Breakdown F	or Design Professiona	l Services			
Staff Classification (Surveying)	Raw Hourly Rate (\$)	Makiplier	Total		
Miller Legg & Associates, Inc.					
Principal In Charge Senior Project Manager	\$74.00	2.90	\$214.60		
Senior Project Manager Senior Suprevor & Manager (PSM)	\$55.00	2.90	\$159.50		
Senior Surveyor & Mapper (rSM)	\$55.00	2.90	\$159.50		
Senior Survey Technician	\$37.00	2.90	\$107.30		
Survey Crew - 2 Person	\$45.00	2.90	\$130.50		
Survey Crew - 2 Person Survey Crew - 3 Person	\$55.00	2.90	\$159.50		
GIS Coordinator Senior CAD Technician	\$38.00	2.90	\$110.20		
Senior CAD Technician	\$38.00	2.90	\$110.20		
CAD rotinician	\$27.00	2.90	\$78.30		
Administrative Support	\$22.00	2,90	\$63.80		
Subconsultant Firm: "Surveying Support" (FR Aleman & Associates, Inc.)					
Chief Utility Coordinator	\$56.50	2,90	\$163.85		
Chief Utility Coordinator Senior Project Manager	\$53.00	2,90	\$153.70		
Professional Surveyor and Mapper (Director)	\$53.00	2.90	\$153.70		
Senior Surveyor & Mapper (PSM), QA/QC	\$51.50	2.90	\$149.35		
Senior Survey Technician	\$35.50	2.90	\$102.95		
	\$27.00	2,90	\$78,30		
Survey Technician/CAD	\$32.62	2.90	\$94.60		
Field Crew Supervisor	\$31,00	2.90	\$89.90		

The School Board of Broward County, FloridaJune 29, 2017

Surveying Rates (RFQ 17-113C)

3 Page 1 of 2

4

This page intentionally left blank

	Andreaks Second a Ballia
	BROWARD
×	County Public Schools

Office of Facilities and Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 6 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

Attachment 11 (754) 321-1500

RFQ Number/Name Proposer's Company Name Dated Submitted	ontracts-Design Professional Services Surveying tes, Inc. .7			
Staff Rate Breakdown For Design Professional Services				
Staff Classification (Surveying)	Raw Hourly Rate (\$)	Multiplier	Total	
Survey Field Crew - 3 person	\$59.75	2.90	\$173.28	
Survey Field Crew - 4 person	\$73.75	2.90	\$213.88	
Locating & Designating Field Crew - 3 person	\$51,00	2.90	\$147.90	
Locating & Designating Field Crew - 4 person	\$66.00	2,90	\$191.40	
Administrative Support	\$22.00	2.90	\$63.80	
Supplemental Services Multiplier	2.90			

Note 2: Reimbursable expenses (a.k.a. allowances) should be direct costs with no mark-op.

The School Board of Broward County, FloridaJune 29, 2017

Surveying Rates (RFQ 17-113C)

5 Page 2 of 2

.

•

This page intentionally left blank



ή
AGREEMENT FOR OPEN END SERVICES

BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA AND CONSULTANT FOR SURVEYING CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made this, 24th day of July in the year 2018, by and between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA (hereinafter called the "Owner" "SBBC" and/or "Board"), and:

AAS

ENGENUITY GROUP, INC.

Hereinafter, "Consultant," for various projects. It is agreed that this Agreement is an "Open End" Agreement in that the Owner will from time to time during the term of this Agreement require services from the Consultant on various different projects with estimated construction costs that do not exceed the limit set forth in Section 287.055(2)(g), Florida Statutes as amended from time to time. Rather than enter into separate agreements each time that is required, the Owner and Consultant shall enter into this Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall govern each of the individual projects that the Consultant is hired to provide services for. Attached as Attachment I to this Agreement is a general "Scope of Work for Consulting Services," which has been negotiated and agreed upon by all parties. The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP"), Attachment 4, which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers. For each project, some or all of these Services will be part of the Scope of Work for that particular project. In addition, other services may be required.

The term of this Open-End Agreement commences on the date of this Agreement as set forth above; no new projects may be made part of this Open-End Agreement more than Three (3) years from the date of this Agreement. The total dollar amount for all fees to be paid to the Consultant for all projects pursuant to this Agreement may not exceed Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars over the life of the initial contract. The Agreement may be extended by Two (2) additional, one-year periods with a limit of One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per year extension. The Owner and Consultant agree as follows:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS
- ARTICLE 2 CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 3 SUB-CONSULTANTS
- ARTICLE 4 THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 5 BASIS OF COMPENSATION
- ARTICLE 6 PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT
- ARTICLE 7 INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE
- ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE
- ARTICLE 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS
- ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS INTO AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
	(individual project invoices required)
Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (one per project)
	Professional Services Required – page 1 of 3 (one per project)
	Project Schedule – page 2 of 3 (one per project)
	Professional Fee – page 3 of 3 (one per project)
Attachment 5:	List of Project Team Members
	(one per project)
Attachment 6:	Document 00455 - Background Screening
Attachment 7:	IRS Form W-9
Attachment 8:	Truth in Negotiations Certificate
Attachment 9:	ACH Payment Agreement Form
Attachment 10:	Conflict of Interest Form

Attachment 11: Staff Rate Breakdown for Design Professional Services

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 The Office of Facilities & Construction ("Office" or "OFC"): The Owner's organizational entity which acts as liaison between the Consultant and Owner and provides day to day management and other professional services on the Owner's behalf. Various members of the Office of Facilities and Construction, acting as representatives of the Owner, will meet with the Consultant at periodic intervals throughout the preparation of the Contract Documents to assess the progress of the Work in accordance with approved schedules. Office personnel will also examine documents submitted by the Consultant, including invoices, and will promptly render decisions and/or recommendations pertaining thereto to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of the Consultant's work. The Project Manager shall be principally responsible for direct communication to the Consultant and the Contractor.
- 1.2 The Chief Facilities & Construction Officer, Office of Facilities & Construction: An employee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who has the authority and responsibility for oversight and management of all projects for the Owner. Referred to hereinafter as the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or Chief Facilities Officer.
- 1.3 Authorization to Proceed (ATP): A document in the form of Attachment 4 to this Agreement, accompanied by a fully-executed Purchase Order, issued by the Owner to the Consultant, authorizing the performance of specific professional services and commencement of a Phase as defined in Article 2.1 through Article 2.8, and stating the time for completion and the amount of fee authorized for such services.
- **1.4 Basic Services:** Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- **1.5** Other Basic Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- **1.6** Supplemental Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- 1.7 **Consultant:** The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, of properly registered and licensed professionals who has entered into a contract with the Owner to provide professional Surveying Consulting services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
- **1.8 Project Scope:** The activities necessary to respond to the Owner's requirements for the various projects, refer to Attachment 1.
- 1.9 Project Budget: The sum, established by the Owner, as available for the entire Project, including but not limited to the construction budget (Fixed Limit of Construction Cost ("FLCC")), land costs, costs of furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E), financing costs, compensation for all professional services, costs of Owner-furnished goods and services, contingency allowances and other similar established or estimated costs.
- 1.10 **Project Schedule:** The Owner's requirements for the progress of activities associated with the Project identified by milestones and required completion dates for Consultant services defined by this Agreement.
- 1.11 The Contract Documents: The Contract Documents as used herein refer to the Agreement Form, Exhibits, Attachments, Educational Specifications, including any and all modifications thereto, issued before and after execution of the Contract and all Exhibits

attached thereto used by the Owner to establish a construction contract with the Contractor. These Contract Documents, and their requirements for the Consultant are incorporated by reference into this Agreement. Refer to Article 10 for the provisions of the RFQ incorporated into the Agreement.

- 1.12 Contractor: The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, who has entered into a contract with the Owner for construction of schools, administrative and support buildings, or various other types of facilities and incidents thereto.
- 1.13 **Program Manager:** CBRE Heery, Inc. The entity retained by the School Board of Broward County, Florida, to oversee the execution and delivery of the projects, and act as the Owner's Representative.
- **1.14 Project Manager:** An employee of the District or Program Manager to manage the Project as a direct representative of the Owner.
- **1.15** The Project: The construction, alteration or repair, and all services and incidents thereto, comprising a facility as contemplated and budgeted by the Owner.
- 1.16 Sub-Consultant: A person or organization of properly registered and licensed professionals who have entered an agreement with the Consultant to provide professional Surveying Consulting services for the Project.
- **1.17** Superintendent of Schools: The duly appointed executive officer of the Owner authorized to act by and through the Owner, referred to hereinafter as the Superintendent.
- **1.18** Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC): The total dollar value of all costs to construct each project.
- 1.19 Building Code Inspector (BCI): A licensed employee or designee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who provides plan review and construction inspection for code compliance, and report non-compliant work to the Project Manager and Project Consultant.
- 1.20 Value Engineering: Value Engineering (VE) is the creative, organized process of analysis of a project as to cost and/or performance with a focus on analysis of the proposed facility (and its systems, assemblies or components) and the elimination or modification of those features which add cost without contributing to that facility's required function or design value.
- 1.21 Constructability: Constructability is the creative, organized process of reviewing a project's drawings, specifications and other project documentation with a goal of eliminating design, detailing, and specification problems which might render the construction contract documents unbuildable or requiring extensive Addenda or Change Orders to make them buildable.
- **1.22** The Project Team: The Owner, Program Manager, and the Consultant who work jointly during the design, construction and warranty phases.

- 1.23 Substantial Completion: The term Substantial Completion as used herein, shall mean that point at which all work associated with the Project, or contractually-defined phase or portion of the Project, has received a fully executed Certificate of Occupancy (OEF 110B Form) or Certificate of Completion, whichever is applicable.
- **1.24** Chief Building Official, Inspections and Code Compliance (CBO): The officer or other designated authority charged with the administration and enforcement of all applicable codes, or a duly authorized representative.
- **1.25 Design Criteria:** Owner design requirements for all architectural and engineering disciplines.
- 1.26 Negotiated Unit Prices: unit prices for professional services to be utilized during various phases of each project under this Agreement. The Consultant's proposal shall serve as the basis for Negotiated Unit Prices. Refer to Articles 5 and 6 for terms of compensation and payment.

ARTICLE 2 - CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 Consulting Services: The Consulting Services are those set forth in the Professional Services Required form attached as Attachment 1 hereto and incorporated by reference. It should be noted that the Consulting Services may be some or all of those services listed on Attachment "1" to this Agreement, or other services designated by Owner.

2.2 Standard of Care and Representations:

- 2.2.1 Standard of Care: The Owner's engagement of the Consultant is based upon the Consultant's representations to the Owner that: (A) it is an organization of experienced professionals, authorized and licensed to do business in Florida; (B) the person responsible for performance pursuant to this Agreement is currently a registered Professional Architect or Engineer in the State of Florida; (C) it is qualified, willing and able to perform services for the Project; and that (D) it has the past experience and ability to provide services which will meet the Owner's objectives and requirements.
- 2.2.2 As to all services provided pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall furnish services by experienced personnel and under the supervision of qualified and experienced Consultants, and shall exercise a degree of care and diligence in the performance of these services in accordance with the customary professional standards currently practiced by firms in Florida and in compliance with any and all applicable codes, laws, ordinances, etc.
- 2.2.3 Any defective or deficient work furnished by the Consultant shall be promptly corrected by the Consultant at no cost to Owner, without limitations to other remedies or rights of Owner. Owner's approval, acceptance or use of or payment for all or any part of Consultant's services hereunder or of the Project itself shall in no way alter the Consultant's obligations or Owner's rights hereunder. The Consultant shall utilize the same personnel over the course of the Work and shall, if requested by the Owner, replace personnel whom the Owner has found to be incompetent or to whom the Owner otherwise reasonably objects.
- 2.2.4 All services provided by the Consultant shall: (A) be in accordance with all applicable

codes, including but not limited to, Florida State Board of Education Regulations, Chapter 6A-2.010 (Educational Facilities), the Florida Department of Education's State Requirements for Educational Facilities)("SREF"), the Florida Building Code ("FBC"), the Florida Fire Protection Code, the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement, and its referenced codes and standards; Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) (Broward Sheriff's Office), and all guidelines or regulations of the Owner (provided same are not less stringent than applicable codes); (B) be provided for the benefit of the Owner and not for the benefit of any other party; and (C) include all Consultant services normally required for a project of this type as listed in the Scope of Work (Attachment 1 to this Agreement).

2.2.5 Approval of Documents: Owner's approval of or comments on any of the documents submitted to Owner by Consultant shall not be deemed the approval of or by another governmental authority having jurisdiction over the project and Consultant acknowledges that the aforesaid authorities may require modifications of any of the documents submitted by Consultant. Subject to Article 2, such modifications shall be made at no cost to Owner.

ARTICLE 3 - SUB-CONSULTANTS

3.1 Sub-Consultants' Relations:

- 3.1.1 All services provided by a Sub-Consultant shall be pursuant to appropriate agreements between the Consultant and the Sub-Consultants which shall contain provisions that preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and the Consultant under this Agreement. All such Agreements shall provide that the Consultant may assign or transfer to Owner any and all claims or causes of action which the Consultant has or may have against Sub-Consultant as a result of or relating to any acts of omission or commission of that Sub-Consultant.
- 3.1.2 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the Owner and the Sub-Consultants. However, the Consultant is at all times liable for any and all negligent acts of omission or commission of its Sub-Consultants relating to or regarding this Agreement or the Project which is the subject of this Agreement. Owner may, at any time, after agreeing to provide Consultant with a Release or Covenant Not to Sue as to a claim or cause of action, require the Consultant to assign or transfer to Owner any such claims or causes of action which Consultant has or may have against one or more of its Sub-Consultants regarding or relating to this Project. Upon such request, the Consultant shall execute a written assignment or transfer in a form to be provided by the Owner. In the event the Owner agrees to indemnify and hold the Consultant harmless from any claim or cause of action brought by the Owner against a Sub-Consultant as a result of such assignment.
- 3.2 Proposed Sub-Consultants:
- 3.2.1 The Consultant proposes to utilize the Sub-Consultants identified in Attachment 5 (List of Project Team Members)
- **3.2.2** The Consultant shall not change any Sub-Consultant without prior approval by the Owner.

3.2.3 The Consultant shall, not later than ten (10) days after the date of this Agreement, submit a list of contact information for Sub-Consultants which includes contact names, firm addresses, telephone and fax numbers and email addresses. Any future changes to Sub-Consultants must also be submitted no later than ten (10) days after the date the change was made.

ARTICLE 4 - THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Information, Documents and Services: The Owner shall consult with the Consultant and provide such information regarding requirements for the Project as are reasonably necessary for Consultant to perform its services.
- 4.2 Owner Furnished Items: When documents, services, or other materials furnished by the Owner for the Consultant's use are deemed by the Consultant as inappropriate, inaccurate, or otherwise unreasonable, the Consultant shall notify the Owner of its opinion immediately upon discovery of same. Owner will notify Consultant upon delivery of any inaccurate data provided to the Consultant. Failure of the Consultant to notify the Owner shall result in the Consultant being responsible for any costs, expenses, or damages incurred by the Owner and forfeiture of claims for damages, delays or other compensation related to the use of those Owner furnished materials.

4.3 Project Management:

The Director of Preconstruction: The Director of Preconstruction or designee shall act on behalf of the Owner in all matters pertaining to this Agreement and shall approve all Authorizations to Proceed to the Consultant and all invoices for payment to the Consultant.

ARTICLE 5 – BASIS OF COMPENSATION

5.1 Professional Basic Service Fees ("Fee"):

5.1.1 The Owner agrees to pay the Consultant, and the Consultant agrees to accept for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses as set forth in Attachment 11 based on the fee schedule as set forth in Attachment 4 attached hereto and incorporated by reference. If Owner and Consultant cannot mutually agree to a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense, the Owner may secure services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources.

5.2 Supplemental Fee:

- 5.2.1 The Fee listed above is based on the scope of services for a project of this scope, size and complexity.
- 5.2.2 If the Owner authorizes an increase or decrease in the scope, size or complexity of the Project, the Fee will be adjusted as mutually agreed upon, in writing, by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.2.3 The Consultant may be authorized to perform Supplemental Services. The fee for such services will be based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses. Where a mutually agreeable Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense cannot be arrived at, the Owner may secure The School Board of Broward County, Florida Page 8 of 26

services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources. The Consultant shall provide any information and/or copies of project documentation necessary to facilitate the provision of said supplemental services by others.

5.3 Multiple of Direct Salary Expense:

- 5.3.1 Where this Agreement or Attachments 4 hereto indicates a fee computed on the basis of a Multiple of Direct Salary Expense, such fee shall be based on a negotiated multiple of the Direct Personnel Expense as set forth in Attachment 11.
- 5.3.2 Should overtime work be necessary for work compensated by this fee method, the Consultant's authorization and compensation for such work shall be approved by the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or his designee, in writing, and stated in Attachment 4 or other documents executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.4 Direct Personnel Expense: Direct Personnel Expense is defined as the salary rate, as determined from salaries reported to the Director of Internal Revenue, of the personnel engaged directly on the Project, and the portion of the cost of their mandatory and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other statutory employee benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, pensions and similar contributions and benefits.

5.5 Reimbursable Fees:

- 5.5.1 Reimbursables are those items pre-approved, in writing, and authorized by the Owner in addition to the Supplemental Services and consist of actual expenditures made by the Consultant and the Consultant's employees and Sub-Consultants in the interest of the work.
- 5.5.2 Authorized travel outside the areas of Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties, lodging and meals in connection with the Project (subject to the limitations imposed by Chapter 112.061, Florida Statutes); long distance communications (except for long distance charges for calls placed to others living outside the Consultant's local calling area), and fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the work, reproductions, postage and handling of Drawings, Specifications and other documents, and, if authorized in advance by the Owner, expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.
- 5.5.3 The Owner will reimburse the Consultant for authorized Reimbursables as verified by appropriate bills, invoices or statements.
- 5.5.4 Authorized Reimbursables shall not include charges for office rent or overhead expenses of any kind, including but not limited to, local telephone and utility charges, office and drafting supplies, depreciation of equipment, professional dues, subscriptions, etc., reproduction of drawings and specifications, mailing, stenographic, clerical, or other employees time or travel and subsistence not directly related to the Project. For all Reimbursables, the Consultant will apply the multiplier of one and five-hundredths (1.05) times the amount expended by the Consultant. Authorized reproductions in excess of sets required at each phase of the work will be a reimbursable.

ARTICLE 6 -- PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT

6.1 Payment for Basic Services and Supplemental Services:

- 6.1.1 Payments for Basic and Supplemental Services may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format) in proportion to services performed during each portion of the work or other basis as set forth in the Schedules attached hereto and conforming to the attached Consultant's proposal for Attachment 1 "Scope of Work". Owner in its sole discretion shall determine if the payment requested is in accordance with the proportion of the work performed.
- 6.1.2 No payments shall be due to Consultant unless and until all materials, forms and documents required by Owner have been provided by Consultant and its Sub-Consultant to Owner or others who are to receive same. The Owner retains the right to withhold payment from the Consultant for non-performance of the Consultant during any phase or portion of the Project.
- 6.1.3 The Consultant shall submit invoices in the Owner's required invoice format (Attachment 2) as provided.
- 6.1.4 All submitted invoices shall have copies of referenced S cope of Work and the Authorization to Proceed (ATP) attached.
- 6.1.5 Payments are due and payable thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice, provided it is in accord with the requirements of this Agreement.
- 6.1.6 The Consultant shall submit a monthly S/M/WBE Monthly Subcontractor Utilization Report with the monthly request for payment, on forms provided by the Owner.

6.2 Payment for Reimbursables:

- 6.2.1 Payment for Reimbursables may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format, Attachment 2) based on actual costs.
- 6.2.2 Payments are due and payable within thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice.

6.3 Project Suspension:

6.3.1 If the Project is suspended for the convenience of the Owner for more than three (3) months or terminated in whole or in part during any Phase, the Consultant shall be paid for services authorized by an Authorization to Proceed which were performed prior to such suspension or termination, together with the cost of Reimbursable Services and expenses then due.

ARTICLE 7 - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE

7.1 Indemnification:

7.1.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its members, officers, employees and agents (hereinafter collectively "Related Parties") from and against any and all liability, claims, causes of action (by whomever brought or alleged and regardless of the legal theories upon which the liability, claims or causes of action are based), losses, damage, costs, expenses and fees (including but not

Page 10 of 26

limited to reasonable fees of attorneys, expert witnesses and other consultants), which are or may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Owner and/or the Related Parties to the extent said liability, claims, causes of action, losses, damages, costs, expenses and/or fees are caused by the Consultant's negligent, reckless or intentional wrongful conduct of the Consultant and other persons employed or utilized by the Consultant in the performance of the contract..

- 7.1.2 In any and all claims against the Owner by any employee of the Consultant, or anyone for whose acts the Consultant may be liable, the obligations for Consultant to indemnify Owner under this contract shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Consultant under workman's compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- 7.1.3 In the event that any claims are brought or actions filed against the Owner with respect to the indemnity contained herein, the Consultant agrees to defend against any such claims or actions regardless of whether such claims or actions are rightfully or wrongfully brought or filed. The Consultant agrees that the Owner may select the attorneys to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. The Consultant further agrees to pay, at the sole expense of the Consultant, the attorney's fees and costs incurred by those attorneys selected by the Owner to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. However, if the claims or actions are covered by insurance and such coverage is acknowledged by the insurance company in writing to the Owner, then, in that case, the insurance company shall choose counsel, direct the defense and be the judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any such claims or actions against the Owner which are within the insurance policy limits and are paid by the insurance company solely. Otherwise, if the claims or actions are not covered by insurance, then, at its sole option the Owner shall have the sole authority for the direction of the defense, and shall be the sole judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any claims or actions asserted against the Owner.
- 7.1.4 The Consultant recognizes the nature of the indemnification obligations imposed under this contract and voluntarily makes these covenants. The obligation imposed upon the Consultant under this Indemnification Agreement shall survive termination of this contract.

ARTICLE 8-INSURANCE

8.1 General Insurance Requirements:

- 8.1.1 The Consultant shall not start work under this Agreement until the Consultant has obtained all insurance required hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the Owner.
- 8.1.2 All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. All insurance companies providing policies required under this Agreement shall have an "A" rating, or better, and a financial rating of no less than VI in the current A.M. Best Manual OR hold a Moody's Investors Service Financial Strength of "Aa3" or better.
- 8.1.3 All insurance policies required under this Agreement shall be endorsed to be primary of all other valid and collectable coverages maintained by the Owner. The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy, including Products Liability, shall include the Owner's Project number and full Project title (including applicable facility

name) on the Certificate.

- 8.1.4 The Consultant shall furnish certificates of insurance to the Owner for review and approval at the time of execution of this Agreement and shall maintain same at all times during the term of this Agreement.
- 8.1.5 The Certificates of Insurance shall be in the form as approved by Insurance Standards Office (ISO), unless approved by Owner and shall clearly indicate that the Consultant has obtained insurance of the type, amount and classification required by these provisions, in excess of any pending claims at the time of contract award to the Consultant. No material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without a 30-day prior written notice to and approval by the Owner. All Certificates shall list the Owner's project number and full project title (including applicable facility name).

8.2 Insurance Required:

- 8.2.1 Automobile Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in connection with this Agreement in amounts not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit and shall not be less than the standard ISO Business Auto Policy CA 00 01.
- 8.2.2 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): The Consultant shall procure Professional Liability Insurance in the manner described herein. The deductible shall not be more than Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars for each policy and must be indicated on the certificate of insurance. The limits of the Professional Liability Insurance Policy shall be as follows:
- 8.2.2.1 Not used.
- **8.2.2.2** Projects require a practice policy with a per claim/annual aggregate in accordance with the specifications delineated below relative to the cumulative construction value of all projects:
 - .1 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is less than Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars.
 - .2 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is between Five Million One (\$5,000,001) Dollars to Ten Million (\$10,000,000) Dollars.
 - .3 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is greater than Ten Million One (\$10,000,001) Dollars.

The Consultant shall be required to maintain the practice policy in accordance with the above specifications for a period commencing with execution of this contract and terminating three years after final completion of said projects. Should additional projects or change orders be added that increase the cumulative construction value to another tier shown above, the Consultant will be required to show proof of coverage at the higher limit / aggregate. In

addition, the Consultant shall provide information regarding the total claims against said practice policy on an annual basis for the term of the contract upon and terminating three years after final completion of the project (Claims/Loss history should be forwarded to the Risk Management Department), as The School Board of Broward County, Florida, deems appropriate.

The Professional Liability insurance must provide for all sums which the Consultant shall be legally obligated to pay as damages for claims arising out of or relating to the negligent services performed by the Consultant or any person employed or acting on the Consultant's behalf (including, but not limited to, Sub-Consultants) in connection with this Agreement. If the Owner, at its sole discretion, agrees that such coverage is not commercially reasonably available, the Owner may, at its discretion, authorize the Consultant to alter the coverage by substituting a lower aggregate or changing any other terms and conditions of the coverage (including but not limited to deductible amounts) based upon the scope of the project.

- 8.2.3 Worker's Compensation Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Worker's Compensation Insurance in compliance with Chapter 440 of the Florida Statutes. The firm shall maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance for all of its employees connected with the provided services as described in this Agreement in accordance with Florida Statutory limits and Employers Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than Five Hundred Thousand (\$500,000) Dollars per occurrence.
- 8.2.4 General Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability to cover the "Hold Harmless Agreement" set forth herein, with bodily injury limits of not less than One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage and not less than the Two Million (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate such coverage shall apply separately to each project. The School Board of Broward County, Florida, its members, officers, employees, and agents shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy.

ARTICLE 9 - GENERAL PROVISIONS

9.1 Performance:

- 9.1.1 Performance and Delegation: The services to be performed hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant's and Sub-Consultant's own staff, unless otherwise approved by the Owner. Said approval shall not be construed as constituting an agreement between the Owner and said other person or firm.
- 9.1.2 Task Orders: The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP") (Attachment 4) which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers.
- **9.1.3** Time for Performance: The Consultant agrees to start all work hereunder upon receipt of an Authorization to Proceed issued by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer or his designee and to complete all work within the time stipulated in the Authorization to Proceed (Attachment 4 to this Agreement ("ATP")). The Consultant acknowledges that failure to

perform timely may cause the Owner to sustain loss and damages and will be responsible for same. The Consultant agrees that Owner is entitled to recover no less than One Hundred Dollars (\$100) per consecutive calendar day of unexcused delay caused by the Consultant's failure to comply with the times set forth in the fully executed ATP. Owner shall have the right to deduct such amounts from payments due and owing to the Consultant.

- 9.1.4 Time Extensions: A reasonable extension of time for completion of various aspects may be granted by the Owner should there be a delay on the part of the Owner in fulfilling its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Such extension shall not be the basis or cause for any claims or causes of action by the Consultant for additional or extra compensation. Under no circumstances shall the Consultant be entitled to additional compensation or payment as a result of or relating to delays on the Project. Time is of the essence with regard to the performance of this contract.
- 9.1.5 Excess Funds: Any party receiving funds paid by the School Board of Broward County, Florida under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify the School Board of Broward County, Florida of any funds erroneously received from the School Board of Broward County, Florida of upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, as amended, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by the School Board of Broward County, Florida. The erroneous payment and/or overpayment will be promptly transmitted and returned to the School Board of Broward County, Florida with the maximum applicable interest permitted by Florida law.

9.2 Termination of Agreement:

- 9.2.1 Right to Terminate: The Owner has the right to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience on seven (7) days written notice. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the terms of this agreement. To receive payment, all charts, sketches, studies, drawings, and other documents or other materials related to work authorized under this Agreement, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Owner.
- 9.2.2 The Consultant may only terminate this Agreement for a material breach of the Agreement by Owner, and only after Consultant has given the Owner ten (10) days written notice and opportunity to cure such breach. In the event of any dispute regarding or relating to performance pursuant to this Agreement, or payment hereunder, the Consultant is obligated to continue performance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, unless instructed by the Owner to suspend or delay performance.
- 9.2.3 Owner may terminate this Agreement for cause, which shall include, but not be limited to, failure of Consultant to comply with any of its material obligations under this Agreement; a decrease in the projected, available Capital Outlay funds which renders continuation of the design or construction of the Project impossible or impractical; or conditions which arise that constitute Force Majeure under Article 9.2.6 of this Agreement. In such event, Consultant shall not be entitled to any additional payments and may be liable to Owner for any damages or losses incurred or suffered as a result of Consultant's failure to properly perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. In the event it is later determined that the Owner was not justified in terminating this Agreement for cause, then it shall be deemed to be a termination for convenience pursuant to Article 9.2.1 above, and the Consultant's sole compensation shall be compensation in accordance with that paragraph. Whether or not

this Agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be liable to Owner for any damage or loss resulting from such failure or violation by Consultant. The rights and remedies of Owner provided by this paragraph are cumulative with and in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or this Agreement.

- **9.2.4** Annulment: The Consultant warrants that no one has been employed or retained other than an employee working solely for the Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that the Consultant has not paid, nor agreed to pay, any company or other person any fee, commission, gift or other consideration contingent upon the making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Owner has the right to annul this Agreement without liability.
- **9.2.5** Fixed Fees Exceeding \$50,000: For all Fixed Fees or other "lump-sum" fees for professional service Agreements over Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars the Consultant shall execute a truth-in-negotiations certificate as in accordance with 287.055 and all required language set forth therein. Requirements of Florida Statute 287.055 (2004), as amended, are incorporated herein by reference.
- **9.2.6** Force Majeure: The Owner's or Consultant's failure to perform any term or condition of this Agreement as a result of conditions beyond its control such as, but not limited to, war, strikes, fires, floods, acts of God, governmental restrictions, power failures, or damage or destruction of any network facilities or servers, shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.
- 9.2.7 Termination of Scrutinized Companies or False Certification: SBBC reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is placed on the List of Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector; or has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. SBBC also reserves the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is found to have submitted a false certification.
- 9.3 Consultant's Accounting Records and Right to Audit Provisions: Consultant's records which shall include, but not be limited to, accounting records, payroll time sheets, audited and unaudited financial statements to substantiate overhead rates, written policies and procedures, Sub-Consultant files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful Sub-Consultant), original estimates, estimating worksheets, computer records, disks and software, videos, photography, correspondence, change order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements), and any other supporting evidence necessary to substantiate charges related to this Agreement (all of the foregoing hereinafter referred to as "records") shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or reproduction. during normal working hours, by Owner's agent or its authorized representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit evaluation and verification of any invoices, payments or claims submitted by the contractor or any of his payees pursuant to the execution of this Agreement. Such records subject to examination shall also include, but not be limited to, those records necessary to evaluate and verify direct and indirect costs (including overhead allocations), fees, reimbursable services, etc. as they may apply to costs, matters or items associated with this Agreement.
- 9.3.1 For the purpose of such audits, inspections, examinations and evaluations, the Owner's agent or authorized representative shall have access to said records from the effective date of this Agreement, for the duration of the work, and until five (5) years after the date of final payment by Owner to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. All costs which the consultant

is unable to provide support or documentation to substantiate that it was incurred as represented by the original estimated breakdown of costs or found to be not in compliance with the provisions of this contract, shall be reimbursed to the Owner.

- **9.3.2** Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall have access to the Consultant's facilities, shall have access to all necessary records, and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance with this article. Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall give auditees reasonable advance notice of intended audits.
- **9.3.3** Consultant shall require all Sub-Consultants to comply with the provisions of this article by insertion of the requirements hereof in any written contract agreement. Failure to obtain such written contracts which include such provisions shall be reason to exclude some or all of the related costs from amounts payable to the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.
- 9.3.4 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this article discloses overcharges (of any nature) by the Consultant to the Owner in excess of \$25,000, the actual cost of the Owner's audit shall be paid by the Consultant.
- 9.3.5 Public Records: The following provisions are required by Section 119.0701, Florida Statues, and may not be amended. Consultant shall keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under this Agreement. Upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, Consultant shall provide SBBC with a copy of any requested public records or to allow the requested public records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statues, or as otherwise provided by law. Consultant shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement's term and following completion of the Agreement if Consultant does not transfer the public records to SBBC. Upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall transfer, at no cost, to SBBC all public records in possession of Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under the Agreement. If Consultant transfer all public records to SBBC upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to SBBC, upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with SBBC's information technology systems.

IF A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT...

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018 Page 16 of 26

Custodian of Public Records

Requel Bell 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1925 Requel.bell@browardschools.com

9.4 Ownership of documents:

- 9.4.1 The documents developed under this Agreement shall become and be the sole property of the Owner whether the Project for which they were developed is executed or not. The Consultant may maintain copies thereof for its records and for its future professional endeavors, although the Owner shall bear no liability or any responsibility whatsoever for such use of said documents by the Consultant.
- 9.4.2 In the event of the Consultant's termination under other provisions of this Agreement, the Owner shall receive all original documents prepared to the date of termination and shall have the right to use those documents and any reproductions in any way necessary to complete the Project.
- 9.4.3 In the event Owner requests any such documents or materials referred to in this Article and Consultant fails to provide same as requested by Owner, then Consultant acknowledges that Owner will be irreparably harmed and subject to an injunction to provide same.
- 9.4.4 The Owner will not modify or distribute the documents, including electronic media versions, to third parties except for those purposes listed above without the expressed permission and consent of the Consultant. The Owner will delete any title blocks or other marks identifying the originating Consultant from any materials so distributed. The Owner will indemnify the Consultant against any claims that result from the modification of data and disks by the Owner.
- **9.5** Electronic Media: Where this Agreement or referenced provisions in the Contract require the Consultant to provide information or documents in either electronic or magnetic media, the preparation and format of that media shall conform to the Owner's "Electronic Media Submittal Requirements" which are incorporated as Attachment 3 to this Agreement for Open End Services.
- 9.6 Attachments and References:
- 9.6.1 The following named attachments are made an integral part of this Agreement:

.1	Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
.2	Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
		(individual project invoices required)
.3	Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
.4	Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form
		Professional Services Required

Project Schedule Professional Fee

- Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members
- .6 Attachment 6: Document 00455 Background Screening
- .7 Attachment 7: IRS Form W-9
- .8 Attachment 8: Truth in Negotiations Certificate
- .9 Attachment 9: ACH Payment Agreement Form
- .10 Attachment 10: Conflict of Interest Form

Online Documents: The following documents shall be downloaded by the Consultant and are considered as Attachments to this Contract:

Design Standards

.5

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/DSS/DS_Docs/DesignStandards.htm

- Design Criteria
- Design and Material Standards Division 1 thru Division 17
- Document Submittal Checklist for Plan Review

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/constructioncontracts/D0docs.html

• Specifications – Division 0

State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) latest edition

http://www.fldoe.org/edfacil/sref.asp

• F.I.S.H. layering system for AutoCAD: Note: the laying system is not posted on line. It will need to be requested thru:

Facility Planning and Real Estate 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1932

9.7 Extent of Agreement:

- 9.7.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral.
- 9.7.2 This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered after the execution hereof, except by resolution of Owner and an Agreement executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 9.7.3 This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties to the Agreement and are not for the benefit of any other party, nor shall it create a contractual relationship with any other party.

- 9.7.4 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The parties are encouraged to participate in mediation of any dispute before engaging in litigation.
- **9.8** Strict Performance: The failure of either party to insist upon or enforce strict performance by the other party of any of the provisions of this Agreement or to exercise any rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of its rights to assert or rely upon any such provision or rights in that or any other instance.
- 9.9 Prompt and Satisfactory Correction: The Owner, at its sole discretion, may direct the Consultant, at no additional cost to the Owner, to promptly and satisfactorily correct any services found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement or the requirements of any governmental authority, law, regulation or ordinance.

9.10 Successors and Assigns:

- 9.10.1 The performance of this Agreement shall not be delegated or assigned by the Consultant without the written consent of the Owner.
- 9.10.2 The Consultant and the Owner each binds one another, their partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns of such party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement.

9.11 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Incligibility or Voluntary Exclusion:

9.11.1 Lower Tier Covered Transactions: Executive Order 12549 provides that, to the extent permitted by law, Executive departments and agencies shall participate in a government-wide system for non-procurement debarment and suspension. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities. Except as provided in ß 85.200, Debarment or Suspension, ß 85.201, Treatment of Title IV HEA participation, and ß85.215, Exception provision, debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one agency shall have government-wide effect. A lower tier covered transaction is, in part, any transaction between a participant [SBBC] and a person other than a procurement contract for goods or services, regardless of type, under a primary covered transaction; and any procurement contract for goods or services between a participant and a person, regardless of type, expected to equal or exceed the Federal procurement small purchase threshold fixed at 10 U.S.C. 2304(g) and 41 U.S.C. 253(g) (currently \$100,000) under a primary covered transaction. A participant may rely upon the certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. Each participant shall require participants in lower tier covered transactions to include the following certification for it and its principals in any proposal submitted in connection with such lower tier covered transactions.

9.11.2 Certification and Disclosure

.1 The lower tier participant (Consultant) certifies, by entering this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018 debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

- .2 Where the lower tier participant (Consultant) is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such participant shall provide an explanation to the Owner.
- .3 The Consultant warrants that he or she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement and that he or she has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this agreement. For the breach or violation of this provision, the Owner shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the fees due and owing to the Consultant, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift, or consideration. (Ch. 287.055, F.S.)

9.12 Non-Discrimination, EEO, and ADAAA

- 9.12.1 Non-Discrimination -- The School Board of Broward County, Florida prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender, national origin, marital status, race, religion or sexual orientation.
- 9.12.2 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) The School Board of Broward County, Florida, prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender identity, gender expression, national origin, marital status, race, religion, sex or sexual orientation. Individuals who wish to file a discrimination and/or harassment complaint may call the Executive Director, Benefits & EEO Compliance at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.12.3 Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008 Individuals with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, (ADAAA) may call Equal Educational Opportunities (EEO) at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.13 Captions The captions, section numbers, article numbers, title and headings appearing in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit, construe or describe the scope or intent of such articles or sections of this Agreement, nor in any way effect this Agreement and shall not be construed to create a conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 9.14 Authority Provision: Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party with respect to all.
- 9.15 Notice Provision When any of the parties desire to give notice to the other, such notice must be in writing, sent by US Mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place last specified; the place for giving notice shall remain such until it is changed by

written notice in compliance with the provisions of the paragraph. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving notice.

To SBBC:	Superintendent of Schools The School Board of Broward County, Florida 600 Southeast Third Avenue Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
With a Copy to:	Office of the Chief Facilities Officer 600 SE 3 Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 Attn: Leo Bobadilla Chief Facilities Officer
With a Copy to:	Office of Procurement & Warehousing Services 7720 W Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323 Sunrise, FL 33351 Attn: Mary Coker Director of Procurement & Warehousing Services
With a Copy to:	Office of Facilities and Construction 2301 NW 26th St Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attn: Shelley N. Meloni Director, Pre-Construction Office of Facilities and Construction And
	CBRE Heery, Inc., Owners Representative 2301 NW 26th St Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attn: Robert Corbin Program Director/Vice President
To Consultant:	ENGENUITY GROUP, INC. 1280 North Congress Avenue, Suite 101 West Palm Beach, FL 33409 Attn: C. Andre Rayman, President

- 9.16 Excess Funds. Any party receiving funds paid by The School Board of Broward County, Florida (SBBC) under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify SBBC of any funds erroneously received from SBBC upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Any such excess funds shall be refunded to SBBC with interest calculated from the date of the erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by SBBC.
- 9.17 Background Screening. Project Consultant agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Project Consultant, its agents, subconsultants and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or(3) have access or

control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Project Consultant or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Consultant will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Consultant and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Consultant to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement.

Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Consultant's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Project Consultant pursuant to Article 7 of this Agreement and the laws of Florida.

ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF REQ INTO AGREEMENT

10.1 In addition to those Attachments and References identified and made part of this Agreement in Article 9.6.1, the provisions of **RFQ No. 17-113C – Surveying Consulting Services**(the "RFQ") are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in this Agreement and the RFQ, the more stringent provision shall prevail. If this Agreement is silent on an issue that is contained with the RFQ, the provisions of the RFQ shall be followed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The School Board of Broward County, Florida, has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the School Board to be set hereto; and the said Project Consultant has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the Project Consultant set hereto on this day and year first above written.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

ATTEST THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA)

(SEAL)

Robert W. Runcie, Superintendent of Schools

Nora Rupe

Approved as to Form and Legal Content:

Office of the General Couhsel

FOR PROJECT CONSULTANT



C. Andre Rayman, President

ENGENUITY GROUP, INC. Legal Name of Corporation

Witness or Secretary, (Bradwy Jacksm)

unin yia ferguson) Witness,

Project Consultant's Registration Number

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018

Page 25 of 26

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF BROWARD	
BEFORE ME this St day of May	2018, appeared Bradly Jackson
c Andre Rayman	ly known to me to be the persons described in

and who executed the foregoing contract and acknowledge that he executed the same as his free act and deed

for the purposes therein expressed.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last official this \underline{STM}_{day} day of

Notary Public State of Florida $\alpha | k| | \alpha$

My Commission Expires:

Notary's Commission No. FF279462



LISSETTE RODRIGUEZ Notary Public - State of Florida Commission # FF 229462 My Comm. Expires Sep 6, 2019



Attachment 1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 8 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Scope of Work

1.1 General Requirements

- 1.1.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 1.2.1 The services listed below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services, which may be requested by the Owner.

2.1 Basic Services

- 2.1.1 All services rendered shall be in conformance with Florida Administrative Code and Department of Business and Professional Regulations (DBPR) requirements as it relates to professional mapping and surveying services.
- 2.2.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 2.3.1 The listed services below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services which may be requested by the Owner.

3.1 General Basic Services

- 3.1.1 The Land Surveyor agrees to: (A) Provide complete professional land surveying and mapping services and all necessary personnel, equipment and materials to perform services; (B) Complete those land surveying services in accordance with the respective ATP's, related schedules, and work increments by the Owner.
- 3.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall schedule and attend project meetings on an as- needed basis with representatives of the Owner.

4.1 Basic Surveying Services

- 4.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall confer with representatives of the Owner to verify and confirm the project scope and specific requirements and/or requirements of any Authorization to Proceed (ATP) issued by the Owner.
- 4.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall, prior to commencing surveying activities, visit and inspect the site.

- 4.3.1 The Land Surveyor shall undertake all necessary activities in preparation for conducting the survey including but not limited to the following:
 - a. Review all record documents provided by the Owner; request clarification if necessary.
 - b. Order, if necessary, aerials, recorded easements and instruments from Broward County, municipality, other agency or vendor.
 - c. Check existing plat(s) information as it relates to easements, recorded instruments and reservations. Order any required plats as requested by the Owner.
 - d. Show site information in terms of Florida State Plane Coordinate System.
 - e. Coordinate, obtain, and map all over and underground existing as-built information with Broward County (or municipal) water and sewer authority, FPL, BellSouth, and other sources as necessary.
 - f. Calculate boundaries of properties, set control points, acreages, bearing and distances.
 - g. Show finish floor elevations of buildings and provide FIMA 100 year flood base elevation and panel number.
 - h. Establish minimum of two permanent benchmarks on site, tied to established control points: Set one benchmark at the base of the facility's flagpole if one does not exist at that location.
 - i. Restore dislocated survey control points based on original survey.

4.4.1 In the event that the Land Surveyor believes that the scope, schedule or budget established by an ATP is not achievable, the Land Surveyor shall immediately notify the Owner in writing as to the reasons one or all of them are unreasonable or not achievable immediately upon discovery.

- 4.5.1 The Land Surveyor shall prepare, submit and present for approval by the Owner a hardcopy and electronic AutoCAD copies (compatible with District's Electronic Media Requirements) of a site survey or "as builts" for properties identified on a ATP and according to the requirements of the District's Document Submittal Checklist found: <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/Design_Standards/Sub_mittalDocuments.asp</u>.
- 4.6.1 The Land Surveyor may prepare a site survey, which is an update of record information and surveys provided by the Owner. This will be prepared and submitted in electronic media and hard copy formats as applicable in the Agreement.
- 4.7.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit three copies of all documents (both electronic and hardcopy) without additional charge, for approval by the Owner unless additional (or fewer) copies are required by a particular ATP.
- 4.8.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit complete survey documents, properly signed and sealed by the Land Surveyor and respective Sub-Consultants (if any). Unsigned or unsealed documents are not acceptable.
- 4.9.1 When requested by the Owner, any records and survey calculations shall be submitted for the Owner's review and/or record.

4.10.1 The Land Surveyor shall render interpretations and clarifications of the survey in a written format, supplemented by appropriate graphics, acceptable to the Owner.

5.1 Other Basic Services:

- 5.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall render to Owner without additional compensation, any proper and reasonable assistance which Owner may require as a result of any claim or any action brought relating to Land Surveyor's services.
- 5.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall provide any other professional services not otherwise in the agreement to which the Land Surveyor and the Owner mutually agree.

This page intentionally left blank

÷ .

.

٦.

Design Professionals Invoice Format

The School Board of Broward County, Florida requires submittal of the Design Professional's invoice on the District's standard invoice forms attached to a transmittal form or letter on the Design Professional's company letterhead. Include the information and attachments described below:

- 1. Letterhead Containing Firm Information
 - A. Firm Name
 - 8. Address
 - C. Telephone and FAX Numbers
 - D. Consultant's Invoice Reference Number
- 2. Address Transmittal/Letter to:

Office of Facilities and Construction The School Board of Broward County, Florida 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attention: Name of Project Manager

- 3. Ensure that Transmittal/Letter references the following information:
 - A. Date of submittal.
 - B. The Invoice Number for ATP Number (example: Invoice No. 01 for ATP No. 01).
 - C. The School Board of Broward County's Purchase Order No.: (Which will be provided by the Facilities Project Manager at the beginning of the project.)
 - D. Name of Facility (and Facility Number).
 - E. Name of Project
 - F. School Board Project Number
- 4. Ensure attachment of the following documents to the Transmittal/Letter:
 - A. Design Professional's Invoice Form
 - 8. Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice Form
 - C. Copy of signature page (page 3 of 3) of the Design Professional's Authorization to Proceed.



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311(754) 321-1500

Design Professional		Date:
(Name)		
Project No:	Facility Name:	Invoice No:
Project Title:		SBBC PO No.
Design Professional's		ATP No.
Remit to address:		Invoice From:
	<u></u>	Project Manager

	T	 	
Repair The set Contains 2 — Change Street Well-Scheduling	1		R.
Original Basic Fee			HE .
TO ALTINGT PROJECT OF	1.85		
The second s	1 - •		
		······································	
 Market and the second se Second second s Second second s Second second se Second second s			
Current basic fee			L. L
	135		a
Contraction of the State State of the Sta	}.♥	 	

INVOICE TOTALS:

Summary Current Fee Previously Billed This Invoice Balance					
Basic Services	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Reimbursable	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Total:	\$	\$	· \$	\$	

BASIC FEE TOTALS:

Period	Fee	Previously B	illed	This Invoice Balance	
From to dates	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
·	\$	\$	%\$	% \$	%
	s	\$	% \$	% \$	%
	. \$	\$	%\$	% \$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	% \$	%
Other Services	\$	\$	%\$	% \$	%
Total Previously Bi	lled:	\$			
Total Amount This	Invoice:		\$	<u> </u>	
Total Balance:					\$

Submitted By: Name: Title: Date: (Signature)	Certified By: Name: Title: Project Manager Date: (Signature)	Recommended By: Name: Title: Date: (Signature)	Approved By: Name: Title: Date: (Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 (754) 321-1500

Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice

Project No: Project Title: Design Professional's: Remit to address: Facility Name: Invoice No: SBBC PO No. ATP No. Invoice From:

Project Manager:

Item No.	Date	Reimbursable Item	Amount
		nana ⁿ na M ^{al} nanazi manazi	
······································			
	**************************************	anala analan a	
		Invoice Total	\$

Receipts for each Item must be attached.

Current Contract Amount:	\$	_	
Total This Invoice:	 \$		
Total Previously Billed:		\$	
Total Balance:			\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By: Name: Title:
Title: Date:	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Date:
(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15 This page intentionally left blank

1

.

Electronic Media Requirements

All Work product for all projects, requires hard copies, electronic copies (PDF) and electronic original copies. The electronic media requirements are as listed below.

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

1.0 General Information

- 1.1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida contracts with one or more Internet bid advertising and distribution services. The Design Professional shall post the complete bid package to these services upon written notification by the Owner. The posted documents shall be read only documents and the file format shall be PDF.
- 2.0 Software Requirements
 - 2.1 Word Processing
 - 2.1.1 Provide word processing files in Microsoft Word for Windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
 - 2.2 Spreadsheets
 - 2.2.1 Provide spreadsheet files in Microsoft Excel for windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
 - 2.3 Computer aided Design and Drafting2.3.1 Provide all CADD files as the latest version of AutoCAD, Window's version.

3.0 CAD Standards

- 3.1 Standard plotted drawing size: 24 inch x 36 inch or 30 inch x 42 inch sheets.
 - 3.1.1 All sheets within a set shall be the same size unless pre-approved otherwise. (for example survey sheets)
- 3.2 Design Professional shall provide to the Owner the standard file naming Protocol they will be utilizing.
- 3.3 CAD File Layering
 - 3.3.1 Conform to the most up to date guidelines defined by the American Institute of Architects (AIA) standard document, "CAD Layer Guidelines."
 - 3.3.2 Provide the required Layering for the Florida Inventory of Schoolhouses (F.I.S.H.) documents
 - 3.3.1.1 The F.I.S.H. layering scheme is not available on-line. It can be requested through:

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17 Facility Planning and Real Estate600 SE 3rd Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312754-321-1932

- 3.3.3 Provide a separate list of all layers which do not conform to the standard AIA CAD Layer Guidelines or the FISH layering scheme.
- 3.4 No custom hatch patterns shall be utilized.
- 3.5 All symbols and blocks to have descriptive names
- 4.0 Electronic Media Delivery Requirements
 - 4.1 Transmittals shall include the following
 - 4.1.1 The Project Number, Project Title and date
 - 4.1.2 The Facility Name
 - 4.1.3 The submittal type
 - 4.1.4 The format and version of the software.
 - 4.1.5 An attached Listing of file names with the latest document publish dates
 - 4.2 All electronic media shall contain an attached label which shall identify 4.1.1, 4.1.2, and 4.1.3.
 - 4.3 Document clean-up
 - 4.3.1 Before a CADD file is placed on the delivery electronic digital media, the following procedures shall be performed:
 - 4.3.1.1 Purge all files and remove all extraneous graphics outside the border area.
 - 4.3.1.2 Make sure all reference files are attached without device path
 - 4.3.1.3 All required project files both graphic and nongraphic, shall include color tables, pen tables, font libraries, block libraries, user command files, plot files, etc. All project related blocks must be provided to the Owner as a part of the electronic digital deliverables.
 - 4.3.1.4 Make sure that all support files such as those listed above are in the same directory and that references to those files do not include device Path.
 - 4.4 The following Plot File Development and Project Documentation Information shall be submitted as an enclosure or attachment to the transmittal letter provided with each electronic digital media submittal.
 - 4.4.1 Documentation of the plot files for each drawing which will be needed to be able to allow identical plotting by the Owner at a later date. This documentation shall include the plotter configuration (e.g., name and model of plotter), pen settings, drawing orientation, drawing

Page 2 of 3

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17
size, and any other special instructions.

- **4.4.2** Instructions concerning how to generate plotted, drawings from the provided plot files.
- 4.5 Provide all symbols and blocks used in the project in a separate files.
- 4.6 List of all database/spreadsheet files associated with each drawing, as well as a description and documentation of the database format.
- 5.0 Ownership: Refer to Agreement for specific Owner and Design Professional's rights.
- 6.0 Documents for the Construction Contractor:
 - 6.1 The Owner and the Design Professional shall make various electronic information available to the Contractor during the Construction phase of the Project.
- 7.0 Where electronic media submittals of final site surveys are required: Provide electronic copies of any existing site survey data already on electronic media.
- 8.0 At the Contractors option, the Design Professional will provide the Contractor one set of AutoCAD (.dwg) electronic file format contract drawings, to be used for as built drawings at the Contractor's option. Note that the Architect's name and information to be removed.

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17

.



PSA Attachment 4

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed					
Project No.: Location No.:	<u>P.######</u> ####	Date:2017			
Project Title:	Name of Project	SBBC P.O. No.:			
		Line No.:			
Facility Name:	NAME OS SCHOOL	Project Manager:			
Project Consultant:	NAME OF VENDOR A/E	Dir. Capital Planning & Programming			
	services for the project referenced sign Design Developme	nt Construction Documents			
This Autho	orization to Proceed is subject to th	e following attachments:			
Attachmen	ts: Professional Services Ro Project Schedule Professional Fees Previous ATP's	equired			

The scope of the required services is specified on the Professional Services Required with a Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC) for this project as indicated below:

Original FLCC	Current Cost Estimate	Revised FLCC by ATP
\$#####################################	\$#####################################	\$######################################
) <u></u>

The services under this Authorization To Proceed (ATP) will be provided under the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) dated _____2017 between The School Board of Broward County, and NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT are in accordance with the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF ARCHITECT dated _____2017 (Revised _____, 2017 and _____2017) - See Attachment 1.

The Basic Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Articles 2.1 through 2.8 of the PSA.

The Supplemental Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Article 2.9 of the PSA.

Upon completion of a phase listed on Page 3 of this ATP, the Project Consultant shall not proceed with the next phase until the completion of all documents, required presentations and reports required for the phase being completed, and receipt of a written authorization for the next phase from the Owner, or the Office of Facilities & Construction, or the Program Manager.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)



PSA Attachment 4

The School Board of Broward County, Florida **Office of Facilities & Construction** 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued)

Project Schedule

Project No. & P.######## Location No.: #####

Project Title: GOB_NAME OF PROJECT

Facility Name: Project Consultant: NAME OF SCHOOL NAME OF ARCHITECTURAL VENDOR

The required project schedule milestones for this project are presented below. (Mandatory)

(•	Date Required Or Estimated Time Period		
ACTIVITY	Start	Finish	
Phase I - Scope Validation - 14 Calendar Day	Day 1	Day 14	
Phase I - Schematic Design Submittal (30% CDs) – 30 Calendar Days	Day 15	Day 44	
Phase I - Plan Review - 7 Calendar Days	Day 45	Day 51	
Phase II - Design Development Submittal (60% CDs) - 30 Calendar Days	Day 52	Day 81	
Phase II - Plan Review – 14 Calendar Days	Day 82	Day 95	
Phase III - 90% CDs Submittal – 30 Calendar Days	Day 96	Day 125	
Phase III - 90% CDs Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 126	Day 146	
Phase III - 100% CDs Submittal - 30 Calendar Days	Day 147	Day 176	
Phase III - 100% CDs Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 177	Day 197	
Phase III - 100% CDs Bldg Dept Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 198	Day 218	
Plan Revision / Re-Submittal to Bldg Dept 14 Calendar Days	Day 219	Day 232	
Bldg Dept Follow-up Review - 14 Calendar Days	Day 233	Day 246	
Plan Approval – 0 Calendar Days (See Note 2)	Day 246	Day 246	
Procurement & Award – 90 Calendar Days	Day 247	Day 336	
Construction Through Close-out (Contract Administration) - 365 Calendar Days	Day 337	Day 701	
Begins With Approval of GMP (See PSA Article 2.6.1)			
Warranty - 365 Calendar Days	Day 702	Day 1066	
Notes		r –	

Notes:

1. Day 1 = One (1) calendar day after fully executed Authorization To Proceed is issued to the Consultant or a mutually agreed upon start date with SBBC Owner's Representative. Excludes all federal observed holidays.

2. Completion of 100% Construction Documents is when Building Department issues Letter of Intent to Permit.

3. The milestones presented herein are in accordance with the schedule in the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT?ENGINEER dated 2017 (Revised , 2017 and ,2017) and the milestones shall be incorporated into the Project Design Schedule prepared by the Project Consultant as required by Article 2.2.5.8 of the PSA.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)



PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued) Professional Fees Project No. & P.###### Project Title: GOB SCOPE NAME Location No.: ##### Facility Name: NAME OF SCHOOL Project Consultant: NAME OF VENDOR A/E Phase Original Fee Authorized by ATP Fee Previously Paid Fee Balance **Basic Fee** I - Schematic Design (30% CDs) \$#####.00 0.0% \$######### 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 II - Design Development (60% CDs) \$#####.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% III-90% CDs \$########## \$#####.00 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$########## III-100% CDs \$#####.00 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% IV - Bid Phase (GMP) \$#####.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% V-Construction Administration \$#####.00 \$######### 0.0% \$0.00 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$#####.00 \$############ VI - Warranty 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Allowance - Document \$########## 100.0% 0.0% \$0.00 \$#####.00 \$0.00 0.0% Reproduction Allowance - Specific Purpose \$0.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Survey & GPR Allowance - Geotechnical \$0.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Allowance - Non-Destructive / \$20,000.00 \$########## 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% Destructive Testing Allowance - Pre-Design Testing \$0.00 100.0% 0.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 \$0.00 Supplemental Services \$0.00 \$0.00 100.0% Total: \$####.00 \$#####.00 100.0% \$0.00 0.0% \$0.00 0.0%

Payment for these services shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the Professional Services Agreement.

Approved By Consultant		Certified By SBBC			
Name:	·····	Name: Shelley N. Meloni	Name: Shelley N. Meloni		
Title:		Title: Director, Pre-Construction			
Signature:	Date:	Signature:	Date		
Recommended By SBBC		Approval by SBBC			
Name:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Name:			
Title: Project Manager / Program Dir	rector	Title:			
Signature: /	Date:	Signature:	Date		

This document is part of the Professional Services Agreement between The School Board of Broward County, Florida (Owner) and the Project Consultant and is incorporated by reference into the terms and conditions of that agreement.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)

Design and Professional Consulting Staff

Prime Firm: Engennity Group, Inc.

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address	
C. Andre Rayman	PSM	chent services	7090	LS 4938 al	aymancenario	hyonoly.c
tennifer Malin	PSM	Sr. Project mgr.	70%		alm@engchult	
Gary Rayman	psm	Quality control	70%	152633 aro	yman Dengenun	ygroup.
John Rice		Project Surveyor	70%	1 i S 4506 in	te @ enormuitya	oup cor
Joseph Williams		<u>r surver crew mgr</u>	7090		joc williams Gengen	
Aclain Beck	AutoCAD Diattu	g Drafter	70%	NIA	a beck Dengenury	g ray · Ca
. ,	• • •)			• • •	

Subconsultant: 📈

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address

Subconsultant: 🔀

Name	Title	Roie	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
		· ·			

Subconsultant: \succ

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address



Document 00455: Background Screening of Contractual Personnel

Project No: RFQ 17-113 C Location No: Project Title: Continuing contracts for Professional Surviving Services Facility Name:

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES, BACKGROUND SCREENING OF CONTRACTUAL PERSONNEL

Contractor agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Contractor and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or (3) have access or control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Contractor or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Contractor will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Contractor and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Contractor to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting in Contractor s failure to comply with the requirements of this section or Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes.

Bidder agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Bidder's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Bidder pursuant to SBBC Indemnification requirements as revised and the laws of Florida.

(To be signed in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths.)

Florida STATE OF COUNTY OF

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared

C. Andre Rayman

sworn, made the following statement:

1. Contractor Name:

Address:

- 2. My relationship to the Contractor named in (1) above is:
- 3. Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) (or if entity has no FEIN, the social security number of the person signing this sworn statement)

Engenuty Group, Inc. 1280 N. congress Ave., Ste 101 west Palm Beach, FC 33409

who, being by me first duly

President

(List relationship such as sole proprietor, partner, president, vice president, etc.)



TO BE COMPLETED AT THE TIME OF SUBMISSION OF POST-AWARD DOCUMENTS INDICATED IN DOCUMENT 00200. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF DOCUMENT 00550, NOTICE TO PROCEED.

The above-named Contractor presently complies fully with the requirements set forth in Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes to the extent that all contractual personnel to be employed under the terms of this bid HAVE met Level 2 Screening requirements set forth in Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes.

ву:	<u></u> date: <u>5/8/</u> 2018
NAME (Printed) C. Andre Rayman TITLE:	President
Notarization	State of: FIGNIDA)
Sworn to and subscribed before me, the undersigned authority	County of: <u>pril W Bradley JACKSON</u>
who is personally known to me or did produce:	MY COMMISSION # GG 179500 EXPIRES: January 25, 2022
an identification and who did take an oath.	Bonded Three Notary Public Checkwards
Notary Public: Bradley Jack	OM, MM Affix Seal
Commission Expires on: 1/25/20	222

School Board of Broward County - Contractors & Vendors

Those who need to request entry badges to the Broward School Board Facilities need to go to <u>http://www.broward.k12.fi.us/police/secclear.html</u> and follow the instructions for Fieldprint registration and scheduling process.

Before processing your documentation you need to have a signed contract or Purchase Order and a Vendor number; to obtain a Vendor number please call (754) 321-2374.

All vendors and contractors must provide the necessary information as soon as possible to Fieldprint. These documents can be found by selecting "Click Here for Forms and Other Necessary Information" hyperlink.

If you have any questions, please call Security Clearance Department at 754-321-2374.

*

PSA Attachment 7

See attached Department of Treasury Internal Revenue Service Form W-9.

÷

Form **W--9** (Rev. December 2014) Department of the Treasury Internal Revenue Service

	1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. ENDENDITY GINCY		
page 2.	2 Business name/disregarded entity/name, if different from above		
5	Individual/sole proprietor or C Corporation S Corporation Partnership	4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3): Exempt payee code (if any)	
Print or type Instruction:	Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partnersh Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in t the tax classification of the single-member owner.		Exemption from FATCA reporting code (if any)
2.2	☐ Other (see instructions) ►		(Applies to accounts maintaked outside the U.S.)
Print or type See Specific Instructions	5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) 1280 N. CONCIPESS Ave., Stc. 101 6 City, state, and ZIP code West Palm Beach, FC 33409	Requester's name a	ind address (optional)
	7 List account number(s) here (optional)		
Pai	Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)		
	your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoil	· · ·	curity number
reside	up withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for ent alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other es, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see <i>How to get</i> .		
	n page 3.	or	
	. If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page 4 lines on whose number to enter.	for Employer	identification number - 1959800
Par	t II Certification	· · · · ·	

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

- 1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
- I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
- 4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions on page 3.

~		
Sign	Signature of	6
Here	U.S. person >	

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted,

Future developments, information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) is at www.irs.gov/fw9,

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)
- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- · Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

Date 🕨

 Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)

- * Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- . Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to, provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.

By signing the filled-out form, you:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and

 Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on page 2 for further information. Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;

 A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;

An estate (other than a foreign estate); or

• A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners' share of effectively connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States:

 In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the disregarded entity and not the entity;

 In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and

 In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiarles of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aflens and Foreign Entities).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a "saving clause." Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items:

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.

3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.

4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.

5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article,

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the United States, Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident allen for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

Backup Withholding

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 28% of such payments. This is called "backup withholding." Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 3 for details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

4. The IAS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt payee code on page 3 and the separate instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information,

Also see Special rules for partnerships above.

What is FATCA reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign financial institution to report all United States account holders that are specified United States persons, Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3 and the Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more Information.

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a \$500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account, list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9.

a. Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

Note. ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.

b. Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, or "doing business as" (DBA) name on line 2.

c. Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C Corporation, or S Corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

d. Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

e. Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as an entity separate (rom its owner is treated as a "disregarded entity." See Regulations section 301,7701-2(o)(2)(iii). Enter the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on line 2, "Business name/disregarded entity name." If the owner of the disregarded entity is a low a complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9. This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN.

Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

Line 3

Check the appropriate box in line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1, Check only one box in line 3.

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the name on line 1 is an LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and enter "P" in the space provided, if the LLC has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and in the space provided enter "C" for C corporation or "S" for S corporation, if it is a single-member LLC that is a disregarded entity, do not check the "Limited Liability Company" box; instead check the first box in line 3 "Individual/sole proprietor or single-member LLC."

Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the appropriate space in line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you.

Exempt payee code.

Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup withholding.

 Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2)

2-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3-A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4--A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities

5-A corporation

6-A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession

 $7{-}\mathrm{A}$ futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission

8-A real estate investment trust

9—An entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

10-A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)

11-A financial institution

12-A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian

13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947 The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

IF the payment is for	THEN the payment is exempt for		
Interest and dividend payments	All exempt payees except for 7		
Broker transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 through 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not enter an exempt payee code because they are exempt only for sales of noncovered securities acquired prior to 2012.		
Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends	Exempt payees 1 through 4		
Payments over \$600 required to be reported and direct sales over \$5,000 ¹	Generally, exempt payees 1 through 5 ²		
Payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4		

¹See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous income, and its instructions.

² However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding; medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for a account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with "Not Applicable" (or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.

A-An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

B-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

C-A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D-A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

E-A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

F-A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state

G-A real estate investment trust

H---A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

I-A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)

J-A bank as defined in section 581

K-A broker

L-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1) M--A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

Note. You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be completed.

Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns.

Line 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see *How to get a TIN* below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner (see Limited Liability Company (LLC) on this page), enter the owner's SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity's EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

Note, See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an TIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7 and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN and write "Applied For" in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note. Entering "Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee code earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 5 below.

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.

 Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TiN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. "Other payments" include payments made in the course of the requester's trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to altomeys (including payments to corporations).

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account:	Give name and SSN of:
1, Individual 2. Two or more individuals (joint account)	The individual The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first individual on the account
 Custodian account of a minor (Uniform Gift to Minors Act) 	The minor ⁷
 a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee) b. So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under state law 	The grantor-trustee' The actual owner'
 Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual 	The owner [*]
6. Grantor trust filing under Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)() (A))	The grantor*
For this type of account	Give name and EIN of:
7. Disregarded entity not owned by an Individual	The owner
8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust	Legal entity
9. Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553	The corporation
 Association, club, religious, chantable, educational, or other tax- exempt organization 	The organization
11. Partnership or multi-member LLC	The partnership
12. A broker or registered nominee	The broker or nominee
13. Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity
 Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i) (B)) 	The trust

¹List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a

joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be furnished.

² Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.

³ You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or DBA name on the "Business name/disregarded entity" name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.

⁶List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the 'TiN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see *Special rules for partnerships* on page 2. Noto, Grantor algo must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note, if no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:

- Protect your SSN,
- Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
- Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Publication 4535, Identity Theft Prevention and Victim Assistance.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance, You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TEY/TOD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes. Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to *phishing@irs.gov*. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration (FIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at: *spam@uce.gov* or contact them at *www.ftc.gov/idtheft* or 1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).

Visit IRS gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage Interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent information.

.

.



C. ANDRE RAYMAN, P.S.M. KEITH B. JACKSON, P.E. LISA A. TROPEPE, P.E. ADAM SWANEY, P.E., LEED AP

ENGINEERS SURVEYORS GIS MAPPERS

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement

ATTACHMENT 8

Truth in Negotiations Certification

The format for the truth-in-negotiations certification is presented below. The consultant must complete this attachment prior to contract processing:

PROJECT NAME: Continuing Contract for Professional Surveying Services- 17-113C AMOUNT OF CONTRACT: N/A

CERTIFICATE OF TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION

This is to certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation negotiated for the referenced contract are accurate, complete, and current at the time of contracting as defined in Florida Statutes CH287.055 (5) (a) and represented to The School Board of Broward County, Florida or their representative(s) in support of:

PROJECT NAME (S): Continuing Contract for Professional Surveying Services- 17-113C

Are accurate, complete and current as of 8 May, 2018

FIRM: Engenuity Group, Inc.

PRESIDENT: C. Andre Rayman, PSM

Bv:

Reference: Florida Statutes 287.055

₹



The School Board of Broward County, Florida ACH Payment Agreement Form (ACH CREDITS)

VENDOR NAME: Engenuity Group, Inc

Authorization Agreement

I (we) hereby authorize <u>The School Board of Broward County</u> to initiate automatic deposits (credits) to my account at the financial institution named below. Additionally, I authorize <u>The School Board of Broward County</u> to make the necessary debit entries/adjustments in the event that a credit entry is made in error.

Further, I agree not to hold The School Board of Broward County responsible for any delay or loss of funds due to incorrect or incomplete information supplied by me or by my financial institution or due to an error on the part of my financial institution in depositing funds to my account.

This agreement will remain in effect until The School Board of Broward County receives written notification of cancellation from me or my financial institution and that the origination of ACH transactions to my (our) account must comply with the provisions of U.S. law.

	Account Information		
ame of Bank or Fir	ancial Institution: <u>Fifth Third Ba</u>	nk	_
Branch/ State:	Florida		
Routing No:	067091719		
Account No: 74	32663156	Checking	Savings
VENDOR AREA: Remittance Confirmat please select one)	on:) rodn'quez @engenuitygra	Fax ₽. <i>com</i> □	Email
ederal Identification Vendor	10. 59-1959840	TAX ID#	SS# □
	Update Purchase Order Fax & Email	Address	
entralized Fax Numb	r <u>561 832 93 90</u>	Dept.	Admin
entralized Email	Irodniguez @engenuitygm	Dept. Dept.	Admin
Centralized Phone No.	561 655 1151	Dept.	
and the second second	Signature		
Authorized Signature Primary) and Busines	stille: N.C.Andre Rayman, P	Date:_	5/8/18
Authorized Signature Joint) and Business t	the: CLIAN		5/8/18
	Kerth B. Jackson, VP Please attach a VOIDED check to verify bank details and routing	g number. 60	e copy of
7720	This form must be returned to: SBBC – Purchasing – Data Strate W. Oakland Park Blvd, Sunrise FL 33351 call: 754-321-0516 or fax	egy Group 1010 (#754-321-0533	ed check includ
	For Use by DATA STRATEGY GROU	P	
Vendor Account#	Date Entered	Initials:	
oard of Broward Cou	ntv		

The School Board of Broward County ACH Payment Agreement Form Revised 12/1/15

÷

The School Board of Broward County, Florida	PSA Attachment 10
RFQ # and NAME CONTINUINE Contracte	PSA Attachment 10 for Professional survey services
DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTE	REST AND CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR
CONTRACTUAL R	ELATIONSHIP

In accordance with the RFQ, each Proposer must disclose, in its RFQ, the names of any employees who are employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC. Persons identified below may have obligations and restrictions applicable to them under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.

Name of Proposer's Employee		BC Title or Position of Propos nployee	ier's	SBBC Department/ School of Proposer's Employee
	_			
				• • • • • • • •
			•••	·

Check one of the following and sign:

1 hereby affirm that there are no known persons employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC.

I hereby affirm that all known persons who are employed by Proposer, who are also an employee of SBBC, have been identified above.

Engenuity Group, Inc. Company Name Signature 1280 N. CONQUESS A.M., Stell C. Andre Rayman Name of Official Palm Beach, FL 33409 City, State, Zip Code INEST

The School Board of Broward County Revised 12/1/15

×



ENGINEERS SURVEYORS GIS MAPPERS

Attachment 11 C. ANDRE RAYMAN, P.S.M. KEITH B. JACKSON, P.E. LISA A. TROPEPE, P.E. ADAM SWANEY, P.E., LEED AP

1

August 10, 2017

Ms. Shari Francis Purchasing Agent III Procurement & Warehousing Services Broward County Public Schools 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd. Sunrise, FL 33351

RE: RFQ# 17-113C - Continuing Contract Design Professional Services for Surveying

Dear Ms. Francis,

Attached please find our proposal related to the above referenced RFQ.

 Engenuity Group, Inc. is an SBBC certified MBE (Subcontinent-Asian American) and as such is eligible for 100% Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE) participation.

Sincerely,

Talin

Jennifer Malín, P.S.M. Project Surveyor

Approved by,

C. Andre Rayman, P.S.M. President

Enclosed: Staff Rate Breakdown for Design Professional Services Worksheet SBBC MBE Certificate

County Public Schools		BROWARD County Public Schools
-----------------------	--	----------------------------------

Office of Facilities Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 6 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

Attachment 11

(754) 321-1500

RFQ Number/Name Proposer's Company Name Dated Submitted

Engenuity Group Inc. Thursday, August 10, 2017

17-113C - Continuing Contracts - Design Professional Services Surveying

Staff Rate Breakdown For Design Professional Services			
Staff Classification	Raw Hourly Rate (\$)	Multiplier	Total
Engenuity Group Inc.			
Principal In Charge	\$64.00	2.90	\$185.60
Project Manager	\$48,00	2.90	\$139,20
Senior Surveyor & Mapper	\$52,00	2.90	\$150.80
Surveyor	\$43.33	2.90	\$125.66
Survey Technician	\$35.00	2,90	\$101,50
AutoCADD Technician	\$27.00	2.90	\$78.30
Field Crew Supervisor	\$34.00	2.90	\$98.60
Survey Crew - 2 Person	\$46.67	2.90	\$135.34
Survey Crew - 3 Person	\$50,00	2.90	\$145.00
Administrative Support	\$22.00	2.90	\$63.80
Supplemental Services Multiplier	2.9		

Note 1: These rates will be set for the first three (3) years. Rate adjustments may be considered for additional year extensions (if applicable). Rate adjustments will be approved by the Office of Facilities & Construction's Director (Pre-Construction) with copy to the Purchasing Agent (Construction), Note 2: Reimbursable expenses should be direct costs with no mark-up.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida June 29, 2017

Surveying Rates (RFQ 17-113C)

3 Page 1 of 1

4

.



.

-

AGREEMENT FOR OPEN END SERVICES

BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA AND CONSULTANT FOR SURVEYING CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made this, 24th day of July in the year 2018, by and between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA (hereinafter called the "Owner" "SBBC" and/or "Board"), and:

F.R. ALEMAN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.

Hereinafter, "Consultant," for various projects. It is agreed that this Agreement is an "Open End" Agreement in that the Owner will from time to time during the term of this Agreement require services from the Consultant on various different projects with estimated construction costs that do not exceed the limit set forth in Section 287.055(2)(g), Florida Statutes as amended from time to time. Rather than enter into separate agreements each time that is required, the Owner and Consultant shall enter into this Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall govern each of the individual projects that the Consultant is hired to provide services for. Attached as Attachment I to this Agreement is a general "Scope of Work for Consulting Services," which has been negotiated and agreed upon by all parties. The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP"), Attachment 4, which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers. For each project, some or all of these Services will be part of the Scope of Work for that particular project. In addition, other services may be required.

The term of this Open-End Agreement commences on the date of this Agreement as set forth above; no new projects may be made part of this Open-End Agreement more than Three (3) years from the date of this Agreement. The total dollar amount for all fees to be paid to the Consultant for all projects pursuant to this Agreement may not exceed Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars over the life of the initial contract. The Agreement may be extended by Two (2) additional, one-year periods with a limit of One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per year extension. The Owner and Consultant agree as follows:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS
- ARTICLE 2 CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 3 SUB-CONSULTANTS
- ARTICLE 4 THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 5 BASIS OF COMPENSATION
- ARTICLE 6 PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT
- ARTICLE 7 INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE
- ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE
- ARTICLE 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS
- ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS INTO AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
	(individual project invoices required)
Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (one per project)
	Professional Services Required – page 1 of 3 (one per project)
	Project Schedule - page 2 of 3 (one per project)
	Professional Fee – page 3 of 3 (one per project)
Attachment 5:	List of Project Team Members
	(one per project)
Attachment 6:	Document 00455 - Background Screening
Attachment 7:	IRS Form W-9
Attachment 8:	Truth in Negotiations Certificate
Attachment 9:	ACH Payment Agreement Form
Attachment 10:	Conflict of Interest Form
Attachment 11:	Staff Rate Breakdown for Design Professional Services

ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 The Office of Facilities & Construction ("Office" or "OFC"): The Owner's organizational entity which acts as liaison between the Consultant and Owner and provides day to day management and other professional services on the Owner's behalf. Various members of the Office of Facilities and Construction, acting as representatives of the Owner, will meet with the Consultant at periodic intervals throughout the preparation of the Contract Documents to assess the progress of the Work in accordance with approved schedules. Office personnel will also examine documents submitted by the Consultant, including invoices, and will promptly render decisions and/or recommendations pertaining thereto to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of the Consultant's work. The Project Manager shall be principally responsible for direct communication to the Consultant and the Contractor.
- 1.2 The Chief Facilities & Construction Officer, Office of Facilities & Construction: An employee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who has the authority and responsibility for oversight and management of all projects for the Owner. Referred to hereinafter as the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or Chief Facilities Officer.
- 1.3 Authorization to Proceed (ATP): A document in the form of Attachment 4 to this Agreement, accompanied by a fully-executed Purchase Order, issued by the Owner to the Consultant, authorizing the performance of specific professional services and commencement of a Phase as defined in Article 2.1 through Article 2.8, and stating the time for completion and the amount of fee authorized for such services.
- **1.4 Basic Services:** Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- **1.5 Other Basic Services:** Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- **1.6** Supplemental Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- 1.7 Consultant: The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, of properly registered and licensed professionals who has entered into a contract with the Owner to provide professional Surveying Consulting services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
- **1.8 Project Scope:** The activities necessary to respond to the Owner's requirements for the various projects, refer to Attachment 1.
- 1.9 **Project Budget:** The sum, established by the Owner, as available for the entire Project, including but not limited to the construction budget (Fixed Limit of Construction Cost ("FLCC")), land costs, costs of furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E), financing costs, compensation for all professional services, costs of Owner-furnished goods and services, contingency allowances and other similar established or estimated costs.
- **1.10 Project Schedule:** The Owner's requirements for the progress of activities associated with the Project identified by milestones and required completion dates for Consultant services defined by this Agreement.
- 1.11 The Contract Documents: The Contract Documents as used herein refer to the Agreement Form, Exhibits, Attachments, Educational Specifications, including any and all modifications thereto, issued before and after execution of the Contract and all Exhibits

attached thereto used by the Owner to establish a construction contract with the Contractor. These Contract Documents, and their requirements for the Consultant are incorporated by reference into this Agreement. Refer to Article 10 for the provisions of the RFQ incorporated into the Agreement.

- **1.12 Contractor:** The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, who has entered into a contract with the Owner for construction of schools, administrative and support buildings, or various other types of facilities and incidents thereto.
- 1.13 **Program Manager:** CBRE Heery, Inc. The entity retained by the School Board of Broward County, Florida, to oversee the execution and delivery of the projects, and act as the Owner's Representative.
- **1.14 Project Manager:** An employee of the District or Program Manager to manage the Project as a direct representative of the Owner.
- **1.15** The Project: The construction, alteration or repair, and all services and incidents thereto, comprising a facility as contemplated and budgeted by the Owner.
- **1.16** Sub-Consultant: A person or organization of properly registered and licensed professionals who have entered an agreement with the Consultant to provide professional Surveying Consulting services for the Project.
- **1.17** Superintendent of Schools: The duly appointed executive officer of the Owner authorized to act by and through the Owner, referred to hereinafter as the Superintendent.
- **1.18** Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC): The total dollar value of all costs to construct each project.
- 1.19 Building Code Inspector (BCI): A licensed employee or designee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who provides plan review and construction inspection for code compliance, and report non-compliant work to the Project Manager and Project Consultant.
- 1.20 Value Engineering: Value Engineering (VE) is the creative, organized process of analysis of a project as to cost and/or performance with a focus on analysis of the proposed facility (and its systems, assemblies or components) and the elimination or modification of those features which add cost without contributing to that facility's required function or design value.
- 1.21 Constructability: Constructability is the creative, organized process of reviewing a project's drawings, specifications and other project documentation with a goal of eliminating design, detailing, and specification problems which might render the construction contract documents unbuildable or requiring extensive Addenda or Change Orders to make them buildable.
- **1.22** The Project Team: The Owner, Program Manager, and the Consultant who work jointly during the design, construction and warranty phases.

- 1.23 Substantial Completion: The term Substantial Completion as used herein, shall mean that point at which all work associated with the Project, or contractually-defined phase or portion of the Project, has received a fully executed Certificate of Occupancy (OEF 110B Form) or Certificate of Completion, whichever is applicable.
- **1.24** Chief Building Official, Inspections and Code Compliance (CBO): The officer or other designated authority charged with the administration and enforcement of all applicable codes, or a duly authorized representative.
- **1.25 Design Criteria:** Owner design requirements for all architectural and engineering disciplines.
- **1.26** Negotiated Unit Prices: unit prices for professional services to be utilized during various phases of each project under this Agreement. The Consultant's proposal shall serve as the basis for Negotiated Unit Prices. Refer to Articles 5 and 6 for terms of compensation and payment.

ARTICLE 2 – CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 Consulting Services: The Consulting Services are those set forth in the Professional Services Required form attached as Attachment 1 hereto and incorporated by reference. It should be noted that the Consulting Services may be some or all of those services listed on Attachment "1" to this Agreement, or other services designated by Owner.

2.2 Standard of Care and Representations:

- 2.2.1 Standard of Care: The Owner's engagement of the Consultant is based upon the Consultant's representations to the Owner that: (A) it is an organization of experienced professionals, authorized and licensed to do business in Florida; (B) the person responsible for performance pursuant to this Agreement is currently a registered Professional Architect or Engineer in the State of Florida; (C) it is qualified, willing and able to perform services for the Project; and that (D) it has the past experience and ability to provide services which will meet the Owner's objectives and requirements.
- 2.2.2 As to all services provided pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall furnish services by experienced personnel and under the supervision of qualified and experienced Consultants, and shall exercise a degree of care and diligence in the performance of these services in accordance with the customary professional standards currently practiced by firms in Florida and in compliance with any and all applicable codes, laws, ordinances, etc.
- 2.2.3 Any defective or deficient work furnished by the Consultant shall be promptly corrected by the Consultant at no cost to Owner, without limitations to other remedies or rights of Owner. Owner's approval, acceptance or use of or payment for all or any part of Consultant's services hereunder or of the Project itself shall in no way alter the Consultant's obligations or Owner's rights hereunder. The Consultant shall utilize the same personnel over the course of the Work and shall, if requested by the Owner, replace personnel whom the Owner has found to be incompetent or to whom the Owner otherwise reasonably objects.
- 2.2.4 All services provided by the Consultant shall: (A) be in accordance with all applicable
codes, including but not limited to, Florida State Board of Education Regulations, Chapter 6A-2.010 (Educational Facilities), the Florida Department of Education's State Requirements for Educational Facilities)("SREF"), the Florida Building Code ("FBC"), the Florida Fire Protection Code, the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement, and its referenced codes and standards; Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) (Broward Sheriff's Office), and all guidelines or regulations of the Owner (provided same are not less stringent than applicable codes); (B) be provided for the benefit of the Owner and not for the benefit of any other party; and (C) include all Consultant services normally required for a project of this type as listed in the Scope of Work (Attachment 1 to this Agreement).

2.2.5 Approval of Documents: Owner's approval of or comments on any of the documents submitted to Owner by Consultant shall not be deemed the approval of or by another governmental authority having jurisdiction over the project and Consultant acknowledges that the aforesaid authorities may require modifications of any of the documents submitted by Consultant. Subject to Article 2, such modifications shall be made at no cost to Owner.

ARTICLE 3 - SUB-CONSULTANTS

3.1 Sub-Consultants' Relations:

- 3.1.1 All services provided by a Sub-Consultant shall be pursuant to appropriate agreements between the Consultant and the Sub-Consultants which shall contain provisions that preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and the Consultant under this Agreement. All such Agreements shall provide that the Consultant may assign or transfer to Owner any and all claims or causes of action which the Consultant has or may have against Sub-Consultant as a result of or relating to any acts of omission or commission of that Sub-Consultant.
- 3.1.2 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the Owner and the Sub-Consultants. However, the Consultant is at all times liable for any and all negligent acts of omission or commission of its Sub-Consultants relating to or regarding this Agreement or the Project which is the subject of this Agreement. Owner may, at any time, after agreeing to provide Consultant with a Release or Covenant Not to Sue as to a claim or cause of action, require the Consultant to assign or transfer to Owner any such claims or causes of action which Consultant has or may have against one or more of its Sub-Consultants regarding or relating to this Project. Upon such request, the Consultant shall execute a written assignment or transfer in a form to be provided by the Owner. In the event the Owner requires the Consultant to assign or transfer said claims or causes of action, then the Owner agrees to indemnify and hold the Consultant harmless from any claim or cause of action brought by the Owner against a Sub-Consultant as a result of such assignment.

3.2 Proposed Sub-Consultants:

- 3.2.1 The Consultant proposes to utilize the Sub-Consultants identified in Attachment 5 (List of Project Team Members)
- **3.2.2** The Consultant shall not change any Sub-Consultant without prior approval by the Owner.

3.2.3 The Consultant shall, not later than ten (10) days after the date of this Agreement, submit a list of contact information for Sub-Consultants which includes contact names, firm addresses, telephone and fax numbers and email addresses. Any future changes to Sub-Consultants must also be submitted no later than ten (10) days after the date the change was made.

ARTICLE 4 -- THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Information, Documents and Services: The Owner shall consult with the Consultant and provide such information regarding requirements for the Project as are reasonably necessary for Consultant to perform its services.
- 4.2 Owner Furnished Items: When documents, services, or other materials furnished by the Owner for the Consultant's use are deemed by the Consultant as inappropriate, inaccurate, or otherwise unreasonable, the Consultant shall notify the Owner of its opinion immediately upon discovery of same. Owner will notify Consultant upon delivery of any inaccurate data provided to the Consultant. Failure of the Consultant to notify the Owner shall result in the Consultant being responsible for any costs, expenses, or damages incurred by the Owner and forfeiture of claims for damages, delays or other compensation related to the use of those Owner furnished materials.

4.3 Project Management:

The Director of Preconstruction: The Director of Preconstruction or designee shall act on behalf of the Owner in all matters pertaining to this Agreement and shall approve all Authorizations to Proceed to the Consultant and all invoices for payment to the Consultant.

ARTICLE 5 – BASIS OF COMPENSATION

5.1 Professional Basic Service Fees ("Fee"):

5.1.1 The Owner agrees to pay the Consultant, and the Consultant agrees to accept for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses as set forth in Attachment 11 based on the fee schedule as set forth in Attachment 4 attached hereto and incorporated by reference. If Owner and Consultant cannot mutually agree to a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense, the Owner may secure services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources.

5.2 Supplemental Fee:

- 5.2.1 The Fee listed above is based on the scope of services for a project of this scope, size and complexity.
- 5.2.2 If the Owner authorizes an increase or decrease in the scope, size or complexity of the Project, the Fee will be adjusted as mutually agreed upon, in writing, by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.2.3 The Consultant may be authorized to perform Supplemental Services. The fee for such services will be based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses. Where a mutually agreeable Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense cannot be arrived at, the Owner may secure

services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources. The Consultant shall provide any information and/or copies of project documentation necessary to facilitate the provision of said supplemental services by others.

5.3 Multiple of Direct Salary Expense:

- 5.3.1 Where this Agreement or Attachments 4 hereto indicates a fee computed on the basis of a Multiple of Direct Salary Expense, such fee shall be based on a negotiated multiple of the Direct Personnel Expense as set forth in Attachment 11.
- 5.3.2 Should overtime work be necessary for work compensated by this fee method, the Consultant's authorization and compensation for such work shall be approved by the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or his designee, in writing, and stated in Attachment 4 or other documents executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.4 **Direct Personnel Expense:** Direct Personnel Expense is defined as the salary rate, as determined from salaries reported to the Director of Internal Revenue, of the personnel engaged directly on the Project, and the portion of the cost of their mandatory and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other statutory employee benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, pensions and similar contributions and benefits.

5.5 Reimbursable Fees:

- 5.5.1 Reimbursables are those items pre-approved, in writing, and authorized by the Owner in addition to the Supplemental Services and consist of actual expenditures made by the Consultant and the Consultant's employees and Sub-Consultants in the interest of the work.
- 5.5.2 Authorized travel outside the areas of Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties, lodging and meals in connection with the Project (subject to the limitations imposed by Chapter 112.061, Florida Statutes); long distance communications (except for long distance charges for calls placed to others living outside the Consultant's local calling area), and fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the work, reproductions, postage and handling of Drawings, Specifications and other documents, and, if authorized in advance by the Owner, expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.
- 5.5.3 The Owner will reimburse the Consultant for authorized Reimbursables as verified by appropriate bills, invoices or statements.
- 5.5.4 Authorized Reimbursables shall not include charges for office rent or overhead expenses of any kind, including but not limited to, local telephone and utility charges, office and drafting supplies, depreciation of equipment, professional dues, subscriptions, etc., reproduction of drawings and specifications, mailing, stenographic, clerical, or other employees time or travel and subsistence not directly related to the Project. For all Reimbursables, the Consultant will apply the multiplier of one and five-hundredths (1.05) times the amount expended by the Consultant. Authorized reproductions in excess of sets required at each phase of the work will be a reimbursable.

ARTICLE 6 -- PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018

6.1 Payment for Basic Services and Supplemental Services:

- 6.1.1 Payments for Basic and Supplemental Services may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format) in proportion to services performed during each portion of the work or other basis as set forth in the Schedules attached hereto and conforming to the attached Consultant's proposal for Attachment 1 "Scope of Work". Owner in its sole discretion shall determine if the payment requested is in accordance with the proportion of the work performed.
- 6.1.2 No payments shall be due to Consultant unless and until all materials, forms and documents required by Owner have been provided by Consultant and its Sub-Consultant to Owner or others who are to receive same. The Owner retains the right to withhold payment from the Consultant for non-performance of the Consultant during any phase or portion of the Project.
- 6.1.3 The Consultant shall submit invoices in the Owner's required invoice format (Attachment 2) as provided.
- 6.1.4 All submitted invoices shall have copies of referenced Scope of Work and the Authorization to Proceed (ATP) attached.
- 6.1.5 Payments are due and payable thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice, provided it is in accord with the requirements of this Agreement.
- 6.1.6 The Consultant shall submit a monthly S/M/WBE Monthly Subcontractor Utilization Report with the monthly request for payment, on forms provided by the Owner.

6.2 Payment for Reimbursables:

- 6.2.1 Payment for Reimbursables may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format, Attachment 2) based on actual costs.
- 6.2.2 Payments are due and payable within thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice.

6.3 Project Suspension:

6.3.1 If the Project is suspended for the convenience of the Owner for more than three (3) months or terminated in whole or in part during any Phase, the Consultant shall be paid for services authorized by an Authorization to Proceed which were performed prior to such suspension or termination, together with the cost of Reimbursable Services and expenses then due.

ARTICLE 7 - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE

7.1 Indemnification:

7.1.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its members, officers, employees and agents (hereinafter collectively "Related Parties") from and against any and all liability, claims, causes of action (by whomever brought or alleged and regardless of the legal theories upon which the liability, claims or causes of action are based), losses, damage, costs, expenses and fees (including but not limited to reasonable fees of attorneys, expert witnesses and other consultants), which are or may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Owner and/or the Related Parties to the extent said liability, claims, causes of action, losses, damages, costs, expenses and/or fees are caused by the Consultant's negligent, reckless or intentional wrongful conduct of the Consultant and other persons employed or utilized by the Consultant in the performance of the contract.

- 7.1.2 In any and all claims against the Owner by any employee of the Consultant, or anyone for whose acts the Consultant may be liable, the obligations for Consultant to indemnify Owner under this contract shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Consultant under workman's compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- 7.1.3 In the event that any claims are brought or actions filed against the Owner with respect to the indemnity contained herein, the Consultant agrees to defend against any such claims or actions regardless of whether such claims or actions are rightfully or wrongfully brought or filed. The Consultant agrees that the Owner may select the attorneys to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. The Consultant further agrees to pay, at the sole expense of the Consultant, the attorney's fees and costs incurred by those attorneys selected by the Owner to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. However, if the claims or actions are covered by insurance and such coverage is acknowledged by the insurance company in writing to the Owner, then, in that case, the insurance company shall choose counsel, direct the defense and be the judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any such claims or actions against the Owner which are within the insurance policy limits and are paid by the insurance company solely. Otherwise, if the claims or actions are not covered by insurance, then, at its sole option the Owner shall have the sole authority for the direction of the defense, and shall be the sole judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any claims or actions asserted against the Owner.
- 7.1.4 The Consultant recognizes the nature of the indemnification obligations imposed under this contract and voluntarily makes these covenants. The obligation imposed upon the Consultant under this Indemnification Agreement shall survive termination of this contract.

ARTICLE 8-INSURANCE

8.1 General Insurance Requirements:

- 8.1.1 The Consultant shall not start work under this Agreement until the Consultant has obtained all insurance required hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the Owner.
- 8.1.2 All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. All insurance companies providing policies required under this Agreement shall have an "A" rating, or better, and a financial rating of no less than VI in the current A.M. Best Manual OR hold a Moody's Investors Service Financial Strength of "Aa3" or better.
- 8.1.3 All insurance policies required under this Agreement shall be endorsed to be primary of all other valid and collectable coverages maintained by the Owner. The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy, including Products Liability, shall include the Owner's Project number and full Project title (including applicable facility

name) on the Certificate.

- 8.1.4 The Consultant shall furnish certificates of insurance to the Owner for review and approval at the time of execution of this Agreement and shall maintain same at all times during the term of this Agreement.
- 8.1.5 The Certificates of Insurance shall be in the form as approved by Insurance Standards Office (ISO), unless approved by Owner and shall clearly indicate that the Consultant has obtained insurance of the type, amount and classification required by these provisions, in excess of any pending claims at the time of contract award to the Consultant. No material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without a 30-day prior written notice to and approval by the Owner. All Certificates shall list the Owner's project number and full project title (including applicable facility name).

8.2 Insurance Required:

- 8.2.1 Automobile Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in connection with this Agreement in amounts not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit and shall not be less than the standard ISO Business Auto Policy CA 00 01.
- 8.2.2 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): The Consultant shall procure Professional Liability Insurance in the manner described herein. The deductible shall not be more than Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars for each policy and must be indicated on the certificate of insurance. The limits of the Professional Liability Insurance Policy shall be as follows:
- 8.2.2.1 Not used.
- **8.2.2.2** Projects require a practice policy with a per claim/annual aggregate in accordance with the specifications delineated below relative to the cumulative construction value of all projects:
 - .1 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is less than Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars.
 - .2 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is between Five Million One (\$5,000,001) Dollars to Ten Million (\$10,000,000) Dollars.
 - .3 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is greater than Ten Million One (\$10,000,001) Dollars.

The Consultant shall be required to maintain the practice policy in accordance with the above specifications for a period commencing with execution of this contract and terminating three years after final completion of said projects. Should additional projects or change orders be added that increase the cumulative construction value to another tier shown above, the Consultant will be required to show proof of coverage at the higher limit / aggregate. In

addition, the Consultant shall provide information regarding the total claims against said practice policy on an annual basis for the term of the contract upon and terminating three years after final completion of the project (Claims/Loss history should be forwarded to the Risk Management Department), as The School Board of Broward County, Florida, deems appropriate.

The Professional Liability insurance must provide for all sums which the Consultant shall be legally obligated to pay as damages for claims arising out of or relating to the negligent services performed by the Consultant or any person employed or acting on the Consultant's behalf (including, but not limited to, Sub-Consultants) in connection with this Agreement. If the Owner, at its sole discretion, agrees that such coverage is not commercially reasonably available, the Owner may, at its discretion, authorize the Consultant to alter the coverage by substituting a lower aggregate or changing any other terms and conditions of the coverage (including but not limited to deductible amounts) based upon the scope of the project.

- 8.2.3 Worker's Compensation Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Worker's Compensation Insurance in compliance with Chapter 440 of the Florida Statutes. The firm shall maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance for all of its employees connected with the provided services as described in this Agreement in accordance with Florida Statutory limits and Employers Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than Five Hundred Thousand (\$500,000) Dollars per occurrence.
- 8.2.4 General Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability to cover the "Hold Harmless Agreement" set forth herein, with bodily injury limits of not less than One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage and not less than the Two Million (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate such coverage shall apply separately to each project. The School Board of Broward County, Florida, its members, officers, employees, and agents shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy.

ARTICLE 9 -- GENERAL PROVISIONS

9.1 Performance:

- 9.1.1 Performance and Delegation: The services to be performed hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant's and Sub-Consultant's own staff, unless otherwise approved by the Owner. Said approval shall not be construed as constituting an agreement between the Owner and said other person or firm.
- 9.1.2 Task Orders: The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP") (Attachment 4) which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers.
- 9.1.3 Time for Performance: The Consultant agrees to start all work hereunder upon receipt of an Authorization to Proceed issued by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer or his designee and to complete all work within the time stipulated in the Authorization to Proceed (Attachment 4 to this Agreement ("ATP")). The Consultant acknowledges that failure to

perform timely may cause the Owner to sustain loss and damages and will be responsible for same. The Consultant agrees that Owner is entitled to recover no less than One Hundred Dollars (\$100) per consecutive calendar day of unexcused delay caused by the Consultant's failure to comply with the times set forth in the fully executed ATP. Owner shall have the right to deduct such amounts from payments due and owing to the Consultant.

- 9.1.4 **Time Extensions:** A reasonable extension of time for completion of various aspects may be granted by the Owner should there be a delay on the part of the Owner in fulfilling its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Such extension shall not be the basis or cause for any claims or causes of action by the Consultant for additional or extra compensation. Under no circumstances shall the Consultant be entitled to additional compensation or payment as a result of or relating to delays on the Project. Time is of the essence with regard to the performance of this contract.
- 9.1.5 Excess Funds: Any party receiving funds paid by the School Board of Broward County, Florida under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify the School Board of Broward County, Florida of any funds erroneously received from the School Board of Broward County, Florida of upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, as amended, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by the School Board of Broward County, Florida. The erroneous payment and/or overpayment will be promptly transmitted and returned to the School Board of Broward County, Florida with the maximum applicable interest permitted by Florida law.

9.2 Termination of Agreement:

- 9.2.1 Right to Terminate: The Owner has the right to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience on seven (7) days written notice. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the terms of this agreement. To receive payment, all charts, sketches, studies, drawings, and other documents or other materials related to work authorized under this Agreement, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Owner.
- 9.2.2 The Consultant may only terminate this Agreement for a material breach of the Agreement by Owner, and only after Consultant has given the Owner ten (10) days written notice and opportunity to cure such breach. In the event of any dispute regarding or relating to performance pursuant to this Agreement, or payment hereunder, the Consultant is obligated to continue performance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, unless instructed by the Owner to suspend or delay performance.
- **9.2.3** Owner may terminate this Agreement for cause, which shall include, but not be limited to, failure of Consultant to comply with any of its material obligations under this Agreement; a decrease in the projected, available Capital Outlay funds which renders continuation of the design or construction of the Project impossible or impractical; or conditions which arise that constitute Force Majeure under Article 9.2.6 of this Agreement. In such event, Consultant shall not be entitled to any additional payments and may be liable to Owner for any damages or losses incurred or suffered as a result of Consultant's failure to properly perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. In the event it is later determined that the Owner was not justified in terminating this Agreement for cause, then it shall be deemed to be a termination for convenience pursuant to Article 9.2.1 above, and the Consultant's sole compensation shall be compensation in accordance with that paragraph. Whether or not

this Agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be liable to Owner for any damage or loss resulting from such failure or violation by Consultant. The rights and remedies of Owner provided by this paragraph are cumulative with and in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or this Agreement.

- **9.2.4** Annulment: The Consultant warrants that no one has been employed or retained other than an employee working solely for the Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that the Consultant has not paid, nor agreed to pay, any company or other person any fee, commission, gift or other consideration contingent upon the making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Owner has the right to annul this Agreement without liability.
- **9.2.5** Fixed Fces Exceeding \$50,000: For all Fixed Fees or other "lump-sum" fees for professional service Agreements over Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars the Consultant shall execute a truth-in-negotiations certificate as in accordance with 287.055 and all required language set forth therein. Requirements of Florida Statute 287.055 (2004), as amended, are incorporated herein by reference.
- **9.2.6** Force Majeure: The Owner's or Consultant's failure to perform any term or condition of this Agreement as a result of conditions beyond its control such as, but not limited to, war, strikes, fires, floods, acts of God, governmental restrictions, power failures, or damage or destruction of any network facilities or servers, shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.
- 9.2.7 Termination of Scrutinized Companies or False Certification: SBBC reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is placed on the List of Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector; or has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. SBBC also reserves the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is found to have submitted a false certification.
- 9.3 Consultant's Accounting Records and Right to Audit Provisions: Consultant's records which shall include, but not be limited to, accounting records, payroll time sheets, audited and unaudited financial statements to substantiate overhead rates, written policies and procedures, Sub-Consultant files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful Sub-Consultant), original estimates, estimating worksheets, computer records, disks and software, videos, photography, correspondence, change order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements), and any other supporting evidence necessary to substantiate charges related to this Agreement (all of the foregoing hereinafter referred to as "records") shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or reproduction, during normal working hours, by Owner's agent or its authorized representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit evaluation and verification of any invoices, payments or claims submitted by the contractor or any of his payees pursuant to the execution of this Agreement. Such records subject to examination shall also include, but not be limited to, those records necessary to evaluate and verify direct and indirect costs (including overhead allocations), fees, reimbursable services, etc. as they may apply to costs, matters or items associated with this Agreement.
- 9.3.1 For the purpose of such audits, inspections, examinations and evaluations, the Owner's agent or authorized representative shall have access to said records from the effective date of this Agreement, for the duration of the work, and until five (5) years after the date of final payment by Owner to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. All costs which the consultant

is unable to provide support or documentation to substantiate that it was incurred as represented by the original estimated breakdown of costs or found to be not in compliance with the provisions of this contract, shall be reimbursed to the Owner.

- **9.3.2** Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall have access to the Consultant's facilities, shall have access to all necessary records, and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance with this article. Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall give auditees reasonable advance notice of intended audits.
- **9.3.3** Consultant shall require all Sub-Consultants to comply with the provisions of this article by insertion of the requirements hereof in any written contract agreement. Failure to obtain such written contracts which include such provisions shall be reason to exclude some or all of the related costs from amounts payable to the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.
- 9.3.4 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this article discloses overcharges (of any nature) by the Consultant to the Owner in excess of \$25,000, the actual cost of the Owner's audit shall be paid by the Consultant.
- 9.3.5 Public Records: The following provisions are required by Section 119.0701, Florida Statues, and may not be amended. Consultant shall keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under this Agreement. Upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, Consultant shall provide SBBC with a copy of any requested public records or to allow the requested public records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statues, or as otherwise provided by law. Consultant shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement's term and following completion of the Agreement if Consultant does not transfer the public records to SBBC. Upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall transfer, at no cost, to SBBC all public records in possession of Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under the Agreement. If Consultant transfer all public records to SBBC upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to SBBC, upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with SBBC's information technology systems.

IF A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT...

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018 Page 16 of 26

Custodian of Public Records

Requel Bell 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1925 Requel.bell@browardschools.com

9.4 Ownership of documents:

- 9.4.1 The documents developed under this Agreement shall become and be the sole property of the Owner whether the Project for which they were developed is executed or not. The Consultant may maintain copies thereof for its records and for its future professional endeavors, although the Owner shall bear no liability or any responsibility whatsoever for such use of said documents by the Consultant.
- 9.4.2 In the event of the Consultant's termination under other provisions of this Agreement, the Owner shall receive all original documents prepared to the date of termination and shall have the right to use those documents and any reproductions in any way necessary to complete the Project.
- 9.4.3 In the event Owner requests any such documents or materials referred to in this Article and Consultant fails to provide same as requested by Owner, then Consultant acknowledges that Owner will be irreparably harmed and subject to an injunction to provide same.
- 9.4.4 The Owner will not modify or distribute the documents, including electronic media versions, to third parties except for those purposes listed above without the expressed permission and consent of the Consultant. The Owner will delete any title blocks or other marks identifying the originating Consultant from any materials so distributed. The Owner will indemnify the Consultant against any claims that result from the modification of data and disks by the Owner.
- **9.5** Electronic Media: Where this Agreement or referenced provisions in the Contract require the Consultant to provide information or documents in either electronic or magnetic media, the preparation and format of that media shall conform to the Owner's "Electronic Media Submittal Requirements" which are incorporated as Attachment 3 to this Agreement for Open End Services.

9.6 Attachments and References:

9.6.1 The following named attachments are made an integral part of this Agreement:

.1	Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
.2	Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
		(individual project invoices required)
.3	Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
.4	Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form
		Professional Services Required

Project Schedule Professional Fee

- .5 Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members
- .6 Attachment 6: Document 00455 Background Screening
- .7 Attachment 7: IRS Form W-9
- .8 Attachment 8: Truth in Negotiations Certificate
- .9 Attachment 9: ACH Payment Agreement Form
- .10 Attachment 10: Conflict of Interest Form

Online Documents: The following documents shall be downloaded by the Consultant and are considered as Attachments to this Contract:

Design Standards

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/DSS/DS_Docs/DesignStandards.htm

- Design Criteria
- Design and Material Standards Division 1 thru Division 17
- Document Submittal Checklist for Plan Review

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/constructioncontracts/D0docs.html

• Specifications – Division 0

State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) latest edition

http://www.fldoe.org/edfacil/sref.asp

• F.I.S.H. layering system for AutoCAD: Note: the laying system is not posted on line. It will need to be requested thru:

Facility Planning and Real Estate 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1932

9.7 Extent of Agreement:

- 9.7.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral.
- 9.7.2 This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered after the execution hereof, except by resolution of Owner and an Agreement executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 9.7.3 This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties to the Agreement and are not for the benefit of any other party, nor shall it create a contractual relationship with any other party.

- 9.7.4 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The parties are encouraged to participate in mediation of any dispute before engaging in litigation.
- **9.8** Strict Performance: The failure of either party to insist upon or enforce strict performance by the other party of any of the provisions of this Agreement or to exercise any rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of its rights to assert or rely upon any such provision or rights in that or any other instance.
- **9.9 Prompt and Satisfactory Correction:** The Owner, at its sole discretion, may direct the Consultant, at no additional cost to the Owner, to promptly and satisfactorily correct any services found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement or the requirements of any governmental authority, law, regulation or ordinance.

9.10 Successors and Assigns:

- 9.10.1 The performance of this Agreement shall not be delegated or assigned by the Consultant without the written consent of the Owner.
- 9.10.2 The Consultant and the Owner each binds one another, their partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns of such party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement.

9.11 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility or Voluntary Exclusion:

9.11.1 Lower Tier Covered Transactions: Executive Order 12549 provides that, to the extent permitted by law, Executive departments and agencies shall participate in a government-wide system for non-procurement debarment and suspension. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities. Except as provided in ß 85.200, Debarment or Suspension, ß 85.201, Treatment of Title IV HEA participation, and ß85.215, Exception provision, debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one agency shall have government-wide effect. A lower tier covered transaction is, in part, any transaction between a participant [SBBC] and a person other than a procurement contract for goods or services, regardless of type, under a primary covered transaction; and any procurement contract for goods or services between a participant and a person, regardless of type, expected to equal or exceed the Federal procurement small purchase threshold fixed at 10 U.S.C. 2304(g) and 41 U.S.C. 253(g) (currently \$100,000) under a primary covered transaction. A participant may rely upon the certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. Each participant shall require participants in lower tier covered transactions to include the following certification for it and its principals in any proposal submitted in connection with such lower tier covered transactions.

9.11.2 Certification and Disclosure

.1 The lower tier participant (Consultant) certifies, by entering this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for

debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

- .2 Where the lower tier participant (Consultant) is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such participant shall provide an explanation to the Owner.
- .3 The Consultant warrants that he or she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement and that he or she has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this agreement. For the breach or violation of this provision, the Owner shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the fees due and owing to the Consultant, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift, or consideration. (Ch. 287.055, F.S.)

9.12 Non-Discrimination, EEO, and ADAAA

- 9.12.1 Non-Discrimination The School Board of Broward County, Florida prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender, national origin, marital status, race, religion or sexual orientation.
- 9.12.2 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) The School Board of Broward County, Florida, prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender identity, gender expression, national origin, marital status, race, religion, sex or sexual orientation. Individuals who wish to file a discrimination and/or harassment complaint may call the Executive Director, Benefits & EEO Compliance at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.12.3 Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008 Individuals with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, (ADAAA) may call Equal Educational Opportunities (EEO) at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.13 Captions The captions, section numbers, article numbers, title and headings appearing in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit, construe or describe the scope or intent of such articles or sections of this Agreement, nor in any way effect this Agreement and shall not be construed to create a conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 9.14 Authority Provision: Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party with respect to all.
- 9.15 Notice Provision When any of the parties desire to give notice to the other, such notice must be in writing, sent by US Mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place last specified; the place for giving notice shall remain such until it is changed by

written notice in compliance with the provisions of the paragraph. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving notice.

To SBBC:	Superintendent of Schools
	The School Board of Broward County, Florida
	600 Southeast Third Avenue
	Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
With a Copy to:	Office of the Chief Facilities Officer
1.2	600 SE 3 Avenue
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312
	Attn: Leo Bobadilla
	Chief Facilities Officer
With a Copy to:	Office of Procurement & Warehousing Services
	7720 W Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323
	Sunrise, FL 33351
	Attn: Mary Coker
	Director of Procurement & Warehousing Services
With a Copy to:	Office of Facilities and Construction
	2301 NW 26th St
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311
	Attn: Shelley N. Meloni
	Director, Pre-Construction Office of Facilities and Construction
	And
	CBRE Heery, Inc., Owners Representative
	2301 NW 26th St
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311
	Attn: Robert Corbin
	Program Director/Vice President
To Consultant:	F.R. ALEMAN AND ASSOCIATES, INC.
	10305 NW 41 ST, Suite 200 Miami, FL 33178
	Attn: Yvette A Aleman, President

- 9.16 Excess Funds. Any party receiving funds paid by The School Board of Broward County, Florida (SBBC) under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify SBBC of any funds erroneously received from SBBC upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Any such excess funds shall be refunded to SBBC with interest calculated from the date of the erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by SBBC.
- 9.17 Background Screening. Project Consultant agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Project Consultant, its agents, subconsultants and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or(3) have access or

control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Project Consultant or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Consultant will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Consultant and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Consultant to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement.

Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Consultant's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Project Consultant pursuant to Article 7 of this Agreement and the laws of Florida.

ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF RFQ INTO AGREEMENT

10.1 In addition to those Attachments and References identified and made part of this Agreement in Article 9.6.1, the provisions of **RFQ No. 17-113C** – Surveying Consulting Services(the "RFQ") are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in this Agreement and the RFQ, the more stringent provision shall prevail. If this Agreement is silent on an issue that is contained with the RFQ, the provisions of the RFQ shall be followed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The School Board of Broward County, Florida, has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the School Board to be set hereto; and the said Project Consultant has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the Project Consultant set hereto on this day and year first above written.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

ATTEST THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

(SEAL)

Robert W. Runcie, Superintendent of Schools

Mar Lupert, Chair

Approved as to Form and Legal Content:

Office of the General Counsel



FOR PROJECT CONSULTANT

(Corporate Seal)

(ATTEST)

Yvette A Aleman, President

F.R. ALEMAN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. Legal Name of Corporation

)

Witt ness or Secretary, the Boyce J

Witness, (Margaret Rodriguez

(<u>4658</u>) Project Consultant's Registration Number

The School Board of Broward County, Florida **Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement** Version 4/23/2018

Page 25 of 26

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF BROWARD

BEFORE ME this	17th	day of	May	_, _	2018	, appeared	Yvette A. Aleman and, XB
							*

_____ personally known to me to be the persons described in

and who executed the foregoing contract and acknowledge that he executed the same as his free act and deed

for the purposes therein expressed.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last official this 17th day of

<u>May</u>, 201<u>8.</u>

Notary Public State of Florida

My Commission Expires: 02/02/2022

Julla E. Boyce Commission # GG178904 Expires: February 12, 2022 Bonded thru Aaron Notary

18904 ommission No



Attachment 1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 8 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Scope of Work

1.1 General Requirements

- 1.1.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 1.2.1 The services listed below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services, which may be requested by the Owner.

2.1 Basic Services

- 2.1.1 All services rendered shall be in conformance with Florida Administrative Code and Department of Business and Professional Regulations (DBPR) requirements as it relates to professional mapping and surveying services.
- 2.2.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 2.3.1 The listed services below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services which may be requested by the Owner.

3.1 General Basic Services

- 3.1.1 The Land Surveyor agrees to: (A) Provide complete professional land surveying and mapping services and all necessary personnel, equipment and materials to perform services; (B) Complete those land surveying services in accordance with the respective ATP's, related schedules, and work increments by the Owner.
- 3.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall schedule and attend project meetings on an as- needed basis with representatives of the Owner.

4.1 Basic Surveying Services

- 4.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall confer with representatives of the Owner to verify and confirm the project scope and specific requirements and/or requirements of any Authorization to Proceed (ATP) issued by the Owner.
- 4.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall, prior to commencing surveying activities, visit and inspect the site.

- 4.3.1 The Land Surveyor shall undertake all necessary activities in preparation for conducting the survey including but not limited to the following:
 - a. Review all record documents provided by the Owner; request clarification if necessary.
 - b. Order, if necessary, aerials, recorded easements and instruments from Broward County, municipality, other agency or vendor.
 - c. Check existing plat(s) information as it relates to easements, recorded instruments and reservations. Order any required plats as requested by the Owner.
 - d. Show site information in terms of Florida State Plane Coordinate System.
 - e. Coordinate, obtain, and map all over and underground existing as-built information with Broward County (or municipal) water and sewer authority, FPL, BellSouth, and other sources as necessary.
 - f. Calculate boundaries of properties, set control points, acreages, bearing and distances.
 - g. Show finish floor elevations of buildings and provide FIMA 100 year flood base elevation and panel number.
 - h. Establish minimum of two permanent benchmarks on site, tied to established control points: Set one benchmark at the base of the facility's flagpole if one does not exist at that location.
 - i. Restore dislocated survey control points based on original survey.
- 4.4.1 In the event that the Land Surveyor believes that the scope, schedule or budget established by an ATP is not achievable, the Land Surveyor shall immediately notify the Owner in writing as to the reasons one or all of them are unreasonable or not achievable immediately upon discovery.
- 4.5.1 The Land Surveyor shall prepare, submit and present for approval by the Owner a hardcopy and electronic AutoCAD copies (compatible with District's Electronic Media Requirements) of a site survey or "as builts" for properties identified on a ATP and according to the requirements of the District's Document Submittal Checklist found: <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/Design_Standards/Sub_mittalDocuments.asp</u>.
- 4.6.1 The Land Surveyor may prepare a site survey, which is an update of record information and surveys provided by the Owner. This will be prepared and submitted in electronic media and hard copy formats as applicable in the Agreement.
- 4.7.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit three copies of all documents (both electronic and hardcopy) without additional charge, for approval by the Owner unless additional (or fewer) copies are required by a particular ATP.
- 4.8.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit complete survey documents, properly signed and sealed by the Land Surveyor and respective Sub-Consultants (if any). Unsigned or unsealed documents are not acceptable.
- 4.9.1 When requested by the Owner, any records and survey calculations shall be submitted for the Owner's review and/or record.

4.10.1 The Land Surveyor shall render interpretations and clarifications of the survey in a written format, supplemented by appropriate graphics, acceptable to the Owner.

5.1 **Other Basic Services:**

- 5.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall render to Owner without additional compensation, any proper and reasonable assistance which Owner may require as a result of any claim or any action brought relating to Land Surveyor's services.
- 5.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall provide any other professional services not otherwise in the agreement to which the Land Surveyor and the Owner mutually agree.

This page intentionally left blank

-

Design Professionals Invoice Format

The School Board of Broward County, Florida requires submittal of the Design Professional's invoice on the District's standard invoice forms attached to a transmittal form or letter on the Design Professional's company letterhead. Include the information and attachments described below:

- 1. Letterhead Containing Firm Information
 - A. Firm Name
 - B. Address
 - C. Telephone and FAX Numbers
 - D. Consultant's Invoice Reference Number
- 2. Address Transmittal/Letter to:

Office of Facilities and Construction The School Board of Broward County, Florida 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attention: Name of Project Manager

- 3. Ensure that Transmittal/Letter references the following information:
 - A. Date of submittal.
 - B. The Invoice Number for ATP Number (example: Invoice No. 01 for ATP No. 01).
 - C. The School Board of Broward County's Purchase Order No.: (Which will be provided by the Facilities Project Manager at the beginning of the project.)
 - D. Name of Facility (and Facility Number).
 - E. Name of Project
 - F. School Board Project Number
- 4. Ensure attachment of the following documents to the Transmittal/Letter:
 - A. Design Professional's Invoice Form
 - B. Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice Form
 - C. Copy of signature page (page 3 of 3) of the Design Professional's Authorization to Proceed.



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311(754) 321-1500

Design Professional		Date:
(Name)		
Project No:	Facility Name:	Invoice No:
Project Title:		SBBC PO No.
Design Professional's		ATP No.
Remit to address:		Invoice From:
		Project Manager

Original Basic Fee	\$ 	
Current basic fee	\$ 	

INVOICE TOTALS:

Summary	Current	Fee Previously B	illed This Invoid	e Balanc	e
Basic Services	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Reimbursable	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Total:	\$	\$	\$	\$	

BASIC FEE TOTALS:

Period	Fee	Previously B	lilled	This Invoice	Balance	
From to dates	\$	\$	%	\$ %	\$	%
	\$	\$	%	\$ %	\$	%
	\$	\$	%	\$ %	\$	%
	\$	\$	%	\$ %	\$	%
	\$	\$	% :	\$ %	\$	%
Other Services	\$	\$	%	\$ %	\$	%
Total Previously Billed:		\$	į.			
Total Amount This Invoice:				\$		
Total Balance:						\$

 Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By:
Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Name: Title: Date:
(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)
(5)81101010)	(oignature)	



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 (754) 321-1500

Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice

Project No: Project Title: Design Professional's: Remit to address: Facility Name: Invoice No: SBBC PO No. ATP No. Invoice From:

Project Manager:

ltem No.	Date	Reimbursable Item	Amount
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
		Invoice Total	\$

Receipts for each Item must be attached.

Current Contract Amount:	\$ 	· · · ·	
Total This Invoice:		\$	· ·
Total Previously Billed:			\$
Total Balance:			\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By: Name: Title:
Title: Date:	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Date:
(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15 This page intentionally left blank

Electronic Media Requirements

All Work product for all projects, requires hard copies, electronic copies (PDF) and electronic original copies. The electronic media requirements are as listed below.

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

1.0 General Information

1.1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida contracts with one or more Internet bid advertising and distribution services. The Design Professional shall post the complete bid package to these services upon written notification by the Owner. The posted documents shall be read only documents and the file format shall be PDF.

2.0 Software Requirements

- 2.1 Word Processing
 - 2.1.1 Provide word processing files in Microsoft Word for Windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
- 2.2 Spreadsheets
 - 2.2.1 Provide spreadsheet files in Microsoft Excel for windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
- 2.3 Computer aided Design and Drafting2.3.1 Provide all CADD files as the latest version of AutoCAD, Window's version.

3.0 CAD Standards

- 3.1 Standard plotted drawing size: 24 inch x 36 inch or 30 inch x 42 inch sheets.
 - 3.1.1 All sheets within a set shall be the same size unless pre-approved otherwise. (for example survey sheets)
- 3.2 Design Professional shall provide to the Owner the standard file naming Protocol they will be utilizing.
- 3.3 CAD File Layering
 - 3.3.1 Conform to the most up to date guidelines defined by the American Institute of Architects (AIA) standard document, "CAD Layer Guidelines."
 - 3.3.2 Provide the required Layering for the Florida Inventory of Schoolhouses (F.I.S.H.) documents
 - 3.3.1.1 The F.I.S.H. layering scheme is not available on-line. It can be requested through:

Page 1 of 3

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17 Facility Planning and Real Estate600 SE 3rd Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312754-321-1932

- 3.3.3 Provide a separate list of all layers which do not conform to the standard AIA CAD Layer Guidelines or the FISH layering scheme.
- 3.4 No custom hatch patterns shall be utilized.
- 3.5 All symbols and blocks to have descriptive names
- 4.0 Electronic Media Delivery Requirements
 - 4.1 Transmittals shall include the following
 - 4.1.1 The Project Number, Project Title and date
 - 4.1.2 The Facility Name
 - 4.1.3 The submittal type
 - 4.1.4 The format and version of the software.
 - 4.1.5 An attached Listing of file names with the latest document publish dates
 - 4.2 All electronic media shall contain an attached label which shall identify 4.1.1, 4.1.2, and 4.1.3.
 - 4.3 Document clean-up
 - 4.3.1 Before a CADD file is placed on the delivery electronic digital media, the following procedures shall be performed:
 - 4.3.1.1 Purge all files and remove all extraneous graphics outside the border area.
 - 4.3.1.2 Make sure all reference files are attached without device path
 - 4.3.1.3 All required project files both graphic and nongraphic, shall include color tables, pen tables, font libraries, block libraries, user command files, plot files, etc. All project related blocks must be provided to the Owner as a part of the electronic digital deliverables.
 - 4.3.1.4 Make sure that all support files such as those listed above are in the same directory and that references to those files do not include device Path.
 - 4.4 The following Plot File Development and Project Documentation Information shall be submitted as an enclosure or attachment to the transmittal letter provided with each electronic digital media submittal.
 - 4.4.1 Documentation of the plot files for each drawing which will be needed to be able to allow identical plotting by the Owner at a later date. This documentation shall include the plotter configuration (e.g., name and model of plotter), pen settings, drawing orientation, drawing

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17 size, and any other special instructions.

- 4.4.2 Instructions concerning how to generate plotted, drawings from the provided plot files.
- 4.5 Provide all symbols and blocks used in the project in a separate files.
- 4.6 List of all database/spreadsheet files associated with each drawing, as well as a description and documentation of the database format.
- 5.0 Ownership: Refer to Agreement for specific Owner and Design Professional's rights.
- 6.0 Documents for the Construction Contractor:
 - 6.1 The Owner and the Design Professional shall make various electronic information available to the Contractor during the Construction phase of the Project.
- 7.0 Where electronic media submittals of final site surveys are required: Provide electronic copies of any existing site survey data already on electronic media.
- 8.0 At the Contractors option, the Design Professional will provide the Contractor one set of AutoCAD (.dwg) electronic file format contract drawings, to be used for as built drawings at the Contractor's option. Note that the Architect's name and information to be removed.

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17 This page intentionally left blank

.

ť

,



PSA Attachment 4

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

	<u>Consultant'</u>	s Authorization T	o Proceed
Project No.: Location No.:	<u>P.######</u> ####	Date:	2017
Project Title:	Name of Project	SBBC P.O. No.:	
		Line No.:	
Facility Name:	NAME OS SCHOOL	Project Manager:	
Project Consultant:	NAME OF VENDOR A/E	Dir. Capital Planning &	Programming
Schematic Des Bidding Other Services	Construction Contr	nt	Construction Documents Warranty
This Author	rization to Proceed is subject to th	e following attachments:	
Attachmen	ts: Professional Services Ro Project Schedule Professional Fees Previous ATP's	equired	

The scope of the required services is specified on the Professional Services Required with a Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC) for this project as indicated below:

Original FLCC	Current Cost Estimate	Revised FLCC by ATP		
\$##########	\$##########	\$ ########		

The services under this Authorization To Proceed (ATP) will be provided under the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) dated ______2017 between The School Board of Broward County, and NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT are in accordance with the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF ARCHITECT dated ______2017 (Revised ______, 2017 and _____2017) - See Attachment 1.

The Basic Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Articles 2.1 through 2.8 of the PSA.

The Supplemental Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Article 2.9 of the PSA.

Upon completion of a phase listed on Page 3 of this ATP, the Project Consultant shall not proceed with the next phase until the completion of all documents, required presentations and reports required for the phase being completed, and receipt of a written authorization for the next phase from the Owner, or the Office of Facilities & Construction, or the Program Manager.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)



PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued)

Project Schedule

Project No. & P.######## Location No.: ###### Project Title: GOB_NAME OF PROJECT

Facility Name: Project Consultant:

NAME OF SCHOOL NAME OF ARCHITECTURAL VENDOR

The required project schedule milestones for this project are presented below. (Mandatory)

	Date Required Or Estimated Time Period				
ACTIVITY	Start	Finish			
Phase I - Scope Validation – 14 Calendar Day	Day 1	Day 14			
Phase I - Schematic Design Submittal (30% CDs) – 30 Calendar Days	Day 15	Day 44			
Phase I - Plan Review – 7 Calendar Days	Day 45	Day 51			
Phase II - Design Development Submittal (60% CDs) – 30 Calendar Days	Day 52	Day 81			
Phase II - Plan Review – 14 Calendar Days	Day 82	Day 95			
Phase III - 90% CDs Submittal 30 Calendar Days	Day 96	Day 125			
Phase III - 90% CDs Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 126	Day 146			
Phase III - 100% CDs Submittal – 30 Calendar Days	Day 147	Day 176			
Phase III - 100% CDs Review - 21 Calendar Days	Day 177	Day 197			
Phase III - 100% CDs Bldg Dept Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 198	Day 218			
Plan Revision / Re-Submittal to Bldg Dept – 14 Calendar Days	Day 219	Day 232			
Bldg Dept Follow-up Review – 14 Calendar Days	Day 233	Day 246			
Plan Approval – 0 Calendar Days (See Note 2)	Day 246	Day 246			
Procurement & Award – 90 Calendar Days	Day 247	Day 336			
Construction Through Close-out (Contract Administration) - 365 Calendar Days	Day 337	Day 701			
Begins With Approval of GMP (See PSA Article 2.6.1)					
Warranty – 365 Calendar Days	Day 702	Day 1066			
Notes:	1	5			

- Day 1 = One (1) calendar day after fully executed Authorization To Proceed is issued to the Consultant or a mutually agreed upon start date with SBBC Owner's Representative. Excludes all federal observed holidays.
- 2. Completion of 100% Construction Documents is when Building Department issues Letter of Intent to Permit.
- 3. The milestones presented herein are in accordance with the schedule in the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT?ENGINEER dated _____ 2017 (Revised _____, 2017 and ____, 2017) and the milestones shall be incorporated into the Project Design Schedule prepared by the Project Consultant as required by Article 2.2.5.8 of the PSA.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)



PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued)

Project No. & Location No.: P.###### ##### Professional Fees Project Title: GOB SCOPE NAME

Facility Name: NAME	OFSCHOOL							
Project Consultant: NAME	OF VENDOR A	VE .						
Phase	Original Basic Fee	Fee Authorized by ATP		Fee Previously Paid		Fee Balance		
I - Schematic Design (30% CDs)	\$#####.00	\$ ####### #	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
II - Design Development (60% CDs)	\$#####.00	\$##########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
III 90% CDs	\$#####.00	\$##########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
III – 100% CDs	\$#####.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
IV - Bid Phase (GMP)	\$#####.00	\$###########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
V-Construction Administration	\$#####.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
VI - Warranty	\$#####.00	\$##########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
Allowance – Document Reproduction	\$#####.00	\$#####################################	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
Allowance Specific Purpose Survey & GPR	\$0.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
Allowance - Geotechnical	\$0.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
Allowance – Non-Destructive / Destructive Testing	\$20,000.00	\$##########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
Allowance - Pre-Design Testing	\$0.00	\$0.00	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	
Supplemental Services	\$0.00	\$0.00	100.0%					
Total:	\$#####.00	\$#####.00	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	

Payment for these services shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the Professional Services Agreement.

Approved By Consultant		Certified By SBBC					
Name:			Name: Shelley N. Meloni				
Title:			Title: Director, Pre-Construction				
Signature:		Date:		Signature:	······································	Date	
Recommended By SBBC			Approval by SBBC				
Name:			Name:				
Title: Project Manager / Program Director			Title:				
Signature:	1	Date:		Signature:		Date	

This document is part of the Professional Services Agreement between The School Board of Broward County, Florida (Owner) and the Project Consultant and is incorporated by reference into the terms and conditions of that agreement.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA) This page intentionally left blank
Design and Professional Consulting Staff

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
Yvette A. Aleman, P.E.	Principal-in-Charge	Principal-in-Charge	50%	PE No.: 48185	marketing@ fr-aleman.com
Pete Diaz, PSM	Sr. Project Manager	Sr. Project Manager	100%	PSM No.: LS6052	fpete.diaz@ fr-aleman.com
Lis Tolstoy, PSM	Sr. Surveyor & Mapper (PSM), QAQC	Sr. Surveyor & Mapper (PSM), QAQC	50%	PSM No.: LS6759	lis.tolstoy@ fr-aleman.com
Fernando Gatell, PSM	Professional Surveyor & Mapper (Director)	Professional Surveyor & Mapper (Director)	100%	PSM No.: LS2821	fernando.gatell@ fr-aleman.com
Carlos Cuença	Sr. Survey Technician	Sr. Survey Technician	100%	N/A	carlos.cuenca@ fr-aleman.com
Ivan Larrinaga	Field Crew Supervisor	Field Crew Supervisor	100%	N/A	ivan.larrinaga@ fr-aleman.com
Julio Delgado	Survey Tech./CADD	Survey Tech./CADD	100%	N/A	julio.delgado@ fr-aleman.com
Dennis Stanton	Chief Utility Coordinator	Chief Utility Coordinator	100%	N/A	dennis.stanton@ fr-aleman.com
Lydia Santiago	CADD	CADD	100%	N/A	lydia.santiago@ fr-aleman.com

Prime Firm: F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.

Subconsultant: Brown & Phillips, Inc.

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
Anthony St. Clair Brown PLS	CEO	Project Surveyor	25%	PSM No.; LS4977	tony@brown-phillips.com
John E. Phillips III, PLS	President	Project Surveyor	20%	PSM No.: LS4826	john@brown-phillips.com

Subconsultant: ACAI Associates, Inc.

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
Adolfo J. Cotilla, Jr., AIA	President	President	15%	AR0008011	adolfo@aecmworld.com
Donald M. Wilkin, RA	Architect	Architect	15%	AR0011619	donald@aecmworld.com
Thomas J. Vageline, ASLA	Landscape Architect	Landscape Architect	20%	LA0000662	thomas@aecmworld.com

,



Document 00455: Background Screening of Contractual Personnel

Project No: Location No: Project Title: RFQ 17-113C Surveying Consulting Services Facility Name: TBD or Various

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES, BACKGROUND SCREENING OF CONTRACTUAL PERSONNEL

Contractor agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Contractor and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or (3) have access or control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Contractor or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Contractor will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Contractor and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Contractor to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting in Contractor s failure to comply with the requirements of this section or Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes.

Bidder agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Bidder's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Bidder pursuant to SBBC Indemnification requirements as revised and the laws of Florida.

(To be signed in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths.)

STATE OF	Florida
----------	---------

COUNTY OF Miami-Dade

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared

Yvette A. Aleman, President

sworn, made the following statement:

1. Contractor Name:

F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.

Address:

statement)

10305 NW 41st Street Suite 200 Miami, Fl 33178

who, being by me first duly

2. My relationship to the Contractor named in (1) above is:

 Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) (or if entity has no FEIN, the social security number of

the person signing this sworn

{List relationship such as sole proprietor, partner, president, vice president, etc.}

59-2751524

TO BE COMPLETED AT THE TIME OF SUBMISSION OF POST-AWARD DOCUMENTS INDICATED IN DOCUMENT 00200. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF DOCUMENT 00550, NOTICE TO PROCEED.

The above-named Contractor presently complies fully with the requirements set forth in Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes to the extent that all contractual personnel to be employed under the terms of this bid HAVE met Level 2 Screening requirements set forth in Section 1012,82, Florida Statutes.

ву:		DATE:	May 17, 2018
NAME (Printed)Yvette A. Aleman	_ TITLE: _	President	
Notarization		State of:	Florida)
		County of:	Miami-Dade)
Sworn to and subscribed before me, the unders	igned autho	rity, by $\underline{\gamma}_{1}$	Jette A. Aleman.
who is personally known to me or did produce:	NA	- DUSON	ally Known
an identification and who did take an oath		1	J
Notary Public:	E. Ro	ya)	Affix Seal
Commission Expires on: 02/2/202	22		Julia E. Boyce Commission # GG178904
		No.	Expires: February 12, 2022 Bonded thru Aaron Notary

Document 00455 Page 2 of 3

School Board of Broward County – Contractors & Vendors

Those who need to request entry badges to the Broward School Board Facilities need to go to <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/police/secclear.html</u> and follow the instructions for Fieldprint registration and scheduling process.

Before processing your documentation you need to have a signed contract or Purchase Order and a Vendor number; to obtain a Vendor number please call (754) 321-2374.

All vendors and contractors must provide the necessary information as soon as possible to Fieldprint. These documents can be found by selecting "Click Here for Forms and Other Necessary Information" hyperlink.

If you have any questions, please call Security Clearance Department at 754-321-2374.

٠

PSA Attachment 7

See attached Department of Treasury Internal Revenue Service Form W-9.

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

	1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.					
	F.R.Aleman & Associates, Inc.					
Ń	2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above					
page (
Print or type Specific Instructions on pa	Check appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only one of the following seven boxes: Individual/sole proprietor or Corporation X S Corporation Partnership single-member LLC Limited Ilability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=partners)	Trust/estate	4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3): Exempt payee code (if any)			
P D	Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in		Exemption from FATCA reporting			
istr ut	the tax classification of the single-member owner,		code (if any)			
1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Other (see instructions) ►		(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)			
cifi	5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.)	Requester's name a	and address (optional)			
be be	1305 NW 41st street Suite 200					
See	6 City, state, and ZIP code Miami, Florida 33178					
	7 List account number(s) here (optional)		······································			
Par	Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)					
Enter	your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to ave	oid Social sec	curity number			
reside	p withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, fuent alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other es, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get					
	n page 3.	or				
	If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page		identification number			
	lines on whose number to enter.					
		59	-2751524			
Par	t II Certification					
1.3						

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

- 1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
- I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
- 4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions on page 3.

	is on page o.	1100	
Sign Here	Signature of U.S. person ►	Â	Date

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted. Future developments, information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) is at www.irs.gov/fw9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (TIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)
- Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
- Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by brokers)
- Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- · Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

May 17, 2018

Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)

- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- · Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)
- Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (Including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN.
- If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.

By signing the filled-out form, you:

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and

4. Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on page 2 for further information.

Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien;

 A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;

An estate (other than a foreign estate); or

A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners' share of effectively connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States:

 in the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the disregarded entity and not the entity;

 In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and

• In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entitles).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a "saving clause." Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items:

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.

3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.

4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.

5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporarily present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

Backup Withholding

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 28% of such payments. This is called "backup withholding." Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

 $\mathbf{2},$ You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 3 for details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

 The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt payee code on page 3 and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships above.

What is FATCA reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign financial institution to report all United States account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See *Exemption from FATCA reporting code* on page 3 and the instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a \$500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account, list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9.

a. Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

Note. ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.

b. Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, or "doing business as" (DBA) name on line 2.

c. Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C Corporation, or S Corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

d. Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

e. Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a "disregarded number of the entity." See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(ii). Enter the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on line 2, "Business name/disregarded entity name." If the owner of the efficiency owner must complete an appropriate Form W-8 instead of a Form W-9. This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. TIN.

Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, you may enter it on line 2.

Line 3

Check the appropriate box in line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one box in line 3.

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the name on line 1 is an LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and enter "P" in the space provided. If the LLC has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and in the space provided enter "C" for C corporation or "S" for S corporation. If it is a single-member LLC that is a disregarded entity, do not check the "Limited Liability Company" box; Instead check the first box in line 3 "Individual/sole proprietor or single-member LLC."

Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the appropriate space in line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you.

Exempt payee code.

Generally, Individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup
withholding.

 Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2)

2-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3-A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4-A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities

5-A corporation

6-A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession

7-A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission

8-A real estate investment trust

 $9-\mathrm{An}$ entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

10-A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)

11-A financial Institution

12-- A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian

13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947 The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

(F the payment is for	THEN the payment is exempt for		
Interest and dividend payments	All exempt payees except for 7		
Broker transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 through 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not enter an exempt payee code because they are exempt only for sales of noncovered securities acquired prior to 2012.		
Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends	Exempt payees 1 through 4		
Payments over \$600 required to be reported and direct sales over \$5,000 ¹	Generally, exempt payees 1 through 5 ²		
Payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4		

¹See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous income, and its instructions.

² However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding; medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(!), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with "Not Applicable" (or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.

A-An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

B-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

C--A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D--A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)[])

E--A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

F-A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial Instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state

G-A real estate investment trust

H-A regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

I-A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)

J—A bank as defined in section 581

K-A broker

L-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1) M-A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

Note. You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be completed.

Line 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns.

Line 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see *How to get a TIN* below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner (see *Limited Liability Company* (*LLC*) on this page), enter the owner's SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity's EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213, Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an TIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7 and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676),

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN and write "Applied For" in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note. Entering "Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person Identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see *Exempt payee code* earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 5 below.

 Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. "Other payments" include payments made in the course of the requester's trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to attorneys (including payments to corporations).

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account:	Give name and SSN of:
1. Individual 2. Two or more Individuals (joint account)	The individual The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first individual on the account
 Custodian account of a minor (Uniform Gift to Minors Act) 	The minor [*]
 a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee) b. So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under state law 	The grantor-trustee' The actual owner'
 Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual 	The owner*
6. Grantor trust filing under Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see Regulations section 1.671+4(b)(2)(i) (A))	The grantor*
For this type of account:	Give name and EIN of:
 Disregarded entity not owned by an individual 	The owner
8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust	Legal entity ⁴
9. Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553	The corporation
10. Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax- exempt organization	The organization
11. Partnership or multi-member LLC	The partnership
12. A broker or registered nominee	The broker or nominee
13. Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity
14. Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)(i) (B))	The trust

¹ List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a

joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be furnished.

Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN,

- ³ You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or DBA name on the "Business name/disregarded entity" name line, You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.
- ⁴List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TiN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see *Special rules for partnerships* on page 2.

"Note. Grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:

- · Protect your SSN,
- · Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
- Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Publication 4535, identity Trieft Prevention and Victim Assistance.

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes. Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to *phishing@irs.gov*. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury inspector General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission at: *spam@uce.gov* or contact them at www.ftc.gov/idtheft or 1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).

Visit IRS.gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk,

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TiN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. Routine uses of this Information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or tradulent information.



CONSULTING ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS www.FR-Aleman.com

10305 NW 41 Street, Suite 200 Miami, Florida 33178 TEL: (305) 591-8777 FAX: (305) 599-8749

May 17, 2018

PROJECT NAME: RFQ 17-113C Surveying Consulting Services

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT: \$3,000,000

CERTIFICATE OF TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION

This is to certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation negotiated for the referenced contract are accurate, complete, and current at the time of contracting as defined in Florida Statutes CH287.055 (5) (a) and represented to The School Board of Broward County, Florida or their representative(s) in support of:

PROJECT NAME: RFQ 17-113C Surveying Consulting Services

Are accurate, complete and current as of

<u>17th day of May, 2018</u> (Day), (Month) (Year)

FIRM: F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.

PRESIDENT: Yvette A. Aleman, P.E.

Reference: Florida Statutes 287.055

.



Revised 12/1/15

The School Board of Broward County, Florida ACH Payment Agreement Form (ACH CREDITS)

VENDOR NAME: F.R. Afeman & Associates, Inc.

Authorization Agreement

I (we) hereby authorize The School Board of Broward County to initiate automatic deposits (credits) to my account at the financial institution named below. Additionally, I authorize The School Board of Broward County to make the necessary debit entries/adjustments in the event that a credit entry is made in error.

Further, I agree not to hold The School Board of Broward County responsible for any delay or loss of funds due to incorrect or incomplete information supplied by me or by my financial institution or due to an error on the part of my financial institution in depositing funds to my account.

This agreement will remain in effect until The School Board of Broward County receives written notification of cancellation from me or my financial institution and that the origination of ACH transactions to my (our) account must comply with the provisions of U.S. law.

Name of Bank or Fin		nt Information ional Bank of South Miami		
	South Miami, Florida			
Branch/ State:		<u></u>		
Routing No:	067005873			
Account No: 0101	905116	с	hecking	Savings
VENDOR AREA:				
Remittance Confirmati (please select one)	on: 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Fax	Ema X
Federal Identification I	No. 59-2751524		TAX ID#	SS
Vendor			LX.	L
	Update Purcha	se Order Fax & Email Addr	ess	
Centralized Fax Numb	er305-599-8749		Dej	ot. <u>Main office</u>
Centralized Email	accounting&fr-aleman.cor	n	Dep	ot
Centralized Phone No.			Dep	nt, Main office
	A Constant and the second s	Signature	an parapada	
Authorized Signature (Primary) and Busines	s title:		Dat	e:May 17, 201
Authorized Signature				
(Joint) and Business t	tie:		Date	
	Please attach a VOIDED check to v	erify bank details and routing num	ber.	
	TU- C	BC – Purchasing – Data Strategy Gr		
7720	W. Oakland Park Blvd, Sunrise FL 3		-321-0533	
		3351 call: 754-321-0516 or fax # 754		

.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

PSA Attachment 10

RFQ # and NAME RFQ17-113C Surveying Consulting Services

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP

In accordance with the RFQ, each Proposer must disclose, in its RFQ, the names of any employees who are employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC. Persons identified below may have obligations and restrictions applicable to them under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.

Name of Proposer's Employee	SBBC Title or Position of Proposer's Employee	SBBC Department/ School of Proposer's Employee
		· · ·
· ·		

Check one of the following and sign:

I hereby affirm that there are no known persons employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC.

I hereby affirm that all known persons who are employed by Proposer, who are also an employee of SBBC, have been identified above. ∧ →

Signature

F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.

Company Name

Yvette A. Aleman

Name of Official

10305 NW 41st Street Suite 200

Business Address

Miami, Florida 33178

City, State, Zip Code

,



& Associates, Inc. 10305 NW 41 Street, Suite 200 Miami, Florida 33178 TEL: (305) 591-8777 FAX: (305) 599-8749 EMAIL: marketing@fr-aleman.com

CONSULTING ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS www.FR-Aleman.com

August 10, 2017

The School Board of Broward County

Attn: Shari Francis, Purchasing Agent Procurement & Warehousing Services Dept. 7720 W. Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323 Sunrise, Florida 33351-6704

RE: DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - Continuing Contract for Surveying RFQ # 17-113C - Proposal

Dear Mrs. Francis:

This letter confirms that **F.R. Aleman & Associates**, **Inc.** is an SBBC certified Hispanic-American Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE) and as such is eligible for 100% M/WBE Participation.

In addition, we made the following M/WBE commitments: Brown & Phillips, Inc., an SBBC certified African-American MBE, participation is 25% and ACAI Associates, Inc., an SBBC certified Hispanic-American (MBE), participation is 3%

Yours Truly, Rucisco

Eva Francisco, CFO

Attachments:

- a) Surveying & SUE Staff Rate Breakdown
- b) M/WBE Participation worksheet
- c) SBBC M/WBE Certificates



Office of Facilities Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 6 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

Attachment 11 (754) 321-1500

RFQ Number/Name Proposer's Company Name Dated Submitted FINAL	17-113C - Continuing Contracts - Design Professional Services Surveying F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc Thursday, August 10, 2017			
Staff Rate Breakdo	wn For Design Profes	ssional Services		
Staff Classification	Raw Hourly Rate (\$)	Muitiplier	Total	
F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc				
Principal In Charge	\$75.87	2.90	\$220.02	
Chief Utility Coordinator Senior Project Manager	\$56.50	2.90	\$163.85	
Senior Project Manager	\$53.00	2.90	\$153.70	
Professional Surveyor & Mapper (Director)	\$51.50	2.90	\$149,35	
Senior Surveyor & Mapper (PSM), QAQC	\$53.00	2.90	\$153.70	
Senior Survey Technician	\$35.50	2,90	\$102.95	
CADÐ	\$27,00	2.90	\$78.30	
Survey Technician/CADD	\$32.62	2.90	\$94.60	
Field Crew Supervisor	\$31.00	2.90	\$89.90	
Administrative Support	\$22.00	2.90	\$63.80	
FIELD CREW RATES				
Survey Field Crew - Three (3) Person	\$59.75	2.90	\$173.28	
Survey Field Crew - Four (4) Person	\$73.75	2.90	\$213.88	
Designating Field Crew - Two (2) Person	\$51.00	2.90	\$147.90	
Locating Field Crew - Three (3) Person	\$66.00	2.90	\$191.40	
Field Crew - GPR - Two (2) Person	\$76.87	2.90	\$222.92	
Field Crew - GPR - Three (3) Person	\$93.33	2.90	\$270.66	
Field Crew - Vac Truck - Two (2) Person Crew (Test Holes)	\$95.92	2.90	\$278.17	
Field Crew -Vac Truck - Three (3) Person Crew (Test Holes)	\$112.72	2.90	\$326.89	

The School Board of Broward County, Florida August 2, 2017

Surveying Rates (RFQ 17-113C)

.

Page 1 of 2

3

•



Office of Facilities Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bidg 6 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

Atlachment 11 (754) 321-1500

RFQ Number/Name Proposer's Company Name Dated Submitted FINAL	F.R. Aleman & Associa	ntes, Inc	sional Services Surveying	
Dated Submitted FINAL	Thursday, August 10, 2017			
Staff Rate Breakdown For Design Professional Services				
Staff Classification	Raw Hourly Rate (\$)	Multiplier	Total	
Subconsultant Firm: Surveying & Mapping				
<u>Brown & Phillip . Inc.</u>				
Professional Land Surveyor	\$41.75	2.90	\$121.08	
Survey Technician	\$30.12	2.90	\$87.35	
CAD Technician	\$30.12	2.90	\$87.35	
Survey Crew - 2 Person	\$42.17	2,90	\$122.29	
Survey Crew - 3 Person	\$54.17	2.90	\$157.09	
Administrative Support	\$19.50	2.90	\$56.55	
Subconsultant Firm: Landscape Architecture				
ACAI Associates Inc.				
Principal In Charge	\$67.80	2,90	\$196.62	
Principal In Charge Senior Project Manager	\$59.32	2.90	\$172.03	
Sr. Landscape Architect	\$50.07	2,90	\$145.20	
Architect	\$46.05	2,90	\$133.55	
Senior Technician	\$38.50	2.90	\$111.65	
Technical/Spec Support	\$26.52	2.90	\$76.91	
Architectural CADD/BIM/CA Tech	\$35.05	2.90	\$101.65	
Administrative Support	\$22.00	2.90	\$63.80	
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Supplemental Services Multiplier	2.9	0		

Note 2: Reimbursable expenses (a.k.a. allowances) should be direct costs with no mark-up.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida August 2, 2017

Surveying Rates (RFQ 17-113C)

Page 2 of 2

5

.

1

M/WBE PARTICIPATION

Complete the following information on the proposed M/WBE participation on this contract.

Proposer's Company Name: F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.

M/WBE Firm Information	Scope and/or Nature of Work to be Performed by the M/WBE	% of M/WBE Participation
Firm Name: F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.		
Contact Person: <u>Yvette A. Aleman, P.E.</u>		
Address: 10305 NW 41 Street, Suite 200		
Doral, Florida 33178		
Telephone No.: (305) 591-8777	Commenter 147-1-1-1	
Facsimile No.: (305)599-8749	Surveying Work and	72%
M/WBE Certification No.: 7007-7229 16	related trades.	
Certifying Agency Name: The School Board of Broward County		
Address: 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323		
Sunrise, Florida 33351		
Telephone No.: (754) 321-0550		
Firm Name: Brown & Phillips, Inc.		
Contact Person: Anthony St. Brown, PSM		
Address: 1860 Old Okeechobee Road, #509		
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409	Comment From	
Telephone No.: (561) 615-3988	Support for	25%
Facsimile No.: (561) 615-3991	Surveying Work and	
MWBE Certification No.: 7007-3414 99	related trades.	
Certifying Agency Name: The School Board of Broward County		
Address: 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323		
Sunrise, Florida 33351		
Telephone No.: (754) 321-0550		
Firm Name: ACAI Associates, Inc.		
Contact Person: Adolfo J. Cotilla, Jr., AIA		
Address: 2937 W. Cypress Creek Road, Suite 200		
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309		
Telephone No.:(954) 484-4000	Landscape	201
Facsimile No.: (954) 484-5588	Architecture	3%
M/WBE Certification No.: 7007-111 89		
Certifying Agency Name: The School Board of Broward County		
Address: 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323		
Sunrise, Florida 33351		
Telephone No.: (754) 321-0550		
	1	

Note: percentage amount needs to be provided to receive points.

School Board of Broward County MWBE Forms Revised 12/1/15



÷

.



.

-



State and the second

·

This page intentionally left blank

.

14

AGREEMENT FOR OPEN END SERVICES

BETWEEN THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA AND CONSULTANT FOR SURVEYING CONSULTING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made this, 24th day of July in the year 2018, by and between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA (hereinafter called the "Owner" "SBBC" and/or "Board"), and:

KEITH AND SCHNARS, P.A.

Hereinafter, "Consultant," for various projects. It is agreed that this Agreement is an "Open End" Agreement in that the Owner will from time to time during the term of this Agreement require services from the Consultant on various different projects with estimated construction costs that do not exceed the limit set forth in Section 287.055(2)(g), Florida Statutes as amended from time to time. Rather than enter into separate agreements each time that is required, the Owner and Consultant shall enter into this Agreement. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall govern each of the individual projects that the Consultant is hired to provide services for. Attached as Attachment 1 to this Agreement is a general "Scope of Work for Consulting Services," which has been negotiated and agreed upon by all parties. The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP"), Attachment 4, which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers. For each project, some or all of these Services will be part of the Scope of Work for that particular project. In addition, other services may be required.

The term of this Open-End Agreement commences on the date of this Agreement as set forth above; no new projects may be made part of this Open-End Agreement more than Three (3) years from the date of this Agreement. The total dollar amount for all fees to be paid to the Consultant for all projects pursuant to this Agreement may not exceed Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars over the life of the initial contract. The Agreement may be extended by Two (2) additional, one-year periods with a limit of One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per year extension. The Owner and Consultant agree as follows:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS
- ARTICLE 2 CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 3 SUB-CONSULTANTS
- ARTICLE 4 THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 5 BASIS OF COMPENSATION
- ARTICLE 6 PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT
- ARTICLE 7 INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE
- ARTICLE 8 INSURANCE
- ARTICLE 9 GENERAL PROVISIONS
- ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS INTO AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
	(individual project invoices required)
Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (one per project)
	Professional Services Required - page 1 of 3 (one per project)
	Project Schedule - page 2 of 3 (one per project)
	Professional Fee – page 3 of 3 (one per project)
Attachment 5:	List of Project Team Members
	(one per project)
Attachment 6:	Document 00455 Background Screening
Attachment 7:	IRS Form W-9
Attachment 8:	Truth in Negotiations Certificate
Arrest services	A CITY Descent A - second Descent

Attachment 9: ACH Payment Agreement Form

Attachment 10: Conflict of Interest Form

Attachment 11: Staff Rate Breakdown for Design Professional Services

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 The Office of Facilities & Construction ("Office" or "OFC"): The Owner's organizational entity which acts as liaison between the Consultant and Owner and provides day to day management and other professional services on the Owner's behalf. Various members of the Office of Facilities and Construction, acting as representatives of the Owner, will meet with the Consultant at periodic intervals throughout the preparation of the Contract Documents to assess the progress of the Work in accordance with approved schedules. Office personnel will also examine documents submitted by the Consultant, including invoices, and will promptly render decisions and/or recommendations pertaining thereto to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of the Consultant's work. The Project Manager shall be principally responsible for direct communication to the Consultant and the Contractor.
- 1.2 The Chief Facilities & Construction Officer, Office of Facilities & Construction: An employee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who has the authority and responsibility for oversight and management of all projects for the Owner. Referred to hereinafter as the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or Chief Facilities Officer.
- 1.3 Authorization to Proceed (ATP): A document in the form of Attachment 4 to this Agreement, accompanied by a fully-executed Purchase Order, issued by the Owner to the Consultant, authorizing the performance of specific professional services and commencement of a Phase as defined in Article 2.1 through Article 2.8, and stating the time for completion and the amount of fee authorized for such services.
- 1.4 Basic Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- 1.5 Other Basic Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- 1.6 Supplemental Services: Those services defined in Attachment 1.
- 1.7 Consultant: The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, of properly registered and licensed professionals who has entered into a contract with the Owner to provide professional Surveying Consulting services pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
- **1.8 Project Scope:** The activities necessary to respond to the Owner's requirements for the various projects, refer to Attachment 1.
- 1.9 **Project Budget:** The sum, established by the Owner, as available for the entire Project, including but not limited to the construction budget (Fixed Limit of Construction Cost ("FLCC")), land costs, costs of furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E), financing costs, compensation for all professional services, costs of Owner-furnished goods and services, contingency allowances and other similar established or estimated costs.
- 1.10 **Project Schedule:** The Owner's requirements for the progress of activities associated with the Project identified by milestones and required completion dates for Consultant services defined by this Agreement.
- 1.11 The Contract Documents: The Contract Documents as used herein refer to the Agreement Form, Exhibits, Attachments, Educational Specifications, including any and all modifications thereto, issued before and after execution of the Contract and all Exhibits
attached thereto used by the Owner to establish a construction contract with the Contractor. These Contract Documents, and their requirements for the Consultant are incorporated by reference into this Agreement. Refer to Article 10 for the provisions of the RFQ incorporated into the Agreement.

- 1.12 Contractor: The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, who has entered into a contract with the Owner for construction of schools, administrative and support buildings, or various other types of facilities and incidents thereto.
- 1.13 **Program Manager:** CBRE Heery, Inc. The entity retained by the School Board of Broward County, Florida, to oversee the execution and delivery of the projects, and act as the Owner's Representative.
- **1.14 Project Manager:** An employee of the District or Program Manager to manage the Project as a direct representative of the Owner.
- **1.15** The Project: The construction, alteration or repair, and all services and incidents thereto, comprising a facility as contemplated and budgeted by the Owner.
- **1.16** Sub-Consultant: A person or organization of properly registered and licensed professionals who have entered an agreement with the Consultant to provide professional Surveying Consulting services for the Project.
- **1.17** Superintendent of Schools: The duly appointed executive officer of the Owner authorized to act by and through the Owner, referred to hereinafter as the Superintendent.
- 1.18 Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC): The total dollar value of all costs to construct each project.
- 1.19 Building Code Inspector (BCI): A licensed employee or designee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who provides plan review and construction inspection for code compliance, and report non-compliant work to the Project Manager and Project Consultant.
- 1.20 Value Engineering: Value Engineering (VE) is the creative, organized process of analysis of a project as to cost and/or performance with a focus on analysis of the proposed facility (and its systems, assemblies or components) and the elimination or modification of those features which add cost without contributing to that facility's required function or design value.
- 1.21 Constructability: Constructability is the creative, organized process of reviewing a project's drawings, specifications and other project documentation with a goal of eliminating design, detailing, and specification problems which might render the construction contract documents unbuildable or requiring extensive Addenda or Change Orders to make them buildable.
- **1.22** The Project Team: The Owner, Program Manager, and the Consultant who work jointly during the design, construction and warranty phases.

- 1.23 Substantial Completion: The term Substantial Completion as used herein, shall mean that point at which all work associated with the Project, or contractually-defined phase or portion of the Project, has received a fully executed Certificate of Occupancy (OEF 110B Form) or Certificate of Completion, whichever is applicable.
- **1.24** Chief Building Official, Inspections and Code Compliance (CBO): The officer or other designated authority charged with the administration and enforcement of all applicable codes, or a duly authorized representative.
- **1.25 Design Criteria:** Owner design requirements for all architectural and engineering disciplines.
- 1.26 Negotiated Unit Prices: unit prices for professional services to be utilized during various phases of each project under this Agreement. The Consultant's proposal shall serve as the basis for Negotiated Unit Prices. Refer to Articles 5 and 6 for terms of compensation and payment.

ARTICLE 2 - CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 Consulting Services: The Consulting Services are those set forth in the Professional Services Required form attached as Attachment 1 hereto and incorporated by reference. It should be noted that the Consulting Services may be some or all of those services listed on Attachment "1" to this Agreement, or other services designated by Owner.

2.2 Standard of Care and Representations:

- 2.2.1 Standard of Care: The Owner's engagement of the Consultant is based upon the Consultant's representations to the Owner that: (A) it is an organization of experienced professionals, authorized and licensed to do business in Florida; (B) the person responsible for performance pursuant to this Agreement is currently a registered Professional Architect or Engineer in the State of Florida; (C) it is qualified, willing and able to perform services for the Project; and that (D) it has the past experience and ability to provide services which will meet the Owner's objectives and requirements.
- 2.2.2 As to all services provided pursuant to this Agreement, the Consultant shall furnish services by experienced personnel and under the supervision of qualified and experienced Consultants, and shall exercise a degree of care and diligence in the performance of these services in accordance with the customary professional standards currently practiced by firms in Florida and in compliance with any and all applicable codes, laws, ordinances, etc.
- 2.2.3 Any defective or deficient work furnished by the Consultant shall be promptly corrected by the Consultant at no cost to Owner, without limitations to other remedies or rights of Owner. Owner's approval, acceptance or use of or payment for all or any part of Consultant's services hereunder or of the Project itself shall in no way alter the Consultant's obligations or Owner's rights hereunder. The Consultant shall utilize the same personnel over the course of the Work and shall, if requested by the Owner, replace personnel whom the Owner has found to be incompetent or to whom the Owner otherwise reasonably objects.
- 2.2.4 All services provided by the Consultant shall: (A) be in accordance with all applicable

codes, including but not limited to, Florida State Board of Education Regulations, Chapter 6A-2.010 (Educational Facilities), the Florida Department of Education's State Requirements for Educational Facilities)("SREF"), the Florida Building Code ("FBC"), the Florida Fire Protection Code, the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement, and its referenced codes and standards; Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) (Broward Sheriff's Office), and all guidelines or regulations of the Owner (provided same are not less stringent than applicable codes); (B) be provided for the benefit of the Owner and not for the benefit of any other party; and (C) include all Consultant services normally required for a project of this type as listed in the Scope of Work (Attachment 1 to this Agreement).

2.2.5 Approval of Documents: Owner's approval of or comments on any of the documents submitted to Owner by Consultant shall not be deemed the approval of or by another governmental authority having jurisdiction over the project and Consultant acknowledges that the aforesaid authorities may require modifications of any of the documents submitted by Consultant. Subject to Article 2, such modifications shall be made at no cost to Owner.

ARTICLE 3 - SUB-CONSULTANTS

3.1 Sub-Consultants' Relations:

- 3.1.1 All services provided by a Sub-Consultant shall be pursuant to appropriate agreements between the Consultant and the Sub-Consultants which shall contain provisions that preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and the Consultant under this Agreement. All such Agreements shall provide that the Consultant may assign or transfer to Owner any and all claims or causes of action which the Consultant has or may have against Sub-Consultant as a result of or relating to any acts of omission or commission of that Sub-Consultant.
- 3.1.2 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the Owner and the Sub-Consultants. However, the Consultant is at all times liable for any and all negligent acts of omission or commission of its Sub-Consultants relating to or regarding this Agreement or the Project which is the subject of this Agreement. Owner may, at any time, after agreeing to provide Consultant with a Release or Covenant Not to Sue as to a claim or cause of action, require the Consultant to assign or transfer to Owner any such claims or causes of action which Consultant has or may have against one or more of its Sub-Consultants regarding or relating to this Project. Upon such request, the Consultant shall execute a written assignment or transfer in a form to be provided by the Owner. In the event the Owner agrees to indemnify and hold the Consultant harmless from any claim or cause of action brought by a Sub-Consultant against the Consultant directly related to the claim or cause of action brought by the Owner against a Sub-Consultant as a result of such assignment.

3.2 Proposed Sub-Consultants:

- 3.2.1 The Consultant proposes to utilize the Sub-Consultants identified in Attachment 5 (List of Project Team Members)
- **3.2.2** The Consultant shall not change any Sub-Consultant without prior approval by the Owner.

3.2.3 The Consultant shall, not later than ten (10) days after the date of this Agreement, submit a list of contact information for Sub-Consultants which includes contact names, firm addresses, telephone and fax numbers and email addresses. Any future changes to Sub-Consultants must also be submitted no later than ten (10) days after the date the change was made.

ARTICLE 4 - THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Information, Documents and Services: The Owner shall consult with the Consultant and provide such information regarding requirements for the Project as are reasonably necessary for Consultant to perform its services.
- 4.2 Owner Furnished Items: When documents, services, or other materials furnished by the Owner for the Consultant's use are deemed by the Consultant as inappropriate, inaccurate, or otherwise unreasonable, the Consultant shall notify the Owner of its opinion immediately upon discovery of same. Owner will notify Consultant upon delivery of any inaccurate data provided to the Consultant. Failure of the Consultant to notify the Owner shall result in the Consultant being responsible for any costs, expenses, or damages incurred by the Owner and forfeiture of claims for damages, delays or other compensation related to the use of those Owner furnished materials.

4.3 Project Management:

The Director of Preconstruction: The Director of Preconstruction or designee shall act on behalf of the Owner in all matters pertaining to this Agreement and shall approve all Authorizations to Proceed to the Consultant and all invoices for payment to the Consultant.

ARTICLE 5 - BASIS OF COMPENSATION

5.1 Professional Basic Service Fees ("Fee"):

5.1.1 The Owner agrees to pay the Consultant, and the Consultant agrees to accept for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement, based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses as set forth in Attachment 11 based on the fee schedule as set forth in Attachment 4 attached hereto and incorporated by reference. If Owner and Consultant cannot mutually agree to a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense, the Owner may secure services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources.

5.2 Supplemental Fce:

- 5.2.1 The Fee listed above is based on the scope of services for a project of this scope, size and complexity.
- 5.2.2 If the Owner authorizes an increase or decrease in the scope, size or complexity of the Project, the Fee will be adjusted as mutually agreed upon, in writing, by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.2.3 The Consultant may be authorized to perform Supplemental Services. The fee for such services will be based upon a Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on a Multiple of Direct Personnel Expenses. Where a mutually agreeable Cost Plus with a Guaranteed Maximum based on Direct Personnel Expense cannot be arrived at, the Owner may secure

services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources. The Consultant shall provide any information and/or copies of project documentation necessary to facilitate the provision of said supplemental services by others.

5.3 Multiple of Direct Salary Expense:

- 5.3.1 Where this Agreement or Attachments 4 hereto indicates a fee computed on the basis of a Multiple of Direct Salary Expense, such fee shall be based on a negotiated multiple of the Direct Personnel Expense as set forth in Attachment 11.
- 5.3.2 Should overtime work be necessary for work compensated by this fee method, the Consultant's authorization and compensation for such work shall be approved by the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer or his designee, in writing, and stated in Attachment 4 or other documents executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 5.4 Direct Personnel Expense: Direct Personnel Expense is defined as the salary rate, as determined from salaries reported to the Director of Internal Revenue, of the personnel engaged directly on the Project, and the portion of the cost of their mandatory and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other statutory employee benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, pensions and similar contributions and benefits.

5.5 Reimbursable Fees:

- 5.5.1 Reimbursables are those items pre-approved, in writing, and authorized by the Owner in addition to the Supplemental Services and consist of actual expenditures made by the Consultant and the Consultant's employees and Sub-Consultants in the interest of the work.
- 5.5.2 Authorized travel outside the areas of Dade, Broward and Palm Beach Counties, lodging and meals in connection with the Project (subject to the limitations imposed by Chapter 112.061, Florida Statutes); long distance communications (except for long distance charges for calls placed to others living outside the Consultant's local calling area), and fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the work, reproductions, postage and handling of Drawings, Specifications and other documents, and, if authorized in advance by the Owner, expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.
- 5.5.3 The Owner will reimburse the Consultant for authorized Reimbursables as verified by appropriate bills, invoices or statements.
- 5.5.4 Authorized Reimbursables shall not include charges for office rent or overhead expenses of any kind, including but not limited to, local telephone and utility charges, office and drafting supplies, depreciation of equipment, professional dues, subscriptions, etc., reproduction of drawings and specifications, mailing, stenographic, clerical, or other employees time or travel and subsistence not directly related to the Project. For all Reimbursables, the Consultant will apply the multiplier of one and five-hundredths (1.05) times the amount expended by the Consultant. Authorized reproductions in excess of sets required at each phase of the work will be a reimbursable.

ARTICLE 6 - PAYMENTS TO THE CONSULTANT

6.1 Payment for Basic Services and Supplemental Services:

- 6.1.1 Payments for Basic and Supplemental Services may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format) in proportion to services performed during each portion of the work or other basis as set forth in the Schedules attached hereto and conforming to the attached Consultant's proposal for Attachment 1 "Scope of Work". Owner in its sole discretion shall determine if the payment requested is in accordance with the proportion of the work performed.
- 6.1.2 No payments shall be due to Consultant unless and until all materials, forms and documents required by Owner have been provided by Consultant and its Sub-Consultant to Owner or others who are to receive same. The Owner retains the right to withhold payment from the Consultant for non-performance of the Consultant during any phase or portion of the Project.
- 6.1.3 The Consultant shall submit invoices in the Owner's required invoice format (Attachment 2) as provided.
- 6.1.4 All submitted invoices shall have copies of referenced Scope of Work and the Authorization to Proceed (ATP) attached.
- 6.1.5 Payments are due and payable thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice, provided it is in accord with the requirements of this Agreement.
- 6.1.6 The Consultant shall submit a monthly S/M/WBE Monthly Subcontractor Utilization Report with the monthly request for payment, on forms provided by the Owner.

6.2 Payment for Reimbursables:

- 6.2.1 Payment for Reimbursables may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format, Attachment 2) based on actual costs.
- 6.2.2 Payments are due and payable within thirty (30) days from receipt of the Consultant's invoice.

6.3 Project Suspension:

6.3.1 If the Project is suspended for the convenience of the Owner for more than three (3) months or terminated in whole or in part during any Phase, the Consultant shall be paid for services authorized by an Authorization to Proceed which were performed prior to such suspension or termination, together with the cost of Reimbursable Services and expenses then due.

ARTICLE 7 - INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE

7.1 Indemnification:

7.1.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its members, officers, employees and agents (hereinafter collectively "Related Parties") from and against any and all liability, claims, causes of action (by whomever brought or alleged and regardless of the legal theories upon which the liability, claims or causes of action are based), losses, damage, costs, expenses and fees (including but not limited to reasonable fees of attorneys, expert witnesses and other consultants), which are or may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Owner and/or the Related Parties to the extent said liability, claims, causes of action, losses, damages, costs, expenses and/or fees are caused by the Consultant's negligent, reckless or intentional wrongful conduct of the Consultant and other persons employed or utilized by the Consultant in the performance of the contract..

- 7.1.2 In any and all claims against the Owner by any employee of the Consultant, or anyone for whose acts the Consultant may be liable, the obligations for Consultant to indemnify Owner under this contract shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Consultant under workman's compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- 7.1.3 In the event that any claims are brought or actions filed against the Owner with respect to the indemnity contained herein, the Consultant agrees to defend against any such claims or actions regardless of whether such claims or actions are rightfully or wrongfully brought or filed. The Consultant agrees that the Owner may select the attorneys to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. The Consultant further agrees to pay, at the sole expense of the Consultant, the attorney's fees and costs incurred by those attorneys selected by the Owner to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. However, if the claims or actions are covered by insurance and such coverage is acknowledged by the insurance company in writing to the Owner, then, in that case, the insurance company shall choose counsel, direct the defense and be the judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any such claims or actions against the Owner which are within the insurance policy limits and are paid by the insurance company solely. Otherwise, if the claims or actions are not covered by insurance, then, at its sole option the Owner shall have the sole authority for the direction of the defense, and shall be the sole judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any claims or actions asserted against the Owner.
- 7.1.4 The Consultant recognizes the nature of the indemnification obligations imposed under this contract and voluntarily makes these covenants. The obligation imposed upon the Consultant under this Indemnification Agreement shall survive termination of this contract.

ARTICLE 8-INSURANCE

8.1 General Insurance Requirements:

- 8.1.1 The Consultant shall not start work under this Agreement until the Consultant has obtained all insurance required hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the Owner.
- 8.1.2 All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. All insurance companies providing policies required under this Agreement shall have an "A" rating, or better, and a financial rating of no less than VI in the current A.M. Best Manual OR hold a Moody's Investors Service Financial Strength of "Aa3" or better.
- 8.1.3 All insurance policies required under this Agreement shall be endorsed to be primary of all other valid and collectable coverages maintained by the Owner. The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy, including Products Liability, shall include the Owner's Project number and full Project title (including applicable facility

name) on the Certificate.

- 8.1.4 The Consultant shall furnish certificates of insurance to the Owner for review and approval at the time of execution of this Agreement and shall maintain same at all times during the term of this Agreement.
- 8.1.5 The Certificates of Insurance shall be in the form as approved by Insurance Standards Office (ISO), unless approved by Owner and shall clearly indicate that the Consultant has obtained insurance of the type, amount and classification required by these provisions, in excess of any pending claims at the time of contract award to the Consultant. No material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without a 30-day prior written notice to and approval by the Owner. All Certificates shall list the Owner's project number and full project title (including applicable facility name).

8.2 Insurance Required:

- 8.2.1 Automobile Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in connection with this Agreement in amounts not less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit and shall not be less than the standard ISO Business Auto Policy CA 00 01.
- 8.2.2 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): The Consultant shall procure Professional Liability Insurance in the manner described herein. The deductible shall not be more than Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars for each policy and must be indicated on the certificate of insurance. The limits of the Professional Liability Insurance Policy shall be as follows:
- 8.2.2.1 Not used.
- **8.2.2.2** Projects require a practice policy with a per claim/annual aggregate in accordance with the specifications delineated below relative to the cumulative construction value of all projects:
 - .1 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is less than Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars.
 - .2 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is between Five Million One (\$5,000,001) Dollars to Ten Million (\$10,000,000) Dollars.
 - .3 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is greater than Ten Million One (\$10,000,001) Dollars.

The Consultant shall be required to maintain the practice policy in accordance with the above specifications for a period commencing with execution of this contract and terminating three years after final completion of said projects. Should additional projects or change orders be added that increase the cumulative construction value to another tier shown above, the Consultant will be required to show proof of coverage at the higher limit / aggregate. In

addition, the Consultant shall provide information regarding the total claims against said practice policy on an annual basis for the term of the contract upon and terminating three years after final completion of the project (Claims/Loss history should be forwarded to the Risk Management Department), as The School Board of Broward County, Florida, deems appropriate.

The Professional Liability insurance must provide for all sums which the Consultant shall be legally obligated to pay as damages for claims arising out of or relating to the negligent services performed by the Consultant or any person employed or acting on the Consultant's behalf (including, but not limited to, Sub-Consultants) in connection with this Agreement. If the Owner, at its sole discretion, agrees that such coverage is not commercially reasonably available, the Owner may, at its discretion, authorize the Consultant to alter the coverage by substituting a lower aggregate or changing any other terms and conditions of the coverage (including but not limited to deductible amounts) based upon the scope of the project.

- 8.2.3 Worker's Compensation Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain Worker's Compensation Insurance in compliance with Chapter 440 of the Florida Statutes. The firm shall maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance for all of its employees connected with the provided services as described in this Agreement in accordance with Florida Statutory limits and Employers Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than Five Hundred Thousand (\$500,000) Dollars per occurrence.
- 8.2.4 General Liability Insurance: The Consultant shall maintain General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability to cover the "Hold Harmless Agreement" set forth herein, with bodily injury limits of not less than One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage and not less than the Two Million (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate such coverage shall apply separately to each project. The School Board of Broward County, Florida, its members, officers, employees, and agents shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy.

ARTICLE 9 – GENERAL PROVISIONS

9.1 Performance:

- **9.1.1 Performance and Delegation:** The services to be performed hereunder shall be performed by the Consultant's and Sub-Consultant's own staff, unless otherwise approved by the Owner. Said approval shall not be construed as constituting an agreement between the Owner and said other person or firm.
- 9.1.2 Task Orders: The Owner will assign increments of Work to the Consultant via an Authorization to Proceed ("ATP") (Attachment 4) which will be completed for each project or service to which the Consultant is assigned. Each ATP, which includes forms for the Professional Services required, Project Schedule and Professional Fee, shall be completed by the Owner and Consultant evidencing the services, fees, time, etc. for that particular project and confirming that the terms and conditions of this Agreement apply. Each project assigned to the Consultant will be identified by the Owner's assigned project numbers.
- **9.1.3** Time for Performance: The Consultant agrees to start all work hereunder upon receipt of an Authorization to Proceed issued by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer or his designee and to complete all work within the time stipulated in the Authorization to Proceed (Attachment 4 to this Agreement ("ATP")). The Consultant acknowledges that failure to

perform timely may cause the Owner to sustain loss and damages and will be responsible for same. The Consultant agrees that Owner is entitled to recover no less than One Hundred Dollars (\$100) per consecutive calendar day of unexcused delay caused by the Consultant's failure to comply with the times set forth in the fully executed ATP. Owner shall have the right to deduct such amounts from payments due and owing to the Consultant.

- 9.1.4 Time Extensions: A reasonable extension of time for completion of various aspects may be granted by the Owner should there be a delay on the part of the Owner in fulfilling its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Such extension shall not be the basis or cause for any claims or causes of action by the Consultant for additional or extra compensation. Under no circumstances shall the Consultant be entitled to additional compensation or payment as a result of or relating to delays on the Project. Time is of the essence with regard to the performance of this contract.
- 9.1.5 Excess Funds: Any party receiving funds paid by the School Board of Broward County, Florida under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify the School Board of Broward County, Florida of any funds erroneously received from the School Board of Broward County, Florida of upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, as amended, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by the School Board of Broward County, Florida. The erroneous payment and/or overpayment will be promptly transmitted and returned to the School Board of Broward County, Florida with the maximum applicable interest permitted by Florida law.

9.2 Termination of Agreement:

- **9.2.1** Right to Terminate: The Owner has the right to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience on seven (7) days written notice. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the terms of this agreement. To receive payment, all charts, sketches, studies, drawings, and other documents or other materials related to work authorized under this Agreement, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Owner.
- **9.2.2** The Consultant may only terminate this Agreement for a material breach of the Agreement by Owner, and only after Consultant has given the Owner ten (10) days written notice and opportunity to cure such breach. In the event of any dispute regarding or relating to performance pursuant to this Agreement, or payment hereunder, the Consultant is obligated to continue performance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, unless instructed by the Owner to suspend or delay performance.
- 9.2.3 Owner may terminate this Agreement for cause, which shall include, but not be limited to, failure of Consultant to comply with any of its material obligations under this Agreement; a decrease in the projected, available Capital Outlay funds which renders continuation of the design or construction of the Project impossible or impractical; or conditions which arise that constitute Force Majeure under Article 9.2.6 of this Agreement. In such event, Consultant shall not be entitled to any additional payments and may be liable to Owner for any damages or losses incurred or suffered as a result of Consultant's failure to properly perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. In the event it is later determined that the Owner was not justified in terminating this Agreement for cause, then it shall be deemed to be a termination for convenience pursuant to Article 9.2.1 above, and the Consultant's sole compensation shall be compensation in accordance with that paragraph. Whether or not

this Agreement is so terminated, the Consultant shall be liable to Owner for any damage or loss resulting from such failure or violation by Consultant. The rights and remedies of Owner provided by this paragraph are cumulative with and in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or this Agreement.

- **9.2.4** Annulment: The Consultant warrants that no one has been employed or retained other than an employee working solely for the Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that the Consultant has not paid, nor agreed to pay, any company or other person any fee, commission, gift or other consideration contingent upon the making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Owner has the right to annul this Agreement without liability.
- **9.2.5** Fixed Fees Exceeding \$50,000: For all Fixed Fees or other "lump-sum" fees for professional service Agreements over Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars the Consultant shall execute a truth-in-negotiations certificate as in accordance with 287.055 and all required language set forth therein. Requirements of Florida Statute 287.055 (2004), as amended, are incorporated herein by reference.
- **9.2.6** Force Majeure: The Owner's or Consultant's failure to perform any term or condition of this Agreement as a result of conditions beyond its control such as, but not limited to, war, strikes, fires, floods, acts of God, governmental restrictions, power failures, or damage or destruction of any network facilities or servers, shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.
- 9.2.7 Termination of Scrutinized Companies or False Certification: SBBC reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is placed on the List of Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector; or has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. SBBC also reserves the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is found to have submitted a false certification.
- 9.3 Consultant's Accounting Records and Right to Audit Provisions: Consultant's records which shall include, but not be limited to, accounting records, payroll time sheets, audited and unaudited financial statements to substantiate overhead rates, written policies and procedures, Sub-Consultant files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful Sub-Consultant), original estimates, estimating worksheets, computer records, disks and software, videos, photography, correspondence, change order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements), and any other supporting evidence necessary to substantiate charges related to this Agreement (all of the foregoing hereinafter referred to as "records") shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or reproduction, during normal working hours, by Owner's agent or its authorized representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit evaluation and verification of any invoices, payments or claims submitted by the contractor or any of his payees pursuant to the execution of this Agreement. Such records subject to examination shall also include, but not be limited to, those records necessary to evaluate and verify direct and indirect costs (including overhead allocations), fees, reimbursable services, etc. as they may apply to costs, matters or items associated with this Agreement.
- 9.3.1 For the purpose of such audits, inspections, examinations and evaluations, the Owner's agent or authorized representative shall have access to said records from the effective date of this Agreement, for the duration of the work, and until five (5) years after the date of final payment by Owner to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement. All costs which the consultant

is unable to provide support or documentation to substantiate that it was incurred as represented by the original estimated breakdown of costs or found to be not in compliance with the provisions of this contract, shall be reimbursed to the Owner.

- **9.3.2** Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall have access to the Consultant's facilities, shall have access to all necessary records, and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance with this article. Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall give auditees reasonable advance notice of intended audits.
- **9.3.3** Consultant shall require all Sub-Consultants to comply with the provisions of this article by insertion of the requirements hereof in any written contract agreement. Failure to obtain such written contracts which include such provisions shall be reason to exclude some or all of the related costs from amounts payable to the Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.
- 9.3.4 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this article discloses overcharges (of any nature) by the Consultant to the Owner in excess of \$25,000, the actual cost of the Owner's audit shall be paid by the Consultant.
- 9.3.5 Public Records: The following provisions are required by Section 119.0701, Florida Statues, and may not be amended. Consultant shall keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under this Agreement. Upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, Consultant shall provide SBBC with a copy of any requested public records or to allow the requested public records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statues, or as otherwise provided by law. Consultant shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement's term and following completion of the Agreement if Consultant does not transfer the public records to SBBC. Upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall transfer, at no cost, to SBBC all public records in possession of Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under the Agreement. If Consultant transfer all public records to SBBC upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to SBBC, upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with SBBC's information technology systems.

IF A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT...

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement Version 4/23/2018

Custodian of Public Records

Requel Bell 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1925 Requel.bell@browardschools.com

9.4 Ownership of documents:

- 9.4.1 The documents developed under this Agreement shall become and be the sole property of the Owner whether the Project for which they were developed is executed or not. The Consultant may maintain copies thereof for its records and for its future professional endeavors, although the Owner shall bear no liability or any responsibility whatsoever for such use of said documents by the Consultant.
- 9.4.2 In the event of the Consultant's termination under other provisions of this Agreement, the Owner shall receive all original documents prepared to the date of termination and shall have the right to use those documents and any reproductions in any way necessary to complete the Project.
- 9.4.3 In the event Owner requests any such documents or materials referred to in this Article and Consultant fails to provide same as requested by Owner, then Consultant acknowledges that Owner will be irreparably harmed and subject to an injunction to provide same.
- 9.4.4 The Owner will not modify or distribute the documents, including electronic media versions, to third parties except for those purposes listed above without the expressed permission and consent of the Consultant. The Owner will delete any title blocks or other marks identifying the originating Consultant from any materials so distributed. The Owner will indemnify the Consultant against any claims that result from the modification of data and disks by the Owner.
- **9.5** Electronic Media: Where this Agreement or referenced provisions in the Contract require the Consultant to provide information or documents in either electronic or magnetic media, the preparation and format of that media shall conform to the Owner's "Electronic Media Submittal Requirements" which are incorporated as Attachment 3 to this Agreement for Open End Services.
- 9.6 Attachments and References:

9.6.1 The following named attachments are made an integral part of this Agreement:

.1	Attachment 1:	Scope of Work
.2	Attachment 2:	Consultant's Invoice Form, Consultant's Reimbursable Form
		(individual project invoices required)
.3	Attachment 3:	Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
.4	Attachment 4:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form
		Professional Services Required

Project Schedule Professional Fee

- .5 Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members
- .6 Attachment 6: Document 00455 Background Screening
- .7 Attachment 7: IRS Form W-9
- .8 Attachment 8: Truth in Negotiations Certificate
- .9 Attachment 9: ACH Payment Agreement Form
- .10 Attachment 10: Conflict of Interest Form

Online Documents: The following documents shall be downloaded by the Consultant and are considered as Attachments to this Contract:

Design Standards

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/DSS/DS_Docs/DesignStandards.htm

- Design Criteria
- Design and Material Standards Division 1 thru Division 17
- Document Submittal Checklist for Plan Review

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/constructioncontracts/D0docs.html

• Specifications – Division 0

State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) latest edition

http://www.fldoe.org/edfacil/sref.asp

• F.I.S.H. layering system for AutoCAD: Note: the laying system is not posted on line. It will need to be requested thru:

Facility Planning and Real Estate 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 754-321-1932

9.7 Extent of Agreement:

- 9.7.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral.
- 9.7.2 This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered after the execution hereof, except by resolution of Owner and an Agreement executed by Owner and Consultant.
- 9.7.3 This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties to the Agreement and are not for the benefit of any other party, nor shall it create a contractual relationship with any other party.

- 9.7.4 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The parties are encouraged to participate in mediation of any dispute before engaging in litigation.
- **9.8** Strict Performance: The failure of either party to insist upon or enforce strict performance by the other party of any of the provisions of this Agreement or to exercise any rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of its rights to assert or rely upon any such provision or rights in that or any other instance.
- **9.9 Prompt and Satisfactory Correction:** The Owner, at its sole discretion, may direct the Consultant, at no additional cost to the Owner, to promptly and satisfactorily correct any services found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement or the requirements of any governmental authority, law, regulation or ordinance.

9.10 Successors and Assigns:

- 9.10.1 The performance of this Agreement shall not be delegated or assigned by the Consultant without the written consent of the Owner.
- 9.10.2 The Consultant and the Owner each binds one another, their partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns of such party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement.

9.11 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility or Voluntary Exclusion:

Lower Tier Covered Transactions: Executive Order 12549 provides that, to the extent 9.11.1 permitted by law, Executive departments and agencies shall participate in a government-wide system for non-procurement debarment and suspension. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities. Except as provided in ß 85.200, Debarment or Suspension, ß 85.201, Treatment of Title IV HEA participation, and B85.215, Exception provision, debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one agency shall have government-wide effect. A lower tier covered transaction is, in part, any transaction between a participant [SBBC] and a person other than a procurement contract for goods or services, regardless of type, under a primary covered transaction; and any procurement contract for goods or services between a participant and a person, regardless of type, expected to equal or exceed the Federal procurement small purchase threshold fixed at 10 U.S.C. 2304(g) and 41 U.S.C. 253(g) (currently \$100,000) under a primary covered transaction. A participant may rely upon the certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. Each participant shall require participants in lower tier covered transactions to include the following certification for it and its principals in any proposal submitted in connection with such lower tier covered transactions.

9.11.2 Certification and Disclosure

.1 The lower tier participant (Consultant) certifies, by entering this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for

debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.

- .2 Where the lower tier participant (Consultant) is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such participant shall provide an explanation to the Owner.
- .3 The Consultant warrants that he or she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement and that he or she has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this agreement. For the breach or violation of this provision, the Owner shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the fees due and owing to the Consultant, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift, or consideration. (Ch. 287.055, F.S.)

9.12 Non-Discrimination, EEO, and ADAAA

- 9.12.1 Non-Discrimination The School Board of Broward County, Florida prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender, national origin, marital status, race, religion or sexual orientation.
- 9.12.2 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) The School Board of Broward County, Florida, prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender identity, gender expression, national origin, marital status, race, religion, sex or sexual orientation. Individuals who wish to file a discrimination and/or harassment complaint may call the Executive Director, Benefits & EEO Compliance at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.12.3 Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008 Individuals with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, (ADAAA) may call Equal Educational Opportunities (EEO) at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.
- 9.13 Captions The captions, section numbers, article numbers, title and headings appearing in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit, construe or describe the scope or intent of such articles or sections of this Agreement, nor in any way effect this Agreement and shall not be construed to create a conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.
- 9.14 Authority Provision: Each person signing this Agreement on behalf of either party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party with respect to all.
- 9.15 Notice Provision When any of the parties desire to give notice to the other, such notice must be in writing, sent by US Mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place last specified; the place for giving notice shall remain such until it is changed by

written notice in compliance with the provisions of the paragraph. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving notice.

To SBBC:	Superintendent of Schools The School Board of Broward County, Florida 600 Southeast Third Avenue Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
With a Copy to:	Office of the Chief Facilities Officer 600 SE 3 Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 Attn: Leo Bobadilla Chief Facilities Officer
With a Copy to:	Office of Procurement & Warehousing Services 7720 W Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323 Sunrise, FL 33351 Attn: Mary Coker Director of Procurement & Warehousing Services
With a Copy to:	Office of Facilities and Construction 2301 NW 26th St Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attn: Shelley N. Meloni Director, Pre-Construction Office of Facilities and Construction And CBRE Heery, Inc., Owners Representative
	2301 NW 26th St Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attn: Robert Corbin Program Director/Vice President
To Consultant:	KEITH AND SCHNARS, P.A. 6500 North Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309 Attn: Errol Kalayci, President

- 9.16 Excess Funds. Any party receiving funds paid by The School Board of Broward County, Florida (SBBC) under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify SBBC of any funds erroneously received from SBBC upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Any such excess funds shall be refunded to SBBC with interest calculated from the date of the erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by SBBC.
- 9.17 Background Screening. Project Consultant agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Project Consultant, its agents, subconsultants and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or(3) have access or

control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Project Consultant or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Consultant will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Consultant and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Consultant to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement.

Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Consultant's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Project Consultant pursuant to Article 7 of this Agreement and the laws of Florida.

ARTICLE 10 INCORPORATION OF RFQ INTO AGREEMENT

10.1 In addition to those Attachments and References identified and made part of this Agreement in Article 9.6.1, the provisions of **RFQ No. 17-113C** – **Surveying Consulting Services**(the "RFQ") are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in this Agreement and the RFQ, the more stringent provision shall prevail. If this Agreement is silent on an issue that is contained with the RFQ, the provisions of the RFQ shall be followed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The School Board of Broward County, Florida, has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the School Board to be set hereto; and the said Project Consultant has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the Project Consultant set hereto on this day and year first above written.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

ATTEST THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

1 - Jan 19

(SEAL)

Robert W. Runcie, Superintendent of Schools

MOW Level Norà Rupert, Chair

Approved as to Form and Legal_Content:

Office of the General Counsel



FOR PROJECT CONSULTANT

(ATTEST)

Errol Kalayci, President

KEITH AND SCHNARS, P.A. Legal Name of Corporation

Witness or Sepretary, (Mark Moshier, P.E.)

) Stout

(LB #1337) Project Consultant's Registration Number

The School Board of Broward County, Florida **Open Ended Surveying Consulting Services Agreement** Version 4/23/2018

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF FLORIDA			
COUNTY OF BROWAR	RD		
BEFORE ME this 15 day	of <u>May</u> ,, appo	eared <u>Errol Kalayci</u>	and
Mark Moshier, P.E.		ersonally known to me to b	e the persons described in
and who executed the foreg	going contract and acknow	vledge that he executed the sa	ame as his free act and deed
for the purposes therein ex	pressed.		
WITNESS my hand and	official seal in the Co	unty and State last official	this <u>15th</u> day of
May	_, 2018 _	×*****	~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
Notary Public State of Flor	rida	Suzante Eiller My Commission GG	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
My Commission Expires:	11/20/1	Corport Cxpires 11/26/2021	m

<u>GG162991</u> Notary's Commission No.



Attachment 1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 8 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Scope of Work

1.1 General Requirements

- 1.1.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 1.2.1 The services listed below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services, which may be requested by the Owner.

2.1 Basic Services

- 2.1.1 All services rendered shall be in conformance with Florida Administrative Code and Department of Business and Professional Regulations (DBPR) requirements as it relates to professional mapping and surveyingservices.
- 2.2.1 The Owner may assign increments of work related to a specific project or other professional services as necessary to meet the needs of the Owner.
- 2.3.1 The listed services below are not all encompassing and shall not limit those activities or services which may be requested by the Owner.

3.1 General Basic Services

- 3.1.1 The Land Surveyor agrees to: (A) Provide complete professional land surveying and mapping services and all necessary personnel, equipment and materials to perform services; (B) Complete those land surveying services in accordance with the respective ATP's, related schedules, and work increments by the Owner.
- 3.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall schedule and attend project meetings on an as- needed basis with representatives of the Owner.

4.1 Basic Surveying Services

- 4.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall confer with representatives of the Owner to verify and confirm the project scope and specific requirements and/or requirements of any Authorization to Proceed (ATP) issued by the Owner.
- 4.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall, prior to commencing surveying activities, visit and inspect the site.

Second States and States

- 4.3.1 The Land Surveyor shall undertake all necessary activities in preparation for conducting the survey including but not limited to the following:
 - a. Review all record documents provided by the Owner; request clarification if necessary.
 - b. Order, if necessary, aerials, recorded easements and instruments from Broward County, municipality, other agency or vendor.
 - c. Check existing plat(s) information as it relates to easements, recorded instruments and reservations. Order any required plats as requested by the Owner.
 - d. Show site information in terms of Florida State Plane Coordinate System.
 - e. Coordinate, obtain, and map all over and underground existing as-built information with Broward County (or municipal) water and sewer authority, FPL, BellSouth, and other sources as necessary.
 - f. Calculate boundaries of properties, set control points, acreages, bearing and distances.
 - g. Show finish floor elevations of buildings and provide FIMA 100 year flood base elevation and panel number.
 - h. Establish minimum of two permanent benchmarks on site, tied to established control points: Set one benchmark at the base of the facility's flagpole if one does not exist at that location.
 - i. Restore dislocated survey control points based on original survey.
- 4.4.1 In the event that the Land Surveyor believes that the scope, schedule or budget established by an ATP is not achievable, the Land Surveyor shall immediately notify the Owner in writing as to the reasons one or all of them are unreasonable or not achievable immediately upon discovery.
- 4.5.1 The Land Surveyor shall prepare, submit and present for approval by the Owner a hardcopy and electronic AutoCAD copies (compatible with District's Electronic Media Requirements) of a site survey or "as builts" for properties identified on a ATP and according to the requirements of the District's Document Submittal Checklist found: <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/Design_Standards/Sub_mittalDocuments.asp</u>.
- 4.6.1 The Land Surveyor may prepare a site survey, which is an update of record information and surveys provided by the Owner. This will be prepared and submitted in electronic media and hard copy formats as applicable in the Agreement.
- 4.7.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit three copies of all documents (both electronic and hardcopy) without additional charge, for approval by the Owner unless additional (or fewer) copies are required by a particular ATP.
- 4.8.1 The Land Surveyor shall submit complete survey documents, properly signed and sealed by the Land Surveyor and respective Sub-Consultants (if any). Unsigned or unsealed documents are not acceptable.
- 4.9.1 When requested by the Owner, any records and survey calculations shall be submitted for the Owner's review and/or record.

4.10.1 The Land Surveyor shall render interpretations and clarifications of the survey in a written format, supplemented by appropriate graphics, acceptable to the Owner.

5.1 **Other Basic Services:**

- 5.1.1 The Land Surveyor shall render to Owner without additional compensation, any proper and reasonable assistance which Owner may require as a result of any claim or any action brought relating to Land Surveyor's services.
- 5.2.1 The Land Surveyor shall provide any other professional services not otherwise in the agreement to which the Land Surveyor and the Owner mutually agree.

This page intentionally left blank

ŝ

PSA Attachment 2

Design Professionals Invoice Format

The School Board of Broward County, Florida requires submittal of the Design Professional's invoice on the District's standard invoice forms attached to a transmittal form or letter on the Design Professional's company letterhead. Include the information and attachments described below:

1. Letterhead Containing Firm Information

- A. Firm Name
- B. Address
- C. Telephone and FAX Numbers
- D. Consultant's Invoice Reference Number
- 2. Address Transmittal/Letter to:

Office of Facilities and Construction The School Board of Broward County, Florida 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 Attention: Name of Project Manager

- 3. Ensure that Transmittal/Letter references the following information:
 - A. Date of submittal.
 - B. The Invoice Number for ATP Number (example: Invoice No. 01 for ATP No. 01).
 - C. The School Board of Broward County's Purchase Order No.: (Which will be provided by the Facilities Project Manager at the beginning of the project.)
 - D. Name of Facility (and Facility Number).
 - E. Name of Project
 - F. School Board Project Number
- 4. Ensure attachment of the following documents to the Transmittal/Letter:
 - A. Design Professional's Invoice Form
 - B. Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice Form
 - C. Copy of signature page (page 3 of 3) of the Design Professional's Authorization to Proceed.



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311(754) 321-1500

Design Professional		Date:
(Name)		
Project No:	Facility Name:	Invoice No:
Project Title:		SBBC PO No.
Design Professional's		ATP No.
Remit to address:		Invoice From:
	-	Project Manager

Original Basic Fee	
Current basic fee	

INVOICE TOTALS:

Summary	Current	Fee Previously Bi	lled This Invoic	e Balano	æ
Basic Services	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Reimbursable	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Total:	\$	\$	\$	\$	

BASIC FEE TOTALS:

Period	Fee	Previously B	illed		This Invoice	Balance	
From to dates	\$	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%
	\$	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%
Other Services	\$	\$	%	\$	%	\$	%
Total Previously Billed:		\$		1. 1			
Total Amount This	Total Amount This Invoice:			\$			
Total Balance:							\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By:
Title: Date: (Signature)	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Name: Title: Date:
	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 2301 NW 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33311 (754) 321-1500

Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice

Project No: Project Title: Design Professional's: Remit to address: Facility Name: Invoice No: SBBC PO No. ATP No. Invoice From:

Project Manager:

Item No.	Date	Reimbursable Item	Amount
		Invoice Total	\$

Receipts for each Item must be attached.

Current Contract Amount:	\$	
Total This Invoice:	 \$	
Total Previously Billed:	\$	
Total Balance:		\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By: Name: Title:
Title: Date:	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Date:
(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15 This page intentionally left blank

Electronic Media Requirements

All Work product for all projects, requires hard copies, electronic copies (PDF) and electronic original copies. The electronic media requirements are as listed below.

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

1.0 General Information

1.1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida contracts with one or more Internet bid advertising and distribution services. The Design Professional shall post the complete bid package to these services upon written notification by the Owner. The posted documents shall be read only documents and the file format shall be PDF.

2.0 Software Requirements

- 2.1 Word Processing
 - 2.1.1 Provide word processing files in Microsoft Word for Windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
- 2.2 Spreadsheets
 - 2.2.1 Provide spreadsheet files in Microsoft Excel for windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.
- 2.3 Computer aided Design and Drafting2.3.1 Provide all CADD files as the latest version of AutoCAD, Window's version.

3.0 CAD Standards

- 3.1 Standard plotted drawing size: 24 inch x 36 inch or 30 inch x 42 inch sheets.
 3.1.1 All sheets within a set shall be the same size unless pre-approved otherwise. (for example survey sheets)
- 3.2 Design Professional shall provide to the Owner the standard file naming Protocol they will be utilizing.
- 3.3 CAD File Layering
 - 3.3.1 Conform to the most up to date guidelines defined by the American Institute of Architects (AIA) standard document, "CAD Layer Guidelines."
 - 3.3.2 Provide the required Layering for the Florida Inventory of Schoolhouses (F.I.S.H.) documents
 - 3.3.1.1 The F.I.S.H. layering scheme is not available on-line. It can be requested through:

Facility Planning and Real Estate600 SE 3rd Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312754-321-1932

- 3.3.3 Provide a separate list of all layers which do not conform to the standard AIA CAD Layer Guidelines or the FISH layering scheme.
- 3.4 No custom hatch patterns shall be utilized.
- 3.5 All symbols and blocks to have descriptive names
- 4.0 Electronic Media Delivery Requirements
 - 4.1 Transmittals shall include the following
 - 4.1.1 The Project Number, Project Title and date
 - 4.1.2 The Facility Name
 - 4.1.3 The submittal type
 - 4.1.4 The format and version of the software.
 - 4.1.5 An attached Listing of file names with the latest document publish dates
 - 4.2 All electronic media shall contain an attached label which shall identify 4.1.1, 4.1.2, and 4.1.3.
 - 4.3 Document clean-up
 - 4.3.1 Before a CADD file is placed on the delivery electronic digital media, the following procedures shall be performed:
 - 4.3.1.1 Purge all files and remove all extraneous graphics outside the border area.
 - 4.3.1.2 Make sure all reference files are attached without device path
 - 4.3.1.3 All required project files both graphic and nongraphic, shall include color tables, pen tables, font libraries, block libraries, user command files, plot files, etc. All project related blocks must be provided to the Owner as a part of the electronic digital deliverables.
 - 4.3.1.4 Make sure that all support files such as those listed above are in the same directory and that references to those files do not include device Path.
 - 4.4 The following Plot File Development and Project Documentation Information shall be submitted as an enclosure or attachment to the transmittal letter provided with each electronic digital media submittal.
 - 4.4.1 Documentation of the plot files for each drawing which will be needed to be able to allow identical plotting by the Owner at a later date. This documentation shall include the plotter configuration (e.g., name and model of plotter), pen settings, drawing orientation, drawing

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 8/18/17 size, and any other special instructions.

- 4.4.2 Instructions concerning how to generate plotted, drawings from the provided plot files.
- 4.5 Provide all symbols and blocks used in the project in a separate files.
- 4.6 List of all database/spreadsheet files associated with each drawing, as well as a description and documentation of the database format.
- 5.0 Ownership: Refer to Agreement for specific Owner and Design Professional's rights.
- 6.0 Documents for the Construction Contractor:
 - 6.1 The Owner and the Design Professional shall make various electronic information available to the Contractor during the Construction phase of the Project.
- 7.0 Where electronic media submittals of final site surveys are required: Provide electronic copies of any existing site survey data already on electronic media.
- 8.0 At the Contractors option, the Design Professional will provide the Contractor one set of AutoCAD (.dwg) electronic file format contract drawings, to be used for as built drawings at the Contractor's option. Note that the Architect's name and information to be removed.

This page intentionally left blank



PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida **Office of Facilities & Construction** 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed

Project No.: Location No.:	<u>P.######</u> ### <u>#</u>	Date:2017			
Project Title:	Name of Project	SBBC P.O. No.:			
		Line No.:			
Facility Name:	NAME OS SCHOOL	Project Manager:			
Project Consultant:	NAME OF VENDOR A/E	Dir. Capital Planning & Programming			

	provisions of your contract for pervices for the project referenced a	professional services, you are hereby authorized to proceed with the above.			
Schematic DesignDesign DevelopmentConstruction DocumentsBiddingConstruction Contract AdministrationWarrantyOther Services:Attached:					
This Authorization to Proceed is subject to the following attachments:					

Attachments: Professional Services Required Project Schedule Professional Fees Previous ATP's

The scope of the required services is specified on the Professional Services Required with a Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC) for this project as indicated below:

Original FLCC	Current Cost Estimate	Revised FLCC by ATP	
\$##########	\$######################################	\$######################################	

The services under this Authorization To Proceed (ATP) will be provided under the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) dated ______2017 between The School Board of Broward County, and NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT are in accordance with the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF ARCHIITECT dated ______ 2017 (Revised _____, 2017 and ______ 2017) - See Attachment 1.

The Basic Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Articles 2.1 through 2.8 of the PSA.

The Supplemental Services that will be provided by the Project Consultant under this ATP are defined in Article 2.9 of the PSA.

Upon completion of a phase listed on Page 3 of this ATP, the Project Consultant shall not proceed with the next phase until the completion of all documents, required presentations and reports required for the phase being completed, and receipt of a written authorization for the next phase from the Owner, or the Office of Facilities & Construction, or the Program Manager.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida **Professional Service Agreement** (07-25-12 MA)



PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued)

Project Schedule

Project No. & P.######## Location No.: ######

Project Consultant:

Project Title: GOB_NAME OF PROJECT

Facility Name: NAME OF SCHOOL

The required project schedule milestones for this project are presented below. (Mandatory)

NAME OF ARCHITECTURAL VENDOR

	Date Required Or Estimated Time Period	
ACTIVITY	Start	Finish
Phase I - Scope Validation - 14 Calendar Day	Day 1	Day 14
Phase I - Schematic Design Submittal (30% CDs) – 30 Calendar Days	Day 15	Day 44
Phase I - Plan Review – 7 Calendar Days	Day 45	Day 51
Phase II - Design Development Submittal (60% CDs) – 30 Calendar Days	Day 52	Day 81
Phase II - Plan Review – 14 Calendar Days	Day 82	Day 95
Phase III - 90% CDs Submittal 30 Calendar Days	Day 96	Day 125
Phase III - 90% CDs Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 126	Day 146
Phase III - 100% CDs Submittal - 30 Calendar Days	Day 147	Day 176
Phase III - 100% CDs Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 177	Day 197
Phase III - 100% CDs Bldg Dept Review – 21 Calendar Days	Day 198	Day 218
Plan Revision / Re-Submittal to Bldg Dept – 14 Calendar Days	Day 219	Day 232
Bldg Dept Follow-up Review – 14 Calendar Days	Day 233	Day 246
Plan Approval – 0 Calendar Days (See Note 2)	Day 246	Day 246
Procurement & Award – 90 Calendar Days	Day 247	Day 336
Construction Through Close-out (Contract Administration) - 365 Calendar Days	Day 337	Day 701
Begins With Approval of GMP (See PSA Article 2.6.1)		
Warranty – 365 Calendar Days	Day 702	Day 1066
Notes:		•

Notes:

- Day 1 = One (1) calendar day after fully executed Authorization To Proceed is issued to the Consultant or a
 mutually agreed upon start date with SBBC Owner's Representative. Excludes all federal observed
 holidays.
- 2. Completion of 100% Construction Documents is when Building Department issues Letter of Intent to Permit.
- 3. The milestones presented herein are in accordance with the schedule in the Proposal for Architectural / Engineering Services from NAME OF VENDOR ARCHITECT?ENGINEER dated _____2017 (Revised _____, 2017 and _____, 2017) and the milestones shall be incorporated into the Project Design Schedule prepared by the Project Consultant as required by Article 2.2.5.8 of the PSA.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)


PSA Attachment 4 The School Board of Broward County, Florida Office of Facilities & Construction 2301 N.W. 26th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

Consultant's Authorization To Proceed (Continued)							
		Profession	nal Fees				
Project No. & P.######		Project Tit	le: GOB S	COPE NAME			
Location No.: #####							
	F SCHOOL						
Project Consultant: NAME C	F VENDOR A	./Е					
Phase	Original	Fee Authorize	ed by ATP	Fee Previou	sly Paid	Fee Bala	nce
	Basic Fee						
I – Schematic Design (30% CDs)	\$#####.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
II - Design Development (60% CDs)	\$#####.00	\$########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
III – 90% CDs	\$#####.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
III – 100% CDs	\$#####.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
IV - Bid Phase (GMP)	\$#####.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
V – Construction Administration	\$#####.00	\$ ######## #	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
VI - Warranty	\$#####.00	\$ ####### ###	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
Allowance - Document	\$#####.00	\$##########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
Reproduction							
Allowance - Specific Purpose	\$0.00	\$##########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
Survey & GPR							
Allowance - Geotechnical	\$0.00	\$#########	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
Allowance – Non-Destructive /	\$20,000.00	\$#####################################	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
Destructive Testing							
Allowance - Pre-Design Testing	\$0.00	\$0.00	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
Supplemental Services	\$0.00	\$0.00	100.0%				
Total:	\$#####.00	\$#####.00	100.0%	\$0.00	0.0%	\$0.00	0.0%
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 - 1997 -

Payment for these services shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the Professional Services Agreement.

Approved B	y Consultant			Certified By SBBC		
Name:			Name: Shelley N. Meloni			
Title:				Title: Director, Pre-Construction		
Signature:	4	Date:	[<u></u>	Signature: Date		
Recommended By SBBC			Approval by SBBC			
Name:			Name:			
Title: Project Manager / Program Director			Title:			
Signature:		Date:		Signature: Date		

This document is part of the Professional Services Agreement between The School Board of Broward County, Florida (Owner) and the Project Consultant and is incorporated by reference into the terms and conditions of that agreement.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Service Agreement (07-25-12 MA)

s,

Design and Professional Consulting Staff

Prime Firm: Keith & Schnars, P.A.

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
Mark J. Moshier, P.E.	Vice President of Production	Principal-In-Charge	5%	32016	mmoshier@ksfla.com
Robert K. Krisak, P.L.S.	Vice President of Surveying & Mapping	Project Manager	10%	LS4641	rkrisak@ksfla.com
Donad A. Spicer, P.S.M	Project Surveyor	Senior Surveyor & Mapper/ Quality Control Surveyor	20%	LS4677	dspicer@ksfla.com
Benjamin B. Hoyle, P.S.M	Project Surveyor	Project Surveyor	50%	LS6769	bhoyle@ksfla.com
Denis Halfrey	Field Crew Superviser	Field & Safety Supervisor	20%	N/A	dhalfrey@ksfla.com

Subconsultant: F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
Dennis Stanton	Subsurface Utility Engin- eering Director	Underground Utility & Survey Support	100%	N/A	dennis.slanlon@fr-aleman.com
Frank Paruas, P.S.M.	Project Surveyor	Survey Support	20%	LS6625	trank.pan/as@fr-aleman.com

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
		,, _,, _			

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
		······································			

.



Document 00455: Background Screening of Contractual Personnel

Project No: Various Location No:Various Project Title: SMART Program Facility Name: Various

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES, BACKGROUND SCREENING OF CONTRACTUAL PERSONNEL

Contractor agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Contractor and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or (3) have access or control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Contractor or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Contractor will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Contractor and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Contractor to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting in Contractor's failure to comply with the requirements of this section or Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes.

Bidder agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Bidder's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Bidder pursuant to SBBC Indemnification requirements as revised and the laws of Florida.

(To be signed in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths.)

STATE OF Florida

COUNTY OF Broward

Before me, the undersigned authority, personally appeared

Errol Kalayci

statement)

who, being by me first duly

sworn, made the following statement:

1.	Contractor Name:	Keith and Schnars, P.A.
	Address:	6500 North Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309
2.	My relationship to the Contractor named in (1) above is:	President and C.E.O.
		(List relationship such as sole proprietor, partner, president, vice president, etc.)
3.	Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) (or if entity has no FEIN, the social security number of the person signing this sworn	
	statement)	59-1406307

TO BE COMPLETED AT THE TIME OF SUBMISSION OF POST-AWARD DOCUMENTS INDICATED IN DOCUMENT 00200. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO ISSUANCE OF DOCUMENT 00550, NOTICE TO PROCEED.

X The above-named Contractor presently complies fully with the requirements set forth in Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes to the extent that all contractual personnel to be employed under the terms of this bid HAVE met Level 2 Screening requirements set forth in Section 1012-32-Florida Statutes.

BY: <u>M////</u>	DATE:	May 15, 2018	
NAME (Printed) Errol Kalayci TITLE:	President and	d C.E.O.	
Notarization	State of:	Florida)
Sworn to and subscribed before me, the undersigned autho		Broward EY(01 Kall	<u>)</u> iyCi
who is personally known to me or did produce:			,
an identification and who did take an oath.	1 -		
Notary Public:	them	Notary Public State of Fic	vSoat-
Commission Expires on:		Suzanne Eitler My Commission GG 1826 Expires 11/26/2021	

School Board of Broward County – Contractors & Vendors

Those who need to request entry badges to the Broward School Board Facilities need to go to <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/police/secclear.html</u> and follow the instructions for Fieldprint registration and scheduling process.

Before processing your documentation you need to have a signed contract or Purchase Order and a Vendor number; to obtain a Vendor number please call (754) 321-2374.

All vendors and contractors must provide the necessary information as soon as possible to Fieldprint. These documents can be found by selecting "Click Here for Forms and Other Necessary Information" hyperlink.

If you have any questions, please call Security Clearance Department at 754-321-2374.

PSA Attachment 7

See attached Department of Treasury Internal Revenue Service Form W-9.

Form	W-	-9
(Rev. D	ecembe)	r 2014)
Departs	nent of th Revenue	e Treasury
mema	nevenue	OU VIGE

Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification

Give Form to the requester. Do not send to the IRS.

in the state								
	1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank. Keith and Schnars, P.A.							
ge 2,	2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above							
Б С	Check appropriate box for federal tax classification; check only one of the following seven boxes: Individual/sole proprietor or Corporation S Corporation Partnership Corporation Corporation S=S corporation, P=partnership] Trust/estate	4 Exemptions (codes apply only to certain entities, not individuals; see instructions on page 3): Exempt payee code (if any)					
Print or type Instruction:	Note. For a single-member LLC that is disregarded, do not check LLC; check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner.							
2.5	Uther (see instructions) ►		(Applies to accounts maintained outside the U.S.)					
Ŭ.	5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) Re	equester's name a	nd address (optional)					
bec	6500 North Andrews Avenue							
	6 City, state, and ZIP code							
See	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309							
	7 List account number(s) here (optional)							
Par	t I Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)							
backu reside entitie	your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid p withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a int alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other is, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see <i>How to get a</i> in page 3.	a						
Note	If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the chart on page 4 f	for Employer	identification number					
	ines on whose number to enter.	59	1 4 0 6 3 0 7					
Par	t II Certification							
_	(a section of particul a set is that							

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:

- 1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
- I am not subject to backup withholding because; (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding; and
- 3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and
- 4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (iRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions on page 3.

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise noted.

Future developments, Information about developments affecting Form W-9 (such as legislation enacted after we release it) is at www.irs.gov/fw9.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number (SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number (EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information returns include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)
- + Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual funds)
- Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds)
 Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other transactions by
- brokers)
- * Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
- Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

- Date May 15, 2018
- Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest), 1098-T (tuition)
- Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
- · Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding? on page 2.

By signing the filled-out form, you;

1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are waiting for a number to be issued),

2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on foreign partners' share of effectively connected income, and

 Certify that FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that you are exempt from the FATCA reporting, is correct. See What is FATCA reporting? on page 2 for further information. Note. If you are a U.S. person and a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to request your TIN, you must use the requester's form if it is substantially similar to this Form W-9.

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are considered a U.S. person if you are:

An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident allen;

• A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United States;

· An estate (other than a foreign estate); or

* A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section 301.7701-7).

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a withholding tax under section 1446 on any foreign partners' share of effectively connected taxable income from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9 has not been received, the rules under section 1446 require a partnership to presume that a partner is a foreign person, and pay the section 1446 withholding tax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. status and avoid section 1446 withholding on your share of partnership income.

In the cases below, the following person must give Form W-9 to the partnership for purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding on its allocable share of net income from the partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States:

• In the case of a disregarded entity with a U.S. owner, the U.S. owner of the disregarded entity and not the entity;

 In the case of a grantor trust with a U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner, generally, the U.S. grantor or other U.S. owner of the grantor trust and not the trust; and

 In the case of a U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust), the U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the beneficiaries of the trust.

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person or the U.S. branch of a foreign bank that has elected to be treated as a U.S. person, do not use Form W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 or Form 8233 (see Publication 515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign Entitles).

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally, only a nonresident alien individual may use tha terms of a tax treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income. However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a "saving clause," Exceptions specified in the saving clause may permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S. resident alien for tax purposes.

If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five items:

1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident alien.

2. The treaty article addressing the income.

3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that contains the saving clause and its exceptions.

4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the exemption from tax.

5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the terms of the treaty article.

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a Chinese student temporally present in the United States. Under U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5 calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the information described above to support that exemption.

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity, give the requester the appropriate completed Form W-8 or Form 8233.

Backup Withholding

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the IRS 28% of such payments. This is called "backup withholding." Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, and certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate transactions are not subject to backup withholding.

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments you receive if you give the requester your correct TiN, make the proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and dividends on your tax return.

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding if:

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II instructions on page 3 for details),

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect TIN,

 The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup withholding because you did not report all your interest and dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and dividends only), or

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).

Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup withholding. See Exempt payee code on page 3 and the separate Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Also see Special rules for partnerships above.

What is FATCA reporting?

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA) requires a participating foreign financial Institution to report all United States account holders that are specified United States persons. Certain payees are exempt from FATCA reporting. See Exemption from FATCA reporting code on page 3 and the instructions for the Requester of Form W-9 for more information.

Updating Your Information

You must provide updated information to any person to whom you claimed to be an exempt payee if you are no longer an exempt payee and anticipate receiving reportable payments in the future from this person. For example, you may need to provide updated information if you are a C corporation that elects to be an S corporation, or if you no longer are tax exempt. In addition, you must furnish a new Form W-9 if the name or TIN changes for the account; for example, if the grantor of a grantor trust dies.

Penalties

Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a requester, you are subject to a penalty of \$50 for each such failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to willful neglect.

Civil penalty for false information with respect to withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a \$500 penalty.

Criminal penalty for falsifying information, Willfully falsifying certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal penalties including fines and/or imprisonment,

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and criminal penalties.

Specific Instructions

Line 1

You must enter one of the following on this line; do not leave this line blank. The name should match the name on your tax return.

If this Form W-9 is for a joint account, list first, and then circle, the name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I of Form W-9.

a. Individual. Generally, enter the name shown on your tax return. If you have changed your last name without informing the Social Security Administration (SSA) of the name change, enter your first name, the last name as shown on your social security card, and your new last name.

Note. ITIN applicant: Enter your individual name as it was entered on your Form W-7 application, line 1a. This should also be the same as the name you entered on the Form 1040/1040A/1040EZ you filed with your application.

b. Sole proprietor or single-member LLC. Enter your individual name as shown on your 1040/1040A/1040EZ on line 1. You may enter your business, trade, or "doing business as" (DBA) name on line 2.

c. Partnership, LLC that is not a single-member LLC, C Corporation, or S Corporation. Enter the entity's name as shown on the entity's tax return on line 1 and any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

d. Other entities. Enter your name as shown on required U.S. federal tax documents on line 1. This name should match the name shown on the charter or other legal document creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA name on line 2.

e. Disregarded entity. For U.S. federal tax purposes, an entity that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner is treated as a "disregarded entity." See Regulations section 301.7701-2(c)(2)(ii). Enter the owner's name on line 1. The name of the entity entered on line 1 should never be a disregarded entity. The name on line 1 should be the name shown on the income tax return on which the income should be reported. For example, if a foreign LLC that is treated as a disregarded entity for U.S. federal tax purposes has a single owner that is a U.S. person, the U.S. owner's name is required to be provided on line 1. If the direct owner of the entity is also a disregarded entity, enter the first owner that is not disregarded for federal tax purposes. Enter the disregarded entity's name on line 2, "Business name/disregarded entity name." If the owner of the Gisregarded entity is a foreign person, the u.S. This is the case even if the foreign person has a U.S. This.

Line 2

If you have a business name, trade name, DBA name, or disregarded entity name, you may enter it on line 2,

Line 3

Check the appropriate box in line 3 for the U.S. federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one box in line 3.

Limited Liability Company (LLC). If the name on line 1 is an LLC treated as a partnership for U.S. federal tax purposes, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and enter "P" in the space provided. If the LLC has filed Form 8832 or 2553 to be taxed as a corporation, check the "Limited Liability Company" box and in the space provided enter "C" for C corporation or "S" for S corporation, if it is a single-member LLC that is a disregarded entity, do not check the "Limited Liability Company" box; instead check the first box in line 3 "individual/sole proprietor or single-member LLC."

Line 4, Exemptions

If you are exempt from backup withholding and/or FATCA reporting, enter in the appropriate space in line 4 any code(s) that may apply to you,

Exempt payee code.

Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt from backup withholding.

• Except as provided below, corporations are exempt from backup withholding for certain payments, including interest and dividends.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding for payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions.

 Corporations are not exempt from backup withholding with respect to attorneys' fees or gross proceeds paid to attorneys, and corporations that provide medical or health care services are not exempt with respect to payments reportable on Form 1099-MISC.

The following codes identify payees that are exempt from backup withholding. Enter the appropriate code in the space in line 4.

1—An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2)

2-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

3-A state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

4-A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions, agencies, or instrumentalities

5-A corporation

6-A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in the United

States, the District of Columbia, or a U.S. commonwealth or possession 7---A futures commission merchant registered with the Commodity Futures

Trading Commission

8→A real estate investment trust

 $9-\mbox{--}An$ entity registered at all times during the tax year under the investment Company Act of 1940

10-A common trust fund operated by a bank under section 584(a)

11-A financial Institution

12-A middleman known in the investment community as a nominee or custodian

13—A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947 The following chart shows types of payments that may be exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

 Withholding. The chart applies to the exempt payees listed above, 1 through 13.

 IF the payment is for . . .

 THEN the payment is exempt for . . .

Interest and dividend payments	All exempt payees except for 7
Broker transactions	Exempt payees 1 through 4 and 6 through 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not enter an exempt payee code because they are exempt only for sales of noncovered securities acquired prior to 2012.
Barter exchange transactions and patronage dividends	Exempt payees 1 through 4
Payments over \$600 required to be reported and direct sales over \$5,000 ¹	Generally, exempt payees 1 through 5 ²
Payments made in settlement of payment card or third party network transactions	Exempt payees 3 through 4

¹See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.

² However, the following payments made to a corporation and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from backup withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys' fees, gross proceeds paid to an attorney reportable under section 6045(f), and payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.

Exemption from FATCA reporting code. The following codes identify payees that are exempt from reporting under FATCA. These codes apply to persons submitting this form for accounts maintained outside of the United States by certain foreign financial institutions. Therefore, if you are only submitting this form for an account you hold in the United States, you may leave this field blank. Consult with the person requesting this form if you are uncertain if the financial institution is subject to these requirements. A requester may indicate that a code is not required by providing you with a Form W-9 with "Not Applicable" (or any similar indication) written or printed on the line for a FATCA exemption code.

A-An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a) or any individual retirement plan as defined in section 7701(a)(37)

8-The United States or any of its agencies or instrumentalities

 $C-\!\!-\!A$ state, the District of Columbia, a U.S. commonwealth or possession, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities

D—A corporation the stock of which is regularly traded on one or more established securities markets, as described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)(i)

E—A corporation that is a member of the same expanded affiliated group as a corporation described in Regulations section 1.1472-1(c)(1)()

F—A dealer in securities, commodities, or derivative financial instruments (including notional principal contracts, futures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such under the laws of the United States or any state

G-A real estate investment trust

 $\rm H\!-\!A$ regulated investment company as defined in section 851 or an entity registered at all times during the tax year under the Investment Company Act of 1940

I-A common trust fund as defined in section 584(a)

J-A bank as defined in section 581

K-A broker

L-A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in section 4947(a)(1)

M--A tax exempt trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 457(g) plan

Note. You may wish to consult with the financial institution requesting this form to determine whether the FATCA code and/or exempt payee code should be completed.

Lìne 5

Enter your address (number, street, and apartment or suite number). This is where the requester of this Form W-9 will mail your information returns.

Líne 6

Enter your city, state, and ZIP code.

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN, your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN below.

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you use your SSN.

If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner (see *Limited Liability Company (LLC)* on this page), enter the owner's SSN (or EIN, if the owner has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity's EIN. If the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity's EIN.

Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name and TIN combinations.

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, from your local SSA office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification Number, to apply for an TIN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7 and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting IRS.gov or by calling 1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-429-3676).

If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN, apply for a TIN and write "Applied For" in the space for the TIN, sign and date the form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to other types of payments. You will be subject to backup withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to the requester.

Note. Entering "Applied For" means that you have already applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caution: A disregarded U.S. entity that has a foreign owner must use the appropriate Form W-8.

Part II. Certification

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person, or resident allen, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign by the withholding agent even if items 1, 4, or 5 below indicate otherwise.

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in Part I should sign (when required). In the case of a disregarded entity, the person identified on line 1 must sign. Exempt payees, see Exempt payee code earlier.

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated in items 1 through 5 below.

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup withholding will apply, if you are subject to backup withholding and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester, you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the form.

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification. You may cross out item 2 of the certification.

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification unless you have been notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. "Other payments" include payments made in the course of the requester's trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services (including payments to corporations), payments to a nonemployee for services, payments made in settlement of payment card and third party network transactions, payments to certain fishing boat crew members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to attorneys (including payments to corporations).

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA, Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.

What Name and Number To Give the Requester

For this type of account	Give name and SSN of:
1. Individual 2. Two or more individuals (joint account)	The individual The actual owner of the account or, if combined funds, the first Individual on the account'
3. Custodian account of a minor {Uniform Gift to Minors Act}	The minor ³
 a. The usual revocable savings trust (grantor is also trustee) b. So-called trust account that is not a legal or valid trust under state law 	The grantor-trustee'
 Sole proprietorship or disregarded entity owned by an individual 	The owner"
6. Grantor trust filing under Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 1 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)() (A))	The grantor*
For this type of account:	Give name and EIN of:
 Disregarded entity not owned by an individual 	The owner
8. A valid trust, estate, or pension trust	Legal entity*
9. Corporation or LLC electing corporate status on Form 8832 or Form 2553	The corporation
 Association, club, religious, charitable, educational, or other tax- exempt organization 	The organization
11. Partnership or multi-member LLC	The partnership
12. A broker or registered nominee	The broker or nominee
13. Account with the Department of Agriculture in the name of a public entity (such as a state or local government, school district, or prison) that receives agricultural program payments	The public entity
 Grantor trust filing under the Form 1041 Filing Method or the Optional Form 1099 Filing Method 2 (see Regulations section 1.671-4(b)(2)() (20) 	The trust

¹ List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person on a joint account has an SSN, that person's number must be furnished.

Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SSN.

(B))

- ³ You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or DBA name on the "Business name/disregarded entity" name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (If you have one), but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.
- List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust, (Do not furnish the TIN of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in the account title.) Also see Special rules for partnerships on page 2. Note, Grantor also must provide a Form W-9 to trustee of trust.

Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed, the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, SSN, or other identifying information, without your permission, to commit fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.

To reduce your risk:

- · Protect your SSN.
- · Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
- Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.

If your tax records are affected by identity theft and you receive a notice from the IRS, respond right away to the name and phone number printed on the IRS notice or letter.

If your tax records are not currently affected by identity theft but you think you are at risk due to a lost or stolen purse or wallet, questionable credit card activity or credit report, contact the IRS Identity Theft Hotline at 1-800-908-4490 or submit Form 14039.

For more information, see Publication 4535, Identity Theft Prevention and Victim Assistance

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax problems that have not been resolved through normal channels, may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance. You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.

Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing schemes. Phishing is the creation and use of email and websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information that will be used for identity theft.

The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails. Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords, or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or other financial accounts.

If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS, forward this message to phishing@irs.gov. You may also report misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS property to the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration (TIGTA) at 1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the Federal Trade Commission al: spam@uce.gov or contact them at www.ftc.gov/idtheft or 1-877-IDTHEFT (1-877-438-4338).

Visit IRS.gov to learn more about identity theft and how to reduce your risk.

Privacy Act Notice

Section 6109 of the internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to file information returns with the IRS to report interest, dividends, or certain other income paid to you; mortgage interest you paid; the acquisition or abandonment of secured property; the cancellation of debt; or contributions you made to an IRA, Archer MSA, or HSA. The person collecting this form uses the information on the form to file information returns with the IRS, reporting the above information. Routine uses of this information include giving it to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S. commonwealths and possessions for use in administering their laws. The information also may be disclosed to other countries under a treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce civil and criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism. You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Under section 3406, payers must generally withhold a percentage of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to the payer. Certain penalties may also apply for providing false or fraudulent information.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

Professional Services Agreement

ATTACHMENT 8

Truth in Negotiations Certification

The format for the truth-in-negotiations certification is presented below. The consultant must complete this attachment prior to contract processing:



PROJECT NAME: Various

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT: TBD

CERTIFICATE OF TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION

This is to certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation negotiated for the referenced contract are accurate, complete, and current at the time of contracting as defined in Florida Statutes CH287.055 (5) (a) and represented to The School Board of Broward County, Florida or their representative(s) in support of:

PROJECT NAME (S) Various Projects for SMART Program

BY:

Are accurate, complete and current as of

The 15th of May, 2018

FIRM: Keith and Schnars, P.A.

VICE PRESIDENT AND C.E.O. Errolf arol Kalavci

Reference: Florida Statutes 287.055



The School Board of Broward County, Florida ACH Payment Agreement Form (ACH CREDITS)

VENDOR NAME: Keith and Schnars, P.A.

Authorization Agreement

I (we) hereby authorize <u>The School Board of Broward County</u> to initiate automatic deposits (credits) to my account at the financial institution named below. Additionally, I authorize <u>The School Board of Broward County</u> to make the necessary debit entries/adjustments in the event that a credit entry is made in error.

Further, I agree not to hold The School Board of Broward County responsible for any delay or loss of funds due to incorrect or incomplete information supplied by me or by my financial institution or due to an error on the part of my financial institution in depositing funds to my account.

This agreement will remain in effect until The School Board of Broward County receives written notification of cancellation from me or my financial institution and that the origination of ACH transactions to my (our) account must comply with the provisions of U.S. law.

	Account Information		· · · · .
Name of Bank or Financ	ial Institution: Fifth Third Bank		
Branch/ State:	Florida		
Routing No:	067091719		
Account No:	7432942378	Checking	Savings
VENDOR AREA: Remittance Confirmation: (please select one)	kjackson@ksfla.com	Fax	Email
Federal Identification No. Vendor	59-1406307	TAX ID# [조]	ss#
	Update Purchase Order Fax & Er	nail Address	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Centralized Fax Number	954-776-8045	Dep	t. <u>Reception</u>
Centralized Email	Accounting@ksfla.com	Depi	. Accounting
Centralized Phone No.	954-776-1616	Dep	Reception
	Signature		
Authorized Signature (Primary) and Business titl	4. 1111	Date	: May 15, 2018
Authorized Signature (Joint) and Business title:		Date:	
Pie	ase attach a VOIDED check to verify bank details and n	outing number.	
	form must be returned to: SBBC – Purchasing – Data akland Park Blvd, Sunrise FL 33351 call: 754-321-0516		
	For Use by DATA STRATEGY G	ROUP	· · ·
Vendor Account#		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Board of Broward County			

٠

.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

PSA Attachment 10

RFQ # and NAME RFQ # 17-113C: Continuing Contract for Surveying

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP

In accordance with the RFQ, each Proposer must disclose, in its RFQ, the names of any employees who are employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC. Persons identified below may have obligations and restrictions applicable to them under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.

Name of Proposer's Employee	SBBC Title or Position Employee	of Proposer's	SBBC Department/ Schoo Proposer's Employee	ol of
<u></u>	y			
4mmmre/Ferrennet4///4444.8.8.8.	, .			
	·			

Check one of the following and sign:

X I hereby affirm that there are no known persons employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC.

I hereby affirm that all known persons who are employed by Proposer, who are also an employee of SBBC, have been identified above.

Signature

Keith and Schnars, P.A.

Company Name

Errol Kalayci, President Name of Official

6500 North Andrews Avenue

Business Address

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

City, State, Zip Code

..



August 3, 2017

The School Board of Broward County Procurement & Warehousing Services Department Ms. Shari S. Francis Purchasing Agent III 7720 West Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323 Sunrise, FL 33351-6704

Re: Request for Qualifications (RFQ) – #17-113C Design Professional Services - Continuing Contract for Surveying

Dear Ms. Francis:

On behalf of Keith and Schnars, P.A. (K&S), we would like to thank you for this opportunity with The School Board of Broward County (SBBC) for the above referenced RFQ. Our revised Staff Rate Breakdown for Design Professional Services is attached with the agreed upon rates and multiplier.

We are committed to providing 25% participation to our subconsultant, F.R. Aleman. They are an SBBC Certified Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE) as of 11/07/16 and until 11/07/2019 (Certification Number 7007-7223 16 is attached for your reference).

We look forward to a successful working relationship with the SBBC. Thank you again for this opportunity.

If you have any questions, please contact me at your earliest convenience.

Sincerely,

Robert K. Krisak, P.L.S. Více President

Attachments:

- Survey Rate Breakdown Sheet
- SBBC Letter & M/WBE Certificate

1



Office of Facilities Construction 2301 NW 26th St., Bldg 6 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33311

(754) 321-1500

RFQ Number/Name				
Proposer's Company Name Keith and Schnars, P.A. Dated Submitted Thursday, August 03, 2017			····	
Staff Rate Breakdown For Design Professional Services				
Staff Classification	Raw Hourly Rate (\$)	Multiplier	Total	
Keith and Schnars, P.A.				
Principal In Charge	\$75.87	2.90	\$220.02	
Senior Project Manager	\$55.29	2.90	\$160.34	
Senior Surveyor & Mapper (PSM)	\$55.29	2.90	\$160.34	
Surveyor I	\$36.06	2.90	\$104.57	
Survey Technician/CADD	\$27.54	2.90	\$80.16	
Field Crew Supervisor	\$34.86	2.90	\$101.09	
Survey Crew - 2 Person	\$39.42	2,90	\$114.32	
Survey Crew - 3 Person	\$54.42	2.90	\$157.82	
Survey Crew - 4 Person /Specialty Laser Scanning Crew	\$69.42	2,90	\$201.32	
Senior CADD Technician	\$29.09	2.90	\$84.36	
Administrative Support	\$22.00	2.90	\$63.80	
Subconsultant Firm: "S.U.E. Services & Survey Support." (F.R. Aleman & Associates, Inc.)				
Chief Utility Coordinator	\$56.50	2.90	\$163.85	
Senior Project Manager	\$53.00	2.90	\$153.70	
Professional Surveyor & Mapper (Director)	\$51.50	2.90	\$149.35	
Senior Surveyor & Mapper (PSM), QAQC	\$53.00	2.90	\$153.70	
Senior Survey Technician	\$35.50	2.90	\$102.95	
CADD	\$27,00	2.90	\$78.30	
Survey Technician/CADD	\$32.62	2.90	\$94.60	
Field Crew Supervisor	\$31.00	2.90	\$89.90	
Survey Field Crew - Three (3) Person	\$59.75	2.90	\$173.28	
Survey Field Crew - Four (4) Person	\$73.75	2.90	\$213.88	
Locating & Designating Field Crew - Two (2) Person	\$51.00	2.90	\$147.90	
Locating & Designating FieldCrew - Three (3) Person	\$66.00	2.90	\$191.40	
GPR Field Crew - Two (2) Person	\$76.87	2.90	\$227.92	
GPR Field Crew - Three (3) Person	\$93.33	2.90	\$270.66	
Test Hole Field Crew - Two (2) Person	\$95.92	2.90	\$278.17	
Test Hole Field Crew - Three (3) Person	\$112.72	2.90	\$326.89	
Administrative Support	\$22.00	2.90	\$63.80	
Supplemental Services Multiplier	2.90			

Note 1: These rates will be set for the first three (3) years. Rate adjustments may be considered for additional year extensions (if applicable). Rate adjustments will be approved by the Office of Facilities & Construction's Director (Fre-Construction) with copy to the Purchasing Agent (Construction). Note 2: Reimborsable expenses should be direct costs with no mark-up.

ş

3

.

4



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

SUPPLIER DIVERSITY & OUTREACH PROGRAM 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Sulte 323 Suprise, FL 33351 754-321-0550

SCHOOL BOARD

CHIPR ROSALING OSGOOD MI GHIABBY M. FREEDMAN ROBIN DARTLEMAN HEATER P. BRINKWORTH FATRICLA GOOD BONNA P. KORN LAURIE RICH LEVINSON ANN MIDDA ANN MURRAY NORA RUPERT

> ROBERT W. RUNCLE Superintendent of Schools

November 6, 2016

F. R. Aleman & Associates, Inc. Ms. Yvette A. Aleman 10305 NW 41 Street Suite 200 Doral, FL 33178

Dear Ms. Aleman :

CONGRATULATIONS!

Your application for certification as a Minority/Women Business Enterprise (M/WBE) is approved. The enclosed certificate becomes valid when bids are advertised within your area of specialty. The Purchasing & Warehousing Services Department has entered into an agreement with DemandStar.com, a government bid service provider. Although it is not necessary to be registered with them to do business with The School Board of Broward County, Florida (SBBC), being a member of the DemandStar.com network provides many benefits. For more information on DemandStar.com, you may contact them at (800) 711-1712 or at www.demandstar.com. If your firm is qualified in the construction arena please visit http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/supply/sdop/construction-contracts.html for further assistance.

We encourage you to become an active bidder in the contracting and subcontracting opportunities with the SBBC. The following data reflects the manner in which your company is listed in the School Board's database.

Certificate Number;	7007-7223	- 16			
Certification Status:	Nov 7, 2016	until	Nov 7, 2019		
Minority Status:	Hispanie-An	perican	(M/WBE)		
Trade or Service:	Project Deve	lopment and E	nviroamental Stu	dies; Major and Minor Highw	яy
	Design - Roadway; Traffic Engineering and Operations Studies; Intelligent				
	Transportation Systems Analysis Design and Implementation; Traffic				
	Operations I	Design; Surveyi	ing and Mapping;	Subsurface Utility Engineerin	g

Your certification is valid for a three (3) year period, and it is subject to review in order to verify continued eligibility. Should any change occur which may adversely affect the minority status of your company, please notify the Supplier Diversity & Outreach Program Office within fifteen (15) calendar days. Failure to do so may result in de-certification of your minority/women certification status.

Should you have any questions regarding your certification status with the SBBC, please feel free to contact me at (754) 321-0540.

Sincerely,

Sleen MRolebs

Colleen M. Robbs, Supplier Diversity & Outreach Coordinator Procurement & Warehousing Services

Enclosure

"Educating Today's Students To Succeed In Tomorrow's World" Broward County Public Schools Is An Equal Opportunity/Equal Access Employer



REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS RFQ # 17-113C

DESIGN PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Continuing Contract for Surveying



The School Board of Broward County, Florida

Dr. Rosalind Osgood, Chair Abby M. Freedman, Vice Chair Robin Bartleman Heather P. Brinkworth Patricia Good Donna P. Korn Laurie Rich Levinson Ann Murray Nora Rupert

Robert W. Runcie, Superintendent of Schools

Leo Bobadilla - Chief Facilities Officer Barbara J. Myrick, General Counsel

Office of Facilities and Construction Procurement and Warehousing Services

NOTICES TO ALL BIDDERS Cone of Silence and Lobbyist Activities

For Cone of Silence requirements and for Lobbyist Activities restrictions, refer to Section 1, Introduction and General Information lines labeled 'Cone of Silence and Lobbyist Activities' (lines 1.10 and 1.11).

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA Procurement and Warehousing Services Department 7720 W. Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323 Sunrise, Florida 33351-6704



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 7720 WEST OAKLAND PARK BOULEVARD, SUITE 323 • SUNRISE, FLORIDA 33351-6704 • TEL 754-321-0501

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ) RFQ # 17-113C

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Continuing Contract for Surveying

RFQ Issue Date: October 7, 2016

Description of Scope:

Design Services for a variety of potential projects of various scopes and value on as needed, continuing contract basis. It is expected that the scope of these projects will **involve primarily Surveying work**, but may include other trades as related to primary works.

This Request for Qualifications is for the procurement of a "continuing contract" that will select a group of Surveying professional service firms who will be assigned to perform services for Facilities and Maintenance projects consisting of, but not limited to, additions and renovations.

The District intends to select a maximum of five (5) firms and enter into separate contracts in this solicitation. However, the final number of firms selected will be at the discretion of the District. The primary discipline to be selected is Surveying.

Each Contract term include a limit of \$3,000,000 in fees over the life of the initial contract. <u>The term of this Agreement shall</u> be for three (3) years. The term of this Agreement may, by mutual agreement between the School Board of Broward County, Florida and the Surveying Firm, upon final School Board approval, have the initial total fee increased and/or be extended for two (2) additional one-year periods with a limit of \$1,000,000 in additional fees per year of extension.

NOTICES TO ALL PROPOSERS

Cone of Silence and Lobbyist Activities

For Cone of Silence requirements and for Lobbyist Activity restrictions refer to Section 1, Introduction and General Information lines labeled Cone of Silence and Lobbyist Activities. Line numbers 1.10 and 1.11.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA Procurement and Warehousing Services Department 7720 W. Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323 Sunrise, Florida 33351-6704

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16 Page 1 of 16

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Attachments

Attachment C – Sample Professional Services Agreement (With attachments) Attachment 1: Project Schedule Attachment 2: Project Scope (to be issued when project assignment given) Attachment 3: Electronic Media Submittal Requirements Attachment 4: Project Consultant's Invoice Format, Reimbursable and Supplemental Services Format Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (to be issued when project assignment given) Project Schedule Project Schedule Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 9: IRS Fo	Attachment A - M/WBE Participation Attachment B - Design Professional	and Consultants Staffing
Attachment 2: Project Scope (to be issued when project assignment given) Attachment 3: Electronic Media Submittal Requirements Attachment 4: Project Consultant's Invoice Format, Reimbursable and Supplemental Services Format Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (to be issued when project assignment given) Professional Services Required Project Schedule Project Schedule Professional Fee Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment 12: Stope of Available Services	I	• • •
Attachment 3: Electronic Media Submittal Requirements Attachment 4: Project Consultant's Invoice Format, Reimbursable and Supplemental Services Format Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (to be issued when project assignment given) Project Schedule Professional Services Required Project Schedule Professional Fee Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment 12: Services		•
Attachment 4: Project Consultant's Invoice Format, Reimbursable and Supplemental Services Format Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (to be issued when project assignment given) Professional Services Required Project Schedule Professional Fee Project Schedule Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 - Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment 12: Scope of Available Services		
Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (to be issued when project assignment given) Professional Services Required Project Schedule Project Schedule Professional Fee Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document O0455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment D - Required Response Form Form Attachment E - Scope of Available Services Form		•
Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (to be issued when project assignment given) Professional Services Required Project Schedule Professional Fee Professional Fee Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment <u>D</u> - Required Response Form Form Attachment <u>E</u> - Scope of Available Services Form	Attachment 4:	
Professional Services Required Project Schedule Professional Fee Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment D - Required Response Form <u>Attachment E</u> - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 5:	•
Project Schedule Professional Fee Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form <u>Attachment D</u> - Required Response Form <u>Attachment E</u> - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 6:	Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form (to be issued when project assignment given)
Professional Fee Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form <u>Attachment D</u> - Required Response Form <u>Attachment E</u> - Scope of Available Services		Professional Services Required
Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment D - Required Response Form Attachment E - Scope of Available Services		Project Schedule
Attachment 8: Document 00455 – Background Screening Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment D - Required Response Form Attachment E Scope of Available Services		Professional Fee
Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment D - Required Response Form Attachment E - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 7:	Document Submittal Checklist
Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form Attachment D - Required Response Form Attachment E - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 8:	Document 00455 – Background Screening
Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form <u>Attachment D</u> - Required Response Form <u>Attachment E</u> - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 9:	IRS Form W-9
Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form <u>Attachment D</u> - Required Response Form <u>Attachment E</u> - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 10:	Truth in Negotiations Certificate
Attachment D - Required Response Form Attachment E - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 11:	ACH Payment Agreement Form
Attachment E - Scope of Available Services	Attachment 12:	Conflict of Interest Form
Attachment E - Scope of Available Services	Attachment D - Required Response	Form
Attachment <u>F</u> – Proposers Request for Information Form		

SECTION 1.0 - INTRODUCTION AND GENERAL INFORMATION

- 1.1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida (hereinafter referred to as "SBBC") desires to receive Qualifications for Design Services as described herein.
- 1.2 Questions and Interpretations: Any questions, requests for clarifications or interpretations regarding any portion of this RFQ during the Submittal preparation period (or reporting errors, inconsistencies, or ambiguities) shall be received no later than the date stated in Section 2.0 (which will not be less than ten (10) days prior to the deadline due date for submitting the completed RFQ response), and no questions or clarifications will be considered after this date. Respondents must submit Document 00220 Bidders Request For Information Form (Attachment F) for all RFI requests and all RFI requests must be typed or printed. Questions not submitted on Document 00220 will not be considered. RFI requests must be for a single RFQ, RFI requests for multiple RFQs may not be considered. Any questions which require a response which amends the RFQ document in any manner will be answered via Addendum by the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department and provided to all Proposers. Address questions or requests for clarifications in writing to:

Shari S. Francis Purchasing Agent III Procurement & Warehousing Services 7720 West Oakland Park Blvd - Suite 323 Sunrise, FL 33351 754-321-0533 Fax E-mail: <u>Shari.Francis@browardschools.com</u>

- 1.3 Any verbal or written information, which is obtained other than by information in this RFQ document or by Addenda, shall not be binding on SBBC.
- 1.4 Contract Term and Type:
 - a. Continuing Contract: The purpose of this RFQ is to establish a contract that starts on the date that the SBBC executes a contract agreement that will continue for three (3) continuous years. The term of the contract may, by mutual agreement between SBBC and the Awardee, be extended two (2) times for one (1) additional year each time, giving a total potential maximum contract term of (5) years.
 - b. A master agreement will be executed followed by task orders assigned under the master agreement.
 - c. Each task order will be a negotiated lump sum fee or a time spent, not to exceed fee to provide professional services.
 - d. The award of this continuing contract shall not guarantee or obligate the District to perform any Professional Services under the continuing contract.
- 1.5 **Proposal Format:** The RFQ's submittal shall follow the format and include the information as identified in Section 4.0 of this RFQ.
- 1.6 Evaluation and Award: All Proposals will be evaluated by the Selection Committee based upon the information submitted by Proposers in response to this RFQ and in accordance with the evaluation criteria established in Section 5.0. Based upon the evaluation of Proposals, the Committee will recommend a Proposer(s) to the Superintendent of Schools who may then recommend a Proposer(s) to the SBBC for award.
- 1.7 Irrevocability of Proposal: A Proposal may not be withdrawn before the expiration of 90 days after the date of the Proposal's opening.

1.8 <u>Proposal Package Requirements:</u>

- --- One complete, original hard-copy Proposal (clearly labeled as "original").
- --- One complete, original electronic version (clearly labeled as "original").
- --- Five (5) complete, electronic version copies (clearly labeled as "copy").
- --- Four (4) additional hard-copies (which must be identical to the original Proposal except they shall be labeled as "copy").
- Proposals shall be submitted in a sealed envelope (package, box, etc.) with the RFQ number and description clearly identified by label on the Package along with the Proposers Name.
- --- Any firm choosing to propose on multiple disciplines must provide separate proposal packages for each of the disciplines.
- 1.9 <u>Gratuities:</u> Proposers shall not provide any gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value to any official, employee, or agent of SBBC; including any School Board Member, Superintendent of Schools and any Evaluation Committee Members, for any reason during this entire Procurement Process.
- 1.10 Cone of Silence: Any proposer, or lobbyist for a proposer, is prohibited from having any communications (except as provided in this rule) concerning any solicitation for a competitive procurement with any School Board member, the Superintendent, any Evaluation Committee Member, or any other School District employee after the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department releases a solicitation to the General Public. All communications regarding this solicitation shall be directed to the designated Purchasing Agent unless so notified by the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department. This "Cone of Silence" period shall go into effect and shall remain in effect from the time of release of the solicitation until the contract is awarded by the School Board. Further, any vendor, its principals, or their lobbyists shall not offer campaign contributions to School Board Members or offer contributions to School Board Members for campaigns of other candidates for political office during the period in which the vendor is attempting to sell goods or services to the School Board. This period of limitation of offering campaign contributions shall commence at the time of the "cone of silence" period for any solicitation for a competitive procurement as described by School Board Policy 3320, Part II, Section GG as well as School Board Policy 1007, Section 5.4 Campaign Contribution Fundraising. Any vendor or lobbylst who violates this provision shall cause their Proposal (or that of their principal) to be considered non-responsive and therefore be ineligible for award. This prohibition does not apply to:
 - 1. Telephone calls to the Procurement & Warehousing Services staff to request copies of this RFQ, to confirm attendance, or request directions regarding an interview notification received;
 - 2. Delivery of the Respondent's Submittal;
 - 3. Discussion at the interview;
 - 4. Delivery of written questions about the RFQ; and/or Review of background/contract documents at the staff offices.
- 1.11 Lobbyist Activities: In accordance with SBBC Policy 1100B, as currently enacted or as amended from time to time, persons acting as lobbyists must state, at the beginning of their presentation, letter, telephone call, e-mail or facsimile transmission to School Board Members, Superintendent or Members of Senior Management, the group, association, organization or business interest she/he is representing.
 - 1.11.1 A lobbyist is defined as a person who, for immediate or subsequent compensation (e.g., monetary profit/personal gain), represents a public or private group, association, organization or business interest and engages in efforts to influence School Board Members on matters within their official jurisdiction.
 - 1.11.2 A lobbyist is not considered to be a person representing school allied groups (e.g., PTA, DAC, Band Booster Associations, etc.) nor a public official acting in her/his official capacity.
 - 1.11.3 Lobbyists shall annually (July 1) disclose in each instance and for each client prior to any lobbying activities, their identity and activities by completing the lobbyist statement form which can be obtained from official School Board

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16 Page 4 of 16

Records, School Board Member's Offices or the Superintendent's Office and will be recorded on SBBC's website, www.browardschools.com.

- 1.11.4 The lobbyist must disclose any direct business association with any current elected or appointed official or employee of SBBC or any immediate family member of such elected or appointed official or employee of SBBC.
- 1.11.5 Senior-level employees and/or School Board Members are prohibited from lobbying activities for two years after resignation or retirement or expiration of their term of office.
- 1.11.6 The Office of the Superintendent shall keep a current list of persons who have submitted the lobbyist statement form.
- 1.12 <u>Preparation Cost of Proposal:</u> Proposer is solely responsible for any and all costs associated with responding to this RFQ. SBBC will not reimburse any Proposer for any costs associated with the preparation and submittal of any Proposal, or for any travel and per diem costs that are incurred by any Proposer.
- 1.13 It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to assure it has received the entire Proposal and any and all Addendum.
- 1.14 It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to assure that its Proposal is time stamped in the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department on or before 2:00 p.m. EST on the date due.
- 1.15 No verbal or written information which is obtained other than by information in this document or by Addenda to this RFQ shall be binding on SBBC.
- 1.16 No submissions made after the Proposal opening, amending or supplementing the Proposal, will be considered.
- 1.17 <u>Certification Regarding Scrutinized Activities:</u> By submitting its bid or proposal, the bidder/proposer certifies that it is not participating in a boycott of Israel, it is not on the List of Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel; it is no on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan; it is not on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector; and that it is not engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

SECTION 2.0 CALENDAR

October 7, 2016	Issuance of RFQ #17-113C
October 26, 2016	Non-Mandatory Proposers' Conference 2 p.m. EST*.
October 28, 2016	Written questions due on or before 5:00 p.m. ET in the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department 7720 West Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323, Sunrise, Florida 33351-6704.
November 8, 2016	Proposals due on or before 2:00 p.m. ET in the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department. 7720 West Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323, Sunrise, Florida 33351-6704.
December 7, 2016**	Selection Committee reviews Qualifications and makes a recommendation for Selection in the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department 7720 West Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323 Sunrise, Florida 33351-6704 at 9:00 a.m.*
2-5 business days after Committee Review	Evaluation Committees Posting of Recommendations.
January 10, 2017	Tentative School Board Award Date.

*These are public meetings. SBBC prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender identity, gender expression, national origin, marital status, race, religion, sex or sexual orientation. Individuals who wish to file a discrimination and/or harassment complaint may call the Executive Director, Benefits & EEO Compliance at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.

Individuals with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) may call Equal Educational Opportunities (EEO) at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.

**The date of selection committee review is approximate. Proposers will be provided a Proposed Schedule after the bid opening, at least seven (7) days prior to the date of selection committee review. Proposers shall hold discussions with the QSEC at this public meeting to answer questions related to their submittal. Discussions shall be limited to information included in their Proposal submitted to SBBC. Details related to the Selection Committee meeting will be provided to the proposers when they are given notice of the meeting.

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16

SECTION 3.0 - RFQ CONDITIONS

- 3.1 <u>Evaluation Committees and Proposals:</u> State Statutes 119.071 and 286.0113 are adhered to by SBBC in the review and awarding of contracts.
- 3.2 <u>Public Record:</u> Proposer acknowledges that all information contained within their Proposal is part of the public domain as defined by the State of Florida Sunshine and Public Record Laws.
- 3.3 Governing Law: This RFQ, and any award(s) resulting from this RFQ, shall be interpreted and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Any protests arising from this RFQ shall be subject to Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes. Any disputes or controversies arising out of a contract awarded under this RFQ shall be submitted to the jurisdiction of the state courts of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida.
- 3.4 <u>Advertising</u>: In submitting an RFQ, Proposer agrees not to use the results therefrom as a part of any commercial advertising without prior written approval of SBBC.
- 3.5 <u>Billing Instructions and Payment:</u> All payments made to the Design Professionals shall be made by ACH (Automated Clearing House). Monthly invoices shall be submitted to the Project Manager for review and approval. Refer to the PSA for the specifics. The ACH Payment Agreement Form is an attachment to the PSA (PSA Attachment 11). This form shall be submitted at the time of the execution of the Contract.
- 3.6 <u>Contract Value</u>: No guarantee is given or implied as to the total dollar value or work as a result of this RFQ. SBBC is not obligated to place any order for services performed as a result of this award. Order placement will be based upon the needs and in the best interest of SBBC.
- 3.7 Conflict of Interest and Conflicting Employment or Contractual Relationship: Section 112.313 (3) and (7), Florida Statutes, sets forth restrictions on the ability of SBBC employees acting in a private capacity to rent, lease, or sell any realty, goods, or services to SBBC. It also places restrictions on SBBC employees concerning outside employment or contractual relationships with any business entity which is doing business with SBBC. Each Proposer is to disclose any employees it has who are also SBBC employees. This Conflict of Interest Form is an attachment to the PSA (PSA attachment 12). This executed document shall be submitted at the time of Contract Execution. Any employees identified by the Proposer, should obtain legal advice as to their obligations and restrictions under Section 112.313 (3) and (7), Florida Statutes.

3.8 Disputes:

- 3.8.1 In the event of a conflict between the documents, the order of priority of the documents shall be as follows:
 - 1. The Agreement resulting from the award of this RFQ (if applicable); then
 - 2. Addenda released for this RFQ, with the latest Addendum taking precedence; then
 - 3. the RFQ Documents; then
 - 4. Awardee's Proposal,
- 3.8.2 In case of any other doubt or difference of opinion, the decision of SBBC shall be put in writing and shall be final and binding on both parties.
- Insurance: Refer to PSA Agreement Part 5 Article 3 for Design Professional Insurance Requirements (RFQ Attachment C).
- 3.10 <u>Public Entity Crimes:</u> Section 287.133(2)(a), Florida Statutes, as currently enacted or as amended from time to time, states that a person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a Proposal on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a Proposal on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not submit a Proposal on leases of real property to a public entity, may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16
provided in Section 287.017 for CATEGORY TWO [currently \$25,000] for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

3.12 <u>M/WBE:</u>

3.12.1 M/WBE Goals: The Design Professional shall comply with the Owner's current M/WBE policies and procedures. The Design Professional's M/WBE goal for this Contract is 25 percent.

3.12.2 Information: SBBC encourages each Proposer to make every reasonable effort to include M/WBE participation on any contract award under this RFQ. An M/WBE is defined by SBBC as any legal entity, other than a joint venture, which is organized to engage in commercial transactions and which is at least 51% owned and controlled by a minority or women and has been Certified by SBBC as an approved M/WBE.

- 3.12.2.1 Any participation by firms not certified by SBBC at the time of proposal will not count in the RFQ evaluation process for the award of points in the Design Professional M/WBE Participation Category. However, firms that are certified by SBBC after the proposal's tentative award, will count towards the Design Professional's M/WBE project goal attainment. Design Professional to contact SDOP to provide the updated information.
- 3.12.2.2 For information on M/WBE Certification, or to obtain information on locating certified M/WBE's, contact SBBC's Supplier Diversity and Outreach Programs at 754-321-0550 or http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/supply/sdop/mwbe.html.
- 3.13 Protesting of RFQ Conditions/Specifications: Any person desiring to protest the conditions/specifications in this RFQ, or any Addenda subsequently released thereto, shall file a notice of intent to protest, in writing to the Director of Procurement and Warehousing Services Department. The formal written protest shall be filed within ten calendar days after the date the notice of protest was filed. Saturdays, Sundays, state holidays or days during which the school district administration is closed shall be excluded in the computation of the ten (10) calendar days. The formal written protest must be received on or before 5:00 p.m. EST of the 10th Calendar Day at the office of the Director of Procurement and Warehousing Services Department. Refer to Section 120.57(3)(b), Florida Statutes, as currently enacted or as amended from time to time, for the requirements for the written protest.

3.13.1 Failure to file a notice of protest or to file a formal written protest within the time prescribed by Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, or a failure to post the bond or other security required by SBBC Policy 3320, Part VIII, within the time allowed for filing a bond, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings.

- 3.14 Posting of RFQ Recommendations: RFQ Recommendations will be posted in the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department and on <u>www.demandstar.com</u> as noted on the Calendar (Section 2.0) or as modified by an addendum or by posting in the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department and at <u>www.demandstar.com</u> (under the document section for this RFQ). The Recommendations will remain posted for 72 hours. It is the responsibility of each Proposer to ascertain any revised date for the posting of RFQ Recommendations.
- 3.15 **Protest of Intended Decision:** Any person desiring to protest the Recommended Decision shall file a notice of protest, in writing, within 72 hours after the posting of the RFQ Recommendation and shall file a formal written protest within ten calendar days after the date the notice of protest was filed. The formal written protest must be received on or before 5:00 p.m. EST of the tenth (10) calendar day. Saturdays, Sundays, state holidays and days during which the school district administration is closed shall be excluded in the computation of the 72 hours.

3.15.1 Failure to file a notice of protest or to file a formal written protest within the time prescribed by Section 120.57(3), Florida Statutes, or a failure to post the bond or other security required by Policy 3320, Part VIII, within the time allowed for filing a bond, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings.

3.15.2 Notices of protests, formal written protests, and the bonds required by Policy 3320, shall be filed at the office of the Director of Procurement and Warehousing Services, 7720 West Oakland Park Boulevard, Suite 323, Sunrise, Florida 33351 Fax filing will not be acceptable for the filing of bonds.

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16

- 3.16 Use of Other Contracts: SBBC reserves the right to utilize any other SBBC contract, any State of Florida Contract, any contract awarded by any other city or county governmental agencies, other school boards, other community college/state university system cooperative agreements, in lieu of any offer received or award made as a result of this RFQ if it is in SBBC's best interest to do so. SBBC also reserves the right to waive irregularities or technicalities in any Proposal received if such action is in the best interest of SBBC. However, such a waiver shall in no way modify the RFQ requirements or excuse the Proposer from full compliance with the RFQ specifications and other contract requirements if the Proposer is awarded a contract.
- 3.17 <u>Assignment:</u> Neither party to the Agreement shall sell, assign or sublet the same without the written consent of the other; nor shall a Design Professional assign any monies due or to become due to the Design Professional, or by reason of the Contract without the previous written consent of the Owner and as approved by the Attorney for the Owner.
- 3.18 <u>Cancellation:</u> In the event any of the provisions of this RFQ are violated by the Awardee, the Director of Procurement and Warehousing Services shall give written notice to the Awardee stating the violations and unless they are corrected within five days, a recommendation will be made to SBBC for cancellation.

3.19 SBBC Photo Identification Badge:

Background Screening: Awardee agrees to comply with all the requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Awardee and all its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or (3) have access or control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. Personnel shall include employees, representatives, agents or sub-contractors performing duties under the contract to SBBC and who meet any or all of the three requirements identified above. Awardee will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required under Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Awardee and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Awardee to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this RFQ entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement. Awardee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees of any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting in Awardee's failure to comply with the requirements of this section or Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes.

3.19.1 SBBC issued identification badges must be worn at all times when on SBBC property and must be worn where they are visible and easily readable.

- 3.19.2 Badge Vendor Information shall be provided to the Design Professional at the time of Award.
- 3.20 <u>Withdrawal of RFQ</u>: In the best interest of SBBC, SBBC reserves the right to withdraw this RFQ at any time prior to the time and date specified for the Proposal opening.
- 3.21 <u>Severability:</u> In case of any one or more of the provisions contained in this RFQ shall be for any reason be held to be invalid, illegal, unlawful, unenforceable or void in any respect, the invalidity, illegality, unenforceability or unlawful or void nature of that provision shall not affect any other provision and this provision shall be considered as if such invalid, unlawful, unenforceable or void provision had never been included herein.
- 3.22 It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to assure it has received the entire Proposal and any and all Addendum.
- 3.23 It is the sole responsibility of the Proposer to assure that its Proposal is time stamped in the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department on or before the due time on the date due. No submissions made after the Proposal opening, amending or supplementing the Proposal, shall be considered.
- 3.24 No verbal or written information which is obtained other than by information in this document or by Addenda to this RFQ shall be binding on SBBC.
- 3.25 Acceptance and Rejection of Proposals:

```
3.25.1 Acceptance: All Proposals properly completed and submitted will be evaluated in accordance with Section 5.0.
```

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16 Page 9 of 16

- 3.25.2 **Rejection:** A Proposal may be rejected if it does not conform to the rules or the requirements contained in this RFQ. Examples for rejection include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - 3.25.2.1 The Proposal is time-stamped at the Procurement and Warehousing Services Department after the deadline specified in the RFQ.
 - 3.25.2.2 Proposers found legally guilty of collusion among Proposers, shall be rejected, and the participants to such shall be barred from future procurement opportunities until such time as they may be reinstated.
 - 3.25.2.3 The Proposal shows non-compliance with applicable laws; or contains any unauthorized additions or deletions; is a conditional Proposal; is an incomplete Proposal; or contains irregularities of any kind.
 - 3.26.2.4 The Proposer adds provisions reserving the right to accept or reject an award or to enter into a contract pursuant to an award or adds provisions contrary to those in the RFQ.

3.25.3 SBBC also reserves the right to waive irregularities or technicalities in any Proposal received if such action is in the best interest of SBBC. However, such a waiver shall in no way modify the RFQ requirements or excuse the Proposer from full compliance with the RFQ specifications and other contract requirements if the Proposer is awarded the contract.

3.26 Maintenance of Records:

3.26.1 Design Professional shall keep all records and supporting documentation which concern or reflect its Services hereunder. The records and documentation shall be retained by the Design Professional for a period of five (5) years from the completion date of the project associated with the Authorization to Proceed; or such period of time as required by law. The Owner, or any duly authorized agents or representatives of the Owner, shall have the right to inspect and copy all such records and documentation as often as they deem necessary during the period of this Agreement and during the period noted above in which the records are to be retained. Such activity shall be conducted at the reasonable convenience of the Design Professional.

- 3.27 Liability: Refer to Attachment C Sample Professional Services Agreement (PSA), Part 5 Article 2 Liability Clause.
- 3.28 <u>SBBC Information Security Guidelines:</u> It is the responsibility of the Design/Builder to read and adhere to the SBBC Information Security Guidelines when using any device connected to the SBBC's network. Following the conclusion of the contract term, all of SBBC's confidential information must be removed from the Design/Builder's equipment and all access privileges must be revoked. Final payment will be withheld until the Design/Builder has confirmed, in writing, that all SBBC's confidential information has been purged from any and all electronic technology devices that were used during this contract and were connected to the SBBC's network.

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16

SECTION 4.0 - REQUIRED QUALIFICATIONS FORMAT AND RESPONSE INFORMATION

- 4.1 The SBBC's Procurement and Warehousing Services Department shall determine whether each Proposer has Addressed and provided all RFQ submittal requirements. SBBC's Procurement and Warehousing Department shall identify the status of completion for each Proposer's proposal on a spreadsheet for the Evaluation Committee's use.
- 4.2 It is required that Proposals be organized in the manner specified below and with all the information as identified.

4.2.1 <u>Title Page:</u>

- Line 1 Include RFQ number and name;
- Line 2. The RFQ Due Date;
- Line 3 The name of the Proposer (company/firm name);
- Line 4 Company/firm address;
- Line 5 and telephone number.

4.2.2 Section A – General

NOTE: Failure to strictly comply with this section may result in a recommendation to reject the proposal.

- <u>Section A1</u> <u>Table of Contents:</u> Include a clear identification of the material by scoring sections, section number and by page number.
- <u>Section A2</u> <u>Letter of Responsibility:</u> Include the names of the persons who will be authorized to make decisions for the Proposer for this proposal, and for the Design efforts that may result from this RFQ. Provide titles, work addresses, telephone numbers and e-mail addresses. Letter to be on Company Letterhead and signed by an Officer of the Company.

Section A3 - Signed Addenda: Include signed and dated copies of all addenda to verify and acknowledge receipt.

4.2.3 Section B – Required Forms, Licenses, certificates, History

NOTE: Failure to strictly comply with this section may result in a recommendation to reject the proposal.

Section B1 - Required Response Form

Modifications or alterations to this form shall not be accepted and will cause the Proposal to be rejected and not reviewed. The Required Response Form, shall be the only acceptable form. The Required Response Form shall be completed in ink or typewritten. The signed "original" Required Response Form shall be submitted within the Proposal Package labeled as the "original." Refer to Attachment D.

JOINT VENTURES

Required Response Form for Joint Venture Proposals shall follow the following requirements. In the event multiple Proposers submit a joint Proposal in response to the RFQ, a single Proposer shall be identified as the Prime Proposer. If offering a joint Proposal, Prime Proposer must include the name and address of all parties of the joint Proposal. Prime Proposer shall provide all bonding and insurance requirements, execute any Contract, complete the Required Response Form shown herein, and have overall and complete accountability to resolve any dispute arising within this contract. Only a single contract with one Proposer shall be acceptable. Prime Proposer responsibilities shall include, but not be limited to, performing of overall contract administration, preside over other Proposers participating or present at SBBC meetings, oversee preparation of reports and presentations, and file any notice of protest and final protest as described herein. Prime Proposer shall also prepare and present a consolidated invoice(s) for services performed. SBBC shall issue only one check for each consolidated invoice to the Prime Proposer for services performed. Prime Proposer shall remain responsible for performing services associated with response to this RFQ.

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16 Page 11 of 16

Section B2 Licenses and Registrations (Florida)

- 3.1 All appropriate licenses shall be provided on a list
- 3.2 Firms Architectural License/Registration/Certificate of Authorization if applicable
- 3.3 Architectural License/Registration for _____
- 3.4 Architectural License/Registration for_____
- 3.5 Mechanical License/Registration for_____
- 3.6 Electrical License/Registration for
- 3.7 Structural License/Registration for
- 3.8 M/WBE Certificate (if applicable) for proposer firm
- 3.9 continue as appropriate

Section B3 Proposer History

Provide a listing of current and former business entities that the Proposer is operating under and has operated under in the past. Letter to be on Company Letterhead and signed by an officer of the Company.

Section B4 Litigation

Provide a statement of any litigation or regulatory action that has been filed or is pending against your firm(s) in the last three years. If an action has been filed, state and describe the litigation or regulatory action filed, and identify the court or agency before which the action was instituted, the applicable case or file number, and the status or disposition for such reported action. If no litigation or regulatory action has been filed against your firm(s), provide a statement to that effect. For joint venture or team Proposers, submit the requested information for each member of the joint venture or team.

NOTE: Sections C and D below shall be evaluated and scored by QSEC

4.2.4 Section C - Experience and Qualifications (55 maximum points)

Section C1 Executive Summary / Approach / Current Work Load (25 maximum points)

Executive Summary – (7 maximum points) Submit a brief abstract stating the Proposer's understanding of the nature and scope of the services to be provided and capability to comply with all terms and conditions of RFQ (3 page maximum).

Approach – (9 maximum points) Discuss your approach for delivering this project. Discuss your firm's willingness and ability to meet the project's schedule and budget. Discuss the office location from which this work will be conducted and its distance from the project site. (5 page maximum).

Current Work Load Overall – (5 maximum points) Demonstrate your ability to perform this work given your current project workload. Provide a list of current projects for all clients including SBBC, Include all projects currently under contract and all projects where your firm has been selected but is not yet under contract. Include project construction value. (2 page maximum).

Current Work Load with SBBC - (4 maximum points) Provide a list of all projects with total fees for all active contracts with SBBC. Provide a list of all projects and total fees for all projects where your firm has been selected by SBBC but is not yet under contract. (2 page maximum). (Proposer with the most total fees on current projects will be awarded zero (0) points. Other proposers will be awarded up to 3 points based on current fees, with more points being awarded to proposers with the least amount of current fees with SBBC).

Section C2 Firm Experience and Qualifications (15 maximum points)

Provide a statement of your firm's qualifications to perform the services requested under this RFQ (3 page maximum).

Section C3 Relevant Projects / References (15 maximum points)

Provide a list and description of relevant projects (maximum of 5) successfully completed by your firm in the most recent five (5) years. For each project, include:

- Name and location of project
- Scope of work that was performed by your firm
- Summary of the project scope including construction delivery method
- Name, title and contact information for client
- Initial and final construction cost (where not deemed confidential)
- Change order percentage by type, including errors and omissions
- Planned design schedule vs actual design schedule

Include 3 references with contact information, preferably from one of the projects requested above (5 pages maximum for Section C3).

4.2.5 Section D – Team Composition: (35 maximum points)

Section D1 Team Structure (10 maximum points)

Describe the structure of your team, including all subconsultants. Indicate which professional design services the prime firm offers with in house staff, and indicate which professional design services the firm may opt to utilize consultants. Refer to Attachment E. (3 pages maximum. Attachment E does <u>not</u> count toward page limits)

Section D2 Key Personnel (25 maximum points)

Design Professional's Staff (15 maximum points)

Provide the names of the Design Professionals staff intended for use on SBBC Projects, including applicable professional qualifications. Identify the Principal to be in charge of SBBC Projects. Identify other key personnel as appropriate, including the Senior Architect and primary production Architect. Not all staff personnel need to be listed. It is understood that staffing requirements will vary from project to project based on project scope and required design time frame. Refer to Attachment B. Resumes for key personnel should be provided.

Consultants' Staffing (10 maximum points)

For each Consultant, provide the names of the Consultants Staff intended for use on SBBC Projects, including professional qualifications. Identify the Principal to be in charge of SBBC Projects. Identify a Senior Engineer for each of the disciplines that each Consultant performs. Refer to Attachment B. Resumes for key personnel should be provided.

NOTE: Section E below shall be evaluated and scored by District Staff (not QSEC)

4.2.6 Section <u>E - Supplier Diversity and Outreach Program</u> (10 maximum points)

Section E1 M/WBE Firms for Intended Use (10 maximum points)

Identify the M/WBE firm or firms who may be working with you on this engagement utilizing Attachment A, M/WBE Participation.

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16 Page 14 of 16

SECTION 5.0 - EVALUATION OF QUALIFICATIONS

5.1 Evaluation of Qualifications - The Evaluation Committee shall evaluate all Qualified Proposals by the following Categories.

SECTION		POSSIBLE POINTS
Section A – General		Pass/Fail
Section B – Required Forms		Pass/Fail
Section C - Experience and Qualifications Section C 1 - Executive Summary / Approach / Curre Section C 2 – Firm Experience and Qualifications Section C 3 - Relevant Projects / References	nt Work Load	0 to 25 0 to 15 0 to 15
Section D - Team Composition Section D 1 - Team Structure Section D 2 - Key Personnel		0 to 10 0 to 25
Section E - Supplier Diversity & Outreach Program Section E 1 - M/WBE Participation	<u>n</u>	0 to 10
	TOTAL POSSIBLE POINTS	100

5.1.1 Scoring of M/WBE Participation - Section E1

NOTE: Section E below shall be evaluated and scored by District Staff (not QSEC)

The SBBC shall award a maximum of ten (10) points for M/WBE Participation as listed in the Evaluation Point Tables below. At the time the proposal is submitted, the proposer shall identify all M/WBE firms (if any) which will be utilized by using the M/WBE Participation Form and Statement of Intent Form. The Letter of Intent submitted with the proposal reflects the intent of the parties (prime and sub-consultant) to establish a business relationship as well as the type of work and percentage of work that the sub-consultant will perform.

	5 Points For M/WBE Designer	
M/WBE Designer	5.0 Points	
5 Po	ints For M/WBE Sub-Consultant Participation	
≥ 25%	5.0 Points	
≥ 20%	4.0 Points	
≥ 15%	3.0 Points	
≥ 10%	2.0 Points	
≥ 5%	1.0 Points	

NOTE: Points for Category E shall be provided by the M/WBE Coordinator for use by QSEC members.

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16 5.2 After proposals have been received, Staff shall determine if a Short List procedure is necessary. A Short List procedure will be considered if the number of proposals received is greater than 15 proposals.

5.2.1 In the event of a Short List procedure, QSEC shall convene at the scheduled time without discussions held with the Proposers. QSEC shall score the submitted qualification statements without discussions from the proposers. QSEC will rank the proposers and provide a Short List which is 1.5 times the number of selections for multiple firm selections.

5.2.2 Short List Scheduling: The initial QSEC to determine Short List shall be conducted at the scheduled time for QSEC to convene per Section 2.0. The Evaluation Committee Posting of Recommendations will serve as the notification of Short Listed Firms. At this time a QSEC date and time shall be provided for the Short Listed Proposers to participate in a qualification selection.

- 5.3 Qualification Selection Evaluation Committee ("QSEC") members shall rank proposers based on the total number of points received from QSEC committee member scoring, The proposer receiving the most total points received from all QSEC members shall be considered to be the most qualified proposer ("Firm 1"). All remaining proposers shall be ranked in order based on total points received from all QSEC members (Firm 2, Firm 3, Firm 4, and etc.). The top five (5) firms with the most points received from QSEC committee member scoring will be recommended for award.
 - 5.3.1 The first tie-breaker between identically scored proposers shall be the total number of times the applicable proposers are ranked as the most qualified (Firm 1) by individual QSEC committee members.
 - 5.3.2 The second tie-breaker between identically scored proposers shall be the total number of times the applicable proposers are ranked as the second most qualified ("Firm 2") by individual QSEC committee members.
 - 5.3.3 The third tie-breaker between identically scored proposers shall be the total number of times the applicable proposers are ranked as the **third most qualified ("Firm 3")** by individual QSEC committee members.
 - 5.3.4 The fourth tie-breaker shall be a coin flip, to be called in the air, by the <u>tied</u> proposer who held its discussions with QSEC first.
- 5.4 Failure strictly comply with the submittal requirements of sections A and B may result in a recommendation to reject the proposal.
- 5.5 After successful negotiations with the applicable proposer, an Agreement shall be submitted to the Board for approval and award of a Design contract.
- 5.6 <u>Award:</u> The Agreement resulting from these negotiations shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida, and shall have venue established in the 17th Court of Broward County, Florida or the United States Court of the Southern District of Florida.

END OF RFQ

RFQ - 17-113C Design Services Version Date: 08/25/16 PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

M/WBE PARTICIPATION

Complete the following information on the proposed M/WBE participation on this contract.

Proposer's Company Name: _____

M/WBE Firm Information	Scope and/or Nature of Work to be Performed by the M/WBE	% of M/WBE Participation
Firm Name:		
Contact Person:		
Address:	- [[
Telephone No.:		
Facsimile No.:		
M/WBE Certification No.:	ma l	
Certifying Agency Name:	_	
Address:	l l	
Telephone No.:		
Firm Name:	_	
Contact Person:		
Address:	-	
Telephone No.:		l l
Facsimile No.:		
M/WBE Certification No.:	_	
Certifying Agency Name:		
Address:		
Telephone No.:		
Firm Name:	_	
Contact Person:		
Address:	-	
Telephone No.:		
Facsimile No.:		
M/WBE Certification No.:		
Certifying Agency Name:		
Address:	-	
Telephone No.:		ļ

Note: percentage amount needs to be provided to receive points.

School Board of Broward County MWBE Forms Revised 12/1/15 PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Attachment B

Design and Professional Consulting Staff

Prime Firm:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
			······································		

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
	<u></u>	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

ATTACHMENT C

Professional Services Agreement

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

AND

PROJECT CONSULTANT

FOR

ARCHITECTURAL/ENGINEERING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT, made this, _____ day of ______ in the year ______, by and between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, hereinafter called the "Owner", and:

hereafter called the "Project Consultant" for the following project:

Facility:

Site No.:

Project Name:

Project No:

Fixed Limit Of Construction Cost (FLCC): \$_

The Owner and Project Consultant agree as follows:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS

- ARTICLE 2 PROJECT CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 3 SUB-CONSULTANTS
- ARTICLE 4 THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES
- ARTICLE 5 BASIS OF COMPENSATION
- ARTICLE 6 PAYMENTS TO THE PROJECT CONSULTANT
- ARTICLE 7 REUSE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS
- ARTICLE 8 INDEMNIFICATION
- ARTICLE 9 INSURANCE
- ARTICLE 10 GENERAL PROVISIONS

ARTICLE 11 INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS INTO AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment I: Project Schedule Attachment 2: Project Scope

- Attachment 3: Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
- Attachment 4: Project Consultant's Invoice Format, Reimbursable and Supplemental Services Format

Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members

Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form

Professional Services Required - page 1 of 3

- Project Schedule page 2 of 3
- Professional Fee page 3 of 3
- Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist

Attachment 8: Document 00455 - Background Screening

Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9

Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate

Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form

Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form

ARTICLE 1 DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 The Office of Facilities & Construction ("Office" or "OFC"): The Owner's organizational entity which acts as liaison between the Consultant and Owner and provides day to day management and other professional services on the Owner's behalf. Various members of the Office of Facilities and Construction, acting as representatives of the Owner, will meet with the Project Consultant at periodic intervals throughout the preparation of the Contract Documents to assess the progress of the Work in accordance with approved schedules. Office personnel will also examine documents submitted by the Project Consultant, including invoices, and will promptly render decisions and/or recommendations pertaining thereto to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of the Project Consultant's work. The Project Manager shall be principally responsible for direct communication to the Project Consultant and the Contractor.
- 1.2 The Chief Facilities & Construction Officer, Office of Facilities & Construction An employee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who has the authority and responsibility for oversight and management of the specific project for the Owner. Referred to hereinafter as the Chief Facilities & Construction Officer.
- 1.3 Authorization to Proceed: A fully executed and approved authorization in the form of Attachment 6 to this Agreement, Authorization to Proceed ("ATP") accompanied by an executed purchase order document issued by the Owner to the Project Consultant, authorizing the performance of specific professional services, authorizing commencement of a Phase as defined in Article 2.1 through Article 2.8, and stating the time for completion and the amount of fee authorized for such services.
- 1.4 **Basic Services**: Those architectural, engineering and other professional design services defined in Article 2.1 through Article 2.8.
- 1.5 **Supplemental Services:** Those architectural, engineering and other professional design services defined in Article 2.9.
- 1.6 **Project Consultant:** The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, of professional architects, engineers or other design professionals properly registered and licensed in Florida, who has entered into a contract with the Owner to provide professional services for development of

the design and contract documents for the Work of this Project and provide construction contract administration and warranty services as described in the Project Manual and under this Agreement.

- 1.7 **Project Scope:** The activities necessary to respond to the Owner's requirements for the Project, including but not limited to the full or partial range of design, bidding and construction support services required to meet the Owner's educational program, construction standards, project construction support requirements, Project Budget and Project Schedule.
- 1.8 **Project Budget:** The sum, established by the Owner, as available for the entire Project, including but not limited to the construction budget (Fixed Limit of Construction Cost ("FLCC")), land costs, costs of furniture, fixtures and equipment (FF&E), financing costs, compensation for all professional services, costs of Owner-furnished goods and services, contingency allowances and other similar established or estimated costs.
- 1.9 **Project Schedule:** The Owner's requirements for the progress of design and construction activities associated with the Project characterized by milestones signifying the required completion dates for design phases, construction progress, and other significant project events culminating with the completion of the project, issuance of warranties, Owner's occupancy and use of the new or improved facilities.
- 1.10 The Contract Documents: The Contract Documents as used herein refer to the Agreement Form, Addenda, Supplementary Conditions, General Conditions, Documents contained in the Project Manual, the Owner's Division 0 and Division 1 documents, Drawings, Specifications, Education Specifications, all modifications thereto, issued before and after execution of the Contract and all Exhibits attached thereto used by the Owner to establish a construction contract with the Contractor. These Contract Documents, and their requirements for the Project Consultant are incorporated by reference into this Agreement.
- 1.11 **Contractor:** The individual, partnership, corporation, association, joint venture, or any combination thereof, who has entered into a contract with the Owner for construction of schools, administrative and support buildings, or various other types of facilities and incidents thereto.
- 1.12 **Program Manager:** An entity hired by the School Board of Broward County to execute the delivery of the projects and act as the Owner's Representative.
- 1.13 **Project Manager:** An employee or designated representative of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who is assigned by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer to manage the Project as a direct representative of the Owner.
- 1.14 **The Project:** The design of new construction, remodeling and/or renovation, and all services and incidents thereto, comprising a structure, structures, facility or facilities as contemplated and budgeted by the Owner.
- 1.15 **Sub-Consultant:** A person or organization of professional architects, engineers or other design professionals, registered and licensed in Florida, who has entered into an Agreement with the Project Consultant to provide professional services for the project.
- 1.16 **Superintendent Of Schools:** The duly appointed executive officer of the Owner authorized to act by and through The School Board of Broward County, Florida. Referred to hereinafter as the Superintendent.

- 1.17 **Fixed Limit of Construction Cost:** The Fixed Limit of Construction Cost, referred to hereinafter as the FLCC, is the total dollar value of the sum of the project's anticipated base bid (the project's essential scope) including design contingency.
- 1.18 **Building Code Inspector and Plans Examiners (BCI):** Employees of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, and others designated by the Chief Building Official, who are certified by Florida Statutes 468, 633 and 553 a BCI by the Florida Department of Education to provide plan review, inspections for code compliance and report non-compliant work to the appropriate party.
- 1.19 Value Engineering: Value Engineering (VE) is the creative, organized process of analysis of a project as to cost and/or performance with a focus on analysis of the proposed facility (and its systems, assemblies or components) and the elimination or modification of those features which add cost without contributing to that facility's required function or design value.
- 1.20 **Constructability:** Constructability is the creative, organized process of reviewing a project's drawings, specifications and other project documentation with a goal of eliminating design, detailing, and specification problems which might render the construction contract documents unbuildable or requiring extensive Addenda or Change Orders to make them buildable.
- 1.21 **The Project Team-** The Owner, Program Manager, and the Project Consultant, collectively the "Project Team", shall work jointly during the design and through the completion of the warranty phase and shall be available thereafter should additional services be required.
- 1.22 Substantial Completion: The term Substantial Completion as used herein, shall mean that point at which the Work, or a designated portion thereof, is at a level of completion in substantial compliance with the Contract Documents such that the Owner or its designee can enjoy use or occupancy and can use or operate it in all respects for its intended purpose. In the event the Work includes more than one Phase, the Owner, at its discretion, may set Substantial Completion dates for each Phase and may impose provisions for liquidated damages for each Phase.
- 1.23 Chief Building Official, Inspections and Code Compliance: ("CBO") An employee of The School Board of Broward County, Florida, who has the responsibility for oversight and management of the Building Department, and has the authority and responsibility for issuing Building Permits.
- 1.24 Code: The term Code means and refs to all applicable codes, laws and regulations of each governmental entity, as may be amended from time to time, in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement, including all codes and standards referenced therein, including, but not limited to:, the Fifth Edition of the 2014 Florida Building Code (the "FBC"); the Fifth Edition of the Florida Fire Prevention Code, Chapter 1013, Florida Statutes (2015)Florida State Board of Education Regulations ("SREF"), Chapter 6A-2.0111 (Educational Facilities), the 1999 State Requirements for Educational Facilities (2014)Florida Department of Education's State Requirements for Educational Facilities ("SREF")adopted pursuant to Rule 6A-2.0111, Florida Administrative Code, as may be amended from time to time, to the extent such requirements are not in conflict with Section 235.211, Florida Statutes 1995, Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA), in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement, and its referenced codes and standards; Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) (Broward Sheriff's Office), and all guidelines and regulations of the Owner (provided same are not less stringent than applicable codes) with the Owner serving as the interpreter of the intent and meaning of SREF or any other applicable code

ARTICLE 2 PROJECT CONSULTANT SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

2.1 Basic Services

- 2.1.1 The Project Consultant agrees to:
 - .1 Provide complete professional architectural, engineering and/or other professional design services set forth in the six Phases enumerated hereinafter and all necessary personnel, equipment and materials to perform such services;
 - .2 Complete those design services in accordance with the Project Schedule (Attachment 1 to this Agreement).
 - .3 Collaborate in the Owner's programs of Value Engineering at the end of Phases I and II (Schematic Design and Design Development), Constructability Reviews at the end of Phase III (Construction Documents), Statement of Probable Construction Cost at end of each phase, SIT Award Application and other additional basic services as provided in Article 2.1 through Article 2.8.
- 2.1.2 Standard Of Care: The Owner's engagement of the Project Consultant is based upon the Project Consultant's representations to the Owner that:
 - .1 It is an organization of experienced design professionals, registered and licensed to do business in Florida;
 - .2 It is qualified, willing and able to perform architect and engineer of record services for the Project; and that
 - .3 It has the past experience and ability to provide design and engineering services for projects of similar size and scope which will meet the Owner's objectives and requirements.
- 2.1.3 As to all services provided pursuant to this Agreement, the Project Consultant shall furnish services by experienced personnel and under the supervision of experienced professionals licensed in Florida, and shall exercise a degree of care and diligence in the performance of these services in accordance with the customary professional standards currently practiced by firms in Florida and in compliance with any and all applicable codes, laws, ordinances, etc. The Project Consultant shall utilize the same personnel over the course of the Work and shall, if requested by the Owner, replace personnel whom the Owner has found to be incompetent or to whom the Owner otherwise reasonably objects.
- 2.1.4 As to any and all drawings, plans, specifications or other contract documents or materials provided or prepared by Project Consultant or its Sub-Consultants, the Project Consultant agrees same:
 - .1 Are sufficiently complete, accurate, and adequate for bidding, negotiating and constructing the Project and are consistent with the Owner's requirements and Owner approved Project Budget and Project Schedule;
 - .2 Meet the Owner's aesthetic, functional and operational objectives;

- .3 Are sufficiently fit and proper for the purposes intended;
- .4 Comply with all applicable laws, statutes, rules and regulations, building codes and Owner's guidelines or regulations, which apply to and govern the Project, and
- .5 Will, if constructed in accordance with the Project Consultant's Design, result in a complete and properly functioning facility. Any defective drawings, specifications or other document furnished by Project Consultant shall be promptly corrected by the Project Consultant at no cost to Owner, without limitations to other remedies or rights of Owner. Owner's approval, acceptance or use of or payment for all or any part of Project Consultant's services hereunder or of the project itself shall in no way alter the Project Consultant's obligations or Owner's rights hereunder.
- .6 Further, any approval of drawings or construction documents by Owner and/or other governmental entities having jurisdiction which do not expressly comment and/or interpret a building code requirement shall not relieve the Project Consultant from its obligations to furnish design services pursuant to the applicable building codes nor be the basis for a waiver defense should Owner accept and/or approve any drawings and/or contract documents wherein an error or omission is not discovered during the design process.
- 2.1.5 All professional design services and associated products or instruments of those services provided by the Project Consultant shall:
 - .1 Be in accordance with all applicable codes, laws and regulations of each governmental entity, as may be amended from time to time, in effect at the time of execution of this Agreement, including all codes and standards referenced therein, including, but not limited to: the Fifth Edition of the 2014 Florida Building Code (the "FBC"), the Fifth Edition of the Florida Fire Prevention Code, Chapter 1013, Florida Statutes (2015), the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (2014) ("SREF"), Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) (Broward Sheriff's Office), and all guidelines and regulations of the Owner (provided same are not less stringent than applicable codes) with the Owner serving as the interpreter of the intent and meaning of SREF or any other applicable code (all of the above-referenced codes, laws, regulations and standards referenced therein are herein collectively referred to as "Code");
 - .2 Be provided for the benefit of the Owner and not for the benefit of any other party; and
 - .3 Include all of the design services normally required for a project of this type as listed in the Project Scope (Attachment 2 to this Agreement).
 - .4 Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, any substantially affected person may appeal any building code dispute or interpretation of the Chief Building Official of the School Board of Broward County, Florida to the Florida Building Commission as set forth in section 1013.37, Florida Statutes and the FBC, as amended.
- 2.1.6 The Project Manager shall schedule and conduct a bi-weekly project review meeting with representatives of the Project Consultant throughout Phases I through IV of the Project. At each of these meetings, the Project Consultant and Owner shall review the Project's budget, schedule, and scope along with the Project Consultant's development and progress to date on the respective phases of the Project and any special problems related to the continuing progress of the project. The Project Consultant shall attend weekly

meetings during Phase V (Construction) as required elsewhere in this Agreement. For each project review meeting, and as may be otherwise appropriate during any project phase, the Project Consultant shall provide progress sketches and other documents sufficient to illustrate progress and the issues at hand for the Owner's review, which will be made so as to cause no delay to the Project Schedule.

- 2.1.7 The Project Consultant's services shall conform to Owner's specifications, including but not limited to, Owner's Design and Materials Standards Manuals, Design Criteria, Educational Specifications, Document Submittal Checklist for Plan Review and Owner's Forms for capital projects, provided, however, that in the event of conflict, the provisions of this Agreement shall govern.
 - .1 Non-Conforming Work: If the Owner (by way of BCI's or other Owner personnel or consultant) observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defective Work in a project, or other non-conformance with the Contract Documents during the construction phases, the Owner or Program Manager shall give prompt notice thereof to the Project Consultant. However, whether the Owner observes a defect or not, it is the Project Consultant's duty and responsibility to determine whether said Work is defective, faulty, or not in compliance with the Contract Documents. If the Project Consultant determines that the Work is defective, faulty or not in conformance with the Contract Documents, the Project Consultant shall advise the Owner in writing and make recommendations to the Owner concerning correction of the Work. The Owner may then require the Contractor to undertake such corrections as allowed by the Contract Documents. Final determination of whether the Work is defective, faulty or in compliance with the Contract Documents is to be determined by the Owner.
 - .2 Penalty for Non-Conforming Design Documents: Should the Project Consultant submit drawings, plans, specifications or other documents or materials for review as required herein that are deemed unacceptable as defined by the terms "Revise and Resubmit" by the plan review authority (Building Department, Design Services Department, Peer Plan Review Consultant), the costs, as solely determined by the Owner, for all subsequent reviews after the second review for that Phase shall be borne by the Project Consultant and the Owner will deduct such costs from the Project Consultant's Basic Services Fee.
- 2.1.8 The Project Consultant shall keep the Owner informed of any proposed changes in requirements or in construction materials, systems or equipment as the drawings and specifications are developed. Proposed changes must be reviewed by the Owner and approved in writing by Owner prior to incorporation into the design or construction documents.
- 2.1.9 The Project Consultant shall coordinate with Owner by participating and taking a leadership role in, reviewing and commenting on Constructability and Value Engineering studies performed by Owner, and attending meetings, where the content of design and construction contract documents will be coordinated and reconciled, scheduled during any phase of the project. In the event Owner accepts recommendations from Value Engineering and Constructability studies, the Project Consultant shall implement same, including providing revised drawings and specifications or other documents. In the event the Owner accepts such a recommendation from the Constructability and/or Value Engineering studies and requires substantial revisions by the Project Consultant, as determined at the discretion of the Owner, these revisions shall be considered Supplemental Services.
- 2.1.10 Approval of Documents: Owner's approval of or comments on any of the documents submitted to Owner by Project Consultant shall not be deemed the approval of or by another governmental authority having

jurisdiction over the project and Project Consultant acknowledges that the aforesaid authorities may require modifications of any of the documents submitted by Project Consultant. Subject to Article 2, such modifications shall be made at no cost to Owner.

2.2 PHASE I - Schematic Design:

- 2.2.1 The Project Consultant shall confer with representatives of the Owner to verify and confirm the Program (as appropriate to the type of project), consisting of a detailed listing of all functions and spaces together with the square footage of each assignable space, gross square footage, and a description of the relationships between and among the principal programmatic elements. (If the project needs are so unique that a special analysis of the requirements is necessary to establish a more detailed program, such services may be authorized as Supplemental Services).
- 2.2.2 The Project Consultant shall, prior to commencing Phase I design activities, receive a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), visit and inspect the site to verify if existing conditions conform to those portrayed on information as may have been provided by the Owner:
 - .1 Take photographs and make written documentation, sketches, notes or reports to confirm and record the general condition and age of the existing equipment and site with particular attention to the following building/site elements as appropriate to the Project:
 - .1 All above ceiling areas.
 - .2 Power supplies, switch gear, breaker panels, electrical room, electrical vault, transformers and mechanical room.
 - 3 Major components of existing HVAC systems including chillers, cooling towers, air handling units, and primary ductwork runs.
 - 4 Roofing, waterproofing and building envelope systems.
 - .5 Site drainage systems and water retention characteristics.
 - .6 Determine age and condition of fixed equipment.
 - .7 Life safety, fire alarms, public address, generators and emergency lighting.
 - .8 ADA requirements.
 - .2 Site investigations and inspections and access to concealed areas should be non-destructive except where destructive investigations, tests or means of access are authorized in advance by the Owner.
- 2.2.3 In the event that the Project Consultant believes that the project scope, schedule or budget is not achievable, the Project Consultant shall immediately notify the Owner in writing as to the reasons one or all of them are unreasonable or not achievable immediately upon discovery.

- 2.2.4 The Project Consultant shall review with Owner alternative approaches to design and construction of the project; site use and improvements; selections of materials, building systems and equipment; potential construction methods; and, if requested, shall make a recommendation among such alternatives.
- 2.2.5 The Project Consultant shall prepare, submit and present to Owner for approval by the Owner a Design Concept and Schematics Report, comprised of the SREF requirements for Schematic Design Documents and Schematic Design Studies, including an identification of any special requirement(s) affecting the Project, a Project Development Schedule, and a Statement of Probable Construction Cost, as defined below:
 - .1 "Project Transmittal Form" as required by the Facilities and Construction Management Division's Design Services Department.
 - .2 OEF form 208(a) "OEF Space Chart Form" formatted to follow the sequence of spaces listed in the SREF Size of Space and Occupant Design Criteria Table.
 - .3 A hardcopy and electronic media copy of a site survey with the following information: the legal description of the site, acreage, points of the compass, contours, overall dimensions, vegetation, trees, hardscape elements, adjacent highways and roads, information about ownership and use of adjacent land, locations of on- and off-site utility connections, utility service point entry locations, parking areas, service areas, play areas, athletic fields, bus loop(s), parent drop off, existing buildings with height, mechanical cooling towers and chillers, floor elevations (related to base flood elevation as shown on Flood Insurance Rate Maps), and use. The site survey will be an update of informational surveys provided by the Owner but shall be prepared on electronic media and submitted in both hard and electronic media formats. (Attachment 3 to the Agreement).
 - .4 Schematic Drawings. These documents shall be schematic drawings responding to the educational specifications and program requirements illustrating the general scope, scale, and relationship of project components. In addition to SREF requirements and information required by the Owner's document submittal checklist for phase I, the documents shall include the following:
 - A site plan showing acreage, points of the compass, scale, contours and general topographical conditions, flood plain elevation and velocity zone, over-all dimensions, adjacent highways, roads, off-site improvements, emergency access, fire hydrants, power transmission lines, ownership and use of adjacent land, walks and paths, vehicle and bike parking areas, accessibility for the disabled, service areas, play areas, athletic fields, bus loop(s), parent drop off, existing buildings and use, location of proposed building(s) and future additions, portable classrooms and other relocatable or temporary structures, community use buildings, phased construction, preliminary soil borings. A statement shall be included on the site plan identifying the FEMA flood plain and velocity zone in which the project is located. The statement shall be signed and dated by the Project Consultant.
 - .2 Evidence, as jointly developed with the Owner, showing that required environmental studies have been completed and sensitive site areas have been identified as required by Florida Law or the Owner or any governmental entity having jurisdiction over the project site.
 - .3 Floor plans showing points of the compass, over-all dimensions, identity of each space, proposed door locations, accessibility for the disabled, Florida Inventory of School House (FISH) numbers, occupant load of each space, proposed passive design and low energy usage features, possible

community service areas and instructional spaces that can be converted to community use areas, mechanical and electrical rooms, any existing buildings and use, future additions, and phased construction. Provide a life-safety plan delineating the necessity for and initial decisions concerning exits, accessibility for the disabled, fire walls, protected corridors, smoke partitions, fire alarm systems, fire sprinkler systems, room names and numbers, and any other life-safety features relevant to the facility.

- .4 Provide elevations and sections of the building to fully illustrate and indicate the mass and character of the facility including fenestration, openings, walkways, preliminary material selections, and other building features and spatial relationships.
- .5 A Preliminary Project Description comprised of a narrative discussion of preliminary material selections, components, assemblies, and systems (including proposed landscape, civil, structural, mechanical, and electrical design elements, components and systems) to be used in the project. Coordinate points of service and preliminary service requirements with Florida Power and Light (FPL), BellSouth, cable TV, water, sewer, storm drainage and other utility services as required by the Project's scope and program. Format Preliminary Project Descriptions to match that specified by the latest edition of the Construction Specification's Institute's "Manual of Practice".
- .6 Mechanical Requirements Specific to Remodeling and Addition Projects: Provide a listing of capacities for existing HVAC equipment and the available tonnage for the new connected load. Provide a survey of the condition of the existing mechanical equipment.
- .7 Electrical Requirements Specific to Remodeling and Addition Projects: Provide an electrical load analysis for the existing facility for existing and new loads: Provide a survey of the condition of the existing electrical equipment and the communication equipment room.
- A Project Design Schedule: The Project Consultant shall prepare a schedule of services (Project Design Schedule) in compliance with Project Schedule and for approval by the Owner. Such schedule shall show activities including but not limited to Project Consultant efforts and Owner reviews and approvals required to complete services. This schedule shall initially be submitted to Owner for approval within twenty-one (21) days of execution of this Agreement. As a condition of payment, Project Consultant will submit with each invoice a copy of the approved schedule showing progress (indicated by percentage complete) as of the invoice cutoff date and a forecast of when each phase of Project Consultant's work will be complete. No subsequent payment shall be made if Project Consultant has not obtained approval of his work schedule, the schedule is not updated, or a forecast is not submitted with each invoice (provided that Owner conducts its review promptly and does not withhold its approval unreasonably). The project development schedules shall set forth in detail the following:
 - .1 Include all activities required to complete the design phase of the project.
 - .2 Prepare in a bar chart format, or other format as required by the Owner, which may be further developed and updated for submittal during subsequent phases of the Basic Services.
 - .3 The Project Consultant shall not be permitted to deviate from the milestones indicated on the Project Schedule without specific written authorization from the Owner (Attachment 1 of this Agreement).

- .9 The Statement of Probable Construction Cost: The Consultant shall submit to Owner for review and Owner's approval a schematic design phase estimate of probable construction cost prepared by an independent cost estimator approved by Owner, itemized by major categories and projected to the expected time of bid.
- .10 Twenty-five (25) copies of a Design Concept and Schematics Report which will be utilized to communicate the schematic design and shall include: Reduced color drawings (Site and building plans, elevations, sections, sketch perspectives and miscellaneous diagramming), photographs of massing and building models, a facilities list (including the number of spaces, net/gross square footages, etc.), the Project Development Schedule, and a summary design statement indicating the general design intent, conceptual development, and preliminary material, assembly and system selections. Provide brochure with heavy stock covers and plastic comb or metal spiral binding. Additional copies of the Schematic Design Brochure if required by the Owner will be compensated as a reimbursable service approved in advance by the Owner.
- 2.2.6 The Project Consultant shall coordinate with the assistance of the Owner to determine the municipal, county and other jurisdictional agency (such as the South Florida Water Management District, etc.) coordination required for the Project and, make applications for site plan and other review as appropriate to this phase of the project. The Project Consultant shall attend and provide representation at all review meetings, workshops, hearings and Commission/Council meetings concerning the project as conducted by any and all other agencies having jurisdiction over the project.
- 2.2.7 The Project Consultant shall submit seven (7) copies of all full size documents required under this Phase, and a completed document submittal checklist, without additional charge, for review and approval by the Owner. The Project Consultant shall not proceed with the next Phase until the completion of all required presentations and reports and receipt of a written Authorization to Proceed with the next phase.
- 2.2.8 The Project Consultant shall provide presentations of the Schematic Design to the Owner's staff, Design Review Committee and to The School Board of Broward County, Florida, as required.

2.3 Phase II - Design Development:

- 2.3.1 Only after receiving a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), from Owner and based on the approved Schematic Design Documents and any adjustments authorized by Owner in the Project Scope, Project Schedule or Project Budget, the Consultant shall prepare, submit and present for review and approval by the Owner, Design Development Phase documents, comprised of the SREF requirements for Design Development documents and the following:
 - .1 "Project Transmittal Form" as required by the Facilities and Construction Management Division's Design Section.
 - .2 OEF form 208 (a) "OEF Space Chart Form" formatted to follow the sequence of spaces listed in the SREF Size of Space and Occupant Design Criteria Table.
 - .3 **Documents:** These documents shall be design development drawings corresponding to the educational specifications and program requirements illustrating the general scope, scale, and relationship of project components. In addition to Phase I requirements, SREF requirements, and

information required by the Owner's document submittal checklist for phase II, the documents shall include the following:

- .1 Architectural and Civil site plan(s) showing, in addition to Phase I site survey requirements, landscaping, drainage, water retention ponds, sewage disposal and water supply system, chilled water supply and return piping and such physical features that may adversely affect or enhance the safety, health, welfare, visual environment, or comfort of the occupants.
- .2 A statement, signed and dated by the Project Consultant or his designated Sub-Consultant, included on the site plan identifying the number of existing trees, the number and size of required trees, and the number of new trees to be planted.
- .3 Soil testing results including a copy of the Geotechnical Engineer's report on the site. When unusual soil conditions or special foundation problems are indicated, submit the proposed method of treatment.
- .4 Plan(s) including, but not be limited to, the following:
 - .1 Floor plan drawn at an architectural scale that will allow the entire facility to be shown on one sheet, without break lines and which indicates project phasing as applicable to the Project.
 - .2 Floor plans drawn at 1/8 inch or larger scale showing typical student occupied spaces or special rooms with dimensions, sanitary facilities, stairs, elevators, and identification of accessible areas for the disabled.
 - .3 Floor plans drawn at 1/4 inch or larger scale showing typical spaces or special rooms with dimensions, equipment and furnishing layouts.
 - Floor plans for additions to an existing facility: Indicate the connections and tie-ins to the existing facilities, including all existing spaces, exits, plumbing fixtures and locations, and any proposed changes thereto. Distinguish between new and existing areas for renovation, remodeling, or an addition.
 - .5 Floor plans drawn at 1/4 inch or larger scale showing typical spaces or special rooms with dimensions, indicating door and window layouts.
 - .6 Reflected ceiling plans drawn at 1/4 inch or larger scale showing typical spaces or special rooms with dimensions, lighting equipment and ceiling panel layouts.
 - .7 Roof plans drawn at 1/4 inch or larger scale showing typical spaces or special rooms with dimensions, equipment layouts.
- .5 Life-safety plans to show exit strategy, rated doors, emergency wall openings, fire walls working stage protection, range and fume hoods, eye wash, emergency showers, ramps and vertical lifts.
 - .1 By symbol, indicate fire extinguishers, fire alarm equipment, smoke vents, master valves and emergency disconnects, emergency lighting, emergency power equipment, fire sprinklers, exit signs, smoke and fire dampers, and other life-safety equipment relevant to the facility.

- .2 By symbol, indicate connections and tie-ins to existing equipment.
- .3 For existing facilities where remodeled or renovated spaces are required and where an ADA and code conforming ramp cannot be utilized, document proposed vertical platform lifts or inclined wheelchair lifts and provide the following documents as part of or in addition to the required life safety plans:
 - .1 Sketches of proposed vertical platform lifts, including layout drawings showing the effect of the lift on existing spaces, corridor widths and exiting from the affected facility.
 - .2 Sketches of proposed inclined wheel chair lift including layout drawings showing the effect of the lift on the stairway width in the folded and unfolded position, the upper and lower platform storage locations, and the effect on exiting from the affected areas of the facility.
- .6 When planning open space schools or administrative spaces, a floor plan shall be submitted showing the methods used to permanently define the means of egress, such as surface finish or color.
- .7 Plumbing fixture locations and fixture unit calculations.
- .8 All exterior building elevations and sufficient building sections as necessary to fully illustrate and indicate the scale and massing of the facility.
- .9 Typical building sections to show dimensions, proposed construction materials, and relationship of finished floor to finished grades.
- .10 Preliminary Structural Drawings including plans and sections indicating systems, connections and foundations. These drawings may be structural roughs.
- .11 Mechanical Drawings including reflected ceiling plans and a single line diagram of the duct layout, location of grease trap(s), LP gas tank location, and natural gas pipe lay out, tie in to existing utilities. Enhance systems description to include a description of proposed HVAC system equipment including the chiller, pumps, AHU's, cooling tower, electric duct heaters, etc.
- .12 Electrical Drawings including reflected ceiling plans, lighting layouts for the outdoors and interior spaces, and a one line diagram of the electrical distribution showing electrical outlets for all systems in all spaces. Provide layout for energy management, computer networking and security systems. Location of all the main components of the electrical system such as transformers, panels, and main switch board, and emergency generator, location of the intercom console, ITV head end and tower, master clock, fire alarm panel. Also, show locations of mechanical equipment such as chillers, air handler units, etc. and their respective electrical connections.
- .13 Equipment and Furnishing Schedules: Indicating equipment and furnishing items that will be provided by the Contractor and those that will be provided by the Owner or others.
- .14 Outline specifications:

- .1 Organized according to the Specification Section numbering system specified in the Construction Specifications Institute's current edition of Masterformat on the date of execution of the Contract.
- .2 Formatted to conform to the formats for outline specifications as established by the Construction Specifications Institute.
- .3 Complete for Divisions 2 through 17 giving general description of all finishes, materials, and systems including civil, structural, HVAC, electrical, plumbing, and specialty items, including fire sprinklers, alarm systems, electronic controls and computer networking components.
- .15 Office of Educational Facilities Life-Cycle Cost Analysis (LCCA). LCCA shall be submitted to the Owner for review and approval with the Phase II documents. LCCA shall be by a commercially available life-cycle cost analysis program, and as required by the Department of Education and the Owner. Life Cycle Cost Analysis shall be compared among competing providers in accordance with Ch. 1013.451, Florida Statutes.
- .16 Florida Energy Efficiency Code for Building Construction (FEEC). FEEC forms, including calculations for mechanical systems, documenting energy efficiency ratio rating of HVAC equipment, electrical systems, insulation, and building envelope shall be submitted to the Owner for review and approval with the Phase II documents.
- .17 The Project Consultant shall advise Owner of any adjustments to the Schematic Design Phase estimate of probable construction cost and shall submit to Owner a fully detailed Design Development Phase estimate of probable construction cost, by an independent cost estimator approved by Owner, projected to the expected time of bid and containing sufficient detail to provide information necessary to evaluate compliance with the Project Budget set for this project. Format estimate and provide detail matching the organization and content of the project's Outline Specifications complete for Divisions 2 through 17 including all finishes, materials, and systems including civil, structural, HVAC, electrical, plumbing, and specialty items, including fire sprinklers, alarm systems, electronic controls and computer networking components.

Utilize the current edition of MasterFormat as published by the Construction Specifications Institute to organize the estimate.

- .18 An updated Project Design Schedule reflecting development and anticipated schedules for all subsequent project activities.
- .19 A written response from the Project Consultant and each of the major technical disciplines and any necessary Sub-Consultants explaining how each previous review comment (as generated by the Owner and/or other reviewing agencies) concerning the project have been addressed and/or corrected.
- .20 A simplified single line floor plan of the project; a database format schedule reflecting the room numbers; the name of the room or space; the net square footage of the space and the capacity of the space on electronic media conforming to the Owner's standards for graphics and for electronic media submittals. This drawing and database information will be for use in preparing F.I.S.H. (Florida Inventory of School Houses) information. The Project Consultant shall coordinate with and utilize the Owner's F.I.S.H requirements for room numbers, room name assignments and electronic media

(format, layering, etc.) prior to developing final documents for this submittal. Hardcopy graphics shall be suitable for clearly legible half size reductions. Comply with the Owner's requirements for electronic media specified below.

- .21 A letter indicating, after coordination with the Facilities and Construction Management Division's Environmental Section, the extent of any known or suspected asbestos containing materials or other potentially hazardous materials which might require mitigation by the Owner prior to or during construction of the Project. Establish and confirm responsibility for removing the asbestos or other hazardous materials in the design development documents and coordinate with Project Development Schedule, Statement of Probable Construction Cost and other documentation.
- .22 Preliminary colorboards to review the color selections for all finish materials with the Owner.
- .23 Twenty-five (25) copies of a Design Development Brochure which will be utilized to communicate the design as developed to date and shall include updated and enhanced contents of those brochures required at the Schematic Design Phase complete as necessary to illustrate the developed design, schedules, etc. Additional copies of the Design Development Brochure if required by the Owner will be compensated as a reimbursable service approved in advance by the Owner.
- 2.3.2 Staff from each of the Project Consultant's major technical disciplines and Sub-Consultants as necessary shall attend coordination, review and presentation meetings with the Owner to explain the design concept and technical resolution of their respective building or site systems.
- 2.3.3 The Project Consultant shall submit seven (7) sets of all documents required under this Phase (except as otherwise indicated), without additional charge, for review and approval by the Owner, and the Project Consultant shall not proceed with the next Phase until the completion of all required presentations and reports and receipt of a written Authorization to Proceed with the next phase.

2.4 Phase III - Construction Documents Development:-

- 2.4.1 Only after receiving a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3) from Owner and based on the approved Design Development Phase documents and any adjustments in the scope or quality of the project or in the Fixed Limit of Construction Cost authorized by Owner, the Project Consultant shall prepare for approval by Owner and the Florida Department of Education, and in accordance with SREF requirements and the Owner's formats, Final Construction Documents setting forth in detail the requirements for the construction of the Project. The Project Consultant is responsible for the full compliance of the design with all applicable codes.
- 2.4.2 50% Construction Documents Submittal: The Project Consultant shall make a 50% Construction Documents submittal, for review and approval by the Owner, which shall include seven (7) sets of the following:
 - .1 "Project Transmittal Form" as required by the Facilities and Construction Management Division's Design Section.
 - .2 An updated OEF form 208(a) "OEF Space Chart Form" formatted to follow the sequence of spaces listed in the SREF Size of Space and Occupant Design Criteria Table.

- .3 Updated Florida Energy Efficiency Code for Building Construction (FEEC) compliance forms. Submit seven (7) copies signed and sealed by a State of Florida registered design professional with 50% Contract Documents submittal.
- .4 **Preliminary calculations:** Provide preliminary calculations for structural, mechanical and electrical systems.
- .5 Drawings: These documents shall be 50% construction drawings corresponding to the educational specifications and program requirements illustrating the general scope, scale, and relationship of project components. In addition to Phase II requirements, SREF requirements, and information required by the Owner's document submittal checklist for phase III 50%, the documents shall include the following:
 - .1 Site Plan(s) and detailing which, in addition to the Phase II requirements, indicate:
 - .1 Spot elevations, based on the civil grading plan, for the perimeter of the new additions, sidewalk, or any other areas pertinent to the drainage of rainwater.
 - .2 Location of storm water service for new additions roof drainage.
 - .3 Parking lot lighting poles location and type.
 - .4 Final location for manholes, handholes, pull boxes.
 - .5 Layout of underground distribution systems (normal power emergency power, fire alarm, master clock, intercommunication, television, telephone, security, control and spares).
 - 6 Locations of all site improvements, playground and athletic equipment, street furniture, planters and other features.
 - .7 Details of all curbing, typical parking spaces (regular and handicap accessible), handicap ramps, bus loop(s), parent drop-off, directional signage, site lighting, flagpole and fence foundations, and any other site conditions pertinent to the scope of work.
 - .8 Plans of new playcourts, tennis courts, tracks, event pads and other pertinent athletic, physical education or recreational areas provided with court markings and detailing for basketball goals, volleyball sleeves, tennis nets, and other playcourt equipment or accessories.
 - .2 A plan to delineate staging areas, site barriers and other area designations to control and separate students, faculty, staff and the public from construction activities and traffic.
 - .3 Landscape plans and detail including a plant list clearly noted and cross referenced, details for shrub and tree plantings, identification of plants and trees to remain, be removed or relocated, and other necessary documentation.
 - .4 Irrigation plans and details delineating the entire area of the project, and addressing necessary connections, alteration, repair or replacement of any existing irrigation systems.

.5 Full floor plans including:

- .1 All dimensions and any cross references explaining the extent of Work, wall types, or other component, assembly or direction regarding the Construction.
- .2 Note all chases and delineate all rainwater leaders.
- .3 Show structural tie columns and coordinate with the floor plan.
- .4 Cross referenced interior elevations.
- .5 Delineate and note all built-in cabinetry or equipment.
- .6 Identify room (F.I.S.H.) and door numbers with all doors having individual numbers.
- .6 Demolition Plans: Indicate required demolition activities. as follows:
 - .1 Provide separate demolition plan(s) and other drawings (elevations, sections, etc.) as necessary if the scope of work includes demolition which is too excessive to indicate drawings depicting new construction.
 - .2 Indicate notes on the extent of the demolition: address dimensions at locations where partial walls are being removed or altered, existing room names and numbers, existing partitions, equipment, plumbing, HVAC or electrical elements.
 - .3 Include notes dealing with protection of existing areas as a result of demolition.
 - 4 Delineate any modifications to existing buildings involving structural elements within the structural documents rather than on the architectural.
- .7 Building elevations developed further than at Phase II and including delineation of building joints (including dimensionally located stucco control joints), material locations, elevation heights, and other building features.
- .8 Building and wall sections to establish vertical controls and construction types for the Project. Include clear graphics, and notes on construction assemblies and systems to be used, dimensions, heights. Provide associated detailing to delineate solutions for difficult connections. Specify details for any fire walls to be constructed.
- .9 Reflected ceiling plans indicating ceiling types, heights, light fixture types, mechanical diffuser locations, and sprinkler heads if area is sprinklered. Delineate and detail any dropped soffits or joint conditions between different materials. Ensure coordination with architectural, electrical, mechanical and plumbing disciplines and work of any applicable Sub-Consultants.
- .10 Roof plans:

- .1 Indicating all roof penetrations, including drains, scuppers, mechanical exhaust fans, any other equipment on the roof, slopes of roof with elevations shown, type of roofing system to be used, expansion joints, typical parapet and flashing details.
- .2 Dimensions to locate the items noted previously, and cross references shown.
- .11 Large scale building details as appropriate to this level of document development and as required to establish vertical controls for the Project. Include clear graphics, and notes on construction assemblies and systems to be used, dimensions, heights. Provide associated detailing to delineate solutions for difficult connections.
- .12 Interior elevations of all classroom designs including cross references of cabinetry details, dimensions and heights, notes indicating type of equipment (and whether equipment is in or out of contract), wall materials, finishes, and classroom equipment and accessories.
- .13 Details of casework as necessary to appropriately delineate custom or pre-manufactured casework. Provide appropriate schedules referencing manufacturer's numbers or catalogs, finishes, hardware and other construction characteristics.
- .14 Details of the following:
 - .1 Door jamb, head and sill conditions.
 - .2 Wall and partition types.
 - .3 Window head, sill and jamb conditions, and anchorage methods shown, in lieu of referencing to manufacturer's standards.
 - Interior signage to include classroom and building identification, emergency exiting and equipment signs, and any other items pertinent to the identification of the project. Coordinate with electrical discipline.
 - 5 Interior or exterior expansion control connections.
 - .6 Any other specialized items necessary to clearly express the intent of the project design.
- .15 Room finish and door schedules coordinated with the floor plans, developed beyond Phase II.
- .16 Structural foundation and framing plans, with associated diagrams, schedules, notes, detailing and section drawings completed sufficiently to communicate the design intent and coordination with other disciplines.

.17 Mechanical Drawings:

.1 Provide double line duct work layout and HVAC equipment layout drawings with related diagrams and schematic diagrams, schedules, notes, detailing and section drawings completed sufficiently to communicate the design intent and coordination with other disciplines.

- .2 Provide plumbing equipment and fixture layout drawings with related diagrams, schedules, notes, detailing and section drawings completed sufficiently to communicate the design intent and coordination with other disciplines.
- .3 Provide 1/2 inch scale plans, elevations and sections of the mechanical rooms showing service clearance, room openings, nominal equipment size, ceiling height, duct clearance between bottom of joist and top of ceiling and any ceiling mounted lighting fixtures, electrical equipment or other building assembly or component, etc.
- .18 Electrical: Provide drawings for the following systems:
 - .1 Lighting including circuiting and luminaire identification and switching. Also provide illuminance computer printout for all indoor typical indoor spaces and parking lots.
 - .2 Convenience outlets and circuiting, special outlets and circuiting, television outlets, and power systems and equipment. Provide riser diagrams for all electrical systems including master clock, intercom, fire alarm, ITV, computer networking/telephone. Also, provide for emergency and normal power distribution. Provide luminaire schedule.
 - .3 Panel schedule may be in preliminary form but circuitry must be included.
 - .4 Applicable installation details.
 - .5 General legend and list of abbreviations.
 - .6 Voltage drop computation for all main feeders.
 - 7 Short circuit analysis
 - .8 Provide 1/2" scale floor plan and wall elevations for all electrical rooms.
 - .9 Indicate surge protector for main switchboard and electrical panels.
- .6 Progress specifications:
 - .1 Provide preliminary Project Manual including front end documents. Completion of fill-in items in Bidding documents and other "Division 0" documents is not required.
 - .2 Provide a preliminary Division 1 based upon the standard documents provided by the Owner, and edited by the Project Consultant after consultation with the Owner to establish project specific requirements.
 - .3 Include progress set of all other Sections in Divisions 2-17 with each section developed to demonstrate to the Owner an understanding of the project and an appropriate level of developmental progress comparable to that of the drawings.

- .4 Specification sections shall be organized to follow the Construction Specification Institute's (CSI) current edition of MasterFormat with each section developed to include CSI's standard 3-part section and page formats with full paragraph numbering.
- .7 An updated Project Design Schedule, reflecting continued Project development and illustrating anticipated schedules for all subsequent project activities including permitting and submittal coordination with all agencies having jurisdiction on the Project. Format updated schedule as a Bar Chart (Gantt Chart) type schedule with milestones.
- .8 Colorboards illustrating color selections, finishes, textures and aesthetic qualities for all finish materials for final review and approval by the Owner and to establish a final pallet of material selections for development of subsequent specifications, schedules and other requirements for incorporation into the Contract Documents.
- .9 A letter from the Project Consultant and each of the major technical disciplines and any necessary Sub-Consultants or explaining how each previous comment concerning the project has been addressed and/or corrected.

2.4.3 100% Construction Documents Submittal:

- .1 Upon receipt of written approval of the Phase III 50 % Construction Documents and a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), the Project Consultant shall proceed with the rest of Phase III Construction Documents.
- .2 Upon 100% completion of the Construction Documents, the Project Consultant shall submit to the Owner seven (7) copies of check sets of the Drawings, Specifications, reports, programs, a final updated Project Development Schedule, a final updated Statement of Probable Construction Cost and such other documents as reasonably required by Owner. The 100% construction documents shall conform to SREF requirements, all mandatory requirements cited by the Florida Department of Education (or the designated reviewer) and those listed below.
- .3 All documents for this phase shall be provided in both hard copy and in electronic media. The Owner will review and approve Phase III documents for submission to the Department of Education (or designated reviewing agency) for review and approval. The following Phase III contract documents shall be included with the Phase III submittal:
 - .1 "Project Transmittal Form" as required by the Facilities and Construction Management Division's Design Section.
 - .2 OEF form 208 "OEF Project Transmittal Form".
 - .3 OEF form 208 (a) "OEF Space Chart Form" formatted to follow the sequence of spaces listed in the SREF Size of Space and Occupant Design Criteria Table.

.4 General Requirements.

.1 Record Set. This submittal is the official record set and shall be the bid documents.

- .2 Signed and Sealed/Statements of Compliance: Only complete documents, properly signed and sealed by the Project Consultant and respective Sub-Consultants, will be accepted for review; in addition, these documents shall contain a statement of compliance by the architect or engineer of record that "To the best of my knowledge and belief these drawings and the project manual are complete, and comply with the State Requirements for Educational Facilities and all applicable and referenced building codes".
- .3 When requested by the Owner, engineering calculations for mechanical, electrical, and structural systems shall be submitted separately from drawings and the project manual.
- .6 Drawings. These documents shall be 100% construction drawings corresponding to the educational specifications and program requirements illustrating the general scope, scale, and relationship of project components. In addition to Phase III 50% requirements, SREF requirements, and information required by the Owner's document submittal checklist for phase III 100%, the documents shall include the following:
 - .1 Site plans including, but not limited to, area location map, legal description of property, demolition, excavation, utilities, finish grading, landscaping, mechanical, electrical, civil/structural, and architectural site plans.
 - .2 Plans and details including, but not limited to:
 - .1 Title sheets including listing of Project Consultant, Program Manager, School Board of Broward County, a table of contents and statement of compliance by the architect or engineer of record. Each discipline shall have a list of abbreviations, schedule of material indications, and schedule of notations and symbols at the beginning of their section of the plans.
 - .2 Architectural sheets including floor plans, door, window and finish schedules, roof plans, elevations, sections, and details.
 - 3 Civil/Structural sheets including paving; bus loops; parent drop; service drive; parking; drainage; foundation plans; floor plans; roof plans; structural plans; sections; details; and, pipe, culvert, beam and column schedules.
 - .4 Mechanical sheets including floor plans; sections; details; riser diagrams; kitchen exhaust hoods; and, equipment, fan, and fixture schedules.
 - .5 Electrical sheets including floor plans; sections; details; riser diagrams; and, fixture and panel schedules.
 - .6 The drawings should indicate that the approved mechanical/electrical systems, from the Phase II FEEC/LCCA analysis, have been incorporated into the documents.
- .6 **Project Manual.** The Project Consultant, in its leadership capacity, shall review and coordinate with the Owner regarding the preparation of the following:
- .1 The necessary bidding information, the bidding forms, the conditions of the contract and Division 1 with respect to the foregoing documents and regarding any other Agreements necessary for construction of the project. However, in no case will Project Consultant amend or delete items from these documents without prior review and written approval from Owner.
- .2 A project specific set of Division 1 specifications based upon master documents provided by the Owner, including all schedules, lists and inventories as required to complete the Owner's master documents including Contractor's Submittal schedules, warranty schedules, salvage schedules, preliminary construction schedule, etc.
- .3 Final specification sections for Divisions 2 through 17 organized and formatted as required for the set of Phase III, 50% progress specifications.
- .4 Approved alternate bid items, if required and authorized by the Owner, to bring the project within the Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC) which would permit Owner in its sole discretion to accept or reject portions of the construction of the project. No additional compensation shall be provided for bid alternates if they are part of the original scope of work.
- .7 A threshold building inspection plan, prepared by the Project Consultant, and the name of a certified threshold building inspector, as set forth in Section 553.79(5), Florida Statutes (2004) as amended from time to time, shall be submitted to the Owner and the Department of Education (as applicable) for review and approval with Phase III documents. Threshold building inspection plan documents shall be submitted for:
 - .1 Any building greater than three (3) stories or fifty (50) feet in height, or
 - 2 Any building with an assembly space that exceeds five thousand (5000) square feet in area, and an occupant load of five hundred (500) or more persons.
- 8 An Updated Statement of Probable Construction Cost as indicated by time factor, changes in requirements, or general market conditions.
- .9 A letter from the Project Consultant and each of the major technical disciplines and any necessary Sub-Consultants explaining how each previous review comment (as generated by the Owner and/or other reviewing agencies) concerning the project has been addressed and/or corrected.
- .4 If the Latest Statement of Probable Construction Cost exceeds the Fixed Limit of Construction Cost for construction, the Project Consultant shall review the materials, equipment, component systems and types of construction included in the Contract Documents with the Owner and may recommend changes in such items and/or reasonable adjustments in the scope of the Project (to be made at no additional cost to the Owner).
- .5 The Project Consultant shall make all required changes or additions and resolve all questions on the documents. The 100% complete Check Set shall be returned to the Owner. Upon final review and approval by the Owner the Project Consultant shall furnish seven (7) copies, signed and sealed of all Drawings and Specifications to the Owner without additional charge.

- .6 The Project Consultant shall, with the Owner's assistance, file the required documents for approval by governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project (including Broward County and municipalities and their constituent departments, the South Florida Water Management District, and other state, local or federal agency with jurisdictional authority over some aspect of the Project) and obtain certifications of "permit approval" by reviewing authorities prior to the commencement of Phase IV and early enough to ensure that the eventual contractors is not delayed by permit processing by Broward County, a municipality or other jurisdictional agency. The Project Consultant shall provide the original documents or reproducible copies as may be required for submittal to any and all governmental authorities. The Project Consultant shall attend and provide representation at all review meetings, workshops, hearings and Commission/Council meetings concerning the project as conducted by other jurisdictional agencies. Project Consultant shall assure the Owner that all mandatory requirements are complete prior to the bidding, included, but not limited to, those that may have a financial impact on the Project.
- .7 Staff from each of the Project Consultant's major technical disciplines and Sub-Consultants as necessary shall attend coordination, review and presentation meetings with the Owner to explain the development of the design concept and technical resolution of their respective building or site systems for both the Phase III, 50% and Phase III, 100% Submittals.
- .8 The Owner's review and approval of the drawings, specifications, calculations and other construction documents shall not relieve the Project Consultant of any responsibility for their accuracy, adequacy and completeness.
- 2.4.4 The Project Consultant shall make all changes to the documents as required by the Owner's review of the documents by issuing a written recommendation to the Owner, at no additional cost and resolve initially all questions of constructability, code compliance, coordination across disciplines, clarity of documents, compliance with Owner standards, or other issues raised by the Owner during their reviews of the documents. The Owner will retain the documents submitted at this phase.

2.5 Phase IV - Bidding and Award of Contract

- 2.5.1 Bid Documents Approvals and Printing: Upon obtaining a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), and all necessary approvals of the Construction Documents, and review and, approval by the Owner of the latest Statement of Probable Construction Cost, the Project Consultant shall assist Owner in obtaining bids and awarding construction contracts. The Project Consultant will provide reproductions of the drawings and specifications for bidding purposes at no additional cost to the Owner.
- 2.5.2 The Owner will issue the Bid Documents to prospective bidders and keep a complete "List of Bidders."
- 2.5.3 The Project Consultant shall render initial interpretations and clarifications of the drawings and specifications in a written format, supplemented by appropriate graphics. The Owner shall make all final determinations and/or interpretations as it relates to building code issues.
- 2.5.4 The Project Consultant shall attend a pre-bid conference as requested by the Owner.
- 2.5.5 The Project Consultant shall prepare addenda, if any are required, for the Owner to issue to all prospective bidders. No addenda shall be issued without the Owner's approval and if dimensional changes or extensive

graphic changes are required the drawing sheets shall be revised and issued as addendum drawings as directed by Owner.

- 2.5.6 The Project Consultant shall be present at the opening of bids with the Owner's staff.
- 2.5.7 The Project Consultant shall participate with Owner in evaluating the bids and shall provide a written recommendation for bid award.
- 2.5.8 If the lowest responsive Base Bid received exceeds the Fixed Limit of Construction Cost the Owner will either:
 - .1 Approve the increase of Project costs and award a contract or,
 - .2 Reject all bids and rebid the Project within a reasonable time with no change in the Project,
 - .3 Direct the Project Consultant to revise the Project scope or quality, or both, as approved by the Owner, and rebid the Project, or
 - .4 Suspend or abandon the Project, or
- 2.5.9 Under Article 2.5.6.2 above, the Project Consultant shall, without additional compensation, modify the Construction Documents as necessary to bring the project within the Fixed Limit of Construction Cost. The providing of such service shall be the limit of the Project Consultant's responsibility in this regard and having done so, the Project Consultant shall be compensated in accordance with this Agreement. The Owner may recognize exceptional construction market cost fluctuations before exercising the option provided in Article 2.5.6.2 above. The Owner agrees to discuss this issue with the Project Consultant prior to exercising this option.
- 2.5.10 If an estimate or cost analysis is required by the Owner for this phase, the Project Consultant shall utilize the previously established independent cost estimator, or a replacement acceptable to the Owner, to analyze bids and to assist in the preparation of any modified bidding documents or re-bid documents that may be required to ensure successful bidding within the Fixed Limit of Construction Cost.

2.6 Phase V - Administration of the Construction Contract:

- 2.6.1 The Construction Administration Phase will begin with the award of the Construction Contract and will end when the Contractor's final Payment Certificate is approved by the Owner and after the one (1) year warranty period has expired. During this period, the Project Consultant shall provide Administration of the Construction Contract as set forth in the construction contract documents (hereafter referred to and defined as the "Contract Documents") between the Owner and the Contractor, as basic services.
- 2.6.2 The Project Consultant, as a representative of the Owner during the Construction Phase, shall advise and consult with the Owner within the limits established by this Agreement and the Contract Documents. The Project Consultant shall contemporaneously provide Owner with copies of all communications between Project Consultant and others concerning matters material to the cost, time, sequence, scope, performance or requirements of the project.

- 2.6.3 The Project Consultant and the Project Consultant's respective Sub-Consultants shall attend all key construction events as necessary to ascertain the progress of the Project and to determine in general if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents and the Project Schedule. A minimum of at least one site visit per week will be required by the Project Consultant. The Sub-Consultant will be required to visit the site at least once a week when their respective portion of the work is in progress.
 - .1 The Project Consultant shall visit the site at least once per week to become familiar with the progress and quality of the Work and to determine if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents and Project Schedule. The Project Consultant shall coordinate the timing of these visits with the Owner's Representative so as to permit joint observations of the progress of the Work and discussions about project issues. On the basis of on-site observations as a Consultant, the Project Consultant shall keep Owner informed of the progress and quality of the Work. The Project Consultant shall promptly submit to Owner a detailed written report of the results of each visit to the site, and copies of all field reports and notes of meetings with contractor, subcontractors of any tier or suppliers.
 - .2 The Project Consultant shall, based upon its on-site visits, promptly report to Owner any defects and deficiencies in the Work coming to the attention of Project Consultant and shall endeavor to guard the Owner against defects and deficiencies in the Work. This obligation is not reduced or limited by the fact that others, such as the UBCI, are undertaking inspection for or on behalf of the Owner. The Project Consultant shall make on-site observations utilizing the same personnel over the course of the Work. The Project Consultant shall assist the Owner in determining the cost of additional inspections due to the Contractor's failure to perform. Any changes in personnel must be in writing and issued to the Owner.
 - .3 The Project Consultant shall not have control over or charge of and shall not be responsible for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work.
- 2.6.4 The Project Consultant shall at all times have access to the Work where ever it is in preparation or progress. The Project Consultant and the Sub-Consultants shall review and advise the Owner as to whether the Contractor is making timely, accurate, and complete notations on the "Project Record Documents" and maintaining various other administrative records as required by the Contract Documents. In addition, the Owner may at its discretion require the Project Consultant and all Sub-Consultants to submit additional written materials or forms to the Owner relating to or regarding the Project or its progress. Complete notations to the "as built" drawings shall include, but not be limited to all changes due to RFI's, ASI's, COD's, and CO's, in addition to the changes recorded by the Contractor, as noted above.
- 2.6.5 The Project Consultant shall initially interpret matters and provide recommendations concerning performance of Owner and Contractor under the requirements of the Contract Documents upon written request of Owner. The Project Consultant's response to such requests shall be made with reasonable promptness and within any time limits agreed upon. The Project Consultant shall render written advisory decisions, only upon the Owner's request, within a reasonable time, on all claims, disputes and other matters in question between Owner and Contractor relating to the execution or progress of the Work or the interpretation of the Contract Documents.
- 2.6.6 All initial interpretations and advisory decisions of the Project Consultant shall be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable from, the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings.

In the capacity of interpreter the Project Consultant shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both the Owner and Contractor, and shall not show partiality to either. The Owner shall be the final interpreter of any and all matters pertaining to the performance of the Project Consultant and Contractor.

- 2.6.7 The Project Consultant shall have authority to recommend rejection of Work which does not conform to the Contract Documents. The Project Consultant shall not have authority to stop the Work without approval of the Owner. Whenever, in the Project Consultant's reasonable opinion, it is necessary or advisable for the implementation of the intent of the Contract Documents, Project Consultant may recommend special inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not such Work is to be fabricated, installed or completed, but Project Consultant shall take such action only after consultation with Owner. The Project Consultant's monitoring of such additional special testing or inspections is a part of the Basic Services. Owner shall furnish all such tests, inspections and reports that are required by law or by the Contract Documents or that it has previously approved in writing, without waiving its right to reimbursement from Contractor. However, neither this authority of the Project Consultant nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty of responsibility of the Project Consultant to Contractor or other third parties performing portions of the Work.
- 2.6.8 The Project Consultant shall promptly review, and take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such as shop drawings, product data and samples, but only for conformance with the design concept of the Contract Documents. Such action shall be taken within fourteen (14) days of receipt by Project Consultant unless Ownerand Project Consultant otherwise mutually agree. Project Consultant's review shall not constitute review or approval of safety precautions or of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures. Project Consultant shall maintain a log of all submittals made and shall compare the submittals with Contractor's progress schedule. The Consultant shall not approve changes to the contract or substitutions through the regular submittal process but will utilize those respective methods specified in the Contract Documents. The Project Consultant shall be compensated for reviewing re-submittals after the first re-submittal of a respective submittal as a reimbursable expense with the Owner reimbursed by the Contractor under provisions of the Contract Documents.
- 2.6.9 The Project Consultant shall coordinate with the Owner concerning the Owner's required review of Request for Proposals, Change Orders and Construction Change Directives. The Project Consultant shall:
 - .1 Meet with the Owner prior to the preparation and execution of Request for Proposals, Contingency Use Directives and Change Order items to ensure that proposed changes comply with the intent of the Project's scope and construction schedule and whether the Contractor is entitled to additional sums or contract time for the proposed Work.
 - .2 Reconcile the Project Consultant's analysis of Request for Proposals, Contingency Use Directives and Change Order amounts with an analysis provided by Owner's chosen independent cost estimator and provide the Owner with a recommendation concerning the respective cost studies.
 - .3 Submit written and graphic information documenting proposed changes for formal review by the Owner.
 - .4 Review and indicate concurrence through signing Request for Proposals for Owner's authorization in accordance with the Contract Documents, shall have authority to order minor changes in the Work not involving an adjustment in the contract sum or an extension of the contract time and which are not inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Such minor changes shall be

implemented through an Architect's Supplemental Instructions (ASI) issued through Owner. The Basic Services shall include providing recommendations concerning Request for Proposals, Contingency Use Directives and Change Orders, and the preparation, permitting and processing of Request for Proposals, Change Orders and Construction Change Directives. This Article shall not supersede Articles 2.9.1.14 or 2.9.1.16.

- .5 Process, prepare and issue contract modification documents, Request for Proposals, Contingency Use Directives and Change Orders, in a timely manner and not allow the period required for evaluation, preparation or to issue such documents to exceed fourteen (14) days. The Project Consultant shall provide written notification to the Owner concerning those modification documents requiring more than fourteen (14) days processing time with an attached explanation of the circumstances requiring longer processing time.
- .6 All final decisions with respect to substitutions, Request for Proposals, Change Orders, and other contract modifications shall be at the sole determination of the Owner.
- 2.6.10 The Project Consultant shall conduct thorough site observations, make recommendations and otherwise assist Owner in determining the dates of Substantial Completion and Final Completion, shall review, approve and forward to Owner for Owner's review, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract Documents and assembled by Contractor, and shall certify a final certificate for payment. At substantial completion, the Project Consultant shall prepare a punch list of observed items requiring correction, completion or replacement by Contractor. The Project Consultant shall administer the Contractor's submittal of various closeout submittals including warranty documents, operations and maintenance materials, extra materials, and other closeout submittals as required by the Contract Documents. The Project Consultant and the Sub-Consultants shall verify and confirm the Contractor's successful demonstration of equipment and systems and the training of the Owner's personnel as required by the Contract Documents. Project Consultant shall inspect the Project upon final completion to determine compliance with the Contract Documents and, upon so determining, prepare and execute the required forms and other documents indicating that the Work is completed in compliance with the Contract Documents.
- 2.6.11 The Project Consultant shall within sixty (60) days of final acceptance provide the Owner with prints and electronic media copies of the original drawings, which the Project Consultant has revised to conditions based on information furnished by the Contractor as Project Record Documents. These prints and electronic media copies shall become the property of the Owner. Submittal of these documents to the Owner is a condition of final payment of construction support fees to the Project Consultant.
- 2.6.12 The Project Consultant shall assist Owner in determining amounts owing to Contractor based on observation at the site and an evaluation of Contractor's applications for payment and shall certify Certificates for Payment of such amounts as provided in the contract documents and in such forms as the Owner may request. The certification of the Certificate for Payment shall constitute the representation by Project Consultant to Owner based on Project Consultant's observation at the site and the data comprising Contractor's applications for payment, that the work has progressed to the point indicated; the quality of the work is in substantial accordance with the contract documents (subject to an evaluation of the work for substantial conformance with the contract documents, to minor deviations from the contract documents cited prior to completion, and to any specific qualification stated in the Certificate for Payment); and that the Contractor is entitled to the amount certified. However, the certification of the Certificate of Payment shall not be a representation that Project Consultant has made any examination, other than information which has come to

Project Consultant's attention, to ascertain how and for what purpose Contractor has used the monies paid by the Owner.

2.7 Phase VI - Warranty Administration:

2.7.1 Upon receiving a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), and for one year following substantial completion of the construction project, the Project Consultant shall assist Owner, without additional compensation, in securing correction of defects, and shall in the sixth and eleventh months make inspections of the project with the Owner and report observed discrepancies to Owner.

2.8 Other Basic Services:

2.8.1 The Project Consultant shall render to Owner without additional compensation, any proper and reasonable assistance which Owner may require as a result of any claim or any action brought relating to Project Consultant's services. Preparation of detailed analysis or documentation (if requested by Owner) shall be a supplemental service under Article 2.9.1.21 with a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3).

2.9 Supplemental Services

- 2.9.1 The services listed below are normally considered to be beyond the scope of Basic Services as defined in this Agreement, and if authorized in advance by having received a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), will be compensated for as provided under Articles 5/7 and 6.2:
 - .1 Providing special analyses of the Owner's needs, and special detailed programming requirements for a project.
 - .2 Providing financial feasibility, or other special studies.
 - .3 Providing planning surveys, site evaluations, or comparative studies of prospective sites.
 - .4 Providing services relative to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not intended to be constructed as during the construction phase.
 - .5 Providing services to make measured drawings of the existing site or facilities.
 - .6 Providing the services of a cost estimating firm beyond the services required during Phases I-III to verify cost of the work as designed. The choice of the firm, qualifications of the firm and the terms of employment of the firm shall be approved in writing in advance by the Owner.
 - .7 Providing interior design services required for or in connection with the selection of furniture or furnishings, except equipment included in the Construction Contract and identified in the educational specifications.
 - .8 Providing investigations and making detailed appraisals and valuations of existing facilities, and surveys or inventories required in connection with construction performed by the Owner.

- .10 Providing the services of one or more full-time Construction Inspector during construction; including the services of a Special Threshold Inspector.
- .11 Providing extended assistance beyond that provided under Basic Services for the initial start-up, testing, adjusting and balancing of any equipment or system; extended training of Owner's personnel in operation and maintenance of equipment and systems, and consultation during such training; and preparation of operating and maintenance manuals, other than those provided by the Contractor, subcontractor, or equipment manufacturer.
- .12 Providing consultation concerning replacement of any Work damaged or built inconsistent with the Contract Drawings, providing the cause is found by the Owner to be other than by fault of the Project Consultant.
- .13 Providing consultation concerning replacement of any Work damaged by fire or other cause during construction, and furnishing services as may be required in connection with the replacement of such Work.
- .14 Preparing revisions of Schematic Design, Design Development, and Construction Document Phase Documents previously approved in writing by Owner, when so directed in writing by Owner, provided, however, that no compensation for Supplemental Services shall be paid for revisions which may be required when due to errors or omissions by the Consultant or when due to the fact that the lowest Bona Fide construction bid exceeds the "fixed limit of construction cost".
- .15 Providing services made necessary by the default of the Contractor, or any major unanticipated defects or deficiencies in the Work of the Contractor or any subcontractor not attributable in any way to an Error and/or Omission of the Project Consultant.
- .16 Preparing change orders and related documents provided the changes are significant changes (whether increases or decreases) in the scope of the project and are requested by the Owner and not for any changes due to any other reasons such as error or omission of the Project Consultant.
- .17 Providing revisions in drawings, specifications or other documents required by the enactment or revision of codes, laws or regulations subsequent to the preparation of such documents.
- .18 Preparing to serve or serving as an expert witness in connection with any public hearing, arbitration proceeding or legal proceeding.
- .19 Providing services after certification to the Owner of that Final Certificate for payment, and said payment has been made to the Contractor except those services that are a result of errors, omissions. or conflicts in documents prepared by the Project Consultant or are warranty related services.
- .21 Review of extensive claims by the Contractor or others relating to the Project. However, there shall be no additional charges to Owner from Project Consultant in the event the claims are not extensive or in the event the claims are determined by the Owner to be based upon the failure of the Project Consultant or Sub-Consultant to properly perform its services or to comply with the provisions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 3 SUB-CONSULTANTS

3.1 Sub-Consultants' Relations

- 3.1.1 All services provided by the Sub-Consultant shall be pursuant to appropriate Agreements between the Project Consultant and the Sub-Consultants which shall contain provisions that preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and the Project Consultant under this Agreement. All such Agreements shall provide that the Project Consultant may assign or transfer to Owner any and all claims or causes of action which the Project Consultant has or may have against a Sub-Consultant as a result of or relating to any acts of omission or commission of that Sub-Consultant.
- 3.1.2 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between the Owner and the Sub-Consultants. However the Project Consultant is at all times liable for any and all negligent acts of omission or commission of its Sub-Consultants relating to or regarding this Agreement or the Project which is the subject of this Agreement. The Owner may, at any time, require the Project Consultant to assign or transfer to the Owner any claims or causes of action which Project Consultant has or may have against one or more of its Sub-Consultants as it relates to these contract obligations regarding or relating to this Project. Upon such request, the Project Consultant shall execute a written assignment or transfer in a form to be provided by the Owner. In the event the Owner requires the Project Consultant to assign or transfer said claims or cause of action brought by a Sub-Consultant against the Project Consultant directly related to the claim of cause of action brought by the Owner against a Sub-Consultant as a result of such assignment.

3.2 Proposed Sub-Consultants

- 3.2.1 The Project Consultant proposes to utilize the following Sub-Consultants: Per Attachment 5 (Project Team Members)
- 3.2.2 The Project Consultant shall not change any Sub-Consultant without written prior approval by the Owner.
- 3.2.3 The Project Consultant, not later than ten (10) calendar days after the date of this Agreement, shall submit a list of contact information for Sub-Consultants which includes contact names, firm addresses, phone and fax numbers and internet (or other internet e-mail service provider) e-mail addresses.

ARTICLE 4 THE OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

- 4.1 Information, Documents, And Services
- 4.1.1 Owner shall consult with Project Consultant and provide such information regarding requirements for the project, including a Project Scope, Budget and Schedule which shall set forth Owner's contemplated design objectives, constraints and criteria, including educational specifications, facilities lists, space requirements and relationships, flexibility and expandability, special equipment and site requirements as are reasonably necessary for Project Consultant to perform its services.
- 4.1.2 The Owner shall furnish a legal description and a certified land survey of the site. When possible, the Owner shall supply the certified land survey in hardcopy and electronic media formats. The certified land survey shall provide boundary dimensions, locations of existing structures and/or trees, the grade and line of street,

pavement and adjoining properties, the rights, restrictions, easements, boundaries, topographic data and information relative to sewer, water, gas and electrical services.

- 4.1.3 Owner shall furnish the services of soil engineers or other consultants if such services are necessary and requested in writing by Project Consultant. Such services may include test borings, test pits, soil bearing values, percolation tests, air and water pollution tests, ground corrosion and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for determining subsoil, air and water conditions, tests for hazardous materials, chemical, mechanical, structural or other tests with reports and appropriate professional recommendations.
- 4.1.4 Owner shall furnish a Project Schedule for the project showing all activities and critical dates necessary to complete the project within the allotted time.
- 4.1.5 Owner shall furnish a Construction Budget which is the portion of the Project Budget allocated for the construction cost of a project and will be based upon the Fixed Limit of Construction Cost with an appropriate contingency factor. This contingency factor includes but is not limited to the demolition, destructive testing and repairs, directed by the Project Consultant, to adequately investigate and document the existing conditions of the facility.
- 4.1.6 As-Built Documentation: When available, drawings and other available documents which were purported to represent "as-built" conditions at the time of original construction will be furnished to the Project Consultant; however, they are not warranted to represent conditions as of this date. The Project Consultant shall perform non-destructive field investigations as necessary to obtain sufficient information to perform his services and as required by field conditions, or the Owner to verify wall assemblies, construction types or other basic information as required to develop the design and documentation necessary for the project. The demolition and repairs associated with the destructive testing shall be compensated as a reimbursable expense. The Owner encourages the use of destructive testing techniques (with prior approval) to retrieve information that can be utilized by the Project Consultant to clearly indicate the disposition of the existing facility and incorporate this information into the Contract Documents.

4.1.7 District Standards and Submittal Checklist

- .1 Design And Material Standards: The Owner will furnish an electronic copy of Design and Material standards for the Project Consultant's use in developing designs and documentation for the project. These documents are technical specifications and the intent of these documents is to convey basic Owner preferences to the Project Consultant. The Project Consultant shall review the content of the Design and Material Standards provided by the Owner and may consult with the Owner concerning discrepancies, errors or suggestions for the improvement of the provided documents. The Project Consultant remains responsible for the technical content and accuracy of documents produced under the terms of this Agreement.
- .2 Design Criteria: The Owner will furnish an electronic copy of the Design Criteria for the Project Consultant's use in developing designs for the project. These criteria are guidelines, which address owner related issues; including but not limited to, ease of maintenance, life cycle costing, and functionality of the facility.
- .3 **Document Submittal Checklist:** The checklist is a guideline indicating minimum requirements for the submittal of contract documents for each phase of the design process. The completed checklist form will be required with each submission for all applicable disciplines.

- 4.1.8 Standard Construction Bidding And Contract Documents: The Owner shall furnish the Project Consultant with sample bidding and contract requirements and general requirements containing the basic provisions and requirements of Owner. These documents are comprised of the Bidding Requirements, Contracting Requirements, and Division 1 Specification Sections that will be utilized by the Project Consultant to develop the construction contract documents required under the terms of this Agreement. The Project Consultant acknowledges that these Owner Standard Documents will be made available by the Owner and shall be reviewed and analyzed by the Project Consultant and that these documents shall serve as the basis for the Project Consultant's development of bidding documents for the Owner.
- 4.1.9 Owner shall arrange and pay for the required advertisements for bid.
- 4.1.10 Owner, assisted by Project Consultant, shall issue the bid documents to bidders, maintain the planholders list, and issue addenda.
- 4.1.11 Owner shall be responsible for issuance of formal notices to proceed (if any) to the Contractor.

4.2 Owner Furnished Items

- 4.2.1 The services, information, surveys and reports specified by Article 4.1 shall be furnished at the Owner's expense, and the Project Consultant shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof. However, if the Project Consultant reviews all of the information provided by the Owner (such as surveys, soil borings and "as-built" documentation) and determines additional information and/or testing is required to properly design the project, the Project Consultant shall request same from the Owner.
- 4.2.2 When documents, services, or other materials furnished by the Owner for the Project Consultant's use are deemed by the Project Consultant as inappropriate, inaccurate, or otherwise unreasonable, the Project Consultant shall notify the Owner immediately upon discovery of same. Failure of the Project Consultant to so notify the Owner shall result in the Project Consultant's being responsible for any costs, expenses, or damages incurred by the Owner and forfeiture of claims for damages, delays or other compensation related to the use of those Owner furnished materials.
- 4.2.3 The Owner shall furnish the above information or authorize the Project Consultant to provide it, as a supplemental service (except where otherwise stipulated), as expeditiously as possible for the orderly progress and development of the Project.

ARTICLE 5 BASIS OF COMPENSATION

5.1 Professional Service Fees;

5.1.1 The Owner agrees to pay the Project Consultant, and the Project Consultant agrees to accept for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement a fixed fee (as computed by the Fixed Fee method below) of:

	Dollars	s. (\$.00)	
Reuse Fee			
(Fee Written Out)		(\$)
Site Adaptation Fee			
(Fee Written Out)		(\$)
(Other – Description) Fee			·
(Fee Written Out)		(\$)

5.2 Fixed Fee:

- 5.2.1 The Fixed Fee listed above is based on the scope of services for a project of this scope, size, complexity and Fixed Limit of Construction Cost (FLCC) of Construction of the project.
- 5.2.2 If the Owner authorizes a significant increase or decrease in the scope of the project, the Fixed Fee may be adjusted as mutually agreed upon. Changes in the FLCC, or, a Construction Contract awarded by the Owner in excess of the FLCC, shall not entitle the Project Consultant to additional Basic Services Fees, and, a Construction Contract awarded by the Owner that is less than the FLCC shall not entitle the Owner to a decrease in Basic Services Fees.
- 5.2.3 The Project Consultant shall not perform Professional Services, Supplemental Services, or Reimbursable Services until a written Purchase Order with the appropriate "line number" has been issued by the Supply Management and Logistics Department together with a fully executed Authorization to Proceed. <u>OWNER</u> <u>SHALL HAVE NO OBLIGATION TO COMPENSATE PROJECT CONSULTANT FOR ANY</u> <u>WORK PERFORMED BY THE PROJECT CONSULTANT PRIOR TO RECEIPT OF A FULLY</u> <u>EXECUTED WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED AND PURCHASE ORDER.</u>
- 5.3 Not Used
- 5.4 Fee for Additive Alternates:
- 5.4.1 The design of alternates within the Owner's total allocated funds for construction will be a Basic Service.
- 5.4.2 The design of additive alternates, not included in the original project scope, in excess of Fixed Limit of Construction Cost of Construction must be authorized by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer, and will be considered supplemental services, subject to negotiation.
- 5.4.3 Fees for the design of additive alternates, not included in the original project scope, will be negotiated and issued by a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), . The Owner will pay one hundred (100%) percent of the negotiated fee for alternates accepted and only pay for the design portions of the (Phases I through III) for alternates rejected.
- 5.5 Raw Labor Rate:
- 5.5.1
- 5.5.1 Raw Labor is defined as the raw salary rate, as determined from salaries reported to the Director of Internal Revenue, of the personnel engaged directly on a project.

5.6 Fees for Reimbursables

5.6.1 Reimbursables are those items pre-approved in writing by a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), and authorized by the Owner in addition to the Basic and Supplemental Services and consist of actual expenditures made by the Project Consultant and the Project Consultants' employees and Sub-Consultants in the interest of the Work.

- 5.6.2 Authorized travel outside the Dade, Broward and Palm Beach County area, lodging and meals in connection with a project (subject to the limitations imposed by Chapter 112.06l, Florida Statutes); fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Work; reproductions (outside of Basic Services and with prior written Owner approval in the form of a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3); postage and handling of Drawings, Specifications and other documents, excluding reproductions for the office use of the Project Consultant and check sets required by the Owner; data processing and photographic production techniques when used in connection with Supplemental Services.
- 5.6.3 The Owner will reimburse the Project Consultant for authorized Reimbursables as verified by appropriate bills, invoices or statements.
- 5.6.4 Any authorized reimbursable shall not include charges for office rent or overhead expenses of any kind, including but not limited to local telephone, cell phone and utility charges, overtime or any discretionary labor benefits, office and drafting supplies, depreciation of equipment, professional dues, subscriptions, etc., reproduction of drawings and specifications, mailing, stenographic, clerical, or other employees time or travel and subsistence not directly related to a project. Authorized reproductions in excess of sets required at each phase of the work will be a Reimbursable.

5.7 Fees for Supplemental Services

5.7.1 The Consultant may be authorized by its receipt of a fully approved and executed ATP and Purchase order (See 5.2.3), to perform Supplemental Services described under Article 2.9 and negotiated in accordance with Article 2.8.2. The fee for such services will be Time Spent plus reimbursable expenses with a Guaranteed Maximum Price based on Raw Salary Rates times a fixed multiplier. The fixed multiplier shall cover mandatory personnel expenses, overhead and profit and shall be set at _______ times Raw Salary Rates and shall be included in the Guaranteed Maximum. Where a mutually agreeable Guaranteed Maximum cannot be arrived at, the Owner may secure services from an independent source or from the Owner's resources. The Consultant shall provide any information and/or copies of project documentation necessary to facilitate the provision of said supplemental services by others.

ARTICLE 6 PAYMENTS TO THE PROJECT CONSULTANT

6.1 Payment for Basic Services

- 6.1.1 Payments for Basic Services may be requested monthly in proportion to services performed during each Phase of the Work and provision of all required insurance policies is a condition precedent to becoming due any such payments to the Project Consultant. Said payments shall, in the aggregate, not exceed the percentage of the estimated total Basic Compensation, or 90% for Phases I, II, or II prior to approval of the submitted design documents, indicated below for each Phase:
 - .1 Fifteen (15%) percent of the total fee upon completion and approval of Phase I.
 - .2 Fifteen (15%) percent of the total fee upon completion and approval of Phase II.
 - .3 Twenty (20%) percent of the total fee upon submittal and approval of 50% of Phase III.
 - .4 Fifteen (15%) percent of the total fee upon completion and approval of Phase III.

- .5 Five (5%) percent of the total fee upon 100% completion of Phase IV.
- .6 Twenty-eight (28%) percent of the total fee upon completion of Phase V
- .7 Two (2%) percent of the total fee upon completion of Phase VI (Warranty) and approval of all Work and audit of account, as per Article 5.
- 6.1.2 Partial payments may be made in Phase V (but not in excess of ninety (90%) percent of the aggregate of Phase V) in monthly increments which are proportioned to match the Work's percentage complete reflected by the Contractor's monthly Applications for Payment. If the Owner's required Substantial Completion date for Phase V is extended through no fault of the Project Consultant, the Project Consultant shall be reasonably compensated for any required professional services and/or expenses not otherwise compensated for in connection with such time extension(s), in accordance with Article 6.2. If the Owner's required Substantial Completion date for Phase V is extended due to an action or inaction of the Project Consultant to the detriment of the Owner, no additional payments or time shall be due to Project Consultant. The Project Consultant shall include with its billing, in either electronic or hard copy format, the following supporting information, and any additional supporting information required by the Owner: time sheets for any fees based upon Raw Salary Rates, subcontractors invoices, invoices for reimbursable expenses and time sheets, subcontractor invoices for reimbursables made necessary by the performance of Work. The invoice shall be totaled and care shall be taken to assure previously paid charges are not duplicated.
- 6.1.3 If the project reaches Final Completion (as defined by the Construction Contract Documents) prior to the expiration of the Anticipated Construction Time, then full payment shall be made at that time provided the Project Consultant has completed all obligations for submittals and other services (including Project Record Documents) as required by this Agreement.
- 6.1.4 No payments shall be due to Project Consultant unless and until all materials, forms and documents required by this Agreement have been provided by Project Consultant and its Sub-Consultant to Owner, or others whom are to receive same. The Owner retains the right to withhold payment from the Project Consultant for non-performance of the Project Consultant during any phase of the Project.
- 6.1.5 The Project Consultant shall submit invoices in the Owner's required invoice format as provided.
- 6.1.6 All Submitted invoices shall have copies of referenced ATP's attached.
- 6.1.7 During project Phases I through III, the Project Consultant shall submit an updated Project Schedule reflecting the Project Consultant's scheduled and actual progress with each submitted invoice. As an attachment to the Project Schedule, the Project Consultant shall provide a progress report giving percentage of completion of the Project development.
- 6.1.8 Project Consultant shall submit a monthly MWBE Sub-Consultant Utilization Report with the monthly request for payment, on forms provided by the Owner.
- 6.1.9 Payments are due and payable thirty (30) days from receipt of the Project Consultant's invoice provided it is in accord with the requirements of this Agreement.

6.2 Payment for Supplemental Services / Reimbursables

- 6.2.1 Payment for Supplemental Services and/or Reimbursables may be requested monthly (on the Owner's standard invoice format) in proportion to the services performed. When such services are authorized, the Project Consultant shall submit for approval by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer, a duly certified invoice, attaching to the invoice all supporting data for payments made to Sub-Consultants engaged on the project or task.
- 6.2.2 Payments are due and payable thirty (30) days from receipt of the Project Consultant's invoice.

6.3 **Project Suspension**

- 6.3.1 If the project is suspended for the convenience of the Owner for more than three months or terminated in whole or in part, during any Phase, the Project Consultant shall be paid for services authorized by an Authorization To Proceed which were performed prior to such suspension or termination, together with the cost of Reimbursable Services and expenses then due.
- 6.3.2 If the Project is resumed after having been suspended for more than three months, the Project Consultant's further compensation shall be adjusted by the addition of Project Resumption Expenses. Project Resumption Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services, and are full compensation for all damages and expenses which are directly or indirectly attributable to resumption of the Project Consultant's services after a Project Suspension. Project Resumption Expenses are applicable only to a Project Suspension by the Owner and shall be computed as a percentage of the total compensation for Basic Services and Supplemental Services earned to the time of termination, as follows:
 - .1 Two (2%) percent of the total compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services earned to the date of Project Suspension for the respective schematic or design development Phase only, if Project Suspension occurs before or during the design development design phase; or
 - .2 Five (5%) percent of the total compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services earned to the date of Project Suspension for the construction documents phase only, if Project Suspension occurs during the construction documents phase development phase; or
 - .3 Five (5%) percent of the total compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services scheduled for the construction contract administration phase only, if Project Suspension occurs during the construction support phase.

ARTICLE 7 REUSE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER DOCUMENTS

7.1 Scope of Services

- 7.1.1 It is understood that all Professional Service Agreements for design and other services include the provision for the Owner's optional re-use of drawings, specifications and other documents (including Phase V of Basic Services described in Article 2); and that the Project Consultant agrees to such re-use in accordance with this provision.
- 7.1.2 If the Owner elects to re-use the drawings, specifications and other documents, in whole or in part, prepared for the project for other projects on other sites, the Project Consultant will be paid a re-use fee, for Basic Services described in Article 2 for Phases I through VI, in the amounts of:
 - .1 Twenty (20%) percent of the original fee for Basic Services for Phases I through III.

.2 Thirty-eight (38%) percent of the original fee for Basic Services for Phases IV, V and VI.

Alternatively, the Owner agrees to pay the Project Consultant, and the Project Consultant agrees to accept, a flat reuse fee of:

(Fee Written Out) \$XX,XXX for the reuse of <project> <Project number> <facility>:

This flat reuse fee will only apply if an actual dollar amount is listed above.

- 7.1.3 For each re-use the Project Consultant shall review the final as-built design of any prior reuse or reuses and shall include all Basic Services rendered under the reuse(s) and incorporate all modifications to the drawings, specifications and other documents resulting from Change-Orders, Errors and Omissions, Code revisions and Code corrections made during the prior reuse(s), and, modifications normally required to suit the new site. (This does not include preparation of reverse plans, changes to the program, subsequent code revisions or exceptional site conditions). The stipulations and conditions of this Agreement shall remain in force for each re-use project, unless otherwise agreed. Reuse fees do not include preparation of documents for offsite improvements.
- 7.1.4 If a reuse project commences in excess of three years from the acceptance of the design development documents by the Owner then Owner shall negotiate the fees to be paid to Project Consultant.

ARTICLE 8 INDEMNIFICATION

8.1 Indemnification

- 8.1.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Project Consultant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Owner, its members, officers, employees and agents (hereinafter collectively "Related Parties") from and against any and all liability, claims, causes of action (by whomever brought or alleged and regardless of the legal theories upon which the liability, claims or causes of action are based), losses, damage, costs, expenses and fees (including but not limited to reasonable fees of attorneys, expert witnesses and other consultants), which are or may be imposed upon, incurred by or asserted against Owner and/or the Related Parties to the extent said liability, claims, causes of action, losses, damages, costs, expenses and/or fees are caused by any errors, omissions or negligent acts of the Project Consultant, any sub-consultant or sub-sub-consultant, any supplier and any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them.
- 8.1.2 In any and all claims against the Owner by any employee of the Project Consultant, or anyone for whose acts the Project Consultant may be liable, the obligations for Project Consultant to indemnify Owner under this contract shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Project Consultant under workman's compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- 8.1.3 In the event that any claims are brought or actions filed against the Owner with respect to the indemnity contained herein, the Project Consultant agrees to defend against any such claims or actions regardless of whether such claims or actions are rightfully or wrongfully brought or filed. The Project Consultant agrees that the Owner may select the attorneys to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. The Project Consultant further agrees to pay, at the sole expense of the Project Consultant, the attorney's fees

and cost incurred by those attorneys selected by the Owner to appear and defend such claims or actions on behalf of the Owner. However, if the claims or actions are covered by insurance and such coverage is acknowledged by the insurance company in writing to the Owner, then, in that case, the insurance company shall choose counsel, direct the defense and be the judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any such claims or actions against the Owner which are within the insurance policy limits and are paid by the insurance company solely. Otherwise, if the claims or actions are not covered by insurance, then, at its sole option the Owner shall have the sole authority for the direction of the defense, and shall be the sole judge of the acceptability of any compromise or settlement of any claims or actions asserted against the Owner.

8.1.4 The Project Consultant recognizes the nature of the indemnification obligations imposed under this contract and voluntarily makes these covenants. The obligation imposed upon the Project Consultant under this Indemnification Agreement shall survive termination of this contract.

ARTICLE 9 INSURANCE

9.1 General Insurance Requirements

- 9.1.1 The Project Consultant shall not start work under this Agreement until the Project Consultant has obtained all insurance required hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the Owner.
- 9.1.2 All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. All insurance companies providing policies required under this Agreement shall have at least an "A-" rating and a financial rating of no less than VI in the current A. M. Best Manual or hold a Moody's Investors Service Financial Strength of "Aa3" or better.
- 9.1.3 Insurance policies required under this Agreement shall be endorsed to be primary of all other valid and collectible coverages maintained by The School Board of Broward County, Florida.
- 9.1.4 The Project Consultant shall furnish certificates of insurance to the Owner for review and approval at the time of execution of this Contract and shall maintain same at all times during the term of this Agreement.
- 9.1.5 All Certificates of Insurance shall be in the form as approved by Insurance Standards Office (ISO), unless approved by Owner and shall clearly indicate that the Project Consultant has obtained insurance of the type, amount and classification required by these provisions, in excess of any pending claims at the time of contract award to the Project Consultant. No material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without a thirty (30) day prior written notice to and approval by the Owner. All Certificates shall list the Owner's project number and full project title (including applicable facility name).
- 9.1.6 Certificates of Insurance must clearly list any and all deductibles by coverages.

9.2 Insurance Required:

9.2.1 Automobile Liability Insurance: The Project Consultant shall maintain Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles used in connection with this Agreement in amounts not less than One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit and shall not be less than the standard ISO Business Auto Policy CA 00 01.

9.2.2 Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): The Project Consultant shall procure Professional Liability Insurance in the manner described herein. The deductible shall not be more than Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars for each policy and must be indicated on the certificate of insurance. The insurance policy shall be non-cancelable and the limits of the Professional Liability Insurance Policy shall be as follows:

9.2.2.1 Not used.

- 9.2.2.2. Projects require a practice policy with a per claim/annual aggregate in accordance with the specifications delineated below relative to the cumulative construction value of all projects:
 - .1 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Project Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is less than Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars.
 - .2 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Three Million (\$3,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Project Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is between Five Million One (\$5,000,001) Dollars to Ten Million (\$10,000,000) Dollars.
 - .3 One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars on a per claim/Five Million (\$5,000,000) Dollars annual aggregate basis for Project Consultants whose cumulative construction value for all Board contracts is greater than Ten Million One (\$10,000,001) Dollars.

The Project Consultant shall be required to maintain the practice policy in accordance with the above specifications for a period commencing with execution of this contract and terminating three years after final completion of said projects. Should additional projects or change orders be added that increase the cumulative construction value to another tier shown above, the Project Consultant will be required to show proof of coverage at the higher limit / aggregate. In addition, the project consultant shall provide information regarding the total claims against said practice policy on an annual basis for the term of the contract upon and terminating three years after final completion of the project (Claims/Loss history should be forwarded to the Risk Management Department), as The School Board of Broward County, Florida, deems appropriate.

The Professional Liability insurance must provide for all sums which the Project Consultant shall be legally obligated to pay as damages for claims arising out of or relating to the negligent services performed by the Project Consultant or any person employed or acting on the Project Consultant's behalf (including, but not limited to, Sub-Consultants) in connection with this Agreement. If the Owner, at its sole discretion, agrees that such coverage is not commercially reasonably available, the Owner may, at its discretion, authorize the Project Consultant to alter the coverage by substituting a lower aggregate or changing any other terms and conditions of the coverage (including but not limited to deductible amounts) based upon the scope of the project.

9.2.3 Workers' Compensation Insurance: The Project Consultant shall maintain Workers' Compensation Insurance in compliance with Florida Statutes, Chapter 440 and Employer's Liability Limit of not less than Five Hundred Thousand (\$500,000) Dollars per Occurrence.

9.2.4 General Liability Insurance: The Project Consultant shall maintain General Liability Insurance, including Contractual Liability to cover the "Hold Harmless Agreement" set forth herein, with bodily injury limits of not less than One Million (\$1,000,000) Dollars per occurrence combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage and not less than the Two Million (\$2,000,000) General Aggregate such coverage shall apply separately to each project. The School Board of Broward County, Florida, its members, officers, employees, and agents shall be named as an additional insured under the General Liability policy.

ARTICLE 10 GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1 Performance

- 10.1.1 **Performance and Delegation:** The services to be performed hereunder shall be performed by the Project Consultant's and Sub-Consultant's own staff, unless otherwise approved by the Owner in writing. Said approval shall not be construed as constituting an Agreement between the Owner and said other person or firm.
- 10.1.2 Term of Agreement: The term of this Agreement shall start upon execution by the parties hereto and extend until the completion of Phase VI (Warranty) activities as set forth above except as may be otherwise agreed to in writing by the parties hereto, or as provided further herein under Article 10 and Article 7.
- 10.1.3 Time for Performance: The Project Consultant agrees to start all work hereunder upon receipt of an Authorization to Proceed issued by the Chief Facilities and Construction Officer or his designee and to complete each Phase within the time stipulated in the Authorization To Proceed (Attachment 6 to this Agreement ("ATP")) and as required by the Project Schedule (Attachment 1 to this Agreement). The Project Consultant acknowledges that failure to perform timely may cause the Owner to sustain loss and damages and will be responsible for same. The Consultant agrees that Owner is entitled to recover no less than One Hundred Dollars (\$100) per consecutive calendar day of unexcused delay caused by the Consultant's failure to comply with the times set forth in the fully executed ATP. Owner shall have the right to deduct such amounts from payments due and owing to the Consultant.
- 10.1.4 **Time Extensions:** A reasonable extension of time for completion of various Phases may be granted by the Owner should there be a delay on the part of the Owner in fulfilling its obligations pursuant to this Agreement. Such extension shall not be the basis or cause for any claims or causes of action by the Project Consultant for additional or extra compensation. Under no circumstances shall the Project Consultant be entitled to additional compensation or payment as a result of or relating to delays on the Project.
- 10.1.5 Time is of the essence with regard to the performance of this Contract.
- 10.1.6 Excess Funds: Any party receiving funds paid by the School Board of Broward County, Florida under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify the School Board of Broward County, Florida of any funds erroneously received from the School Board of Broward County, Florida of upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, as amended, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by the School Board of Broward County, Florida. The erroneous payment and/or overpayment will be promptly transmitted and returned to the School Board of Broward County, Florida with applicable interest as set forth herein.

10.2 Termination Of Agreement

- 10.2.1 Right to Terminate: The Owner has the right to terminate this Agreement for its own convenience on seven days written notice. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Project Consultant shall be paid in accordance with Article 10.2.5. To receive payment, all charts, sketches, studies, drawings, and other documents or other materials related to work authorized under this Agreement, whether finished or not, must be turned over to the Owner.
- 10.2.2 The Consultant may terminate this Agreement only for a material breach of the Agreement and provided the Project Consultant has given the Owner written notice of the material breach and ten (10) days to cure that breach. In the event of any dispute regarding or relating to performance pursuant to this Agreement, or payment hereunder, then in that event, the Project Consultant is obligated to continue performance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement unless instructed by the Owner to suspend or delay performance.
- 10.2.3 Owner may terminate this Agreement for cause, which may include, but not be limited to any of the following; failure of Project Consultant to comply with any of its material obligations under this Agreement; a decrease in the projected, available Capital Outlay funds which renders continuation of the design or construction of the Project impossible or impractical; or conditions which arise that constitute Force Majeure under Article 10.2.8 of this Agreement. In such event Project Consultant shall not be entitled to any additional payments and may be liable to Owner for any damages or losses incurred or suffered as a result of Project Consultant's failure to properly perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. In the event it is later determined that the Owner was not justified in terminating the Agreement for cause, then it shall be deemed to be a termination for convenience pursuant to Article 10.2.1 above, and the Project Consultant's sole compensation in accordance with that paragraph.
- 10.2.4 Whether or not this Agreement is so terminated, Project Consultant shall be liable to Owner for any damage or loss resulting from such failure or violation by Project Consultant, including, but not limited to, costs in addition to those agreed to herein for prosecuting professional services to completion and delay damages paid or incurred by Owner. The rights and remedies of Owner provided by this paragraph are cumulative with and in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or this Agreement.
- 10.2.5 Termination Expenses: Termination Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services, and are full compensation for all damages and expenses which are directly or indirectly attributable to termination. Termination Expenses are applicable only to a termination for convenience by Owner and shall be computed as a percentage of the total compensation for Basic Services and Supplemental Services earned to the time of termination, as follows:
 - .1 Twenty (20%) percent of the total compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services earned to the date of termination, if termination occurs before or during the schematic design phase; or
 - .2 Ten (10%) percent of the total compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services earned to the date of termination, if termination occurs during the design development phase; or
 - .3 Five (5%) percent of the total compensation for Basic and Supplemental Services earned to the date of termination, if termination occurs during any subsequent phase.
- 10.2.6 Annulment: The Project Consultant warrants that no one has been employed or retained other than an employee working solely for the Project Consultant, to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that the Project Consultant has not paid, nor agreed to pay, any company or other person any fee, commission, gift or other

consideration contingent upon the making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Owner has the right to annul this Agreement without liability.

- 10.2.7 Fixed Fees Exceeding \$50,000: For all Fixed Fees or other "lump-sum" fees for professional service Agreements over Fifty Thousand (\$50,000) Dollars the Project Consultant shall execute a truth-innegotiations certificate as in accordance with 287.05 and all required language set forth therein. Requirements of Florida Statute 287.055 (2004), as amended, are incorporated herein by reference.
- 10.2.8 Force Majeure: The Owner's or Consultant's failure to perform any term or condition of this Agreement as a result of conditions beyond its control such as, but not limited to, war, strikes, fires, floods, acts of God, governmental restrictions, power failures, or damage or destruction of any network facilities or servers, shall not be deemed a breach of this Agreement.
- 10.2.9 Termination of Scrutinized Companies or False Certification: SBBC reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is placed on the List of Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel or is engaged in a boycott of Israel; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudar; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudar; is on the List of Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector; or has engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. SBBC also reserves the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 287.135(5), Florida Statues, if the other party is found to have submitted a false certification.

10.3 Project Consultant's Accounting Records and Right to Audit Provisions

- 10.3.1 Project Consultant's records which shall include any and all records reasonably requested by Owner that relate to performance of services by Project Consultant or Sub-Consultants. Records include but are not limited to information, materials and data of every kind and character (hard copy, as well as computer readable data if it exists), books, papers, documents subscriptions, recordings, estimates, price quotations, agreements purchase orders, leases, contracts, commitments, arrangements, notes, daily diaries, superintendent reports, drawings, receipts, vouchers, monthly, quarterly, yearly or other financial statements, accounting records, payroll time sheets, job cost reports, job cost history, margin analysis, written policies and procedures, all Sub-Consultant files (including proposals of successful and unsuccessful Sub-Consultants, contracts, correspondence), original estimates, estimating worksheets, computer records, disks and software, videos, photography, correspondence, change order files (including documentation covering negotiated settlements). constructability or peer reviews, coordination documents, logs and supporting documentation, general ledger entries, insurance information, and any other supporting evidence necessary to substantiate charges related to this contract (all the foregoing hereinafter referred to as "records") shall be open to inspection and subject to audit and/or reproduction, during normal working hours, by Owner's agent or its authorized representative to the extent necessary to adequately permit evaluation and verification of any invoices, payments or claims submitted by the contractor or any of his payees pursuant to the execution of the contract. Such records subject to examination shall also include, but not be limited to, those records necessary to evaluate and verify direct and indirect costs (including overhead allocations), fees, reimbursable services, etc. as they may apply to costs, matters or items associated with this contract.
- 10.3.2 For the purpose of such audits, inspections, examinations and evaluations, the Owner's agent or authorized representative shall have access to said records from the effective date of this contract, for the duration of the work, and until five (5) years after the date of final payment by Owner to Project Consultant pursuant to this contract. All costs which the Consultant is unable to provide support or documentation to substantiate that it was incurred as represented by the original estimated breakdown of cost or found not to be in compliance

with provisions of this contract, shall be reimbursed to the Owner.

- 10.3.3 Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall have access to the Project Consultant's facilities, shall have access to all necessary records, and shall be provided adequate and appropriate work space, in order to conduct audits in compliance with this article. Owner's agent or its authorized representative shall give auditees reasonable advance notice of intended audits.
- 10.3.4 Project Consultant shall require all Sub-Consultants and insurance agents, to comply with the provisions of this article by insertion of the requirements hereof in any written contract Agreement. Failure to obtain such written contracts which include such provisions shall be reason to exclude some or all of the related costs from amounts payable to the Project Consultant pursuant to this contract.
- 10.3.5 If an audit inspection or examination in accordance with this article, discloses overcharges (of any nature) by the Project Consultant to the Owner in excess of \$25,000 the actual cost of the Owner's audit shall be paid by the Project Consultant.
- 10.3.6 Public Records: The following provisions are required by Section 119.0701, Florida Statues, and may not be amended. Project Consultant shall keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under this Agreement. Upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, Project Consultant shall provide SBBC with a copy of any requested public records or to allow the requested public records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statues, or as otherwise provided by law. Project Consultant shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Agreement's term and following completion of the Agreement if Project Consultant does not transfer the public records to SBBC. Upon completion of the Agreement, Project Consultant shall transfer, at no cost, to SBBC all public records in possession of Project Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by SBBC to perform the services required under the Agreement. If Project Consultant transfer all public records to SBBC upon completion of the Agreement, Project Consultant shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Project Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the Agreement, Project Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to SBBC, upon request from SBBC's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with SBBC's information technology systems.

IF A PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THE AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT...

Custodian of Public Records [Name] [Street Address] [City, FL zip code] [754-321-####] [e-mail: (email address)]

10.4 Ownership of Documents

- 10.4.1 The Schematic Design and Design Development documents developed under this Contract shall become and be the sole property of the Owner whether the Project for which they were developed is executed or not. The Project Consultant may maintain copies thereof for its records and for its future professional endeavors although the Owner shall bear no liability or any responsibility whatsoever for such use of said documents by the Project Consultant. All or part of the Schematic Design and Design Development documents prepared by the Project Consultant for this project may be used as a prototype for other facilities by the Owner. Any reuse of Schematic Design or Design Development documents developed under this Contract by the Owner or others as permitted by the Owner shall be at the sole discretion of the Owner and at the Owner's sole risk.
- 10.4.2 Provided the Project Consultant has complied with the terms of this Agreement, construction working drawings, specifications and other documents or materials developed after the completion of the design development phase are and shall remain the property of the Project Consultant whether the Project for which they are made is executed or not.
- 10.4.3 The Owner shall be permitted to retain copies, including reproducible and electronic media copies, of drawings, specifications and other documents or materials developed after the Design Development Phase for various informational and reference purposes related to management, maintenance and operation of facilities, establishing construction standards, and various other archival functions without limitation and without subsequent notice to the Project Consultant.
- 10.4.4 The drawings and specifications may be used by the Owner on other projects, or for any other purpose included, but not limited to, for completion of the Project's construction in the event the Project Consultant's services are terminated as per other provisions of this Contract.
- 10.4.5 Submission or distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of the Project Consultant's rights.
- 10.4.6 In the event of the Project Consultant's termination under other provisions of this Agreement, the Owner shall receive all original documents prepared to the date of termination and shall have the right to use those documents and any reproductions in any way necessary to complete the Project, or for any other purpose.
- 10.4.7 In the event Owner requests any such documents or materials referred to in this Article and Project Consultant fails to provide same as requested by Owner, then Project Consultant acknowledges that Owner will be irreparably harmed and subject to an injunction to provide same.
- 10.4.8 The Owner will not modify or distribute the documents, including electronic media versions, to third parties except for those purposes listed above without the expressed permission and consent of the Project Consultant. The Owner will delete any title blocks or other marks identifying the originating Project Consultant from any materials so distributed. The Owner will indemnify the Project Consultant against any claims that result from the modification of data and disks by the Owner.

10.5 Electronic Media

10.5.1 Where this Agreement or referenced provisions in the Contract Documents require the Project Consultant to provide information or documents in either electronic or magnetic media, the preparation and format of that

media shall conform to the Owner's Electronic Media Submittal Requirements (Attachment 3 to this Agreement).

10.6 Attachments and References

- 10.6.1 The following named attachments are made an integral part of this Agreement:
 - .1 Attachment 1: Project Schedule
 - .2 Attachment 2: Project Scope
 - .3 Attachment 3: Electronic Media Submittal Requirements
 - .4 Attachment 4: Project Consultant's Invoice Format, Reimbursable and Supplemental Services Format
 - .5 Attachment 5: List of Project Team Members
 - .6 Attachment 6: Authorization to Proceed (ATP) Form

Professional Services Required Project Schedule Professional Fee

- Attachment 7: Document Submittal Checklist
- .8 Attachment 8: Document 00455 Background Screening
- .9 Attachment 9: IRS Form W-9
- .10 Attachment 10: Truth in Negotiations Certificate
- .11 Attachment 11: ACH Payment Agreement Form
- .12 Attachment 12: Conflict of Interest Form
- 10.6.2 Online Documents: The following documents shall be downloaded by the Project Consultant and are considered as Attachments to this Contract:

Design Standards

.7

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/DSS/DS_Docs/DesignStandards.htm

- Design Criteria
- Design and Material Standards Division 1 thru Division 17
- Document Submittal Checklist for Plan Review

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/constructioncontracts/D0docs.html

Specifications – Division 0

State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) latest edition

http://www.fldoe.org/edfacil/sref.asp

• F.I.S.H. layering system for AutoCAD: Note: the laying system is not posted on line. It will need to be requested thru:

Facility Planning and Real Estate 600 SE 3rd Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312

754-321-1932

10.7 Extent of Agreement:

- 10.7.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the Owner and the Project Consultant and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, written or oral.
- 10.7.2 This Agreement may not be amended, changed, modified, or otherwise altered in any particular, at any time after the execution hereof, except by resolution of The School Board of Broward County, Florida.
- 10.7.3 This Agreement is for the benefit of the parties to the Agreement and is not for the benefit of any other parties nor shall it create a contractual relationship with any other party.
- 10.7.4 This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida Venue of any action arising out of this Agreement shall be in Broward County, Florida. The parties are encouraged to participate in mediation of any dispute before engaging in litigation.

10.8 Strict Performance:

10.8.1 The failure of either party to insist upon or enforce strict performance by the other party of any of the provisions of this Agreement or to exercise any rights under this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment to any extent of its rights to assert or rely upon any such provisions or rights in that or any other instance.

10.9 Prompt and Satisfactory Correction:

10.9.1 The Owner, at its sole discretion, may direct the Project Consultant, at no additional cost to the Owner, to promptly and satisfactorily correct any services found to be defective or not in compliance with the requirements of this Agreement or the requirements of any governmental authority, law, regulations or ordinances.

10.10 Successors and Assigns:

- 10.10.1 The performance of this Agreement shall not be delegated or assigned by the Project Consultant without the written consent of the Owner.
- 10.10.2 The Project Consultant and the Owner each binds one another, their partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the partners, successors, legal representatives and assigns of such party in respect to all covenants of this Agreement.

10.11 Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility or Voluntary Exclusion:

10.11.1 Lower Tier Covered Transactions: Executive Order 12549 provides that, to the extent permitted by law, Executive departments and agencies shall participate in a government-wide system for non-procurement debarment and suspension. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities. Except as provided in ß 85.200, Debarment or Suspension, ß 85.201, Treatment of Title IV HEA participation, and ß85.215, Exception provision, debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one agency shall have

government-wide effect. A lower tier covered transaction is, in part, any transaction between a participant [SBBC] and a person other than a procurement contract for goods or services, regardless of type, under a primary covered transaction; and any procurement contract for goods or services between a participant and a person, regardless of type, expected to equal or exceed the Federal procurement small purchase threshold fixed at 10 U.S.C. 2304(g) and 41 U.S.C. 253(g) (currently \$100,000) under a primary covered transaction. A participant may rely upon the certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it and its principals are not debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. Each participant shall require participants in lower tier covered transactions to include the following certification for it and its principals in any proposal submitted in connection with such lower tier covered transactions.

10.11.2 Certification and Disclosure

- .1 The lower tier participant (Project Consultant) certifies, by entering this Agreement, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
- .2 Where the lower tier participant (Project Consultant) is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such participant shall provide an explanation to the Owner.
- .3 The Consultant warrants that he or she has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement and that he or she has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Consultant any fee, commission, percentage, gift, or other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this agreement. For the breach or violation of this provision, the Owner shall have the right to terminate the Agreement without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the fees due and owing to the Consultant, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift, or consideration. (Ch. 287.055, F.S.)

10.12 Non-Discrimination, EEO, and ADAAA

- 10.12.1 Non-Discrimination The School Board of Broward County, Florida prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender, national origin, marital status, race, religion or sexual orientation.
- 10.12.2 Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) The School Board of Broward County, Florida, prohibits any policy or procedure which results in discrimination on the basis of age, color, disability, gender identity, gender expression, national origin, marital status, race, religion, sex or sexual orientation. Individuals who wish to file a discrimination and/or harassment complaint may call the Executive Director, Benefits & EEO Compliance at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.

10.12.3 Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008 - Individuals with disabilities requesting accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act Amendments Act of 2008, (ADAAA) may call Equal Educational Opportunities (EEO) at 754-321-2150 or Teletype Machine (TTY) 754-321-2158.

10.13 Captions

10.13.1 Captions – The captions, section numbers, article numbers, title and headings appearing in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in no way define, limit, construe or describe the scope or intent of such articles or sections of this Agreement, nor in any way effect this Agreement and shall not be construed to create a conflict with the provisions of this Agreement.

10.14 Authority

10.14.1 Authority Provision: Each person signing this agreement on behalf of either party individually warrants that he or she has full legal power to execute this Agreement on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing, and to bind and obligate such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement.

10.15 Notice

10.15.1 Notice Provision: When any of the parties desire to give notice to the other, such notice must be in writing, sent by US Mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the party for whom it is intended at the place last specified; the place for giving notice shall remain such until it is changed by written notice in compliance with the provisions of the paragraph. For the present, the parties designate the following as the respective places for giving notice.

T- ODDA	
To SBBC:	Superintendent of Schools
	The School Board of Broward County, Florida
	600 Southeast Third Avenue
	Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301
With a Copy to:	Office of the Chief Facilities Officer
	600 SE 3 Avenue
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312
	Attn: Leo Bobadilla
	Chief Facilities Officer
With a Copy to:	Office of Facilities and Construction
	3775 SW 16th St
	Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312
	Attn: Shelley N. Meloni
	Director, Pre-Construction Office of Facilities and Construction
	And

Heery International, Owners Representative 811 Ponce de Leon Boulevard Coral Gables, FL 33134

Attn: Robert Corbin Program Director/Vice President

Flogram Director vice President

To Design Professional:Insert Name and Address Provided by Other PartyWith a Copy to:Insert Name and Address Provided by Other Party

10.16 Excess Funds

10.16.1 Any party receiving funds paid by The School Board of Broward County, Florida (SBBC) under this Agreement agrees to promptly notify SBBC of any funds erroneously received from SBBC upon the discovery of such erroneous payment or overpayment. Any such excess funds shall be refunded to SBBC with interest calculated from the date of the erroneous payment or overpayment. Interest shall be calculated using the interest rate for judgments under Section 55.03, Florida Statutes, applicable at the time the erroneous payment or overpayment was made by SBBC.

10.17 Background Screening

10.17.1 Background Screening. Project Consultant agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Project Consultant, its agents, subconsultants and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or (3) have access or control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Project Consultant or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Project Consultant will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Project Consultant and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Project Consultant to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement.

Project Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Project Consultant's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Project Consultant pursuant to Article 8 of this Agreement and the laws of Florida.

10.18 Errors and Omissions

10.18.1 The Project Consultant shall be responsible for any errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the drawings, specifications, and other documents. The Project Consultant will correct the drawings and specifications at no additional design cost to the Owner for any and all errors and omissions in the drawings, specifications prepared by the Project Consultant. The Project Consultant further agrees, at no additional cost, to render assistance to the Owner in resolving problems relating to the design or specified materials.

10.18.2 Deductions may be made from the Project Consultant's Basic Services Compensation on account of errors and

omissions in the drawings, specifications and other documents prepared by the Project Consultant or in the Project Consultant's performance of its obligations under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 11 INCORPORATION OF REQ INTO AGREEMENT

11.1 In addition to those Attachments and References identified and made part of this Agreement in Article 10.6.1, the provisions of RFQ No. XXX ("TYPE OF SERVICE") (the "RFQ") are hereby incorporated into this Agreement. In the event of conflict between the provisions contained in this Agreement and the RFQ, the more stringent provision shall prevail. If this Agreement is silent on an issue that is contained with the RFQ, the provisions of the RFQ shall be followed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, The School Board of Broward County, Florida, has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the School Board to be set hereto; and the said Project Consultant has caused this Agreement to be executed by the undersigned and the seal of the Project Consultant set hereto on this day and year first above written.

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
(SEAL)
ATTEST THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BROWARD COUNTY, FLORIDA
Robert W. Runcie, Superintendent of Schools Dr. Rosalind Osgood, Chair
Approved as to Form and Legal Content:
Office of the General Counsel
DELETE THE SIGNATURE SECTIONS NOT USED
WHEN THE PROJECT CONSULTANT IS A CORPORATION OR PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION

(Corporate Seal)

(ATTEST)

(Type Name of Firm Here) Legal Name of Corporation

President, (Type Name Here)

Secretary, (Type Name Here) (Type Registration Number Here) Project Consultant's Registration Number



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Architectural/ Engineering Services Agreement (TRADITIONAL DELIVERY) Version 05/11/2016 Page 52



ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF BROWARD

BEFORE ME this day of		, and,
	and the second	

personally known to me to be the persons described in and who executed

the foregoing contract and acknowledge that he executed the same as his free act and deed for the purposes therein

expressed.

WITNESS my hand and official seal in the County and State last official this ______day of

Notary Public State of Florida

201

My Commission Expires:

N ID		Owner's Initial Schedule
NA IN	Activity Name	Remaining Start Finish 2014 2015 2018 Duration Life Law Andrews Constant and a finite Co
SCHEDULE		J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O N D J F M A M J Jul A S O
A shakehal ali dama saya saya saya saya		
DESIGN	and the second	97 08-Jul-14 13-Oct-14 13-Oct-14
A1000	Pre-Design	7 08-Jul-14 14-Jul-14
A1010	Authorization to Proceed (ATP)	0 15-Jul-14 Authorization to Proceed (ATP)
A1020	Schematic Design (30%)	21 15-Jul-14 04-Aug-14
A1030	Plan Review - Schemalic Design	5 05-Aug-14 09-Aug-14 Plan Beview - Schematig Design
A1040	Dosign Development (60%)	28 10-Aug-14 07-Stp-14
A1050	Ptan Review - Design Development	5 08-Sep-14 12-Sep-14
A1060	90% Constuction Documents	14 13-Sep-14 26-Sep-14 99% Construction Documents
A1070	Plan Review - 90% Construction Documents	5 27-Sep-14 01-Oct-14
A1080	100% Construction Documents	7 02-Oct-14 08-Oct 1 100% Construction Documents
A1090	Plan Review - 100% Construction Documents	5 09-Oct-14 13-Oct-1 1 - Plan Review - 100% Construction Documents
A1100	Submittal of 100% CDs to Building Dept.	0 Contraction of the submitted of 100% CDs to Building Dept.
PERMITT	NG	26 14-00-14 00-2 4 V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V
A1110	Building Deparment Initial Plan Review	14 14-Oct 14 27-Oct 14 Building Department Initial Plan Review
A1120	Plan Revisions by Design Professional	7 28-Oct 14 23-Not 14
A1130	Resubmittal of revised Plans to Building Dept.	0 DRNov-1
A1140	Building Department 2nd Plan Review	5 04-Nov-14 5 Building Department 2nd Plan Roviow
A1150	Permit Approval	CB-Nov-14
PROCURI	MENT	21 USAN 4 01 Dec 14
A1160	Procurement	21 09-Nov-14 01-Dec-14
CONSTRU		180 02-Dec-14 02-Jun-15
A SHITTAN RATER OWNER SHE WAS IN STOR		
A1170	Construction & Closeout	180 02-Dec-14 02-Jun-15

Actual Work Critical Re

Critical Remaining Work Summary

-

PROJECT SCOPE

Refer to RFQ Attachment G for the Project Scope which is to be included in the PSA. The Project Scope was not included in the sample PSA to limit the size of the RFQ document.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Architectural/ Engineering Services Agreement

Electronic Media Requirements

All Work product for all projects, requires hard copies, electronic copies (PDF) and electronic original copies. The electronic media requirements are as listed below.

ELECTRONIC MEDIA

1.0 General Information

1.1 The School Board of Broward County, Florida contracts with one or more Internet bid advertising and distribution services. The Design Professional shall post the complete bid package to these services upon written notification by the Owner. The posted documents shall be read only documents and the file format shall be PDF.

2.0 Software Requirements

- 2.1 Word Processing
 - 2.1.1 Provide word processing files in Microsoft Word for Windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.

2.2 Spreadsheets

2.2.1 Provide spreadsheet files in Microsoft Excel for windows compatible file formats including all information necessary for remote printing.

2.3 Computer aided Design and Drafting2.3.1 Provide all CADD files as AutoCAD 2010 files, Window's version.

3.0 CAD Standards

- 3.1 Standard plotted drawing size: 24 inch x 36 inch or 30 inch x 42 inch sheets.
 - 3.1.1 All sheets within a set shall be the same size unless pre-approved otherwise. (for example survey sheets)
- 3.2 Design Professional shall provide to the Owner the standard file naming Protocol they will be utilizing.
- 3.3 CAD File Layering
 - 3.3.1 Conform to the most up to date guidelines defined by the American Institute of Architects (AIA) standard document, "CAD Layer Guidelines."
 - 3.3.2 Provide the required Layering for the Florida Inventory of Schoolhouses (F.I.S.H.) documents
 - 3.3.1.1 The F.I.S.H. layering scheme is not available on-line. It can be requested through:

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 12/1/15
Facility Planning and Real Estate600 SE 3rd Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312754-321-1932

- 3.3.3 Provide a separate list of all layers which do not conform to the standard AIA CAD Layer Guidelines or the FISH layering scheme.
- 3.4 No custom hatch patterns shall be utilized.
- 3.5 All symbols and blocks to have descriptive names
- 4.0 Electronic Media Delivery Requirements
 - 4.1 Transmittals shall include the following
 - 4.1.1 The Project Number, Project Title and date
 - 4.1.2 The Facility Name
 - 4.1.3 The submittal type
 - 4.1.4 The format and version of the software.
 - 4.1.5 An attached Listing of file names with the latest document publish dates
 - 4.2 All electronic media shall contain an attached label which shall identify 4.1.1, 4.1.2, and 4.1.3.
 - 4.3 Document clean-up
 - 4.3.1 Before a CADD file is placed on the delivery electronic digital media, the following procedures shall be performed:
 - 4.3.1.1 Purge all files and remove all extraneous graphics outside the border area.
 - 4.3.1.2 Make sure all reference files are attached without device path
 - 4.3.1.3 All required project files both graphic and nongraphic, shall include color tables, pen tables, font libraries, block libraries, user command files, plot files, etc. All project related blocks must be provided to the Owner as a part of the electronic digital deliverables.
 - 4.3.1.4 Make sure that all support files such as those listed above are in the same directory and that references to those files do not include device Path.
 - 4.4 The following Plot File Development and Project Documentation Information shall be submitted as an enclosure or attachment to the transmittal letter provided with each electronic digital media submittal.
 - 4.4.1 Documentation of the plot files for each drawing which will be needed to be able to allow identical plotting by the Owner at a later date. This documentation shall include the plotter configuration (e.g., name and model of plotter), pen settings, drawing orientation, drawing

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 12/1/15 size, and any other special instructions.

- 4.4.2 Instructions concerning how to generate plotted, drawings from the provided plot files.
- 4.5 Provide all symbols and blocks used in the project in a separate files.
- 4.6 List of all database/spreadsheet files associated with each drawing, as well as a description and documentation of the database format.
- 5.0 Ownership: Refer to Agreement for specific Owner and Design Professional's rights.
- 6.0 Documents for the Construction Contractor:
 - 6.1 The Owner and the Design Professional shall make various electronic information available to the Contractor during the Construction phase of the Project.
- 7.0 Where electronic media submittals of final site surveys are required: Provide electronic copies of any existing site survey data already on electronic media.
- 8.0 At the Contractors option, the Design Professional will provide the Contractor one set of AutoCAD (.dwg) electronic file format contract drawings, to be used for as built drawings at the Contractor's option. Note that the Architect's name and information to be removed.

Electronic Media Requirements Revised 12/1/15

Design Professionals Invoice Format

The School Board of Broward County, Florida requires submittal of the Design Professional's invoice on the District's standard invoice forms attached to a transmittal form or letter on the Design Professional's company letterhead. Include the information and attachments described below:

- 1. Letterhead Containing Firm Information
 - A. Firm Name
 - B. Address
 - C. Telephone and FAX Numbers
 - D. Consultant's Invoice Reference Number
- 2. Address Transmittal/Letter to:

Office of Facilities and Construction The School Board of Broward County, Florida 3775 SW 16th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 Attention: Name of Project Manager

- 3. Ensure that Transmittal/Letter references the following information:
 - A. Date of submittal.
 - B. The Invoice Number for ATP Number (example: Invoice No. 01 for ATP No. 01).
 - C. The School Board of Broward County's Purchase Order No.: (Which will be provided by the Facilities Project Manager at the beginning of the project.)
 - D. Name of Facility (and Facility Number).
 - E. Name of Project
 - F. School Board Project Number
- 4. Ensure attachment of the following documents to the Transmittal/Letter:
 - A. Design Professional's Invoice Form
 - B. Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice Form
 - C. Copy of signature page (page 3 of 3) of the Design Professional's Authorization to Proceed.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 3775 SW 16th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 (754) 321-1500

Design Professional		Date:
(Name)		
Project No:	Facility Name:	Invoice No:
Project Title:		SBBC PO No.
Design Professional's		ATP No.
Remit to address:		Invoice From:
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Project Manager

······································	 		1-11-VIL WWW./IAI	
Original Basic Fee	\$			
Current basic fee	\$			
		and the second sec	and the second se	

INVOICE TOTALS:

Summary	Current	Fee Previously E	en realiste en seu a superior estateur en seu ara presente en seu de	e Balan	ce
Basic Services	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Reimbursable	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Total:	\$	\$	\$	\$	

BASIC FEE TOTALS:

Period	Fee	Previously Bille	i Ti	nis Invoice Balance	
From to dates	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
Other Services	\$	\$	%\$	%\$	%
Total Previously E	Billed:	\$	1		
Total Amount Thi	s Involce:		\$		
Total Balance:					\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By:
Title: Date: (Signature)	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Name: Title: Date:
·	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Florida Facilities and Construction Management Department 3775 SW 16th Street Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 (754) 321-1500

Design Professional's Reimbursable Invoice

Project No: Project Title: Design Professional's: Remit to address: Facility Name: Invoice No: SBBC PO No. ATP No. Invoice From:

Project Manager:

ftem No.	Date	Reimbursable Item	Amount	
		····		
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				
······				
	······································	,		
		Invoice Total	\$	

Receipts for each Item must be attached.

Current Contract Amount:	\$.	
Total This Invoice:	_	\$	
Total Previously Billed:			\$
Total Balance:			\$

Submitted By: Name:	Certified By: Name: Title:	Recommended By:	Approved By: Name: Title:
Title: Date:	Project Manager Date:	Name: Title: Date:	Date:
(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)	(Signature)

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Professional Services Agreement Attachment 5 Revised 12/1/15

Attachment 5

Design and Professional Consulting Staff

Prime Firm:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
·····					
	·				

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			······································		

Subconsultant:

	Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address

Subconsultant:

Name	Title	Role	Time Commitment	Florida professional license	Email Address
			*****i		

Consultant's Authorization to Proceed

Refer to RFQ Attachment H for the Consultant's Authorization to Proceed form which is to be included in the PSA.

.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida Architectural/ Engineering Services Agreement

.

Page 1

ATTACHMENT 7

Design & Support Services DOCUMENT SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST

GO TO:

2

http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/facilities_construction/Design_Standards/SubmittalDocuments.asp



Document 00455: Background Screening of Contractual Personnel

Project No:			
Location No:			
Project Title:			
Facility Name:			

SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA STATUTES, BACKGROUND SCREENING OF CONTRACTUAL PERSONNEL

Contractor agrees to comply with all requirements of Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes, and that Contractor and all of its personnel who (1) are to be permitted access to school grounds when students are present, (2) will have direct contact with students, or (3) have access or control of school funds will successfully complete the background screening required by the referenced statutes and meet the standards established by the statutes. This background screening will be conducted by SBBC in advance of Contractor or its personnel providing any services under the conditions described in the previous sentence. Contractor will bear the cost of acquiring the background screening required by Section 1012.32, Florida Statutes, and any fee imposed by the Florida Department of Law Enforcement to maintain the fingerprints provided with respect to Contractor and its personnel. The Parties agree that the failure of Contractor to perform any of the duties described in this section shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement entitling SBBC to terminate immediately with no further responsibilities or duties to perform under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless SBBC, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting in Contractor s failure to comply with the requirements of this section or Sections 1012.32 and 1012.465, Florida Statutes.

Bidder agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner, its officers and employees from any liability in the form of physical or mental injury, death or property damage resulting from Bidder's failure to comply with the requirement of this Section or Section 1012.32 and Section 1012.465, Florida Statutes in addition to any other indemnification obligations that may be imposed upon Bidder pursuant to SBBC Indemnification requirements as revised and the laws of Florida.

(To be signed in the presence of a notary public or other officer authorized to administer oaths.)

STATE OF	
COUNTY OF Before me, the undersigned authority,	personally appeared
sworn, made the following statement:	who, being by me first duly
1. Contractor Name:	
Address:	
 My relationship to the Contractor named in (1) above is: Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN) (or if entity has no FEIN, the social security number of the person signing this sworn statement) 	(List relationship such as sole proprietor, partner, president, vice president, etc.)
INDICATED IN DOCUMENT 00200. CC STATUTES IS REQUIRED PRIOR TO PROCEED. The above-named Contractor prese Section 1012.465, Florida Statute	OF SUBMISSION OF POST-AWARD DOCUMENTS OMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 1012.465, FLORIDA ISSUANCE OF DOCUMENT 00550, NOTICE TO ently complies fully with the requirements set forth in s to the extent that all contractual personnel to be id HAVE met Level 2 Screening requirements set forth s.
ВҮ:	DATE:
NAME (Printed)	TITLE:
Notarization	State of:)
Sworn to and subscribed before me, the u	County of:)
who is personally known to me or did produce: an identification and who did take an	oath.
Notary Public:	Affix Seal

School Board of Broward County - Contractors & Vendors

Those who need to request entry badges to the Broward School Board Facilities need to go to <u>http://www.broward.k12.fl.us/police/secclear.html</u> and follow the instructions for Fieldprint registration and scheduling process.

Before processing your documentation you need to have a signed contract or Purchase Order and a Vendor number; to obtain a Vendor number please call (754) 321-2374.

All vendors and contractors must provide the necessary information as soon as possible to Fieldprint. These documents can be found by selecting "Click Here for Forms and Other Necessary Information" hyperlink.

If you have any questions, please call Security Clearance Department at 754-321-2374.

Cupara.	W-9 Request for Taxpayer Proc. Aspect 2013) Identification Number and Certification			Give f reque	stor, I)o not		
		l your incorre lax fakirtij				ţ		
0e2.	Business forthe dr	regarded entry name, if different from above						······
Print or type See Specific instructions on frag	Chack appropriets	box for success law classification: a propriator C Corporation S Corporation	🗋 Parbarahip 🔲 Taus		·	ns (5300 kns) 1990 - 2006 (9 <u>;</u>
tt or 1	🕈 🖥 🔲 Limbor labelly company. Enter the fax classification (C+C corporation, S+S corporation, P-partnership) 🛌 👔				emption from FATCA reporting			
45	📋 Other pass in	11123075 >						
peol	Actua fundor,	struat, and apt. or suits no.)	Raqu	ostar's name i	ent autor	s șoșternată		
Sea 5	City, state, and 23	³ coda						
	List account numb	enist even initiality						
Par	ti Taxpa	yer Identification Number (TIN)						
Ender		propriate box. The TIN provided must match the nam	ne given on the "Name" line	Social so	custicy sound	Der		
		iding. For Individuals, this is your social security num					T	
		ntetor, or disnegarded entity, see the Part I instruction yer identification number (EIM). If you do not have a r						
	a page 3.		· "					
		h more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for g	uidelines on whose	Employee	mpioyse identification number			<u></u>
1908143	er to enter.				-			
Par	Cortifi	cation		_11,,1,		L		
	penaltes of park				••••••			
		on this form is my correct taxpayer identification num	oer (or) am walling for a nur	nder to be is	sued to m	ej, and		
Se	rvice (IRS) that I a	isckup witholding because: (a) I am etempt from ba m subject to backup witholding at a result of a failu backup witholding, and	ckup withholding, or (b) I have re to report all interest or div	ve not been Idends, or (d	notified by) the IRS f	i the inter Vas notifie	nal Aev d me t	venus Dati am
3.1器	n a U.S. citzen o	rother U.S. person (defined below), and						
4. TN	FATCA code(s) e	niered on 1% form (I any) incleating that I am every	ot trom FATCA reporting is o	orrect				
Decau Intere gener Instru	se you have talex st paid, acquisitio ally, payments of ctions on page 3.	Ins. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been to report all interest and dividends on your tax return nor abandonment of secured property, cancellation wer than interest and dividends, you are not required to the than interest and dividends.	n. For real estate transaction of debt, contributions to an t	is, item 2 do Norvicusi rec	es not app rement attents	xy. For m rangemer	origag It (RA)	e ,and
Sign Here			Date »					
Ger	eral Instru	tions	witholding tax on Rankyn par	'nors' share o	f allocatively	cornected	Room	e, and
Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unlikes otherwise noted.		'n Fland Baanas Coda artiste oftensien noted.	4. Cartay that FATCA code carried from the FATCA repo			ary) Indica	මායු විත	ti you ara
adcas i Sfinctit	Form W-9, at www.i Ng Form W-9 (such a	a FC3 has created a page on 1753 gov for information 1. gov/w2. Information about any future developments 18 legislation arabited after wo neitable it with the postad	Note. B you are a U.S. person and a represent gives you a form other then form W-N to request your TBL you must use the requestor's form if it is autoimitizity similar to this form W-R.					
Pump	ose of Form		Definition of a U.S. person. I person if you are:	For Ibdoral Sor	purposed (Àcon sua co	16006784	6 a U.S.
you pr	i temperat deneticat nemerita macio ilo yes filorat, nasi estata tra	The an information ration with the FES must obtain your ton number (134) to report, for assensive, income part to a softwared of payment card and third party network resultores, montages interest you paid, and shifts or resultores, montages interest you paid, and shifts or re-	 An Individual who is a U.S. of A partnership, corporation, i United States or under the law An astate partner than a torait 	company, or a ra of the Unite	ssociation o		xgaret	2137.PD
2007 (A) 10 40 8		roporty, cancollation of Gold, or contributions you made	 A comanie trust (an outnot 	In Regulation	s section 34	H.7701-JJ		
provide		u ara a U.S. parson finducing a racidari aliari, ia the parson requiring R (the raquidiar) and, when	 Special rules for partnership the United States are general 1445 on any knoigh partners' 	y roqueod to j	ny awirke	skalang basi t	nder so	CCUCTO I

 $^{\rm I}$. Carity that its TB4 you are giving is correct for you are waiting for a runther to be itsued),

2. Cartly that you are not aution to backup witholding, or

3. Claim assemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S. exempt payoe. If applicable, you are also conflying litest as a U.S. person, your allocable strend of any partnership income from a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the Special rules for partnerships, Partnerships that conclud a trade or business in the United States are generally required to pay a witholding lax under socilism 1446 on any tonign partners' share of effectively connected special trade socilism such business. Further, is contain cases where a Form W-3 has not boost received, the tube under section 1446 require a partnership to preserve that a partner is a fursign person, and pay the section 1446 witholding lax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in section 1446 witholding lax. Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a sufficient partner in state or business in the United States, provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S. partner and avoid section 1446 witholding on your stars of partnership hooms.

Get, No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Nov. 8-2013)

The School Board of Broward County IRS Form W-9 Revised 12/1/15

ກ The course beatw, if the holowing generals much grave form (N-3 th the partner and partners of security international LLS, status, and anothing mill tooking on the courses share of real Processe from the partnership correlating a basis of buildings the United Statust.

೫ ಗಳು ನಡಚಿತ್ರ ಈ ರೆಚಾವುತಾನಿಂದೆ ಆಗಲ್ಲೇ ಹಳೆದು ಡಿ ಟಿ.ವಿ. ೧೫೯೫ಕ, ಜಾಹಿ ಟಿ.ವಿ. ೧೫೯೫ಕ, ನೆ ಈ ಶಾರುತ್ತದರಿಂದ ಕೇವೆಗ್ರೆ ಹಾದ ನಿಜಿ ಕಾಡಿ ನಡಡಿತ್ರ.

• It the case of a grant of their with a U.S. grant or of the "U.S. Ower", generally, "It is "The case of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the grant of the priver them." It is "The the case of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the trans. Of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the trans. Of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the trans. Of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the trans. Of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the trans. Of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the trans. Of a U.S. Their priver them a grant of the trans. Of a U.S. Their priver them a trans and a U.S. Their priver a trans. Of the trans. Of

you are a U.S. reachert also who is refer to a reference and grasses of a lost house to chain also who is restricted to the or excession of a lost house to chain all autorybon from U.S. for on contain types of excession you must attact a statement to form the form you be provided for the diment.

The transp country. Corrently, this must be fee same transp criter writely you customed essengthen then the an a fractionedark about.
 The article standard accuration is the transport. The article standark is the transport.
 The article standard is transmitted in the transport. From the contains the supergrammer of a supergrammer and the description.
 The signed accurate the supergrammer of the transport. From the, article standard of excernes that qualities the the article from the.
 The signed accurate the quality the manufation them that the transport. From the, article.

Anton, Areau 20 of the U.S. Other income that heary shown an excerption on the size acceleration income of the U.S. Other incomes of the acceleration incomes of the acceleration incomes and acc

Payments you receive will be subject to backup withholding it:

You AD FOT AFFRET YOUT THY SO THO ROAD AFFLET FOR THAT II THENDERNES ON DADA 2. You AD FOT GATY YOUT THY WINN FRAME AFFLET FOR THAT II THENDERNES ON DADA 2. THO HAS UNA THAT YOU AFF ALAGORIA IN THOMAS AN THOMAND, FOUNDAR 4. THO HAS UNA THAT YOU AFF ALAGORIA IN DURING MATHOMAND FOUNDAR 4. THO HAS UNA THEN WILL DAVIANT ON YOU AFFLET FOR PROPERTIES FRAME FOR DADATE AFFLET AFFLET AND DAVIANT ON YOU THAT HAVE FRAME FRAME FOR THAT AFFLET AFFLET AND DAVIANT ON YOU THAT HAVE THAT FOR THAT AFFLET AFFLET

ತ್ತಿ. ಗೆಲ್ಲು ರಧಿ ಗಾಣಿ ರೂಗಕ್ಕೆ ಸಂಕ್ಷೆತ್ತಿ ಗಾಂಭಿತುಚಿತ್ರ ಬಿಸಲೆ ಭಾರು ಹಕ್ಕಿ ಗಾಗಿ ಹಿಚ್ಚುಟ್ಟು ಸಿಲಿಯೆಲ್ಲರು ಹಿಕ್ಕೆಗೇರಿಯಲ್ಲೇರು ಬಾರಿಟ್ 4 ಹುರಿಯ ಗ್ರಿನ್ ಗಾಧಿಕಾಗಿಟಿಕಿ ಗೇಹಿಗಾಡ ಸಾನ ರೋಧಾಬ್ ತಾರರುಗಾಡಿ ಕ್ರಾಮಾರ ಬೆಗೆಡ್ 1985 ರೇಶಗ್ರಿ

ົ້ວຜ່ານສາ ກອງຄາດດ ສາປ ກາງກາລາງຂອງ ແຜນການ ອັດກາ ກິດປະຊາ, ທະນຳປະນັກດູ. ອິເມດ ໂນຍາາງ: ກອງຄາດ ແລະວິດ ດຳ ລິດຊາດ 5 ສາຝີ ສາດ ອາດງານແລະ ຄຳແນ້ນແລະນາຂອງ ຈຳ ກຳ ນັ້ນ ກິດລູນແກ່ນ? ດຳ ກິດກາ W. ປີ ກິນ ຄະນາຍ ຈຳຄັວການລັກກາ.

Also suo Sipochi rahin far partnerriche en payo 1. Also suo Sipochi rahin far partnerriche en payo 1. antas se prizapatte Sinajut Neurolai heitabon ho report se latikus Sanne autorat freiden bar apporting Lisado Sanne parcera. Catalin polyton an autorat freide Angolaring Lisado Sanne parcera. Catalin polyton an autorat freide Angolaring Lisado Sanne polyton fran FATCA reporting cocto en polys 3 arct fra kraituthons kit frei Angolaring en catalina et form M.C.A.

Updating Your Information

Page 7

Thus must prove topdition thermaticity as any proving the phonon to the contract of the an example proves if you than three shows the phonon and anticipate interacting recommission provements in from the shows three shows the phonon and phonon updated framewith it you are a second to a substitution to an are it completed on it you. To harge any list and any list and the phonon and the completed on the source of 13% drawyee for the account, for a same phon, it has a new draw and the source of 13% drawyee for the account. It is associated as a new draw and the source of 13% drawyee for the account. It is associated as a for draw and the source of 13% drawyee for the account. It is associated as a for the draw and the source of 13% drawyee for the account. It is associated as a for the draw and the source of 13% drawyee for the account. It is a substituted as a for the source account of 13% drawyee for the account. It is a substitute to the draw and the source of 13% drawyee for the account. It is a substitute to the draw and the source account of 13% drawyee for the account. It is a substitute to the draw account of the draw account of the account of the draw account of the draw account of the account of the draw a

Penalties

ತ್ರಹೋಕ ನಿಂಗಿತ್ತಾಗಿತ್ತುಗೆ 754 (ಜ್ಞಾನ ಟಿಸ್) ಸ್ಥಾನ ಇಂತರ ಎಂದಾಂದ 754 ನಿಂತ ಗೂರೂಪನ್ನಿ ಇಂತ ಜನಿಭಾಗ ಕ್ರಿತಿ ಕ್ರಾಣಿಸಿಕ್ಕೆ ಇದೆ 550 ಕಿಸಿ ಎಂದು ಹಿದ್ದಾಗಿ ಹಿರಿಸಿದ ಚಿಳಿತದ ಕ್ರಾಗಿತ್ತು ಕ್ರಾಡಿ ಕ್ರಾಣಿ ಜಿನ್ನೆ ಎಂದು ಶ್ರ ಗಾಹಿರಾಹಿತಿ ರಾಜಿತಿ ಹಿರದ ಗಾತ ನಿಂತಗಿತ್ತು ಗಿಲ್ಲಾರಿಂದ

Gred pendity for (2014) ហើយការនាំងថា អេហ៊ា កានទុលនៅ to អេហ៊ាវាល៍យ័យថ្ម, វើ you ការវ័ម៌៖ និងមិន នាយ៍ណាមាន មេជ័ា ក្រុម (សេលាកាលារ៉ា busis thud នាមរណ៍ th rea buckup មេរីវាសាងាំ) you នាន អេលំអូលា វែរ ន 5500 pendity.

ែកការអន់ penuty to ដែនវាស្រុក អតីបការដល់ស. មានស្លេទ ដែលសុំសុំលូ ដោះដែលកាល នៅការដល់កា ពាមៗ ១៩សុំសុវ ទុស សំ ពេលទាន៨ សរសេងសេន វិយ៍នាវាក្នុ ទីកែស នាវេយ៍ ពាទ្រាមលាកពេល.

Minima of TDMs. # 304 Portunear checkwas or upos 7846 fr volander of federal km. R w Portunear many por traduct to carl are carried perturbed.

Specific Instructions

Name

ಣಿ ಕ್ರಂಚ ತಾಳಿ ಹಾ ಸೀದರಿಗುತ್ತಿತ್ತು ಇಂಬಿ ನಾಟಿ ಧಿನನವಟ್ಟಿ ಕಾರ್ಟಿಕ ಕ್ರಿಗೆಯ ಜಿ ಮಿ ಮಾಡು ವೇಳಲಾ ನಾಗ್ಗಳನ್ನು ಕಾರಿದಾರಿ ಮಾಡುವಾದಿ, ಬರಿಸಿಯಾಗಿ, ಶ್ರೇಲಿಸಿ ಮಾಡು ದೇಶದಲ್ಲಿ ಲ್ಲಿನಲ್ಲಿ ಕಾರ್ಟಿಯಿಸಿದೆ. ನೆಲ್ಲಿ ನಿರ್ದಾಟಿ ಮಾಡುವು ಬಿ ದಿ ಹಾಡುವುದಿ ಕಾರ್ಕಿನಲ್ಲಿ ಬೇಕಾಗುಳ್ಳು ತಿಂದ ನಿರ್ಮಾಟ ನೆಲುಗುಳಿ ನಿರ್ದಾಶ ಎಂದು ತುಂಬಗಳಿ, ವರ್ಷ ತೋರ್ ನಿರ್ದ ಹಾಡುವು ರಿಂದ ತೇವೆ ಮಾಡು, ಆಟಿ ಮಿದೆ ನಿರ್ಮಾಖಗಳು ನಗ್ಗಿ ನಿರ್ದಾಶ ಎಂದುತೆ ತುಂಬಗಳಿ, ವರ್ಷ ಮಾರು ತಾರು

e the account is in juit namer, his first, and than thirdo, the name of the parameter with parameter you extend to the to the tarmet

or anny minima internal your works and in the tab bulk.
 Bergerpieler, Kinse your works and an internal carry your works. In the more state and the more state

Exemptions

ಕಿ ಕ್ರಾಂತ ಹಾಡಿಗಳು ಕರ್ಯಾಶಿವರ್ಷಿಕು ಕುಡುಗುರುತ್ತದ್ದಾರೆ ಕರ್ನುರ್ ಕಿರ್ನಿಸಿ ಸಿಲ್ಲಂದರಿದ್ದ ವಾಡ್ ತೀ ರಿಕ್ ವಿತಿಷ್ಣಾದರೆಗಳು ದಿರ್ಶಿಷ್ಟ ಇತ್ತು ನಂಡುತ್ತಿಗಳು ಗೂಳು ಕ್ರಾಲ್ಗಾ ಗಿತ್ತಿಗಳು ವಿತಿಷ್ಟಾರಿಗಳು ರಿಕ್ರಿಸಿ ಸಿಲ್ಲಿಂದರೆಗಳು ರಿಕುತಿ ಹ ವಿಷಣ್ಣಗಳುಗಳು ಕ್ರಿತಿಸಿ ಸಿತ್ರಿ ಗಿತ್ತಿಗಳು ಕ್ರಾತಿಗಳು

Page 3

FORM \$1.4 \$104. 8.2013

Example payses code, Danarally, Individuals (Including acts proprioting) are not example sum backup with rotang. Corporations are exempt from backup with folding for contain payments, such as interest and dividends. Corporations are not example from backup with holding for payments made in automore of payment cand on third party network transactions.

Note, 8 you are exempt from DECAP withouting, you aroust all complete inte-form to should possible entropy to backup withouting.

The following codes identity payoes that are exampt from backup withouting:

 $I \sim An organization energy from the under section 501(a), any FIA, or a controllar encourt variance sectors A03(b)(7) if the account variance the requirements of sectors 401(g)?)$

2-756 United States or any of its agencies of instrumentalities

3-A state, the Depict of Cokresse, a possessor of the Livited States, or any of their political subclusions or Texture antishing

4-A broken genomenant or any of its political subclustering againeds, or international

5-A corporation

0-A desire in socurities or commodities required to regular in the United States, we District of Commiss, or a possession of we United States

7-A RAIses commission monthers registered with the Commonly Fictures Tracing Commission

8 ... A roal octato invostmore bias

3—An analy registered at al limits during the law year under the involument Company Aci at 1940

13-A common trust tund operated by a bank under section 58486

11-A Provide Inside days

12-A middleson known in the investment community as a monitole or ALC:00

13-A trust example from the limber southers (204 or described in souther 4047 This indowing chart shows lypes of payments that may be exampl from beckup withholding. The chart spokes to the sample payoes inted above, I through U.

IF the payment is for	THEN the payment is assumpt for
FERRIT and charanal paymonts	At another payoon ancast to 7
Broker Bureactions	Exempt payoes 1 Prough 4 and 8 Prough 11 and all C corporations. S corporations must not write an autompt payoe occle buckment thay tra emerget only for sales of honcovered accurates acquired prior to 2012.
Darlar dechange transactions and petronage chickange	Exampl payson 1 Strough 4
Payments over \$600 requires \$0.00 reported and druct asias over \$5,000 ¹	Generally, Geompt paywas 1 Brough 5 ⁴
Payments made in suttempt of payment and or third party howerk transactions	Exempt payoos 1 Proug) 4

*Son Form 1009-MISC, Miscolanuous brooms, and in trainactions

the root science, managements such a single statement, and as reputation, the following and the second science is the second science from backage with the science and health care payments, alternays local grows provided and to an alternay, and payments for survival paid by a backars exceede apart is an alternay. and payments for survival paid by a backars exceede apart, and care and the second science and مەرغ. 1 ⁴

Examples it is a KACA reporting code. The tokening codes isolatily payees that are examplified in the porting of the FATCA. These codes uppy is persons submitting the form sporting under FATCA. These codes uppy is persons submitting the form some strandstand output toked States by contain longin the activity. Therefore, if you are only submitting the form for an eccentric you note in the United States, you may be fold barn. Consist with the person under the form for an experiment of the formation herein a subject to these requirements.

A....An organization assumpt from the section 60 tost or any intividual relation of the or any intividual relation of 770 (ps(27)

8-The United States or any of its agancies or instrumentation

C - A sinio, the District of Columbia, a possession of the United Status, or any of Delt political autoreterms or instrumentation

Of Early possible subsystems is a new communication of the possible and the state of which is regularly traded on only or more obstablement subcritice markeds, as discording in Fig. southers 1.1472-16(3)[8] E-A corporation that is a method of the same expanded stillared group as a corporation described in Reg. southers 1.1472-16(3)[8]

5 — A choice is accusting, commodition, or darkedre transmiss tratements (including roburne processes contents, fatures, forwards, and options) that is registered as such show the laws of the United States or any sizes

G....A tool assists troosprings from

H-A regulated investment company as defined in section 361 or an entity regatered at all lines during the burywar under the investment Company Act of 1940

L-A common trust tune as defined in sector 564as

J., A bank as defined in sectors 681

K....A broker

L - A TUST MUTTOR TOTS SIX UNDER SOCION OCA OF CREATING IN SUCTOR 4947(8)(1) M - A lax sweept trust under a section 403(b) plan or section 467(g) plan

Part I. Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box if you are a resident shen and you do not new and are not elegate to got an SSR, your TIN is your INS interested largery identification number (TIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not have an TIN, see How to got a TIN boxey.

of you are a sole propriate and you have an ERL you may araw eather your SSN or ERL However, the ship prefers that you use your SSN.

CE ENCLOYMENT, HERE'S HERE'S ENTYTE CALL AND THE SALE SALE. IN 500 JPG a Single-receiver LLC That is distant and anish superists from Es-center have landed labeling Company (LLC) on page 23, wher the concerts SSN for EN, it for mean has cong. Do not using the damaganted anthy to EN, it the LLC is classified as a corporation or partnersing, while the damaganted anthy to EN, it the LLC is

Note, See the chart on page 4 for further clatification of rame and Title combinations.

combinations. How to get a Tirk, if you do not raws a Tirk, apply for one immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application for a Social Security Card, non-your local Social Security Administration office or get File form on the set www.saa.gov. You new also get this form by casing 1-260.777-1721. Use Forms W.7. Application for WE individual Tappayer identification Nations, to apply for an IDN, or Form SS-4, Application for Employer identification Nations, to apply for an EDN, You can apply for an EDI online by accounting the IES wobels at white Figure Duratesan and criticing on Employer identification Nations (EDN) under Starting a Businesse and cating of Forms W-7 accounting the IES wobels at white Figure Duratesan and cating on Employer identification Nations (EDN) under Starting a Businesse Tou Law of Forms W-7 accounting the IES by violating IES give or by calling 1-800-TAX-DORM (1-500-8:30-3:05:0).

TALL-DENK (1-BOULD-D-D-D-D), st you are asked to complete term W-B but do not have a TNL apply for a TDH and with "Applied For" In the space for the TNL skys and deal the term, and give it to the topositier. For interest and dividend (approxim, and certain payments made were respect to nearby tradebili instruments, generately, and certain payments made were respect to nearby tradebili instruments, generately out will have 00 days to get a TNL and give it to instruct bolic you are subject to backup with heaving on payments. The 60-day state does not apply to other types of payments, You will be subject to backup with heaving on as such payments units you proveds your TDH to the frequents.

Note, Estarting "Applies For" makes that you have atmany applies for a TBI or that you intend to apply for one soon.

Caubon: A dissigned at U.S. entry that has a longer carrier must use the appropriate Form W-2.

Part II. Certification

To relabilish to the withinking agant that you are a U.S. person, or matiant alam, sign Form W-D. You may be requested to sign by the withfolding agant even if dones 1, 4, or 5 betwe indicate caterwise.

For a joint account, only the parson whose TRN is shown in Part I should stor future required, in two case of a Clangeroud only, the parson islanting on the "Name" the transf sign. Example payooe, see Example payoe code earlier.

Signature requirements, Complete the center region code series. Signature requirements, Complete the centeration as indicated in fame 5 monups 5 betwee.

1, interest, childond, and barlar stichange accounts opened before 1994 and broker accounts considered active during TASL. You must give your correct THL bid you do not have to algo TA cartitization.

Conceptions and provide the new program of the formation of the second s

3. Real estate wansactions, You must sky the cardination. You may cross out nom 2 of the curtification

Sum 2 of the Curtimeteries, 4. Other payments, You studi give your contact TW, but you do not have to sign the Curtification unless you have been foothed the you have previously given an incorect TR. "Other payments" include payments ends in the course of the requestor's trade or business for strict, tryation, goods joins' than bits for mentionation, marked and heath care services for clutching payments to corporations, payments to a remaniportee for services, payments in corporations, payments to a remaniportee for services, payments in corporations, payments to a remaniportee for services, payments to corporations, payments to a remaniportee for services, payments to corporations, payments to a remaniportee for services, payments to cortain 2string book crow members and faith instructs, and grows proceeds paid to alternays (including payments to corporations).

5. Nortgaga Interest past by you, acquitation or abandonment of securi property, cancellation of debt, qualified fieldon program payments funder section 52%, iRA, Coverdell USA, Archer MSA or HEA contributions or distributions, and ponsion distributions. You must give your correct TPA, but you do not have to ston the cartification.

Page 4

Form W-0 Flow, 8-2013)

For this type of account:	Ghie name and Son pl;
1. individual 2. Two or more individuals (parti account)	The fadestat The actual contact of the account or, it combined funct, the trat ited wides on the instant '
3. Custodian account of a refer (Arrown Giff to Manara Act)	The states *
A. R. The usual succession any flys from (gravitor to also Funited) D. So-called Bust account fusion not a logal of water bust from trader	The granes in star '
statu ine	
 Sale propriotoration or disregarded untilly owned by an individual 	The patter"
 Ocantor trust ting under Optional Form 1000 Filing Method 1 (200 Flogulation socials 1, 671–4,567(9)(43) 	sine granker,
For this type of account:	Give name and Eth of:
J. Derogenous oning not behad by in-	The every
8. A valid trust, octato, or pension trust	Logie writty *
9. Corporation or LLC studing corporate status on Form 8632 or Form 2562	The corporation
 Association, club, religious, character, aducational, or other ion-scarcel organization 	The organization
11. Partnership or multi-member U.C.	The partnership
12. A broker of registered normanies	The proter or flortings
13. Account with the Department of Approximate in the name of a pathic write joach are a state or local government, school statics, or program payments.	The public sector
 Granitor busit Hing under bis Form 1041 Films Method or the Optional Form 1000 Films Method 2 mete 	The Inust

Unit first and choice the regime of the person whose number you haven. If only one person on a just answer has an XIPs, they person's number must be furthered.

* Circle the minor's name and furnish the minor's SOV.

Construction and a second second of source of a source of the source of t

sides. If no norms is precised short store than one paires is indeel, the purchase will be prescribed to be that of the jury norms issied,

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft

Identify their occurs when someone uses your personal information such as your name, social sociarity number (SSN), or other identifying intermation, without your permission, to commit must or other intermet. An identify their may de your SSN to get a job or may the a tax reach using your SSN to reach a reach.

- To roome your read
- . Prosect your SIGM

• Ensure your employer is protecting your SSH, and

- He carets when choosing a sax preparer.

If your tax recents are attacted by identity that and you receive a notice trans the IFS, recent right every to the name and phone number proved on the IFS rotate of water.

If your has necessarily an one company attached by starting that has you there you are at the due to a too or stoken pures or water, questionable credit cost activity or small report, contact the FIS identity Thest House at 1-200-508-4490 or submit Form 14200.

For more information, and Publication 4535, Manuar That Provention and Victors 1.

¹ Schman of blanking hulp information and separation ratio of a system shows of the second problem in teaching has problem in the name not been reached strongs normal charmals, may be explain for Tacayer Advances Survice (TAS) advantation, You can reach TAS by calling the Tacayer Advances bracks the at 1-877-777-4778 or YTY/TEO 1-800-829-4050.

Protect postnet from suspicous estable or phisting schemes. Prizring is the conston and use of enast and websited designed to mining legitimate business enastis and websites. The most CONTROL act is sanding an enast to a user labely classified to be an exactivities of legitimate entryphics is an adverge in scenar the user into surrendering primite internation that we be used for storally that.

The HIS does not inflate contacts with temporers via entails. And, the SNS does not inquest personal destated inflationship introducts an and an appropriate source of the PM numbers, personal destated inflationship is a source of the personal source and the source of the source of the frances accounts.

See a. or other matchine account is. If you making an unsolicited wheel Cosinsing to be more than this rest, forward this measure to prevent performance you may size report measure of the HRS nema, logo, or other FRS perpensive to the Transvy Reporter Conners for Tax Administration at 1-800-306 4-854. You can forward supplicitue emails to the Federal Trade Commission at spamblung-per or contact them at www.fs.gowicthet or 1-877-KOTHEFT (1-877-458-3369).

Visit Fig. son to have more about Kimility that and how to rack no your fick.

Privacy Act Notice

Socion 6100 of the bitanus Newarus Godo requires you to provide your correct TNI to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to the bitanustion matures with the RS to report prevent, divisional, or carties other encome paid to your correct TNI to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to the bitanustion matures with the RS to report prevent, divisional, or carties other encome paid to your correct TNI to persons (including federal agencies) who are required to the bitanustion matures with the RS to report prevent, divisional, or carties other encome paid to your consistent persons you paid, the acculation or ablandomment of secured property; the canoditation importing the above termines. Pactime uses of this Momentane (the person of ablandomment of aecularity encome paid to your the secure and state agencies to entities the encome paid to your other and the secure of use of the the trainmation and the encome paid to your the federal and state agencies to entities the context takes, or to holderal law entotements and integrates to context to contain the termination (the your the indext and state agencies to entote a the other takes, or to holderal law entotements and integrates and context to be the method or not you are required to the a tax extent. Under social parently without a percentage of backband, dividend, and context other perments to a payse who does not give a TNI to the payor. Certain penalties may also apply for providing takes or faultions.

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

Professional Services Agreement

ATTACHMENT 10

Truth in Negotiations Certification

The format for the truth-in-negotiations certification is presented below. The consultant must complete this attachment prior to contract processing:

(Firm's Letterhead)

PROJECT NAME:

AMOUNT OF CONTRACT:

CERTIFICATE OF TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION

This is to certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, all wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation negotiated for the referenced contract are accurate, complete, and current at the time of contracting as defined in Florida Statutes CH287.055 (5) (a) and represented to The School Board of Broward County, Florida or their representative(s) in support of:

PROJECT NAME (S)

Are accurate, complete and current as of

(Day), (Month) (Year)

FIRM: (Name exactly as listed on contract)

PRESIDENT:

Ву: ______

Reference: Florida Statutes 287.055



The School Board of Broward County, Florida ACH Payment Agreement Form (ACH CREDITS)

VENDOR NAME:

Authorization Agreement

I (we) hereby authorize The School Board of Broward County to initiate automatic deposits (credits) to my account at the financial institution named below. Additionally, I authorize The School Board of Broward County to make the necessary debit entries/adjustments in the event that a credit entry is made in error.

Further, I agree not to hold The School Board of Broward County responsible for any delay or loss of funds due to incorrect or incomplete information supplied by me or by my financial institution or due to an error on the part of my financial institution in depositing funds to my account.

This agreement will remain in effect until The School Board of Broward County receives written notification of cancellation from me or my financial institution and that the origination of ACH transactions to my (our) account must comply with the provisions of U.S. law. Account Information

Branch/ State:			
Routing No:			
	Chec	ckina	Saving
Account No:	·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u> </u>	
VENDOR AREA:			
Remittance Confirmation:	Fa	ax	Em
(please select оле)			Ľ
Federal Identification No.	TA	X ID#	SS
			ос Г
U U	pdate Purchase Order Fax & Email Address	5	
Centralized Fax Number		Dept	
Centralized Email		Dept.	
Centralized Phone No.		Dept.	
	Signature		
Authorized Signature	<u>and orginature in and a state</u>	a na sana na sana sa	
	<u></u>	Date:	
Authorized Signature			
		Date	
	VOIDED check to verify bank details and routing number.		
	e returned to: SBBC – Purchasing – Data Strategy Group Blvd, Sunrise FL 33351 call: 754-321-0516 or fax # 754-321		
	For Use by DATA STRATEGY GROUP		
Vandaz Aanguntt	Date Entered	Initiale	

The School Board of Broward County, Florida

RFQ # and NAME_____

DISCLOSURE OF POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND CONFLICTING EMPLOYMENT OR CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIP

In accordance with the RFQ, each Proposer must disclose, in its RFQ, the names of any employees who are employed by Proposer who are also an employee of SBBC. Persons identified below may have obligations and restrictions applicable to them under Chapter 112, Florida Statutes.

Name of Proposer's Employee	SBBC Title or Position of Proposer's Employee	SBBC Department/ School of Proposer's Employee	
	·	4	
	own persons employed by Proposer who are a ons who are employed by Proposer, who are a		
Signature	Company	Name	
Name of Official	Business Address		
	City, State, Zip Code		
The School Board of Broward County Revised 12/1/15			

REQUIRED RESPONSE FORM - Proposer Information

RFQ Issued Date: Title of Request or Solicitation	1:
Note: For Joint Venture Proposals, see instruct PROPOSER INFORM	
PROPOSER'S (COMPANY) NAME:	
STREET ADDRESS:	
CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE:	
PROPOSER TELEPHONE: PROPOSER F	
CONTACT PERSON:	
CONTACT TELEPHONE: CONTACT F/	.X:
E-MAIL ADDRESS TO SEND PURCHASE ORDERS TO:	
INTERNET E-MAIL ADDRESS: INTERN	ET URL:
PROPOSER FIRM - TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER:	
Proposal Certific: I hereby certify that: 1. I am submitting the following information as my Firm's Qualifications and I am a 2. Proposer has not discussed, or compared the Qualifications with other Propose 3. Proposer, its principals, or their lobbyists has not provided any campaign cont Proposer is attempting to qualify, to provide Design Services to the School Board of silence" period for any solicitation for a competitive procurement as described b School Board Policy 3320, Part II, Section HH School Board Policy 1007, Section 5.4 Campaign Contribution Fundra 4. Proposer acknowledges that all information contained herein is part of the pul Records Laws. 5 All responses, data and information contained in this Proposal are true and accu 6. Proposer agrees to acceptance of the contents of all pages in this Request for all issued Addenda. 7. Proposer agrees to be bound to all terms, conditions and requirements i Attachments. 8. The Proposer understands that everything contained herein are requirements of Qualifications submitted.	an Officer of the Firm. rs and has not colluded with any other Proposer. ributions to School Board Members during the period in which the . This period of limitation shall commence at the time of the "cone y: ising plic record as defined by the State of Florida Sunshine and Public rate Qualifications (RFQ) including all attachments and the contents of dentified in the Request for Qualifications, its Addenda and its
Signature of Proposer's Officer (blue ink preferred on original)	Date
Name of Proposer's Officer	Title of Proposer's Officer.
JOINT VENTURES: In the event multiple Proposers submit a joint Proposal in Prime Proposer. If offering a joint Proposal, Prime Proposer must include the nar chall provide all bording and insurance requirements, execute any Contract of	ne and address of all parties of the joint Proposal. Prime Proposer

shall provide all bonding and insurance requirements, execute any Contract, complete the <u>REQUIRED RESPONSE FORM</u> shown herein, have overall and complete accountability to resolve any dispute arising within this contract. Only a single contract with one Proposer shall be acceptable. Prime Proposer responsibilities shall include, but not be limited to, performing of overall contract administration, preside over other Proposers participating or present at SBBC meetings, oversee preparation of reports and presentations, and file any notice of protest and final protest as described herein. Prime Proposer shall also prepare and present a consolidated invoice(s) for services performed. SBBC shall issue only one check for each consolidated invoice to the Prime Proposer for services performed. Prime Proposer shall remain responsible for performing services associated with response to this RFQ.

PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Firm:

RFQ #: ______

Scope of Available Services Form

(Both of these columns can be yes)				
Scope of Services	In House Services (yes or no)	Consultant		
Architecture				
Civil Engineering				
Electrical Engineering	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
v v				
Land Surveying				
Mechanical Engineering				
noonanoor				
Structural Engineering				
Structural Engineering				
Landscape Design	<u>ن</u>			
Site Analysis and Planning				
Plumbing Design				
Other				

Broward County Schools Design Services Revised 12/1/15 PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



The School Board of Broward County, Florida Procurement and Warehousing Department 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323 Sunrise, Florida 33351

(754) 321-0505

Document 00220a: Proposer's Request for Information

To: Purchasing Agent Procurement and Warehousing Department 7720 W. Oakland Park Blvd., Suite 323 Sunrise, Florida 33351 Date: _

(For Owner's Use Only) **Bidder's RFI No.:**

Project:	Project Number &
	Location Number:
Facility Name:	Project Consultant:

Category:

- Information not shown on RFQ Documents
- Interpretation of RFQ Documents
- Conflict in RFQ Requirements
- Coordination

Subject:

Description:

Attachments:

Bidder:	By:	
Company Name & Address:	Signature	1
Phone:	Title	٠

The School Board of Broward County Proposer's Request for Information Revised 12/1/15 PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

,